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 32 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 33 

Council convened at the Marriott Beachside, Key West, Florida, 34 

Thursday morning, June 9, 2011, and was called to order at 8:30 35 

a.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN BOB SHIPP:  Good afternoon, everyone.  I want to call 38 

to order the 231st meeting of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery 39 

Management Council.  My name is Bob Shipp and as Chairman of the 40 

council, I welcome you all.   41 

 42 

Members of the public will be permitted to present oral 43 

statements in accordance with the schedule published in the 44 

agenda.  Please advise the council staff if you desire to 45 

address the council.  Please give written statements to the 46 

council staff, who are sitting at the tables on the side. 47 

 48 
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The 1996 amendments to the Fishery Management Act require all 1 

oral or written statements to include a brief description of the 2 

background and interest of the persons in the subject of the 3 

statement.  All written information shall include a statement of 4 

the source and date of such information. 5 

 6 

It is unlawful for any person to knowingly and willfully submit 7 

to the council false information regarding any manner the 8 

council is considering in the course of carrying out the 9 

Fisheries Act.   10 

 11 

If you have a cell phone, pager, or similar device, we ask that 12 

you keep them on silent or vibrating mode during the council and 13 

committee sessions.  A digital recording is used for the public 14 

record and therefore, for the purpose of voice identification, 15 

each member is requested to identify himself or herself, 16 

starting on my left.  17 

 18 

MR. BOB GILL:  Bob Gill, Florida. 19 

 20 

MR. BILL TEEHAN:  Bill Teehan, Florida. 21 

 22 

DR. LARRY ABELE:  Larry Abele, Florida. 23 

 24 

MR. ED SAPP:  Ed Sapp, Florida. 25 

 26 

MR. LARRY SIMPSON:  Larry Simpson, Gulf States Marine Fisheries 27 

Commission. 28 

 29 

LCDR CARMEN DEGEORGE:  Carmen DeGeorge, Coast Guard District 8. 30 

 31 

MR. CORKY PERRET:  Corky Perret, Mississippi. 32 

 33 

DR. TOM MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi. 34 

 35 

MR. MYRON FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 36 

 37 

MR. HARLON PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, Louisiana. 38 

 39 

MS. KAY WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 40 

 41 

MR. BEN HARTIG:  Ben Hartig, South Atlantic Fishery Management 42 

Council, Spiny Lobster Committee. 43 

 44 

MR. SHEPHERD GRIMES:  Shepherd Grimes, NOAA Office of General 45 

Counsel, Southeast Region. 46 

 47 

DR. ROY CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries. 48 
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 1 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  Phil Steele, NOAA Fisheries. 2 

 3 

DR. BONNIE PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 4 

 5 

MR. ROBIN RIECHERS:  Robin Riechers, Texas. 6 

 7 

MR. DOUG BOYD:  Doug Boyd, Texas. 8 

 9 

MR. JOE HENDRIX:  Joe Hendrix, Texas. 10 

 11 

MR. JOHNNY GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 12 

 13 

MR. KEVIN ANSON:  Kevin Anson, Alabama. 14 

 15 

MR. DAVID CUPKA:  David Cupka, South Atlantic Council. 16 

 17 

MR. MARK ROBSON:  Mark Robson, South Atlantic Council, Lobster 18 

Committee and Mackerel. 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR STEVE BORTONE:  Steve Bortone, Gulf Council. 21 

 22 

PRESENTATION OF AWARDS AND REMEMBRANCE OF WAYNE SWINGLE 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Before we get into the agenda, we 25 

have a couple of awards to make.  First is Joe.  On behalf of 26 

all the council members, we appreciate your nine years of 27 

service. 28 

 29 

MR. HENDRIX:  Thank you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Next is Ed.  Your term was short, but very 32 

productive and we appreciate it.  Thank you. 33 

 34 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  At this time, I would like to have 35 

our friend and colleague Corky Perret say a few words about our 36 

former Executive Director. 37 

 38 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you very much, Dr. Bortone and Chairman 39 

Shipp.  As most everyone in the room knows, the first Executive 40 

Director the council ever had, Mr. Wayne Eugene Swingle, who 41 

served for some thirty or thirty-one years recently passed away 42 

and Dr. Shipp and Dr. Bortone asked me to put together a few 43 

things about Mr. Swingle and so if I could have a few minutes of 44 

your time, please. 45 

 46 

Wayne Eugene Swingle, Sr., was born March 16, 1937 in Auburn, 47 

Alabama.  He passed away May 11 of this year in Brandon, 48 
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Florida.  He was one of five children.  He and his siblings 1 

lived in Auburn throughout high school. 2 

 3 

Mr. Swingle began his interaction with the marine environment 4 

when he enlisted in the United States Navy and served his 5 

country for two years, until he was honorably discharged in 6 

1957. 7 

 8 

Wayne then enrolled at Auburn University, where he received his 9 

Bachelor of Science in 1961 and followed by his Master of 10 

Science in 1964.  While at Auburn, he was a member of the Honor 11 

Society Phi Kappa Phi as well as the Fraternity Gamma Sigma 12 

Delta. 13 

 14 

Wayne was an institution, a man who had over the years proved 15 

his mettle in the reign of marine fisheries, this business that 16 

we all share.  He was known and respected locally, regionally, 17 

nationally, and internationally for his expertise in fishery 18 

management. 19 

 20 

Wayne came by this calling both through genetics and the 21 

environment.  His father, Homer Swingle, is synonymous with 22 

freshwater aquaculture, having trained the best and brightest 23 

minds at Auburn University over many generations.   24 

 25 

His brother Hugh was a long-time Alabama Director of the Marine 26 

Resources Division, that is after Wayne left that position to go 27 

to work as the first Executive Director of the newly created in 28 

1970/1971 Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council.  Wayne set 29 

up shop in Tampa in 1977.  Marine fisheries work was the core of 30 

this man. 31 

 32 

Wayne began his career in marine fisheries management as a 33 

research biologist with the Marine Resources Division of the 34 

Alabama Department of Conservation and Natural Resources in 35 

1969. 36 

 37 

He quickly rose through the ranks and became the Chief Marine 38 

Biologist with the Division in 1972 and then was promoted to the 39 

Director of the Marine Resources Division in 1975.  In 1977, he 40 

changed from state management issues to the federal perspective 41 

when he was appointed as Executive Director of the Gulf of 42 

Mexico Fishery Management Council, retiring from that position 43 

in 2008. 44 

 45 

Throughout his career, Mr. Swingle served on numerous boards, 46 

committees, task forces, and other marine fisheries advisory 47 

bodies, including as a member of the Gulf States Marine 48 
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Fisheries Commission Technical Committee, the Menhaden Advisory 1 

Committee, the SEAMAP Subcommittee. 2 

 3 

He was Chairman of the Gulf States Anadromous Fish Subcommittee.  4 

He was a member of the Mississippi/Alabama Sea Grant Advisory 5 

Board, the Alabama Coastal Area Board, the Governors Committee 6 

on the Outer Continental Shelf Development, and a member of the 7 

MARFIN board. 8 

 9 

He was a certified fisheries scientist by the American Fisheries 10 

Society and a member of the World Mariculture Society.  I’ll 11 

stop enumerating his affiliations, since we could be here all 12 

day noting his service on various boards, committees, and task 13 

forces. 14 

 15 

Many of us always marveled as his memory of details and his 16 

unflappable demeanor by which he took on the controversial 17 

issues we have faced throughout the years.  Widely known in his 18 

industry, Wayne was well respected and referred to as one who 19 

did not speak unkindly of others. 20 

 21 

He was a mentor to many in his field and relentless in his 22 

dedication and commitment to the management of the marine 23 

fisheries of the Gulf of Mexico.  Wayne was a friend to many of 24 

us and will be sorely missed.  Thank you. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Perret.  With your concurrence, 27 

we’re going to deviate a little bit from the agenda.  We will go 28 

ahead and adopt the agenda and approve the minutes and then 29 

we’re going to move directly into the public hearing.  For the 30 

agenda, the adoption of the agenda, it’s Tab A, Number 4. 31 

 32 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  I would like to add one item under Other Business, 35 

which is Mid-Atlantic Research Set-Aside Program. 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I would like to add, under Other 38 

Business, a discussion about the Gulf of Mexico Alliance. 39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, I actually have three items that I 41 

would like to add, Information on SSC Panel, Scheduling of 42 

Council Meetings and AP Meetings, and SEDAR Considerations.  43 

Thank you. 44 

 45 

MR. PEARCE:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to add, under Other 46 

Business, Discussion of the Shrimp Trawl Turtle Issue with 47 

National Marine Fisheries Enforcement. 48 
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 1 

MR. SAPP:  Prior to committee reports and appointment of 2 

advisory panel selection, I would like to have an opportunity to 3 

have some discussion about whether it’s appropriate for us to 4 

move forward with those appointments. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you and would you remind me when we get 7 

to that point?  Any other additions to the agenda?  Is there a 8 

motion to approve the agenda as amended? 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  So moved. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second? 13 

 14 

MR. TEEHAN:  Second. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are there objections?  The agenda is adopted.  17 

The next item is the Approval of Minutes, Tab A, Number 5. 18 

 19 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  On page 165, line 14, the word “here” needs to be 22 

changed to “hear”. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Gill.  I can’t believe that Mr. 25 

Grimes didn’t catch that. 26 

 27 

MR. GRIMES:  I must be slipping.  Page 157, line 22, insert the 28 

word “no” before the second use of the word “averaging”.  Thank 29 

you. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any other corrections to the 32 

minutes?   33 

 34 

MR. PERRET:  On page 195, and I quote Dr. Bortone, “but I’m 35 

promised that Corky will take care of it”, he got his letter a 36 

week or two later and so I took care of it. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a motion to approve the minutes as 39 

corrected? 40 

 41 

MR. GILL:  So moved. 42 

 43 

MR. TEEHAN:  Second. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are there objections?  Hearing none, okay.  We 46 

are going to now go into public hearings and because of the 47 

logistics and the topics and the language situation, we’re going 48 
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to modify our procedure just a little bit. 1 

 2 

We’re going to address the spiny lobster issues first and our 3 

first speaker is Leonardo Rodriguez. 4 

 5 

PUBLIC TESTIMONY 6 

FINAL ACTION ON JOINT SPINY LOBSTER AMENDMENT 10 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Liz Prieto is going to be the 9 

translator and you should know that we had a workshop.  Doug 10 

Gregory and Bill Kelly sponsored one the other night, which 11 

brought a lot of our colleagues here and fishermen here to talk 12 

about this, and some of their comment is a result of that 13 

meeting and thanks, Liz. 14 

 15 

MR. LEONARDO RODRIGUEZ:  Every time there’s a meeting there’s an 16 

excuse for something and he wants to bring that up.  In regards 17 

to the quota, every time something is brought up and it has to 18 

do with a quota as fishermen and a lot of the fishermen are not 19 

agreeing with the quota. 20 

 21 

Always it’s something that comes up and it’s like handing out 22 

cake and then cutting it with a knife.  You took the parks away 23 

from us and you want to restrict more like the parks and 24 

regarding the kingfish, since I only have three minutes, I want 25 

to speak a little bit fast. 26 

 27 

What is the motive that up north they can catch 3,200 pounds and 28 

down here we’re only allowed to catch 1,250?  Why is the reason?  29 

When we go fishing, we go fishing for eighty miles and they go 30 

fishing for less miles. 31 

 32 

In regards to the rope, why do you want to change the colors of 33 

the rope?  No matter what color the rope, if something is 34 

entangled as far as a turtle, it’s going to die no matter what 35 

color the rope is.  That is what I would like to bring to your 36 

attention, because I know I only have three minutes and thank 37 

you for your time. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Bill, I’m going to ask you to 40 

coordinate who the next speaker is. 41 

 42 

MR. BILL KELLY:  Our next speaker will be Mr. Richard Diaz. 43 

 44 

MR. RICHARD DIAZ:  My name is Richard Diaz and I’m a commercial 45 

fisherman.  Good morning.  I just want to talk about the topics 46 

here on the catch limit. 47 

 48 



10 

 

MR. KELLY:  Excuse me one moment.  Can you say it in Spanish so 1 

the Spanish can hear it and then she’ll interpret it for you?  2 

How would you prefer to do it? 3 

 4 

MR. DIAZ:  Say it in Spanish and then interpret it in English 5 

or? 6 

 7 

MR. KELLY:  Liz will interpret it to the council.  I want the 8 

Spanish fishermen to be able to hear your comments. 9 

 10 

MR. DIAZ:  She’s going to translate it in English? 11 

 12 

MR. KELLY:  Yes. 13 

 14 

MR. DIAZ:  Okay.  I glad to see that it’s at the 7.3 for the 15 

ACL.  This way, we have a chance that if it’s a good year, we’ll 16 

be able to catch it, depending on the weather.  Also, about the 17 

shorts, that we’re going to be able to have fifty shorts 18 

onboard, plus one per trap. 19 

 20 

We’re agreeing to that because this helps us when we are having 21 

the shorts onboard the trap.  This way, we don’t have an 22 

overabundance of shorts onboard. 23 

 24 

In regards to the tailing, it’s good to leave it the way it is 25 

so that it’s only the commercial fishermen that are able to tail 26 

and not the recreational fishery.  One of the audience has asked 27 

about tailing and he has said that we are agreeing and to leave 28 

it the way it is. 29 

 30 

About the area closures, we’re agreeing that you are reducing 31 

the area of closure from twenty-five to fourteen.  Please verify 32 

your areas before closing them, because it’s very important for 33 

the area that you close about the area that we fish. 34 

 35 

About the changing the ropes and putting different colors in the 36 

ropes, he’s agreeing that leaving the trap ropes how it is now 37 

and before changing anything, please make lots of studies.  We 38 

understand that you want to make a line on the black ropes so 39 

that there is a difference and if you start making different 40 

colors in the rope, how are you going to know that that is the 41 

rope that was on the trap from the turtle? 42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to make a motion that we allow them 44 

more time, because they’re having to actually be our translator 45 

and they’re telling the public what they’re saying, plus they’re 46 

trying to translate for our record and so they’re going to have 47 

to have more time. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re going to do that and we don’t need a 2 

motion for that. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, but they need to know that. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  They’ve been told that. 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  They have? 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 11 

 12 

MS. LIZ PRIETO:  No, they haven’t. 13 

 14 

MS. WILLIAMS:  No, they haven’t, she said. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I told Bill that when we were coordinating. 17 

 18 

MR. DIAZ:  In regards to the public being able to pick up the 19 

derelict traps, we would like for it to stay the way it is, 20 

because we believe it’s a felony for the public to be able to 21 

touch any of the traps. 22 

 23 

In regards to the mackerel and the kingfish, we’re in agreement 24 

that the limit be increased because we see that there is a lot 25 

of kingfish out there and that is very important for the income 26 

of the fishermen and we ask that you raise the quota. 27 

 28 

Right now, it’s at 1,250 and we request that you increase it for 29 

the hand-liners.  For the north, it’s 3,500 pounds and we don’t 30 

feel that that is fair.  Our trip is further than theirs to be 31 

able to catch less fish. 32 

 33 

That is what is on the paper and that we are here for today and 34 

for all of those in the public that are agreeing with what I 35 

have said, can you please raise your hands?   36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you and we have made a tally. 38 

 39 

MR. DIAZ:  I think there’s a gentleman that wants to ask me a 40 

question and so I want to just answer. 41 

 42 

UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  You touched the points that they want to 43 

have input from us and that you have noticed that the mackerels 44 

are dying from age.  The mackerel are going to state waters as 45 

they get older and why not give the fishermen a chance so that 46 

they’re able to go into state waters and fish them and that is 47 

how he feels, that that is the only way that it should be. 48 
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 1 

MR. DIAZ:  I want to thank the council for really working with 2 

us here.  Apparently, from what I can see, you all have done a 3 

great job in trying to help this industry, from what I’m looking 4 

at this sheet. 5 

 6 

The industry depends on you all to make these wise decisions to 7 

keep us in business, because there’s a lot of things that are 8 

being done in this industry that we feel are not just.  We hope 9 

that you all use your biologists and your science before you 10 

pass any laws and like this trap line marking is a big one. 11 

 12 

I’ve got like $60,000 in rope that I’ve acquired through the 13 

years of fishing.  I’ve fished everything on trawls and I don’t 14 

lose my rope unless there’s a major hurricane or a shrimp boat 15 

runs into it or a trawler or something. 16 

 17 

My rope I use for years in and out.  I use a seven-sixteenths 18 

rope, which is thicker, like three times the size of what 19 

everybody uses, and this would be devastating to have to replace 20 

all this rope for no science or data or anything and from what I 21 

can see that they’re trying to do with like the entanglement of 22 

turtles, they need to look into maybe if you start pulling 23 

colors on the rope, maybe it will draw them even faster to a 24 

rope.  What’s the reason of why are they coming to the rope and 25 

how many turtles are being entangled? 26 

 27 

They keep tapping into different areas in our fishery that the 28 

economy is bad as is it to have to go spending X amount of 29 

dollars, but I see that you all have put a halt to it and you 30 

voted no on it and so I wanted to just thank you all for that.  31 

I guess that’s it. 32 

 33 

MR. TEEHAN:  Richard, thank you for your testimony.  That was 34 

some good information there.  If it came to an issue with the 35 

colored rope, the lines, could you phase in a colored line over 36 

the period of five years or six years as you replace your lines?  37 

Would that be more of a burden or less of a burden to you? 38 

 39 

MR. DIAZ:  Like I said, we couldn’t.  What would we do?  We 40 

would just throw it away to phase it in?  It’s not like it’s 41 

burning up or wearing down or it’s not usable.  We would 42 

literally just have to replace it just to comply with the law, 43 

but it’s not that we can’t use it.  I use my ropes, like I said, 44 

until a hurricane comes or whatever.  I could use it for twenty 45 

years. 46 

 47 

MR. SAPP:  Thanks so much for appearing here today and for the 48 
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testimony.  I don’t know if the others had the same problem I 1 

did, but there were some of the times when you were speaking and 2 

the translator were speaking at once and I wasn’t quite hearing 3 

all the points. 4 

 5 

I wonder if it’s possible for you or Bill, if you would do this 6 

for us, is to provide a written summary of all the points that 7 

were being made, so that we make sure we don’t miss any of the 8 

issues that you thought are important to us. 9 

 10 

MR. DIAZ:  Sure that’s possible and we could do that. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bill, I’m going to try to let you coordinate 13 

these first few speakers.  I didn’t have a card on him. 14 

 15 

MR. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you for your latitude 16 

on this and you can call them in the order that you have them 17 

now.  Richard Diaz, we appreciate him taking the time.  He’s one 18 

of our high-liner fishermen in Monroe County and he’s been very 19 

helpful.   20 

 21 

If Liz would translate this please to the audience, we’re trying 22 

to make the case that this is not a question-and-answer period.  23 

If members of the audience want to participate in this, they 24 

need to fill out a card, a request to speak card, and turn it in 25 

and then they can speak, but there’s no exchange of questions 26 

and answers here. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you for that, Bill.  The next speaker is 29 

Lazaro Rosell. 30 

 31 

MR. LAZARO ROSELL:  Good morning.  The reason I’m here is I 32 

agree with everything that Richard said and I also wanted to 33 

bring to the council the point that why -- If I can only get ten 34 

pounds of grouper in the Gulf reef past Tortugas or in Palaski, 35 

why do I have to use circle hooks for fishing only yellowtail? 36 

 37 

To me, that’s -- There’s no way I can make any profit using 38 

circle hooks in the Gulf reef when the people in the south, they 39 

use regular hooks and they’re not stainless and I can’t catch 40 

any groupers and mainly, the circle hooks are for the groupers. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is that all, sir? 43 

 44 

MR. ROSELL:  Excuse me? 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are you finished with your testimony? 47 

 48 
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MR. ROSELL:  Yes, sir. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you very much.  Any questions?  Thank 3 

you.  The next speaker is Alejandro Dominquez, followed by Jesus 4 

Hernandez. 5 

 6 

MR. ALEJANDRO DOMINQUEZ:  I would like to skip my turn because 7 

everything that Richard Diaz spoke, he agrees with and it’s the 8 

same thing he wanted to touch. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay.  Jesus Hernandez, followed by Yordy 11 

Martinez. 12 

 13 

MR. JESUS HERNANDEZ:  Good morning.  The issue that you have 14 

with the ropes is they’re under the belief that the turtles 15 

can’t see the rope and so that’s why they get tangled in them, 16 

but it makes more sense, when I was talking among a lot of other 17 

fishermen about it, that whenever the currents die down, 18 

whenever the currents are shifting, the ropes -- A lot of times 19 

you have maybe ten or fifteen feet of rope on the top floating 20 

because the currents are slow and that’s the time when the 21 

turtles can get tangled and not because they’re swimming under 22 

the water and they can’t see the rope because it’s black. 23 

 24 

If you have a rope that is extended from the bottom to the 25 

surface, it’s like somebody is walking on a sidewalk past a 26 

light pole.   27 

 28 

They’re not going to get tangled with it and so I just wanted to 29 

make that point clear, because we’re in agreement with the fact 30 

that you dropped that for now, that issue with the ropes, but I 31 

don’t think they’ve taken into consideration that one of the 32 

possible main reasons why they get tangled is because of the 33 

current changes and all the slack on the rope being floating on 34 

the top.  That’s the time when they become entangled, whether 35 

they’re green, yellow, blue, whatever color they are. 36 

 37 

The next point I want to bring up is with the kingfish, where 38 

they have the quota for 1,250 a day and then after we reach a 39 

certain quota for the whole area, then they close it down and 40 

then they drop it down to 500 pounds a day. 41 

 42 

500 pounds a day is not even enough to untie your boat from the 43 

dock and 1,250 a day is pretty close to that also, because when 44 

you have to travel sixty miles down to where the kingfish is and 45 

with the fuel prices the way they are, it doesn’t make -- It’s 46 

not very profitable for us. 47 

 48 
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Then on top of that, if you go out there, it’s not always that 1 

you’re going to catch your 1,250 limit either.  We could go out 2 

there and maybe catch a hundred pounds in one day and so what 3 

happens then?  Then we spent all that fuel and we didn’t catch 4 

anything and we’ve got to come sixty miles back towards the 5 

house again. 6 

 7 

Then you have all the people up north that get a 3,500-pound 8 

quota and they go offshore ten or twelve miles.  They don’t have 9 

the kind of expenses we have, but they can bring that kind of 10 

limit in daily. 11 

 12 

We all know that the same kingfish that goes through there comes 13 

through here.  It’s a migrating fish and so it’s not like we’re 14 

saving the kingfish from down here from getting caught and so I 15 

just wanted to bring up the issue on the quota limit with us on 16 

the kingfish not being fair and with the fuel prices and the 17 

distance that we have to travel and there’s a lot of things that 18 

should be taken into consideration as far as when we don’t catch 19 

anything. 20 

 21 

We would rather see them keep a fixed limit throughout.  I’m 22 

talking about the hand gear kingfish, because that’s what a lot 23 

of us do.  There’s a small percentage, I think, of fishermen 24 

that do the net, maybe fifteen boats down here that do the net.  25 

They have a separate limit.   26 

 27 

I’m talking for most of the fishermen here that do the hand 28 

gear, which our limits are different because we don’t catch the 29 

bulk amount that they do. 30 

 31 

The next thing is the spiny lobster with the quotas and all 32 

that.  I’m in agreement with what Richard said about everything 33 

there.  Thank you for listening. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Any questions?  Mr. Martinez, 36 

followed by Edwin Prieto. 37 

 38 

MR. YORDY MARTINEZ:  Good morning.  I want to speak regarding 39 

the quota for the lobster.  Most fishermen, they’re afraid that 40 

in the future, once you put the quota numbers, that you will 41 

come back with an idea that you will take away a percentage, 42 

which has happened before with the reduction of the tags. 43 

 44 

I don’t think that it is fair that once you put the quota that 45 

later you will take it away again.  If you are not aware that 46 

the lobster fishery is how we stay alive and the other fisheries 47 

are optional fisheries that let us survive when we are not 48 
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lobstering. 1 

 2 

In regards to the kingfish, I believe that the quota should 3 

increase.  The cost is a great cost for us and most of the time 4 

at the end of the day we do not make money. 5 

 6 

In regards to the rope, I feel that if the impact of the turtles 7 

are not big, I feel that it is not feasible to invest a lot of 8 

money to change the color of the ropes.  That is all. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you very much.  I think our last Spanish-11 

speaking person is Edwin Prieto and then, Bill, your card is 12 

next. 13 

 14 

MR. EDWIN PRIETO:  My name is Edwin Prieto and I would like to 15 

speak a few things.  For starters, why is it that you want to 16 

keep reducing away from the fishermen if the lobster migrates?  17 

When you want to take away from the fishermen, why so many 18 

meetings?  Why not make one meeting and leave us alone?  Thank 19 

you. 20 

 21 

MS. PRIETO:  A lot of the fishermen, just so that the council 22 

knows, have come to me and said why is it that every time there 23 

is a meeting that it’s like a meeting and a meeting and a 24 

meeting?  This costs everybody money, the government money and 25 

the fishermen money, because we have to take off time from work. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bill, then followed by Karl Lessard. 28 

 29 

MR. KELLY:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman.  I’m Bill Kelly from 30 

Florida Keys Commercial Fishermen.  I just want to address a 31 

couple of points here.  First, I want to thank the Spiny Lobster 32 

Committees from both councils for the proactive efforts that 33 

they’ve made over the past couple of days. 34 

 35 

I would say that, overall, the industry is quite proud of the 36 

recommendations that you’ve made and we hope that the full 37 

councils will move forward with that.  I wanted to clarify and 38 

add a couple of points here with regard to the use of shorts or 39 

undersized lobsters as attractants and reinforce the fact that 40 

John Hunt’s numbers were correct the other day when he was 41 

talking about soak time on traps. 42 

 43 

This is a copy of the biological opinion and in it, it shows a 44 

reduction in soak time.  By February, only 52 percent of the 45 

traps remain in the water and by March, with still another month 46 

to go, at the beginning of March it was only 42 percent of the 47 

traps are remaining in the water and the rest are on the beach. 48 
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 1 

It’s a very productive effort.  It reduces bycatch mortality by 2 

getting those traps out earlier and quite frankly, when we talk 3 

about 10 percent in the spiny lobster, we shouldn’t look at that 4 

as a bad number.  That’s a good number, because compared to 5 

other fisheries and finfish fisheries, that mortality rate is 20 6 

to 30 percent. 7 

 8 

With regard to protected coral habitat, I wanted to make it 9 

fairly clear here, because I didn’t put it in writing in some of 10 

my correspondence with you. 11 

 12 

In 2008, the Florida Keys Commercial Fishermen, and it was not 13 

myself, because I wasn’t here, but the Florida Keys Commercial 14 

Fishermen, along with Doug Gregory, Karl Lessard, Bruce Irwin, 15 

and Tony Iarocci, they’re the ones that recommended to the 16 

National Marine Fisheries Service and NOAA that there be a coral 17 

protection plan. 18 

 19 

It was our initiative and now we see this over the years, where 20 

there were some breakdowns in communications, with changes maybe 21 

at National Marine Fisheries Service, changes in our management 22 

structure, where we got separated here, but the maps that you 23 

looked at and you’ve been exposed to, I want you to know that 24 

our organization was not at the table when any one of those 25 

diagonal lines or horizontal or longitudinal lines was put on a 26 

map and neither was the Sanctuary Advisory Council. 27 

 28 

Those are our concerns.  I’ve articulated them in writing and we 29 

agree with your position.  We need to re-verify the presence of 30 

Acropora in these places.  We want viable sites. 31 

 32 

We’ve been at this since 2008 and we don’t want garbage in and 33 

garbage out.  We want something that all of us can be proud of 34 

and so we appreciate your direction on that. 35 

 36 

With regard to trap line marking and, again, this biological 37 

opinion, you put colors on a rope and you’re ringing the dinner 38 

bell for turtles.  They have very high visual acuity.  I’ve sent 39 

out a paper to I hope all of you got it with a photo of the 40 

necropsy and the stomach contents of turtles. 41 

 42 

Any one of you can call or stop by the Turtle Hospital in 43 

Marathon.  Richie Moretti runs one of finest operations in the 44 

world and he’ll tell you that turtles are especially attracted 45 

to blues, greens, pinks, light shades of that, light shades of 46 

blue and green.  It mimics the tentacles of a Portuguese Man o' 47 

War that’s one of the mainstays of their diets. 48 
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 1 

This is really an onerous burden on us.  The parts of the 2 

package have been changing and evolving here in the past few 3 

days.  The numbers in the proforma that I gave you that showed a 4 

$6 million expense for disposal of the lines, when we first 5 

talked about this, we were talking about an immediate 6 

implementation in 2014. 7 

 8 

Now we’re negotiating and talking about maybe a five to seven-9 

year implementation on this.  That changes these numbers.  We 10 

really appreciate the fact that you’ve made that a work in 11 

progress as well and we intend to work closely with Dr. Crabtree 12 

and his crew on both the protected coral and the trap line 13 

marking.  Just two more points, please. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Quickly, Bill. 16 

 17 

MR. KELLY:  Yes.  The public disabling traps, we spend countless 18 

hours to the media and advertising and writing and radio to 19 

caution the public don’t ruin your vacation in the Florida Keys 20 

and don’t touch a trap, a buoy, a line, or the trap itself, 21 

because it’s a felony. 22 

 23 

We don’t want to put people in that position and now we would 24 

give them carte blanche to go and disable traps?  I think not 25 

and then in the act of doing that, they may create rubbles 26 

that’s more damaging to the coral than the trap laying on the 27 

bottom. 28 

 29 

Finally, thank you so very much for your latitude.  I really 30 

appreciate this.  This too is a work in progress and on behalf 31 

of all of our Spanish-speaking fishermen and our association, 32 

thank you all so very much. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  Bill, we have a question from 35 

Ed. 36 

 37 

MR. SAPP:  It’s not so much a question as a comment.  Bill, 38 

thanks so much for organizing and allowing all these people to 39 

appear before us and I understand that we probably didn’t do a 40 

real good job of letting them know that it was an opportunity to 41 

comment and not necessarily to question and so I’m going to do 42 

something that’s a little bit out of order here. 43 

 44 

One of the fishermen asked us a question specifically that we 45 

didn’t answer about the circle hook issue and I would like to 46 

say that this council has sent one of our staff members to the 47 

recently held circle hook symposium. 48 
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 1 

We’re anxiously awaiting that report and it might well be that 2 

we’re going to be readdressing that circle hook issue sometime 3 

in the future and so to answer that question, even though maybe 4 

I wasn’t supposed to. 5 

 6 

MR. KELLY:  If I may, let me just say thank you very much to Liz 7 

Prieto and the council staff.  We’ve got four very talented 8 

young ladies that speak fluent Spanish and they know that now. 9 

 10 

MR. PERRET:  Bill, in reading one of the documents, the 11 

estimated cost to replace the line for 385 Florida spiny lobster 12 

fishermen, the estimate is $19,027,500.  Do you think that’s a 13 

reasonably accurate estimate? 14 

 15 

MR. KELLY:  Yes, sir.  The cost of line is priced at full 16 

retail.  Sure, somebody is going to be able to negotiate better 17 

prices, the guy especially like maybe a Gary Nichols, that has 18 

thousands and thousands of traps, but the guy that’s only got 19 

500 traps is going to pay a lot more.  We also have to add tax, 20 

tag, and title onto that and freight to get it there. 21 

 22 

That doesn’t include labor costs.  When I first did the proforma 23 

on that $6 million for disposal of line, that’s because we 24 

weren’t talking a five to seven-year phase-in on this thing and 25 

that was a line item capital cost.   26 

 27 

The fishermen already had that expense out of pocket and so now 28 

they’re taking usable, serviceable line and it’s either going to 29 

a recycling plant or to a landfill and then who knows who is 30 

going to pay the disposal costs as well.  They’re not factored 31 

into that. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  Bill, thank you, first of all, for all your hard work 34 

in not only organizing this, but working all these issues.  I 35 

have a question relative to Mr. Diaz’s testimony and the life of 36 

the rope. 37 

 38 

Your going-in numbers were five to seven years, on average, and 39 

typically the line would be replaced and unfortunately, we’re 40 

focused on the five years at the moment, but nevertheless, Mr. 41 

Diaz’s testimony indicated that it was considerably longer and 42 

he alluded to the fact that one possible reason is that he uses 43 

thicker rope than average, if I understood his testimony 44 

correctly. 45 

 46 

Could you comment a little bit about the disparity here in terms 47 

of life and how that all factors in?  I’m assuming that your 48 
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five to seven years was an average, as opposed to an endpoint, 1 

of rope life, but I see a discrepancy that we need to consider 2 

here and if you could comment. 3 

 4 

MR. KELLY:  Mr. Gill, overall, we do mention the number of five 5 

to seven years is the life expectancy, but for some it’s much 6 

shorter.  We have fishermen that will fish far west in the Gulf 7 

and so forth and at certain times of the year, depending on 8 

water quality, the barnacle growth becomes extremely severe and, 9 

of course, it deteriorates the line, because they’re running the 10 

line through barnacle cleaners and that, of course, helps 11 

deteriorate the life of the line. 12 

 13 

In contrast, we’ll have fishermen on the Atlantic side that the 14 

barnacle growth is not as severe and we may be engaged in a 15 

bottom trawl fishery in deep water, where it’s even less severe. 16 

 17 

There’s disparities.  We didn’t want to give you the whole swing 18 

of things back and forth, but five to seven seems to be a 19 

mutually agreed number in the industry and that’s some of the 20 

reasons for the disparity, is because of the differences in 21 

water quality.  Then, of course, if you have a vertical fishery 22 

compared to a horizontal or a bottom trawl, you have greater 23 

exposure to UV deterioration. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  Next is ex-council member 26 

Karl Lessard, to be followed by Richard Stieglitz. 27 

 28 

MR. KARL LESSARD:  For the record, my name is Karl Lessard.  I 29 

would like to thank both councils for coming down here and 30 

getting our input on this amendment and it’s so nice to see so 31 

many familiar faces from my time on the Gulf Council. 32 

 33 

I would also like to thank both councils and the State of 34 

Florida for working as hard as they do to give us as high an ACL 35 

as they have, which is totally justified, since we do have a 36 

species that all our recruitment comes from other parts of the 37 

Caribbean. 38 

 39 

The second issue I would like to talk about is the use of 40 

shorts.  Our organization, every fisherman supports the use of 41 

fifty per vessel plus one per trap.  We’ve also taken 42 

initiatives besides our live wells.  Now we’re aerating our live 43 

wells and we have less of a mortality rate than we’ve ever had 44 

before. 45 

 46 

The tailing permit, I think it’s something that these people 47 

that fish west of Key West need and now I’m going to come to one 48 
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of the more controversial things, which is the protected coral 1 

areas. 2 

 3 

We worked with the Marine Sanctuary in the very beginning to set 4 

up protected areas for these corals.  In fact, we gave up more 5 

area than any other user group and we would like to keep working 6 

with the Sanctuary and with the fishery to protect even larger 7 

amounts of these corals. 8 

 9 

Most of these fishermen say they do not trap on the coral.  I 10 

myself do not fish on the South Atlantic side and so I’m not 11 

involved in that. 12 

 13 

Now we’re coming up to the most controversial thing, which is 14 

the trap line marking.  When you read the biological opinion, 15 

over a four-year period, there were ten sea turtles tangled up 16 

in trap rope.  Eight were released alive and two died.  There 17 

were two fine-tooth sawfish that were tangled and they were both 18 

released alive. 19 

 20 

Using the best science, which you are required to do, and this 21 

is National Marine Fisheries Service’s own science, we’re 22 

looking at replacing all these ropes for two dead turtles and to 23 

me, that’s a pretty draconian thing that needs to be done. 24 

 25 

The public disabling of derelict or abandoned traps, we have 26 

reef cleanups in the Keys, besides the program we have with the 27 

State of Florida to eliminate these traps.  When we have our 28 

reef cleanups, we have to go obtain a permit to take and address 29 

these traps that have been lost or abandoned in the water. 30 

 31 

If we have to do it, I think the general public should have to 32 

do it, plus we’ve spent years educating the general public that 33 

it’s a felony to be touching our gear. 34 

 35 

The mackerel quotas, when I first got on the council in 1994, 36 

the king mackerel quota was 10.2 million pounds.  We’ve gone 37 

through a major rebuilding thing.  It usually takes a 38 

generation-and-a-half to restore an overfished stock.  We’ve had 39 

more than the generation-and-a-half. 40 

 41 

The fishermen have suffered the conservation blunt over a long 42 

period of time and it’s time they get something back.  Again, I 43 

would like to thank you all for coming here and getting our 44 

input.  Any questions? 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Karl. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Thank you for coming, Karl, and it’s good to see you 1 

again and I appreciate your comments.  You’re one of my 2 

examples, because you once told me that you pulled virtually all 3 

your traps out of the water by Thanksgiving and that presumes 4 

the use of shorts. 5 

 6 

Can you give me an estimate or give us an estimate of how much 7 

longer you think you would have to leave your traps in the water 8 

if you weren’t fishing with shorts? 9 

 10 

MR. LESSARD:  I don’t think I could fish without shorts.  Every 11 

scientific study that’s been done says that the amount of 12 

production with the shorts, compared to without shorts, is like 13 

day and night.  I would have to leave my traps in the water. 14 

 15 

A lot of us, we’re in a multispecies fishery down here.  I fish 16 

2,200 lobster traps up until October.  In October, I start 17 

bringing my traps home and I go into the stone crab fishery and 18 

I have my 2,200 traps home -- Every trap is home before 19 

Thanksgiving. 20 

 21 

There’s a lot of fishermen that fish in the upper Keys that do 22 

this and so you aren’t looking at that 460,000 traps in the 23 

water at one time.  A lot of those traps are taken out and where 24 

we fish, our lobster are there in the beginning and then they 25 

migrate to the west and the guys in Key West catch them.  I hope 26 

I answered your question. 27 

 28 

MR. TEEHAN:  Karl, thanks for coming down and speaking with us.  29 

To Bob’s question, and you may have partially answered it, but 30 

with the ex-vessel price of lobster now, which is pretty good I 31 

understand, is it still the common practice to be pulling out 32 

around Thanksgiving, pulling traps out and converting to stone 33 

crab, or are fishermen leaving their traps in the water a little 34 

bit longer to catch more lobster? 35 

 36 

MR. LESSARD:  In our area, you have to realize that here we 37 

catch 85 percent of all the lobster that are caught in the State 38 

of Florida and with us in Collier County, we catch 60 percent of 39 

all the stone crabs. 40 

 41 

I’ve always been a stone crab fisherman.  I’m better at being a 42 

stone crab fisherman than a lobster fisherman and a lot of us 43 

that fish up in Marathon, we fish for Joe’s Stone Crab in Miami 44 

and so naturally, since they’re giving us property and dockage, 45 

they expect us to produce stone crabs. 46 

 47 

I would say that in our situation in our neck of the woods that 48 
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we’re still bringing our lobster traps home earlier so that we 1 

can fish stone crabs.  I catch a lot more pounds of stone crabs 2 

than I do lobster and they usually have a higher vessel per 3 

yield and per capita. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Karl.  The next speaker is Richard 6 

Stieglitz, followed by Daniel Padron. 7 

 8 

MR. RICHARD STIEGLITZ:  Good morning.  I’m Richard Stieglitz and 9 

I’ve spent the last couple of days here with you and I want to 10 

thank you all for your time.  I’m pretty much agreeable with all 11 

of the lobster stuff that’s been talked about. 12 

 13 

The short crawfish in our traps, it’s mandatory.  We can’t fish 14 

without them.  People can’t go fishing without bait on a hook 15 

and we can’t go fishing without bait in a trap and in Marathon 16 

and that area -- I’m right next to Karl.  We fish out of the 17 

same place. 18 

 19 

If we couldn’t have bait in our traps, we probably would catch 20 

probably 70 percent less on a pulling, because they’re in 21 

communities.  They just go from one -- Where one is, they go 22 

into it. 23 

 24 

To reiterate what Karl was talking about, getting our traps out 25 

of the water usually by the end of November, when the cold 26 

fronts starting coming in, the lobsters migrate out of area.  I 27 

would love to just go lobster fishing through March and not have 28 

to even deal with stone crab.   29 

 30 

It’s just a great big huge expense, but I have to bring my traps 31 

out of the water because it’s not feasible for me to leave them 32 

in the water.  I don’t catch nothing after November and so 33 

that’s another reason why we don’t -- The fish migrate to the 34 

west and the boys down here, that’s why Richard Diaz has his 35 

traps on trawls.  He goes fifty or sixty miles to the west and 36 

they migrate off into the wintertime and then they come back in 37 

the springtime.  38 

 39 

The ropes, I agree that there’s no reason to change the ropes on 40 

our traps.  To let the public come out there and deal with our 41 

traps would be devastating.  We’ve spent thousands and thousands 42 

of hours training people not to touch our traps and now to tell 43 

them that yes, it’s okay would be terrible. 44 

 45 

The kingfish, I would like to see the quota raised up there to 46 

that 13.2 million pounds.  I would like to see our hook and line 47 

fishermen be equal to the people up north.  There’s no reason 48 
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why somebody else can go catch 3,500 pounds in a day and these 1 

guys get punished down here because we’re only allowed 1,250 2 

pounds in a day. 3 

 4 

Their diesel fuel and everything costs the same and when the 5 

opportunity is there for them to catch the 3,500 pounds, they 6 

need to be able to catch it and that’s how commercial fishing 7 

works. 8 

 9 

We can’t just go on a thousand pounds a day or 1,200 pounds a 10 

day and hope -- If you could catch it every day of the week, it 11 

would be fine, but you can catch 1,200 pounds today, but 12 

tomorrow, you may go catch fifty or a hundred pounds.  The day 13 

that you can catch the 3,500 pounds, it needs to be caught. 14 

 15 

There’s one other thing I would like to talk about on the 16 

kingfish.  I gillnet kingfish and I hope nobody shoots me, 17 

because some people don’t like that we gillnet them. 18 

 19 

I really would like to see the work get done of eliminating the 20 

latent permits.  I believe I talked with Steve and I still think 21 

we have four latent permits in the fishery.  We did get a little 22 

increase in our quota and thank you for that.  It’s well needed.  23 

I would like to see that happen more and more.  In the past, in 24 

forty-some years, I’ve had it taken away and taken away and it 25 

seems like this is the first that I’ve seen something come back. 26 

 27 

I would hate to see the people that have struggled and worked 28 

through all of this to have other people step up into the 29 

fishery. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We had a couple of questions. 32 

 33 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Richard.  It’s good to see you again.  34 

Would the market be able to handle an increased flow of kingfish 35 

if the quota was increased? 36 

 37 

MR. STIEGLITZ:  I’m not in that portion of the fishery, but I 38 

don’t think it would be a problem.  I’ve never come to the dock 39 

with the boatload of kingfish and have the guys say I don’t know 40 

as I can get rid of them.  I’ve got a man standing on the dock 41 

saying that’s all you’ve got? 42 

 43 

I think if you raised it a little over 80,000 pounds, I really 44 

don’t think that that’s going to matter in the marketable part 45 

of it and if it goes up another 80,000 to about 700,000 pounds, 46 

I don’t think the marketable part of it would be -- 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  Thank you, Richard.  My question has to do with 1 

the daily trip limits, the 1,500 versus 3,500-pound limits.  Are 2 

these all on a per day, meaning -- I know what the law is, but 3 

are they catching or can you catch that on a per day or is this 4 

multiday trips? 5 

 6 

MR. STIEGLITZ:  I’m really not a hook and line fisherman, but I 7 

do know that they can catch 3,500 pounds in a day.  I gillnet 8 

and that’s all the king fishing that I do, but I see the hook 9 

and line boats right there next to me and when we’re catching 10 

kingfish, they’re catching kingfish and I know a lot of days 11 

that they’re going home at nine or ten o’clock in the morning 12 

because their boxes are full and they could keep catching and 13 

they could make a paycheck that day. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you very much. 16 

 17 

MR. STIEGLITZ:  I’ve got one more thing. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Really quick, ten seconds. 20 

 21 

MR. STIEGLITZ:  On our gillnet endorsements, we have people that 22 

are -- They should be getting out of the fishery.  They’re not 23 

transferable and I can’t lease it or anything else, but we have 24 

guys that are selling their boats to somebody and saying if you 25 

buy my boat, I’ll lease your boat back from you come kingfish 26 

season so you can go king fishing. 27 

 28 

We’re increasing people into the fishery where it should be 29 

reducing and I would like to see you do something with a gillnet 30 

endorsement that if a man is leasing a boat, that the owner of 31 

the permit needs to be on the boat with the permit. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Richard.  Daniel, followed by Bruce 34 

Irwin. 35 

 36 

MR. DANIEL PADRON:  Good morning, council members.  My name is 37 

Daniel Padron.  As far as catch limits go, I definitely support 38 

the 7.3 million pounds.  Once again, shorts as attractants, we 39 

desperately need those shorts.  We cannot fish without them and 40 

it’s been discussed over and over.  The best science supports 41 

those reasons and so we certainly need the use of our shorts. 42 

 43 

As far as tailing permits go, I definitely think the 44 

restrictions need to be tighter.  I know some places in Florida 45 

they tend to get abused by certain fishermen.  Most of the 46 

people down at the west need them and so definitely tighten down 47 

on the restrictions on those. 48 
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 1 

As far as the protected coral habitats, we support the fact that 2 

you guys want to put fifty-two small area encompassing four 3 

square miles, but please keep it in mind that you guys have 4 

fishermen here that have the knowledge, that know the areas.  5 

Use them, please use them.   6 

 7 

Talk to them and see what their opinions are and keep those in 8 

consideration before you just shut areas down.  That’s for the 9 

Gulf and for the Atlantic side.  Please use us.  We fish the 10 

areas more so than what certain people do and please use us. 11 

 12 

As far as the trap lines go, I think you’ve heard from several 13 

people that it would be a huge economic impact on this industry.  14 

Many of us cannot afford a huge loss like that, what I believe 15 

is $19 million for two turtles and a sawfish that was released 16 

alive.  Just the cost versus benefit isn’t worth it. 17 

 18 

As far as the public being able to get rid of traps, I am 19 

totally against that.  It’s been brought up several times over 20 

that we emphasize a lot don’t touch traps and don’t touch the 21 

buoys and don’t molest the traps and don’t touch the line.  If 22 

you see it, leave it. 23 

 24 

Once again, we’re all professionals here.  This is what we do 25 

for a living.  The public cannot safely load a boat the way that 26 

we do.  They don’t have the equipment, the knowledge, the know-27 

how to safely get a trap off the ground. 28 

 29 

I think a lot of times too if you sit there and ask any public 30 

person what is the season for a lobster trap or the season for a 31 

stone crab trap, you’ll get ten different answers from ten 32 

different people.  They don’t know the laws and they don’t know 33 

the restrictions like we do, day in and day out. 34 

 35 

You would be putting our traps at risk because you might have 36 

somebody that tampers with them in-season.  You have a perfectly 37 

great trap laying there in the middle of March and you have 38 

somebody that goes and hacks it or brings it to the dock, 39 

thinking that they’ve done the world a favor and it’s not true. 40 

 41 

As far as the mackerel quota goes, I participate in the hand 42 

line as well as the gillnet and I support the quota for hand 43 

line going up to the 3,500 pounds.  There are several days where 44 

you can go out there and catch your 3,500 pounds.  Making a 45 

fifty to sixty-mile run for 1,250 pounds isn’t economically 46 

feasible.  It’s just simply not. 47 

 48 
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I believe somebody earlier asked if 3,500 pounds is reasonable 1 

and it certainly is.  Also too, it allows for somebody to go out 2 

there and maybe stay the night and try and catch fish and bring 3 

in a limit for two days. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Daniel, you need to wrap it up. 6 

 7 

MR. PADRON:  That will do it.  Thank you very much. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you very much.  Bruce Irwin, followed by 10 

Gary Nichols. 11 

 12 

MR. BRUCE IRWIN:  For the record, my name is Bruce Irwin.  I 13 

would like to thank you for the opportunity to speak before both 14 

councils and I would like to start off by saying I agree with 15 

the recommendations, all of them brought forward by the 16 

committee to the council, but I would like to go into three of 17 

them that I think need some attention. 18 

 19 

I was glad to see the protected coral areas and the trap line 20 

markings get put out of Amendment 10, because, for one, the 21 

protected coral areas, it’s probably not a finished product yet.  22 

The maps are close, but they need to be refined and I do support 23 

-- We definitely support protecting the coral. 24 

 25 

I think we have a trap movement study that we’ve been working on 26 

to help protect it and we also agree that the fifty-two small 27 

areas or if the number changes, are a good thing.  It helps 28 

protect the coral and it also protects our fishery from the ESA. 29 

 30 

The other thing is the trap line marking.  I can’t for the life 31 

of me -- I know it’s in the biological report, but I can’t for 32 

the life of me think of how marking a trap line is going to save 33 

one piece of coral or one turtle.  I just can’t and I think it’s 34 

too much.  It’s too burdensome on the industry for the net gain 35 

and I was glad to see you take it out and move it on and 36 

hopefully we can work that out in the future. 37 

 38 

Another thing is the catch limits.  Under the constraints and 39 

the mandates of Magnuson, I agree with all the numbers you’ve 40 

come up with.  As a matter of a fact, I’m grateful for them, 41 

that you were lenient and you didn’t put in automatic triggers 42 

when we met some of these quotas and that there will be a review 43 

process. 44 

 45 

I would like to look into the future a little bit on this review 46 

process.  I believe this year we may come close to meeting the 47 

ACL that’s going to be established.  We’re at least going to 48 
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meet the annual catch target. 1 

 2 

We have a stringent effort limitation right now on the lobster 3 

fishery and it’s the trap certificate program, which is still 4 

continuing to reduce traps.  It doesn’t seem logical to me to 5 

penalize you if you go and let’s say we meet our ACL for a year 6 

or two. 7 

 8 

It doesn’t seem logical to me that when you have an effort 9 

limitation and yet you catch more fish, it seems like there’s 10 

more fish to catch, to me.  It doesn’t seem fair to go in there 11 

and penalize later down the road when you have a -- Let’s say we 12 

reach the 7.3 million pounds and the review process comes in and 13 

they say well, you guys may be coming close to overfishing and 14 

so we’re going to reduce it some. 15 

 16 

I think that needs to be in the back of everybody’s mind, that 17 

we are under effort limitations.  When you catch more fish, it 18 

might be a good thing and let’s not penalize ourselves for that. 19 

 20 

The last thing I want to talk about is the public getting the 21 

traps.  I disagree with it.  The State of Florida has a good 22 

plan.  It’s a permit process for that.  I think we ought to 23 

stick with that and I want to thank you all for giving me the 24 

opportunity to speak before you. 25 

 26 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bruce.  The next speaker is Gary 27 

Nichols, followed by Walter Rentz.  I would like to remind the 28 

speakers to give us your interest in the industry. 29 

 30 

MR. GARY NICHOLS:  I’m Gary Nichols and I’m President of 31 

Organized Fishermen of Florida from Marathon and I’m a 32 

commercial fisherman for almost all of my life.  Anyway, I 33 

appreciate all of you coming down here and I appreciate you all 34 

taking the time to really think and work with our industry. 35 

 36 

Bill Kelly has done a great job from Florida Keys Commercial 37 

Fishermen and all the speakers from Florida Keys Commercial 38 

Fishermen and OFF.  We’ve worked really, really hard on all 39 

these issues. 40 

 41 

I have a couple of things to bring to light.  I really like what 42 

Bruce said and I’m just going to back up and not even not go 43 

into what he said, but I worked really hard.  I was one of the 44 

guys that lobbied every state representative and senator in the 45 

state for the first fishermen derived limited entry system.  46 

We’ve reduced these traps over half and we really don’t need a 47 

whole lot more regulation on the poundage that we catch.  We 48 
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should reap some benefits from reducing our traps. 1 

 2 

One thing of issue, major issue, is the line marking.  Our 3 

lobster and crab fisheries are really the only fisheries in the 4 

Keys that we fish down here.  People were talking about blue 5 

crabs in some of the workshops and the blue crab industry -- 6 

Above Monroe County, we have blue crabs.  Down here in the Keys, 7 

we don’t have really blue crabs. 8 

 9 

It’s very easy to change the ropes on a blue crab trap, because 10 

you have very short ropes.  Just for a couple of numbers, just 11 

to reiterate, just for myself to replace the ropes -- You’re not 12 

talking about labor.  Everybody has been leaving that out of the 13 

equation. 14 

 15 

It would cost me $111,650 for rope and labor to replace my traps 16 

and it’s going to cost me 200 man days to just replace the ropes 17 

in my traps, just for something that is really just for 18 

somebody’s perspective of why we need to do that.   19 

 20 

Every fisherman I’ve talked to -- I don’t have a problem blaming 21 

any problems we have, any rope entanglements, on the lobster and 22 

stone crab fisheries, because that’s the only fisheries we’re 23 

fishing in Monroe County and so I don’t really see the point in 24 

that. 25 

 26 

Something that’s really of issue to me is I care deeply and my 27 

family and my children’s children, my grandchildren, care about 28 

these reefs.  If you’re going to -- I agree with the small 29 

areas.  I was on the coral working group.   30 

 31 

We haven’t got back together on it.  We need to identify coral 32 

reefs to protect not only from the lobster traps, but from the 33 

anchoring and all the amount of mass -- The people, we just have 34 

an increase in population and we need to not only mark the 35 

places where the coral reefs are, but we need to keep everybody 36 

from impacting that with the anchors, the traps. 37 

 38 

I don’t put my traps on rocks.  It’s not a good practice to 39 

start with, but that’s just really critical that we identify 40 

those spots and do not allow any user group to anchor on those 41 

spots.  We need to get out there and work with -- We’ve talked 42 

to Bill Causey and we’ve done it before and we’ll work with them 43 

on these markings. 44 

 45 

Anyway, that’s -- I don’t really want to go into everything 46 

else.  Everything you’ve heard I support from Bill Kelly and our 47 

organization.  Thank you very much. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Walter Rentz, followed by Pete 2 

Almansa. 3 

 4 

MR. WALTER RENTZ:  My name is Walter Rentz and I’m a Key Largo 5 

resident.  I’ve been commercial fishing since 1978 and actually 6 

from a kid, but I started in 1978 making good money. 7 

 8 

That Sanctuary up there has got so many little squares and 9 

diamonds and I would like to see these things spread out a 10 

little bit.  I don’t know if you noticed, if you put all the 11 

maps together, all the places up there they’ve got.  You’re 12 

trying to tell me something I already know, don’t fish on top of 13 

the corals.  It’s death to the trap anyway. 14 

 15 

I would just like to see that spread out a little further.  I 16 

can’t believe all that stuff just grows there and in front of 17 

Looe Key.  It seems like the only couple places it grows.  I 18 

don’t know if that’s because their base is right there or what.  19 

Maybe they need to branch out a little bit. 20 

 21 

I would like to talk about the rope thing.  It’s not going to be 22 

feasible for me inside of ten years and there’s just really no 23 

point in it.  I believe I’ve had two turtles tangled in my traps 24 

since the 1990 that I’ve been fishing on my own boat.  Both were 25 

released alive and they swam away and looked back and said thank 26 

you and away we go. 27 

 28 

As far as everything else, I agree with FKC, Florida Keys 29 

commercial fishing thing and let me just check one more thing to 30 

make sure I got everything. 31 

 32 

I would like to see you work with us.  If you’re going to come 33 

up there and so some more areas, work with us.  Take some guys 34 

that fished around there all their lives and let’s see what we 35 

need and see what you need, instead of just saying this is what 36 

we’re getting and that’s it. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bob, do you have a question? 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you, Walter, for 41 

coming and your testimony.  Did you say that your average rope 42 

life is around ten years?  Is that what I heard you say? 43 

 44 

MR. RENTZ:  Yes, I’ve got ropes laying around ten years old.  We 45 

change them in and out in different depths of water here and 46 

there and right now, I just couldn’t put out the money for it. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Walter.  Pete Almansa, followed by 1 

Mimi Stafford. 2 

 3 

MR. PETE ALMANSA:  Good morning, ladies and gentlemen.  I’m 4 

going to go a little bit against the grain here.  If I would 5 

have to accept the lowering of our yearly catch limits, because 6 

I had no other choice, I would. 7 

 8 

The problem is that every time the council gets together -- 9 

Conservation is a great thing.  It’s not a good thing.  Most 10 

fishermen agree that we need to take care of our natural 11 

resources, but the problem is every time the council gets 12 

together, it’s to lower the quantities on what we can catch. 13 

 14 

Kingfish started by quotas.  That was fine.  Not only did you 15 

implement a yearly quota, but then you also implemented a daily 16 

quota and my concern as a fisherman -- If I have to accept your 17 

ruling, I will, but my concern as a fisherman is when you guys 18 

decide to do something, it’s always to not only limit our 19 

catches, but on top of that, tell us what we can catch a day. 20 

 21 

How would you like if your boss came to you and said I’m going 22 

to pay you $100,000 a year, but I’m going to tell you how much 23 

you can make per day and when you can make it per day and how 24 

you’re going to get paid? 25 

 26 

That’s what it seems to us as commercial fishermen that the 27 

council’s position has been for us.  Our spiny lobster is not 28 

born here and it might be raised here, but it’s not born here.  29 

We depend on the Caribbean and that’s according to your 30 

scientists and not to us.  That fish travels. 31 

 32 

These fishermen from Marathon, like they said, they catch it at 33 

the beginning and that fish is constantly moving and then we 34 

catch it down to the west and then that spins around.  To limit 35 

our ability to make money is not fair.   36 

 37 

If you’re a business owner, if you’re an employee, you have to 38 

accept that from your employer.  You negotiate the terms and if 39 

it works for you, it works, but as a business owner, I don’t 40 

appreciate anybody telling me that I’m going to limit your 41 

ability to catch. 42 

 43 

We don’t need any more reductions.  What we need to do honestly 44 

is enforce the laws that are on the books, period, and not 45 

continue to add more and more and more legislative agendas or 46 

committees.  47 

 48 
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Enforce the laws that you have now and stiffen the laws if 1 

that’s what you have to do.  That we can accept.  99 percent of 2 

the fishermen are honest men and abide by the rule of law and 3 

whether that might be your opinion or not, that’s a fact, 4 

because I know them. 5 

 6 

Enforce the 1 percent that breaks the rules, but other than 7 

that, leave us alone.  That crawfish is not born here.  It 8 

migrates.  They catch it in Marathon forty or fifty miles away 9 

and one month later, I catch it here in the Keys and two or 10 

three months later, they catch it seventy, eighty, ninety, or 11 

120 miles west of the Florida Keys.  Stop imposing restrictions 12 

and limitations on a species that is 100 percent migratory.   13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Pete, your time is up. 15 

 16 

MR. ALMANSA:  Kingfish, 1,250 pounds does not work for 17 

commercial fishermen.  It does not work, gentlemen and ladies.  18 

It does not.  You cannot make money.  What I would like to see 19 

is you want a quota, fine, you have your quota.  Let me catch 20 

what I can catch and split the quota up.  The north, give them 21 

half and the southern state of Florida, give us half. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Your time is up, Pete.  Your time is up.  I’m 24 

sorry. 25 

 26 

MR. ALMANSA:  Thank you, ladies and gentlemen, for your time.  I 27 

appreciate it.  Thank you. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have one more speaker on spiny lobster and 30 

that’s Mimi Stafford and then we’ll move into other topics and 31 

the next speaker will be Ed Maccini. 32 

 33 

MS. MIMI STAFFORD:  Good morning, councils.  My name is Mimi 34 

Stafford and I really appreciate this opportunity to speak with 35 

you this morning.  I’m going to be wearing two hats.  I’m going 36 

to speak first of all as a fisherman for probably about thirty-37 

eight years.  Before that, I was a recreational fisherman down 38 

here, but I’ve been commercially fishing in the Keys for a long 39 

time. 40 

 41 

My background was in marine biology and so I have sort of a 42 

comprehensive view on the issues.  I understand the challenges 43 

that you’re facing and we really appreciate -- I’m a member of 44 

FKCFA as OFF.   45 

 46 

Our organizations really appreciate your willingness to work 47 

with us to draft policies that are going to protect the species 48 
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and the environment, but also take into account the effect that 1 

it has on our individual ability to make a living. 2 

 3 

I have one thing I wanted to say about the quota.  I understand 4 

that you’re somewhat caught in having to do something and you 5 

recognize that we already have limits on our fishery by our gear 6 

restrictions and that this is a tough situation and I’m glad 7 

that you’ve increased that quota and that you have demonstrated 8 

a willingness to continue to tweak those numbers in the future, 9 

should that need be apparent, by increase, hopefully, in our 10 

catches. 11 

 12 

I also wanted to speak about the reef closures, because I 13 

believe I was speaking with a friend of mine who is a coral 14 

biologist, who does yearly monitoring of the corals.  I showed 15 

him the maps and he also had concerns that there were 16 

inaccuracies in the maps and he really felt that we needed to 17 

make sure that we were correct and that we included nursery 18 

areas and had the right areas. 19 

 20 

As a fisherman, I can tell you that we don’t intentionally put 21 

our traps on rocks.  It’s a bad fishing practice.  We don’t want 22 

to do it because it damages the coral, but we also don’t catch 23 

anything and your damage your gear and so we’re very willing to 24 

work with you on that and we appreciate the opportunity to have 25 

a little more time to tweak those areas. 26 

 27 

Also, as far as the rope marking, I would agree that there’s no 28 

biological gain to marking our ropes.  It just seems to be a 29 

finger-pointing thing and so we’ve said to just say we’re 30 

responsible.  We want to do the right thing, but it’s a real 31 

burden for us to have to change the ropes out for no real 32 

biological gain and in fact, it could be a detriment. 33 

 34 

Turtles are attracted to color.  Different color ropes 35 

deteriorate quicker, more quickly, in the water or in the UV and 36 

so we’re not clear that there’s really a biological benefit to 37 

that. 38 

 39 

Quickly, I would like to change hats and speak as a 40 

representative of Reef Relief.  It’s a non-profit organization 41 

that’s been in existence for twenty-four years.  I was asked to 42 

speak.  I’m a member of their board.  I’ve been involved with 43 

Reef Relief pretty much from the beginning. 44 

 45 

Reef Relief was one of the first groups that brought attention 46 

to the concerns for the coral and they wanted me to speak to you 47 

this morning to just say that they support protection of the 48 
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coral.   1 

 2 

That’s their number one goal and the environment as a whole and 3 

they just want to encourage you to also work with the commercial 4 

fishermen to draft the correct areas and to protect the 5 

fisheries as well.  Obviously by putting a commercial fisherman 6 

on their board, they support commercial fishing as well and so 7 

thank you very much for your time.  I appreciate it. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mimi.  We had one additional person 10 

that wanted to speak on lobster and so I’m going to go ahead and 11 

allow that, Adam Disson.  Adam Disson, is he here? 12 

 13 

ADAM DISSON:  My name is Adam Disson and I represent AJD Marine 14 

and Second Destiny Fishing Vessel.  I’m here to speak about the 15 

lobster.  I guess on the catch limits that we’ve got no choice, 16 

because that’s the federal law.  I just hope that what you do 17 

with it doesn’t stop us from fishing during the year. 18 

 19 

Right now, it looks like it’s going to be 5.82 million pounds 20 

for the commercial fishermen, which seems kind of low to me for 21 

this time, after all the trap reductions we’ve had and all the 22 

area closures we’ve had.  If you could keep that in mind, that 23 

would be good, but I understand it has to be done by law. 24 

 25 

Use of attractants, we need them.  The current quota, the fifty 26 

shorts and one per trap and all that, it seems to be working 27 

fine for us, as long as you have a live well and everything is 28 

taken care of.  The tailing permits, I really don’t understand 29 

what that is.  I’ve had a tailing permit for like thirty years 30 

and so I never had an issue with it, but I think it should 31 

remain the same. 32 

 33 

The fishing areas, I’m for no closures, but if you’ve got to 34 

close the tops of the reefs, you’ve got to do what you’ve got to 35 

do.   36 

 37 

In terms of the gear markings on the traps and the ropes, for me 38 

personally to do that within five years, if we have a couple of 39 

bad years during that five years, I wouldn’t be able to do it 40 

financially.  I’m still fishing rope that I bought in 1994.  41 

I’ve got over 120 miles of rope and so I couldn’t do it without 42 

any financial help from the government, that’s for sure. 43 

 44 

I think that it’s not the way to go about it, since we don’t 45 

have a large incidence of messing with the wildlife with our 46 

ropes down here, as long as people take care of what they have. 47 

 48 
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The abandoned traps, we always said let us clean up our mess and 1 

don’t give us a timeframe.  You limit us for ten days after a 2 

season to clean up our mess and after a stormy year, that’s hard 3 

to do sometimes, when all we want to do is clean up our mess.  I 4 

think that should allow us to do it whenever we can, weather 5 

permitting.  I think that’s about it. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Come on up and you’ll be the last 8 

lobster card. 9 

 10 

MR. MITCHELL GALE:  Good morning, council members.  I thank you 11 

for letting me speak.  My name is Mitch Gale and I’m on the 12 

Board of Directors of Florida Keys Commercial Fishermen, as well 13 

as a long-time OFF member.  This August, I’ll start my thirty-14 

fourth year commercial fishing. 15 

 16 

In addressing these issues, I’ll try to be brief.  I’m in 17 

support of continuing use of undersized lobsters as attractants.  18 

In our type of lobster fishing, it’s essential and all 19 

professional captains realize the care of the attractants, of 20 

the undersized lobster, is the main priority.  With live wells 21 

and aerators, I think we’re just improving how we take care of 22 

our fish and we’re doing well with it. 23 

 24 

I’m in support of reassessing the Elkhorn and Staghorn protected 25 

areas until the industry can further work with the council to 26 

refine these boundaries to be the most effective.  I’m in 27 

support of the no action proposal for now on the gear marking 28 

trap lines.  It seems the action outweighs the need, but I’m 29 

sure we can come to a compromise with that.   30 

 31 

I’m in support of the poundage for the ACL.  I feel like the 32 

poundage -- I like the fact that if we do reach the limit and it 33 

can be reassessed and changed, I like that process. 34 

 35 

As for modifying tail permits, this action does not affect me 36 

very much.  I’m a day fisherman.  I understand the loopholes can 37 

make this an enforcement issue, but one of our directors had the 38 

common sense proposal of if you land your fish either tailed or 39 

whole.  You can’t have a trip where you’re bringing in tailed 40 

fish and whole fish.  This could be the start of the solution. 41 

 42 

In closing, like I said, this is my thirty-fourth year.  I’m 43 

reluctantly becoming an old-timer with gray hair and white 44 

boots.  I’ve been attending these meetings throughout my whole 45 

career. 46 

 47 

In my twenties and thirties, I had full-blown optimism and 48 
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energy.  In my forties, it turned into skepticism and caution, 1 

wondering if we were going to be regulated out of business, but 2 

in the last five years, I’m seeing the positive results of 3 

fishermen working with the council and the commissions, 4 

listening and compromising.   5 

 6 

I’m proud to be part of that process.  I’m starting to get that 7 

optimism back like I had in my twenties and now I’m just hoping 8 

that I can get the energy back.  Thank you very much. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.   11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  I just wanted to comment that if I’m not mistaken, 13 

the way we’ve structured the tailing permit is either or and not 14 

both.  That’s the way we’ve got it set up currently. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Now we’ll move into testimony on other topics.  17 

The first one is Ed Maccini.   18 

 19 

GENERAL PUBLIC TESTIMONY 20 

 21 

MR. ED MACCINI:  Good morning.  My name is Ed Maccini.  I’m 22 

owner and operator of the Fishing Vessel Juma for the past 23 

thirty-some-odd years.  I’m just here to make a couple comments 24 

on my feelings with the IFQ program. 25 

 26 

I think it’s working.  I think it needs to be tweaked a little 27 

bit.  The snapper side of it, I know the snapper fellows are 28 

real happy, but we seem to be running into a problem in the 29 

eastern Gulf where we’re seeing more and more snapper, yet we 30 

don’t have the IFQs to land them and they’re out of my price 31 

range to buy or lease. 32 

 33 

Right now, they’re leasing $3.00 or $3.25 a pound and you’re 34 

getting $4.00 or $4.25 for your product and after the recovery 35 

fee, you’re ending up with seventy-five-cent fish and so you 36 

don’t want to burn your ice up to catch seventy-five-cent fish 37 

and then the bait that you’re using -- If you’re using mackerel, 38 

the bait costs more than what you’re getting for the snapper.  39 

That’s about it on the snapper side. 40 

 41 

On the grouper side, again, last year was the first year the 42 

IFQs came into effect and it was a strange year.  We had the 43 

turtle issue and we weren’t longlining for a while and then the 44 

longlining opened up for the summer, but that was only outside 45 

of thirty-five fathoms and we really didn’t get the feel for it 46 

until September. 47 

 48 
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Last year was kind of a how do you like the system and well, we 1 

really didn’t get to experience it much.  Then this year came 2 

about and right out of the gate, we get 25 percent of our reds 3 

taken away and 93 percent of the gags and so, again, it’s kind 4 

of hard to figure out. 5 

 6 

Everybody thought that they were going to have enough to last 7 

them the year and now some of the fellows are having some 8 

problems trying to lease them because the availability doesn’t 9 

seem to be around and obviously the availability has been 10 

decreased by the 25 percent that was taken away. 11 

 12 

I think if we were to get them back and start out in January 13 

with the way I thought it was supposed to be, the way it was in 14 

2010, I think the availability would be there.  People would 15 

figure out a timeframe of how to catch their fish, how often to 16 

go out, how much fish to catch, and I think the system would 17 

work beautifully, but right now, it’s a little bit -- It just 18 

needs to be tweaked. 19 

 20 

I’m happy with pretty much the whole system, but it’s just a few 21 

minor things.  Other than that, I just wanted to put my two-22 

cents in and say that it seems to be working and that’s about 23 

it. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ed. 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mr. Maccini, for coming and giving us 28 

testimony.  Do you catch grouper and if so, how much black 29 

grouper do you land? 30 

 31 

MR. MACCINI:  How much gag grouper? 32 

 33 

MR. TEEHAN:  Black. 34 

 35 

MR. MACCINI:  Black grouper, I don’t fish down south all that 36 

much and so I don’t catch that much and I wasn’t allocated very 37 

much.  Any other questions? 38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Have you tried to swap any of your grouper 40 

allocations for red snapper? 41 

 42 

MR. MACCINI:  Here’s the thing.  What the red grouper is worth 43 

versus what the red snapper is worth, I would have to give up an 44 

awful lot of red grouper per pound, because the red snapper is 45 

just so expensive and the red grouper is not. 46 

 47 

You’re talking about swapping like a thousand and if I give 48 



38 

 

someone a thousand shares of red grouper, he’s going to give me 1 

probably 300 red snapper.  Is that profitable?  No.  You know 2 

what I’m saying?  You’re not trading it one-on-one, because the 3 

red snapper, the market price, if you want to buy them, is 4 

somewhere around $30.00, if you want to buy a share.  The red 5 

grouper is somewhere around $7.00 and so you’re looking at a 6 

four-to-one. 7 

 8 

If I was to give someone a thousand pounds of red grouper, 9 

chances are he would only want to give me about 250 pounds.  How 10 

long does it take me to recoup that investment? 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I wasn’t necessarily just talking even about 13 

buying, but I was talking about perhaps leasing, swapping, so 14 

that you’re not throwing fish back and you’re still able to -- 15 

You’re making something and you’re going to be making more than 16 

what you’re making now by throwing them back.  I thought maybe 17 

there could be some type of trade between the two industries. 18 

 19 

MR. MACCINI:  Even if you were to do it on that premise, what’s 20 

going to happen is, again, is they’re not going to do it one 21 

pound for one pound.  I’m going to lose a certain amount of red 22 

grouper to catch the red snapper, but the price difference at 23 

the market, even if you were to do it at two-to-one -- If you’re 24 

getting $3.00 a pound on your red grouper, you’re not getting 25 

$6.00 on the snapper.  Do you know what I’m saying?  It’s just 26 

not going to work.  Any other questions? 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  There’s no more.  Donald Waters, 29 

followed by Bill Houghton. 30 

 31 

MR. DONALD WATERS:  Good morning.  My name is Donald Waters, a 32 

commercial fisherman from Pensacola, Florida.  I’ve made public 33 

testimony to this council many, many times.  I’ll try to keep it 34 

brief today, but to the fact. 35 

 36 

One of the things I’m going to bring up to put on public record 37 

is how long I have been asking for a five-year review panel to 38 

be put up and the panel to meet to put in comments before this 39 

council goes forward in a timely matter so that if we -- Once we 40 

can make recommendations to this council, we have a timely 41 

matter to make any kind of adjustments. 42 

 43 

We’re looking at the five-year review and oh, it can already 44 

happen, but if you would do formal industrial input and give us 45 

a timely matter to be able to adopt those into the plan is what 46 

I have been asking for for almost a year now. 47 

 48 
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Another thing that I’m going to bring up again which I have 1 

brought up since November of last year -- I came in front of 2 

this council and said that we have some abnormalities in the 3 

fish off of Alabama.  As the time moves forward, I am seeing an 4 

increased abundance of these fish with lesions and parasites. 5 

 6 

We’ve had some work done on these fish and it indicates 7 

preliminary indications of stress and immune systems that have 8 

been compromised by some toxins. 9 

 10 

The parasites that’s involved with these fish normally don’t 11 

take the toll on the fish that they are taking this year.  The 12 

range of these fish is from Panama City all the way to Morgan 13 

City, Louisiana.  We have brought these fish forward and 14 

documented them and chain of custody. 15 

 16 

Some of the fish that I caught earlier was not able to go into 17 

the chain of custody because of mistakes that I’ve made.  I 18 

would ask this council to do workshops and try to teach people 19 

how to collect these fish so that they can be studied and you 20 

can get some significant data from these fish and what’s going 21 

on. 22 

 23 

There’s many ways to do this and like I said, you can go from 24 

tackle shops to maybe workshops or going around to try to teach 25 

people how to collect this.  I’ve offered my time and I’ve 26 

offered my services to go and collect fish. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Donnie, can you wrap it up? 29 

 30 

MR. WATERS:  I’ll take it somewhere else and wrap it up.  I 31 

appreciate the time, Bob. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  I would ask the audience if you all 34 

are carrying on a conversation, the volume is starting to rise 35 

in here and so I would ask you to carry it on outside.  Any 36 

questions for Donnie?  Thanks, Donnie.  Bill Houghton, followed 37 

by Karen Bell. 38 

 39 

MR. BILL HOUGHTON:  I’ll Bill Houghton and I’m with Madeira 40 

Beach Seafood and I would like to address the council on a lot 41 

of issues, but I don’t have time for all of them and so today, 42 

my biggest concern is additional red grouper for 2011. 43 

 44 

This is the first year of IFQs, the first real of IFQs, for our 45 

people.  Last year with the oil spill, they couldn’t fish and 46 

there were plenty of IFQs.  I tried to tell our fishermen that 47 

you need to manage these IFQs and take what you’ve got and 48 
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spread them out over the year. 1 

 2 

Fishermen are fishermen and the fishing has been excellent this 3 

year, since November right straight through now.  There’s lots 4 

of fish and lots of catches.  Life-long fishermen, thirty-two 5 

years of experience fishermen that are high-liners are running 6 

out of IFQs right now. 7 

 8 

That’s something that I think that they’ll do a better job of 9 

managing next year, when they’ve got some experience, but this 10 

year it didn’t happen.  My concern is that we can’t compete on a 11 

global market at all with our fish.  We can’t even compete on a 12 

domestic market with our fish because of our costs, our 13 

overhead.  IFQs are adding a bunch of costs to that.  14 

 15 

If we don’t have fish for the last part of the year, which we 16 

could be producing no red grouper in October, November, 17 

December, our customers are going to have no choice but to go 18 

out and find other sources and supply.  I’ve seen it happen over 19 

and over again. 20 

 21 

When that happens, we will never get all that market back.  We 22 

might get 75 percent of it back, but we won’t get all of it 23 

back.  They’re going to have to be sure they can cover 24 

themselves if these things happen again.  It’s tough, if not 25 

impossible, to compete with imports at this point. 26 

 27 

We do it because of the quality of our fish and the consistency 28 

of our fish.  Without that consistency, we lose most of our 29 

credibility and so it’s imperative for my fish company, my 30 

fishermen, and I think a lot of others in the eastern Gulf, most 31 

all of them, that we get some more fish added to our quota in 32 

2011. 33 

 34 

I hear there’s some provisions of how to pay that back or 35 

whatever.  I haven’t seen them yet, but I would urge this 36 

council to consider that seriously, because without additional 37 

fish for this season, there are going to be a lot of fishermen 38 

and a lot of fish houses that are basically going to go out of 39 

business and that’s not being extreme.  That’s a fact.  Thank 40 

you. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  Bill, hold on a second.  Kay 43 

has a question. 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Bill, we had them rerun the numbers because 46 

actually for the last couple of years the numbers weren’t 47 

considered, because you all did not land your TAC.  That’s where 48 
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the extra fish came in when they did the reruns, but if that’s 1 

going to -- I myself still don’t understand it, but if that’s 2 

going to cause you to lose a few fish in the future, because 3 

we’re actually giving you back fish that you never caught in the 4 

first place, would you rather lose a little bit in the future to 5 

be able to get some of those back for this year? 6 

 7 

MR. HOUGHTON:  I would absolutely rather lose.  I haven’t seen 8 

the provisions of what the losses would be or how the paybacks 9 

would be, but at this point, I would absolutely deal with that 10 

and look at those numbers and pay it back later, because 11 

honestly, this is not a joke. 12 

 13 

These fishermen will be through producing.  I have lots of guys 14 

who, like I said, have been fishing for thirty-two years and 15 

have decent quotas and they have 10,000 or 12,000 left of red 16 

grouper.  We have leased every single pound of red grouper we 17 

can at the fish house.  We’re leasing constantly. 18 

 19 

I have been dolling them out to them and trying to spread them 20 

out and keep them going.  My concern is for these fishermen and 21 

the industry.  I’m not a young guy in this business and so I’m 22 

not worried about making Bill Houghton millions of dollars down 23 

the road. 24 

 25 

Without some more fish right now, this industry is going to 26 

suffer drastically and these fishermen are going to suffer.  27 

There really is no production left for the last part of the year 28 

and so June, July, and August are going to be dead losers for 29 

us.  We know that.  The fishermen are not going to be able to 30 

fish if they wanted to use their IFQs, because the price won’t 31 

support the IFQ. 32 

 33 

We might get through September and then we are going to be out 34 

of fish for the balance of the year.  We’ve seen what happens 35 

with amberjack and we’ve seen what happens with redfish and then 36 

they started farming redfish and there are really no markets for 37 

it.  It never came back.  Amberjack has never come back. 38 

 39 

It’s a real thing.  When you take product off the market, 40 

especially when our customers are looking for consistency -- 41 

We’re a big producer and our customers get what they want fifty 42 

weeks out of the year and that’s what they’re looking for. 43 

 44 

If we can’t produce that, if other companies can’t do that, 45 

those customers of ours are going to go to all import and then 46 

when we are producing again, if we can stay in business for 47 

those months, they’re going to be -- 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bill, for coming.  One of the reasons for 2 

the problem that we have this year is that the landings this 3 

year in red grouper are different than they have been in the 4 

last few years. 5 

 6 

There have been some suggestions that that’s due to the effort 7 

shift because of the gag situation and there’s also been the 8 

comments raised that perhaps it’s not going to be as bad as it’s 9 

looking like in the first part of the year because of the 10 

thirty-five fathom factor coming in. 11 

 12 

Would you comment on what your thoughts are on why this year has 13 

been different than previous years, the last say three or four, 14 

in terms of red grouper landings in the front-end of the year 15 

that created this problem? 16 

 17 

MR. HOUGHTON:  The only realistic answer I can give you, as a 18 

life-long fisherman and fish buyer, is that fish don’t always 19 

bite.  They bite sometimes and they don’t bite sometimes and we 20 

have seen, as recently as three or four years ago, we went 21 

through nine or ten months, at least, where everybody struggled. 22 

 23 

It was rough to catch a red grouper.  My biggest producers were 24 

coming in with 3,000 or 4,000 pounds.  Your first glance, your 25 

first thought, would be we’ve caught them all.  All of a sudden, 26 

one day, they turned on and they bit like normal or better and 27 

there was lots of production and the same deal. 28 

 29 

All I can do is chalk it up to that, because I can tell you in 30 

that as long as I’ve been around, I’ve never seen production 31 

like this and it started in November and we’re still producing 32 

it at warp speed if we want to and so I don’t know. 33 

 34 

Either the biomass is a little bit better than we think it is -- 35 

We need to consider the fact that when we do our scientific 36 

surveys that fish don’t bite for periods of time and then they 37 

do and that doesn’t mean that they aren’t there or all the fish 38 

in the Gulf have decided to commit suicide. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Bill.  We appreciate it.  Karen 41 

Bell, followed by Randy Wamble.  I would like to inform council 42 

members that we’re not going to take a break and so if you have 43 

to take an individual break, you may.  Karen is also an ex-44 

council person and welcome back home. 45 

 46 

MS. KAREN BELL:  Thank you.  I was going to say I feel your 47 

pain.  I’m kind of happy to be back on this side though as 48 
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opposed to being on that side, although I don’t know if this 1 

side is so great either. 2 

 3 

I’m Karen Bell from AP Bell Fish Company and I am here to speak 4 

about the IFQ program.  I was on the council and I supported 5 

looking into the IFQ program and I voted for it, because I 6 

really thought it was something that would help us. 7 

 8 

I realize we’re at the beginning of the program and I’m having a 9 

lot of problems with it the last -- I guess this year and 10 

especially -- A lot of what Bill said holds true.  We’re seeing 11 

all kinds of strange things where our fish house is going to be 12 

out of quota. 13 

 14 

Last year, we actually let other boats, other than boats that we 15 

own, use our quota because there was enough and we didn’t care.  16 

We just let them and we just used them to log their fish in, but 17 

this year that’s not going to happen.  I’ve had to tell people 18 

no and that we’re just trying to cover our own boats and I think 19 

we might have maybe 100,000 for just the boats we have, 80,000 20 

to 100,000.  Part of those are leased for the balance of this 21 

year. 22 

 23 

I’m thinking that Bill also said and so I’m kind of repeating 24 

some of the same things, but October, November, December, I’m 25 

really worried, because our facility is pretty big and if we 26 

don’t have fish running through it, it’s hard to payroll and the 27 

power and all the other things that take a lot of money. 28 

 29 

I actually went out to British Columbia thanks to Environmental 30 

Defense prior to this program going into place and I read a lot 31 

about New Zealand and I know there’s a lot of benefits to it, 32 

but I don’t know if our society is just different.  The outlook 33 

here, maybe we’re a little too mercenary. 34 

 35 

What we’re seeing is people are holding them and they seem to be 36 

making more money.  They’re interested more in making money on 37 

trading the shares than they are on helping the industry or 38 

making sure that their fellow fishermen are able to fish. 39 

 40 

Right now, like they were saying about the snapper, they’re 41 

$3.25 to lease it and that’s ridiculous.  The owner takes -- 42 

After the $3.25, the price is around $4.25 or $4.50.  The boat 43 

takes a share and the crew and captain are catching a seventy-44 

five-cent fish. 45 

 46 

The thing that Ed Maccini said about -- We just bought mackerel 47 

out of the Pacific for bait that we’re selling for seventy or 48 
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seventy-five.  That just doesn’t make sense and so those are my 1 

concerns I would really like you to consider. 2 

 3 

I was told that there’s the possibility that some of next year’s 4 

allocation can be moved back to this year to maybe balance it 5 

out a little bit.  We still wouldn’t have the numbers that we 6 

had the previous year, but at least it might cushion some of 7 

what we’re experiencing and so that’s what I came to say. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Karen. 10 

 11 

DR. ABELE:  Since you’ve visited somewhere else with IFQs, what 12 

changes would you recommend to make them more effective? 13 

 14 

MS. BELL:  I don’t know if it’s just the mentality here and why 15 

people aren’t being more supportive of their fellow fishermen 16 

and why they’re trying to maximize their return by just sitting 17 

at home on a computer trading things.  I don’t know what the 18 

answer is. 19 

 20 

The red snapper issue, how our side of the Gulf didn’t end up 21 

with any of the red snapper shares, that’s more the way the 22 

government distributed it.  Maybe in the future when they let 23 

more out, they could look to see how to balance that out a 24 

little bit, because we are throwing away -- The guys tell me all 25 

the time they’re just throwing away red snapper left and right 26 

because they don’t have the ability to land them. 27 

 28 

As far as red grouper, how to make it better, just give us 29 

everything and don’t worry about anyone else.  I don’t know the 30 

answer. 31 

 32 

MR. SIMPSON:  Karen, I get the impression that you feel the 33 

experiment is gone and that we need to try something else.  34 

Would tweaking the system do or would you think wholesale 35 

changes in the way we manage these fish are what you’re talking 36 

about?  I’m thinking about if you’ve got a share, you’ve got to 37 

be on the boat kind of thing and what are your thoughts along 38 

those lines? 39 

 40 

MS. BELL:  When does it sunset?  I couldn’t remember when the 41 

five years is up and is it next year?  I’ve actually leaned 42 

towards sunsetting it and people have yelled at me, because we 43 

have quite a few shares and if you look at the market value 44 

today, it’s a lot of money, but I would be willing -- If we 45 

could go back to just the 6,000-pound trip limit, I think that 46 

was effective. 47 

 48 
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I thought it was working well and the boats were -- It was 1 

steadying the catch, distributing it more evenly throughout the 2 

year, but, again, I can’t speak for the whole industry.  I’m 3 

just seeing problems that maybe they’re fixable this year and I 4 

don’t know, but I do know -- I can speak to AP Bell Fish 5 

Company. 6 

 7 

If we have no grouper in October, November, and December, we 8 

lose what customers we have and we lose the income from those 9 

customers, which in turn affects my fish house, the village, the 10 

seafood industry.  It’s things like that.  You can’t have a 11 

business like we have and have no production. 12 

 13 

It puts all the pressure over on stone crabs and mullet and how 14 

we work is we do everything we can and spread it all out.  You 15 

take one chunk of that away and it really hurts. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Karen, I think Larry stole some of my thunder, 18 

because he was suggesting major changes, but would you think 19 

that something like a leasing cap, say that you could only 20 

lease, just for a round number, 50 percent of your quota, would 21 

be a help in the problem that you’re outlining as a small tweak 22 

or call it a major tweak, but a tweak? 23 

 24 

MS. BELL:  That might be a really good idea, Bob.  I know a lot 25 

of the guys have said to me they’ve thought possibly that you 26 

have to use your lease and you cannot -- Or you can only lease a 27 

certain percentage of what you lease, maybe something like that. 28 

 29 

Again, people are -- They’re clinging to them and I know what 30 

they’re doing.  They’re waiting to make sure or trying to get a 31 

bigger return for them by just sitting there and holding them 32 

until later in the year and I hope it backfires.  I hope you all 33 

give us a bunch and they end up stuck with their lease and they 34 

don’t make anything on them.  That will teach them a lesson. 35 

 36 

I’m sure there’s a way to fix it, but the thing is I know the 37 

process is difficult.  I’ve been there and I don’t know how to 38 

exactly get to it, but hopefully we’ll figure it out. 39 

 40 

MR. BOYD:  Karen, thank you.  I have a question for you.  On the 41 

IFQ shares that are being traded kind of in the secondary 42 

market, do you think that that market is being made within the 43 

industry or is it being made by financial people outside your 44 

industry? 45 

 46 

MS. BELL:  I’m getting a little concerned that it’s being made 47 

by people outside of the industry.  I’ve heard that there are 48 
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these big investors.  Last week, somebody was saying and I can’t 1 

remember -- I think it was somebody related to Wal-Mart was 2 

looking to buy blocks of these shares, allocation, and that is 3 

terrifying.  It’s just terrifying, because you don’t want some 4 

big corporate entity that knows nothing about our industry 5 

guiding us, controlling us actually. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Karen.  I guess that’s it.  Good 8 

exchange though.  One more from Kay. 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Karen, what you’re hearing is just rumor.  11 

There’s no fact behind that and is that correct, because Wal-12 

Mart would have to have a boat and have to have a reef fish 13 

permit or is your fear that somebody is going to just -- Explain 14 

to me, why would Wal-Mart buy them and sit on them, because 15 

they’ve got to be able to fish them if they want to make any 16 

money.  Wal-Mart doesn’t seem like somebody that’s going to lose 17 

money. 18 

 19 

MS. BELL:  It was just hearsay and, of course, like you said, 20 

they don’t have a way right now to own them, except going 21 

through someone, which is really easy to get somebody with a 22 

reef permit.  That’s not impossible.  They’re available.  You 23 

can buy one for $3,000 to $5,000, a reef permit. 24 

 25 

I don’t like to think the world is like that, but, Kay, I think 26 

it is, unfortunately.  I think there are people out there 27 

looking to control things to their advantage.  I think it comes 28 

down to the dollar and I like money and I’m not -- I also think 29 

there’s just a big balance where you have to balance the 30 

fishermen’s lives and the industry’s safety and I do agree it 31 

was just a rumor, but when you start hearing little things like 32 

that, you kind of wonder what’s behind them and what’s pushing 33 

them.  It might not be Wal-Mart and I shouldn’t besmirch their 34 

reputation. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Karen, thanks a lot for great testimony.  Randy 37 

Wamble, followed by Scott Hickman. 38 

 39 

MR. RANDY WAMBLE:  I’m Randy Wamble, a commercial hook and line 40 

fisherman from Naples, Florida.  I’m just going to read an email 41 

from Tom Marvel and he does the same thing.  He’s a hook and 42 

line fisherman from Naples. 43 

 44 

The email was to Bob Gill.  I’m having a problem.  I live in 45 

Collier County in southwest Florida and there are six or seven 46 

boats that kingfish in the winter, until the southwest hook and 47 

line quota is filled, and then we fish the Atlantic stock 48 
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starting on April 1, when the boundary line shifts to the 1 

Collier/Monroe county line. 2 

 3 

For the past twenty-five years, we have fished the April 4 

opening, bringing the fish back into Collier County.  Often, we 5 

are only twenty to twenty-five miles from a fish house in Naples 6 

and sixty to seventy miles from Key West, the closest fish house 7 

in Monroe County. 8 

 9 

The run doesn’t last long, just a week or two, but depending on 10 

the timing of Easter, they are a high-priced fish and we depend 11 

on this income.  We have never given the transporting issue a 12 

thought, assuming that since the fish were harvested in legal 13 

waters that we would be afforded the same transportation rights 14 

as longliners bringing their catch across state waters or a 15 

gillnetter doing the same. 16 

 17 

This year, we were informed by the FWC that we can’t do this.  I 18 

pulled up the FWC rules and it clearly states that no possession 19 

once the EEZ is closed. 20 

 21 

I also called Steve B. at NMFS and he confirmed that NMFS 22 

lawyers agree that unless there is a transportation clause 23 

written into the regulation that one cannot transit closed 24 

waters.  Most of us have VMS units and we’re willing to work 25 

with law enforcement to assure that the fish do come from legal 26 

waters. 27 

 28 

We could conceivably take the fish into Key West to sell them, 29 

but the round trip is over 120 miles and fuel is $4.00 a gallon 30 

and we’re still limited to 1,250 pounds.  We’re still fishing 31 

under trip limits that were put in place when fuel was eighty-32 

cents a gallon.  Can’t we move away from this type of 33 

management? 34 

 35 

I don’t think the Keys guys will be impacted by this issue, 36 

because in April that run is basically over with and the fish 37 

leave before there’s any threat of the quota being filled.   38 

 39 

I’m weak on trip limits.  It would be nicer for us on the ocean, 40 

because our fuel/fish ratio will go down and the season will 41 

close earlier, because we’re obviously catching more fish 42 

faster.  My goal is to move away from trip limits and not adjust 43 

them. 44 

 45 

Just a note on the rope and turtle trap thing.  I have no idea 46 

what the issue is about.  I’ve never paid any attention to it, 47 

but I’ve been on the water from Daytona to Louisiana for thirty 48 
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years and I have never once seen a turtle tangled up in a rope, 1 

never.  Thank you. 2 

 3 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Randy, for your testimony.  I spoke with 4 

you at length last night and this morning and I think we 5 

understand your transit problem and we’re going to try to find a 6 

fix for that, if we can, and then see if we can get it at the 7 

state level also. 8 

 9 

MR. WAMBLE:  Great.  Thank you very much. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Scott Hickman, followed by Russ 12 

Nelson. 13 

 14 

MR. SCOTT HICKMAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and council.  Thanks 15 

for hearing us today.  My name is Captain Scott Hickman from 16 

Galveston, Texas.  I’m owner and operator of Circle H Outfitters 17 

and Charters and also a board member of the Charter Fishermen’s 18 

Association. 19 

 20 

I would like to ask the council to engage and get more involved 21 

in the NRDA process and work with the task force for more 22 

offshore habitat, research, and monitoring enhancement.   23 

 24 

I would like to also say that I support sector separation and I 25 

would like to also reiterate the charter for-hire fleet, 26 

especially the guys at home, we want as many fishery management 27 

plan options as we can on the table, examples like the days at 28 

sea program that we’re working with right now in the Reef LAPP 29 

AP and the headboat IFQ.  I would like to say I would like to 30 

support the headboat IFQ program and also moving forward with 31 

the headboat advisory panel. 32 

 33 

I also want to say that I think the council needs to really look 34 

into doing a fall tournament, red snapper tag type tournament 35 

system, where we could possibly use either commercial quota or 36 

some type of scientific permit to increase, like we did last 37 

year with the fall red snapper season, which was a boon in my 38 

marina in the upper Texas coast. 39 

 40 

Once again on data, I would love to see the council really move 41 

forward in pushing that we have an electronic data reporting 42 

system in place by June of 2012 for the entire charter fleet and 43 

maybe something similar to what we’re doing with the snapper 44 

pilot program that I’ve spoken to some of you all about.   45 

 46 

It’s just an awesome program and I would like to see you all 47 

have somebody from the Harte Research Institute come up to 48 
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Austin, maybe at the August meeting, and give a presentation on 1 

the pilot and how it turned out. 2 

 3 

I want to talk about the Gulf red snapper IFQ program.  As far 4 

as this captain and the captains that I represent in Galveston, 5 

from a charter for-hire standpoint, I’ve seen it be a huge boon 6 

for the fish population off of Galveston and getting away from 7 

the derby fishery. 8 

 9 

I can’t say enough about it and the beauty of that system is 10 

that they can amend any design problems that were unforeseen and 11 

as they move forward with the program, anything that’s not 12 

working and people are complaining about it, you can fix it. 13 

 14 

With the old system, you were just stuck with what you had and 15 

it was bad for the fishermen and it was bad for the fish and I 16 

can’t say anything but good about it as a fisherman and how it’s 17 

helped me in my charter for-hire business and that’s it. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Scott. 20 

 21 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Scott.  I’m really excited to see 22 

something about the iSnapper too.  Explain to me a little bit 23 

about what you were telling us or you were envisioning this 24 

season for the tournament, either using the extra recreational 25 

quota that possibly is going to come about or leasing from 26 

commercial in order to have this tournament thing.  Could you 27 

tell me a little bit about what you was talking about? 28 

 29 

MR. HICKMAN:  It’s just an interesting concept that you could 30 

have like some of the other stakeholders or the user groups or 31 

the NGOs, whether it be the Coastal Conservation Association or 32 

the Ocean Conservancy or any of these groups, all come together 33 

and promote the tournament and have a system set up by the 34 

council where you could use a scientific permit to lease fish or 35 

utilize some of that quota to have this -- Where we sold 36 

membership in the tournament and you get tags to fish them. 37 

 38 

You could use the stations that they’ve got up and down the 39 

Texas and Louisiana coasts to weigh those fish in on weekends.  40 

You could have a biologist there at the weigh-in times to gather 41 

the data, length and what the fish weighs, and to give out 42 

prizes. 43 

 44 

It’s just something that would give us access to what we had 45 

last year with that fall season and give us those extra days.  46 

It was a boon for our local marinas and for the tackle shops and 47 

for the motels and hotels at a time of year that in Texas we’ve 48 
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got really nice weather and our red snapper fishery is a great 1 

fall fishery. 2 

 3 

Our wind blows in the spring and really in the early summer.  I 4 

just think there’s a lot of different ways we could do this and 5 

I’ve spoke with some of you all about doing a scientific permit 6 

where we could offer something like this. 7 

 8 

I think we could probably get some of the folks with the 9 

commercial sector onboard with something like this, because it 10 

shows that we can use quota between the sectors and also have 11 

some type of test of an accountable fishery management by having 12 

the tournament and I just think it would work well. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thanks, Scott.  Harlon, go ahead, but I would 15 

ask everybody to kind of keep it short.  We’ve got a lot of 16 

cards. 17 

 18 

MR. PEARCE:  Scott, I appreciate your enthusiasm for data 19 

collection and that’s for sure.  We really need that data 20 

collection thought process to keep moving forward to help us all 21 

both in enforcement and in our management processes. 22 

 23 

When you talk about a tagging program or a tagging system for 24 

tournaments or whatever, would you be in favor of a 2 percent 25 

set-aside of all allocation to go towards that tagging program 26 

or that type of situation, where whatever your quota is, we pull 27 

2 percent aside to utilize in that way? 28 

 29 

MR. HICKMAN:  Absolutely and you could put that into a pool and 30 

whether in Texas we did a similar thing with like the Star 31 

Tournament was set up and have two set weeks or even in 32 

Louisiana when they have their rodeos late in the summer.  They 33 

could pull out of that pool and when snapper season was closed, 34 

use those tags to have red snapper fishing at those rodeos, 35 

absolutely. 36 

 37 

MR. PEARCE:  Just a quick follow-up is that that would clearly 38 

help data collection, too.  If those tags were used for data 39 

collection, we would be in great shape. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Scott.  Russ Nelson, followed by 42 

Chad Hansen. 43 

 44 

DR. RUSSELL NELSON:  I’ve got 1,300 letters here that were 45 

generated after the cutoff date for distribution to the council 46 

from anglers around the Gulf who are objecting to the concept of 47 

sector separation.  I’ll give them to the staff. 48 
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 1 

Grouper, we would really like to see the council put in a 2 

closure during the spawning season, a total closure across all 3 

sectors.  Incrementally increasing these closed areas maybe has 4 

some advantage in protecting spawning aggregations, but we have 5 

seen a lot of poaching.  We have seen a lot of the problems. 6 

 7 

This was a solution the council considered way, way back when 8 

they first started looking at this problem.  Then, there was a 9 

lot of resistance to it.  We think that this makes it simpler, 10 

if you just don’t have any possession of gag during the spawning 11 

season. 12 

 13 

ACLs and AMs, keep it simple.  I think you should just do a 14 

control rule that directs the SSC to set the ABC at 90 or 95 15 

percent of the OFL that’s generated from MSY and when they send 16 

that to you, also advise you of the level of risk associated 17 

with that, the risk of actually overfishing. 18 

 19 

Then the council has got a reasonable figure to start with and 20 

you’re able to set the annual catch limit at or as far below 21 

that level as you think you can. 22 

 23 

The allocation information in the amendment is insufficient.  It 24 

doesn’t at all conform with the catch share guidelines that come 25 

out of the catch share policy document and I’m rather surprised 26 

that after all the discussion of the influence and importance of 27 

guidelines that Dr. Crabtree has not even mentioned to you that 28 

there are explicit guidelines in the catch share policy which 29 

apply to all allocations and you’ve not even looked at them. 30 

 31 

The allocation that you’ve chosen is the one that costs the 32 

State of Florida the most possible money.  The table on page 33 

209, you can take a look at this.  There is one option in there 34 

that doesn’t even have an economic analysis associated with it.  35 

Three of them do and one is blank and I don’t know why that is. 36 

 37 

We accept the fact that gag are problematic and have to be 38 

recovered and so we generally and reluctantly support the 39 

proposed closed season, although we do note that, according to 40 

the staff’s analysis, that’s going to cost the State of Florida 41 

something like $15 million and about 200 to 250 jobs. 42 

 43 

It would be nice when you look at your options if you had some 44 

of this economic information loaded up on the front end and so 45 

in addition to looking at the biological implications and 46 

impacts of each different option, you might be able to try to 47 

craft some that had the least destructive economic impacts.  48 
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Thank you. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Russ.  Any questions?  Thank you.  3 

Chad Hansen, followed by David Walker. 4 

 5 

MR. CHAD HANSEN:  Good morning, council members.  My name is 6 

Chad Hansen with the Pew Environment Group.  I’ve got a few 7 

things to talk about today.  I put it two cards and I’ll try to 8 

cover it all here. 9 

 10 

We appreciate all the effort to develop and get the ACL 11 

Amendment, Generic ACL Amendment, and the Reef Fish Amendment 32 12 

teed-up and ready for final passage.  For the recreational 13 

management measures in Amendment 32, we urge the council to aim 14 

for achieving mortality reductions closer to the 61 percent, to 15 

provide a high probability of success for the rebuilding of the 16 

gag in the scheduled timeframe. 17 

 18 

We are supportive of the longest recreational possible and any 19 

split season, but within the confines of appropriate assumptions 20 

that are supported by the data analysis so they provide strong 21 

assurances that you’re not overfishing and that you’re not 22 

adding to discard mortality unnecessarily, particularly when red 23 

grouper bag limits may be increased, et cetera. 24 

 25 

If the measures aren’t conservative enough, including the 26 

underlying assumptions of effort intensification, there could be 27 

a higher likelihood of exceeding the annual catch limits, 28 

triggering the accountability measures, affecting the rebuilding 29 

plan, and further disrupting the fishery. 30 

 31 

Another point of the gag rebuilding process should also include 32 

consideration of increasing the reproductive potential through 33 

protections of the depleted male population and the spawning 34 

aggregations. 35 

 36 

From a biological perspective, rebuilding the gag population 37 

should include additional protections for these male gag, but at 38 

a minimum, should include expanding protections of the spawning 39 

aggregations along the shelf break, where the gag are known to 40 

spawn, and so we are supportive of the council’s preferred 41 

alternative in Action 6. 42 

 43 

It’s also important to note that there’s been a significant 44 

increase in the Madison-Swanson male percentage in recent data 45 

and we’ve noted that in our letter and I would refer you all to 46 

that and the report. 47 

 48 
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For the ACL Amendment, we’re generally supportive of that 1 

amendment and all the actions, 1, 4, 5, 7, and 8.  The two that 2 

we’re hung up on still is Action 2.  We recommend retaining all 3 

those species within the FMP and not removing it, for reasons 4 

we’ve specified in the letter. 5 

 6 

Specifically, there’s three species that give us a little bit of 7 

heartburn, yellowfin grouper, blackfin snapper, and queen 8 

snapper.  I’ve highlighted some of that in the letter and why 9 

there might be misidentification and misreporting issues.  10 

 11 

Adding those back into the plan, they go into the species 12 

grouping and there’s no real action and there’s no extra ACLs.  13 

It just accumulates into the species groupings that were laid 14 

out previously and that would give us a great ease of comfort if 15 

those species remained in the fishery. 16 

 17 

We would be supportive of Action 3, including those species in 18 

the mix.  We would prefer all of them back in the mix and 19 

develop better criteria to look at fishery management plans and 20 

so lastly, and perhaps most importantly, we recommend that a 21 

process be identified and embedded in the document with a simple 22 

statement that identifies a comprehensive periodic review of the 23 

managed species, the unmanaged species, and going through the 24 

list with the scientists, with the staff, and bringing it to the 25 

council, just to make sure the appropriateness of management in 26 

the future.  Perhaps that would be done every five years or so 27 

and that would conclude my comments. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Chad.   30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Chad, for your comments.  With all of 32 

the work that’s been done with these various amendments, do you 33 

feel like perhaps in the future we could benefit by having just 34 

an advisory panel made up of the NGOs that perhaps could give us 35 

ideas and suggestions just like we have just some of our 36 

advisory panels where they’re commercial or recreational or a 37 

few combined?   38 

 39 

Do you see that as maybe sort of a thinking-out-of-the-box 40 

thing, where NGOs could come together and perhaps make 41 

suggestions upfront, rather than piecemealing it? 42 

 43 

MR. HANSEN:  I feel that many of us have been in these 44 

amendments all along and I don’t know that a separate advisory 45 

panel with NGOs -- Maybe that’s appropriate and maybe it’s not.  46 

I would have to think more about that. 47 

 48 
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Some of us are on other different APs and so we’re embedded in 1 

the process and I don’t think that -- We’ve been working with 2 

the council and the staff all the way upfront and so I think 3 

we’ve gotten to where we are by working with you all and I think 4 

that’s a certain amount of good interaction with us and so I 5 

don’t know that that’s completely necessary. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Chad.  We need to move along though 8 

and we appreciate the comments.  David Walker, followed by 9 

Michael Colby. 10 

 11 

MR. DAVID WALKER:  Good morning.  I’m David Walker, a commercial 12 

fisherman from Alabama.  I would first like to speak about the 13 

five-year review of red snapper, the IFQ panel.  I would like to 14 

see them meet soon, if possible, to see what we can get done 15 

before the end of this year.  It’s important for the industry to 16 

get together and decide how we want to manage our fishery, if we 17 

want to make changes or however we want to do this. 18 

 19 

The amberjack, we’ve talked about -- I’ve talked with several 20 

fishermen and we think about fifty fish or a 2,000-pound trip 21 

limit.  We would like to see that, to help stretch the season 22 

out. 23 

 24 

The oil spill, I think the jury is still out on the oil spill.  25 

We are seeing some abnormalities.  I think it’s a little above 26 

normal and I think maybe it needs to be looked at.  Let’s not 27 

stick our heads in the sand and ignore it.   28 

 29 

I think we can do it and get the scientific communities to work 30 

together, all of them, to get all the input we can and try to 31 

find out what the problem is and what’s causing it or if there 32 

is a problem and proportionally what’s going on.  Is it 33 

increasing?  Is it decreasing?  We just want those concerns 34 

addressed. 35 

 36 

As far as the -- I’ve been hearing some things about the grouper 37 

guys.  They’re going through a lot of the same things that we 38 

went through.   39 

 40 

We took cuts at the beginning, decreases, and we had to learn 41 

how to manage our quota better and stretch it out for the entire 42 

year and not just try to go out and catch it right at the 43 

beginning of the season.  Sector separation, I would like to see 44 

that and I would like to see the headboat advisory panel and 45 

that’s it.  Thank you. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.  Michael Colby, followed by 48 
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Bart Niquet. 1 

 2 

MR. MICHAEL COLBY:  I’m Mike Colby with the Clearwater 3 

Commercial Marine Association and the Charter Fishermen’s 4 

Association.  The presentation given by Andy back in April, as 5 

you know, garnered a lot of interest, I think, in the fishing 6 

community. 7 

 8 

I put together a presentation on it.  I asked Andy about it and 9 

he offered to do the presentation for me to our association and 10 

I got some from information from him and I declined it and 11 

decided to do it myself so our boys would try to see me in 12 

action, for what that was worth. 13 

 14 

It was very interesting.  We not only had our permit holders in 15 

the association, but also some additional permit holders, 16 

federal permit holders, from the New Port Richey, Hudson, Tarpon 17 

Springs area that are not in our association that came to this. 18 

 19 

It was held in the evening and my expectations of presenting 20 

this were kind of interesting.  I had thirty-five pair of 21 

eyeballs looking at me, a lot of them that I had never seen 22 

before and so I started into this and what was the most telling 23 

part of presenting this sector separation analysis for red 24 

snapper was that my presentation lasted eighteen minutes and the 25 

Q&A lasted two-and-a-half hours. 26 

 27 

It was very, very interesting that the permit holders that were 28 

not in our association were far more interested in the input 29 

parameters of this sector separation model, as it will, angler 30 

days, effort compensation, weight of fish, et cetera. 31 

 32 

I fully expected most of these guys to say what’s the final word 33 

here and is this good or bad and what’s in it for me and how 34 

does it work?  They were really interested in how all of this 35 

information was modeled together through the eleven different 36 

scenarios as I had presented it. 37 

 38 

I was very pleased.  It showed a real interest not just in does 39 

this mean a good thing for me or a bad thing for me, but it 40 

showed their continued interest in the council process and how 41 

fisheries management works and so I was very pleased with the 42 

outcome of that. 43 

 44 

Of course, during the two-and-a-half hours of Q&A after that, 45 

topics moved into issues of allocation, issues of everybody know 46 

is aware of the headboat IFQ advisory panel that hopefully will 47 

get put together. 48 
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 1 

There were six headboat operators at this presentation of mine 2 

and that’s including the ones that are not in our association 3 

and all of them are in favor of seeing this headboat IFQ pilot 4 

get moving. 5 

 6 

Again, they’re practical.  They don’t want to use something if 7 

it’s not going to work.  If it works, they definitely want to 8 

take a look at it or they want to take a look at it before.  9 

There will be no industry stamp of approval until they know it 10 

works, but they can’t know it works if nobody is willing to step 11 

out there and produce a pilot as something viable for them and 12 

something that they can wrap their arms around. 13 

 14 

After seeing their response to this presentation on sector 15 

separation, I fully believe that they will understand and 16 

completely wrap their arms around any results that come out of a 17 

headboat IFQ pilot.  Thank you. 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mike, we had conversation last night about the gag 22 

grouper issue and as you know, there’s a couple different 23 

scenarios in the document for Amendment 32 that address 24 

recreational season. 25 

 26 

One is 123 days straight through and then we have some split 27 

seasons and last night, you had made a suggestion that -- This 28 

is what I want some clarification on.  I think it was October 15 29 

through November 15 for a fall season would benefit the 30 

fishermen or the charter industry down in your neck of the 31 

woods.  Does that include a summer season also? 32 

 33 

MR. COLBY:  Bill, unless I misspoke, on sixty days for us, 34 

having October 15 to December 15, including the one week of 35 

Thanksgiving.  South of Panama City, that’s one of our big 36 

tourist pushes.  Thanksgiving week is big.  We’ll fish seven 37 

days straight during that week. 38 

 39 

I was referring to it as the sixty-day season would be certainly 40 

more useful, for us, October 15 through December 15.  Obviously 41 

operators would like to see Christmas thrown in there too and we 42 

can’t have everything.  I don’t want to start a derby anymore 43 

than the rest of us do, but October 15 through December 15 would 44 

be the one that I think most of our fishermen would approve. 45 

 46 

September 15 to November 15 is problematic for us, because we 47 

even discussed this at the sector separation presentation.  Most 48 
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of the headboats are in dry dock in September and in fact, I 1 

know out of the six or seven headboats that are present at our 2 

meeting, all of them have plans to be in dry dock up the river 3 

in September and so scooting it into October to December would 4 

certainly benefit -- It would benefit all of our recreational 5 

anglers who own boats or who don’t own boats, who fish with us 6 

and fish on partyboats. 7 

 8 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks.  We’ll see if we can do some calculations 9 

on that. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Bart Niquet, to be 12 

followed by Dave Reed. 13 

 14 

MR. BART NIQUET:  Thanks for having me.  I’m Bart Niquet.  I’ve 15 

been fishing here sixty-four years or better.  On the gag 16 

grouper, I think we need to go ahead with what the advisory 17 

panel has suggested.  I don’t have a dog in that hunt and so I’m 18 

not really going to say a whole lot about it. 19 

 20 

We’ve had problems in the Gulf in various different times of the 21 

year.  We had a problem when they had the big oil spill down in 22 

Mexico.  There was oil on the beaches in Texas and that thing 23 

lasted for about three months. 24 

 25 

They cleaned up a little bit of it with detergent and the 26 

fishery wasn’t affected a bit.  In fact, four years after that 27 

spill, they had the best fishing in that area they had ever had.  28 

Now we’ve got a different situation.  We’ve got fish documented 29 

from the partyboats in Panama City, out of Texas, out of 30 

Louisiana, out of Mississippi, and out of Alabama.   31 

 32 

There’s something that happened to the fish that’s never 33 

happened before and nobody knows what it is, but everybody says 34 

it’s just an abnormality and there’s something wrong.  We need 35 

to do something about it.  In my sixty years, I’ve never seen it 36 

like this and I hope I never see it again and I’m scared of it. 37 

 38 

Karen Bell was talking about the grouper, red grouper, and she’s 39 

right.  Half of the quota is still out there, but nobody wants 40 

to turn loose any of it.  I don’t know what the problem is.  41 

I’ve been trying to buy red grouper and nobody wants to turn 42 

loose a red grouper.  They don’t even want to sell it and so 43 

whatever is going on, it’s a problem I don’t know how to solve 44 

and that’s all I’ve got. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bart.  Next up is Dave Reed, to be 47 

followed by Mike Jennings. 48 
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 1 

MR. DAVE REED:  Good morning.  My name is Dave Reed and I’m with 2 

the Florida Institute of Oceanography and the Fish and Wildlife 3 

Research Institute in St. Pete, but today I’m here on behalf of 4 

the Gulf of Mexico Alliance. 5 

 6 

I’m glad to hear that the Alliance has been added to the agenda 7 

today.  I don’t know if all of the council members are aware of 8 

this, but the Alliance and the council have recently entered 9 

into a partnership.  The council is a partner in the Gulf of 10 

Mexico Alliance. 11 

 12 

For a quick background, for those of you that aren’t that 13 

familiar with the Alliance, the Alliance is made up of six 14 

priority issue teams.  There’s water quality, habitat 15 

conservation and restoration, nutrients, coastal community 16 

resiliency, education, and the PIT that I’m involved in is the 17 

Ecosystem Integration and Assessment Priority Issue Team. 18 

 19 

I have been nominated as the official liaison between our PIT, 20 

the EIA PIT, and the council.  Actually, we’re very excited.  21 

Our PIT is very excited about this.  We’ve been working on this 22 

for a number of years and we’ve had a number of people that have 23 

been in place to be a liaison, but for one reason or another 24 

they’ve left and moved on and so I’m the lucky winner. 25 

 26 

There are a lot of useful tools that are coming out of our PIT 27 

within the next year or so.  We’re finishing up a three-year 28 

grant that will have a lot of applications that I see useful 29 

towards the council.  There’s a lot of overlap in what our 30 

priority issue team does and what the council does. 31 

 32 

Outside on the table, I’ve left three flyers.  One of them is 33 

specific to our EIA PIT that has do with a Gulf of Mexico master 34 

mapping plan, data access and acquisition, which I think would 35 

be very helpful and useful to the Data Committee here and the 36 

council. 37 

 38 

We have a whole team.  My colleague, Christina Mazza, sitting in 39 

the back row, we work with living marine resources.  There’s a 40 

specific LMR component to our PIT.  We’re working now on an 41 

emergent wetlands status and trends report.  That will be very 42 

similar to the seagrass status and trends report that was 43 

beneficial and vital during the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill. 44 

 45 

Finally, we’ve got a section of ecological services evaluation 46 

and I know Dave Yoskowitz, as a member at HRI, sits on a couple 47 

of panels here, the socioeconomic panel and I think the 48 
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ecosystem panel.  I’m going to end it right there.  Please feel 1 

free to give me a call or find me today if you have any 2 

questions specific about GOMA or PIT. 3 

 4 

I’m quite embarrassed to say that I walked out of the office 5 

without business cards and so I wore a bright green shirt so you 6 

guys can find me today and give me your card and I’ll get in 7 

touch with you, but anything the Alliance can do to help the 8 

council, I’m here to make that transition and if I don’t know 9 

the answer, I can get you in touch with somebody that does. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Dave.  We have a question for you. 12 

 13 

MR. PERRET:  Dave, thank you.  As the Alliance representative, I 14 

think you said, to the council, does that mean you’re going to 15 

be attending our council meetings? 16 

 17 

MR. REED:  As many as I can, yes. 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  Thank you. 20 

 21 

MR. REED:  I don’t know.  Is that a good thing or a bad thing? 22 

 23 

MR. PERRET:  I’m just wondering and perhaps as you get a little 24 

more exposure and we learn a little more about your background, 25 

you would be willing or the council would be willing to try to 26 

get you on one or more of our advisory panels. 27 

 28 

MR. REED:  Absolutely.  I plan on contacting a couple of you 29 

guys after the next week. 30 

 31 

MR. PERRET:  What is your background? 32 

 33 

MR. REED:  I’ve been with Fish and Wildlife in St. Pete for 34 

about five years, GIS.  I’m one of the tech geeks that make maps 35 

that don’t ever get out of the office, but I’ve been involved 36 

with the Alliance for the last three years.  I do a lot of 37 

marine spatial planning. 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dave, thanks for coming.  John 40 

Froeschke is going to be the liaison with you, or GOMA, with 41 

regard to habitat and Charlene Ponce, who isn’t here, will be 42 

working with the council on outreach and education and I’ll be 43 

working on the ecosystem and we had our first phone call the 44 

other day and so we’re really looking forward to working with 45 

you guys. 46 

 47 

MR. REED:  We are too.  We’ve very excited.  Thank you very 48 



60 

 

much. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  Thank you very much, Dave.  Mike Jennings, to be 3 

followed by Jim Clements. 4 

 5 

MR. MIKE JENNINGS:  My name is Mike Jennings.  I own two 6 

permitted charter vessels and one dual-permitted vessel out of 7 

Freeport, Texas.  At the risk of being Captain Obvious here, 8 

we’re all painfully aware that we’re fishing the shortest red 9 

snapper season on record. 10 

 11 

By all accounts, we may see even a shorter season next year.  12 

One of the things we’re seeing in the western Gulf of Mexico is 13 

I’m seeing myself already as box averages on red snapper between 14 

about twelve and fifteen pounds, conservatively.  We’re all 15 

afraid of how bad we’re going to crush the ACL before next year. 16 

 17 

With a forty-eight-day season, it’s just not something that we 18 

can propagate our businesses under or it’s not a profitable way 19 

to do things.  We’ve got to have some options. 20 

 21 

We want to applaud the council for where they’ve moved forward 22 

with the APs and the pilot programs and ask that they just 23 

continue to do so.  I know there’s been some problem with the 24 

IFQ issue on the headboats.  If we need to move forward with the 25 

headboat AP or reconvene the current one and amend the language 26 

or the approach, I would like to ask the council that we do 27 

this. 28 

 29 

We’ve all seen Andy Strelcheck’s presentation.  It’s been 30 

digested and it’s been dissected and it’s come down to a point 31 

to where the guys in the Freeport/Galveston area that I’ve 32 

talked to, it’s a no-brainer for our industry, in our opinion.   33 

 34 

We would like to thank the council for what they’ve done so far 35 

and just ask that they move forward with these pilot projects 36 

and give the charter for-hire industry some kind of option other 37 

than a forty-eight-day season.  It’s just not going to work for 38 

us and it’s in your hands to give us some options, something to 39 

explore and work on.  I want to thank you all for giving me some 40 

time. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Jim Clements, to be 43 

followed by Mike Miglini. 44 

 45 

MR. JIM CLEMENTS:  My name is Jim Clements from Carrabelle, 46 

Florida.  Without a healthy fish population, there will be no 47 

fishermen.  This council’s job is to protect fish stocks now and 48 
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in the future. 1 

 2 

By a majority vote in Amendment 30, this council made the Edges 3 

a time/area closure and in return, abolished the February 15 4 

through March 15 shallow-water grouper complex closure.  On 5 

Monday, the Reef Fish Committee voted to extend the time/area 6 

closure from the Edges to Madison-Swanson with only one 7 

objection.  I urge the full council to heed the committee’s 8 

advice.  This will finish the job and protect future generations 9 

of gags. 10 

 11 

Since the goals originally established for Madison-Swanson and 12 

Steamboat Lumps can be accomplished during the gag spawning 13 

season, they should be made a part of the time/area closure and 14 

open for fishing after the gag spawning is over.  This will give 15 

fishermen more fishing grounds and give the entire forty break 16 

consistency, which will be beneficial to both fishermen and NOAA 17 

Law Enforcement.  18 

 19 

We know when and where gag spawn.  With this knowledge, it is 20 

inconceivable that this council would not protect gags during 21 

this time.  You can’t expect to increase future generations of 22 

fish by killing the fish that are trying to make more. 23 

 24 

The next thing I want to talk about is the red grouper TAC.  The 25 

2011 grouper rerun assessment shows that the 2011 red grouper 26 

TAC can be increased.  If you looked at the NOAA Fisheries 2011 27 

commercial landings, you would see that 49.7 percent of the red 28 

grouper quota was caught in the first five months of this year. 29 

 30 

That means that we may run out of quota the last two months of 31 

this year.  Please issue the additional quota before the end of 32 

the year.  This will reduce red grouper discards by fishermen 33 

who have to target other species, help fishermen who are still 34 

suffering from the oil spill, and give the American consumers 35 

the fish they deserve. 36 

 37 

The third thing I want to talk about is how well the IFQ program 38 

is working.  Along with many other advantages, it holds 39 

commercial fishermen completely accountable for their quota. 40 

 41 

I would hate to go back to an open fishery where NMFS has to 42 

guess when the TAC is going to be caught, shut down the whole 43 

fishery, and then find out later that they may have guessed 44 

wrong and the quota was exceeded anyway.  This hurts the fish 45 

stocks and penalizes fishermen the next year. 46 

 47 

Under the IFQ program, the commercial quota will never be 48 
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exceeded.  With this program, commercial fishermen are working 1 

with this council to protect our fishery resources now and in 2 

the future. 3 

 4 

The last thing I would like to say may not come as a surprise.  5 

I’m very persistent.  When I have ideas I want to share with 6 

this council, I call you aside and bend your ear a little and 7 

you listen.  For that, I am thankful.   8 

 9 

Today, I would like to recognize two council members who have 10 

always shown me the utmost respect and even asked me a few 11 

questions.  For that, I am truly grateful.  This is their last 12 

council meeting and they will surely be missed, Mr. Ed Sapp and 13 

Mr. Joe Hendrix.  Thank you for your dedicated work and now you 14 

can go on a long vacation.  Thank you. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Jim.   17 

 18 

MR. SAPP:  Jim, thanks to you, too.  If there’s any such thing 19 

as a model for how we council members would like to see 20 

information presented to us, I think you exemplify that.  The 21 

letters are always thoughtful and well constructed and you’re 22 

always respectful of everybody and I want to say that I 23 

appreciate my interaction with you over these last three years. 24 

 25 

MR. CLEMENTS:  I appreciate that, Mr. Sapp, and I appreciate the 26 

fact that I was elected to the IFQ advisory panel.  I’m a 27 

participant in that fishery.  I expected some people to kind of 28 

beat up the IFQ system today and I’ve jotted down just a few 29 

notes and if I could just make a response to that. 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  Jim, you need to wrap it up.  You’re out of time, but 32 

I appreciate it. 33 

 34 

MR. CLEMENTS:  Okay.  There are a lot of reasons that people are 35 

dissatisfied with the quota. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Jim, your time is over.  Thank you very much. 38 

 39 

MR. CLEMENTS:  I’m sorry.  Nobody is going to ask me that 40 

question, I guess. 41 

 42 

MR. SAPP:  Jim, it’s been three years and it seems like I ought 43 

to not be Mr. Sapp anymore at some point along the line. 44 

 45 

MR. GILL:  Next up is Mike Miglini, to be followed by Jim 46 

Bonnell. 47 

 48 
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MR. MIKE MIGLINI:  My name is Michael Miglini and I fish out of 1 

Port Aransas, Texas.  I’m here as the owner of Out to Sea 2 

Adventures and the Fishing Vessel Jamie and also as a board 3 

member of the Charter Fishermen’s Association. 4 

 5 

I wanted to speak briefly about the headboat advisory panel.  6 

There’s been some debate about whether or not that advisory 7 

panel should even exist.  I think we need to really focus on the 8 

core issue of whether or not the headboats are going to be 9 

allowed to be involved in this process and get together and 10 

develop ideas about how those headboats may be a viable part of 11 

our future of fishing, recreational fishing community. 12 

 13 

I think the larger issue is whether or not they want to choose 14 

an IFQ or not choose an IFQ.  I think a pilot program is a very 15 

good way to test out some ideas and APs are very good ways to 16 

get interested parties together and let them talk about the 17 

different issues. 18 

 19 

Whether you want to call it an IFQ headboat AP or just a 20 

headboat AP, I think it’s fine, as long as the AP is allowed to 21 

continue on and those people and owners, myself included, are 22 

allowed to get in and be represented in the process. 23 

 24 

I would also like just to make a note that there have been a lot 25 

of people and some organizations who have represented that 26 

headboats are trying to take fish away from recreational 27 

anglers, but every angler on a headboat is a recreational angler 28 

and so I think it’s important to realize that. 29 

 30 

I also think that the -- I would like to see the council get 31 

more involved in the habitat management process.  There’s a lot 32 

of funding and opportunities that have come from this oil spill, 33 

the NRDA process, and I think it would be a good opportunity for 34 

the council to get very involved in that and look at doing some 35 

more long-term assessments. 36 

 37 

I think we need to look at moving forward on a days at sea 38 

program for the charterboats, just like for the headboats.  I 39 

think charterboats need to have the ability to work within the 40 

council process and bring forth new ideas and to hash those 41 

ideas out and the pilot program is a really good way to test 42 

these things. 43 

 44 

Some things I think that some people have supported that they 45 

probably wouldn’t have supported if there was a pilot program 46 

and a test of it and so it’s a little bit safer way to move 47 

forward, but we need to allow these things to move forward. 48 
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 1 

Also, I would like to support anybody that comes forward or any 2 

ideas that come forward as far as having some kind of a fall 3 

season, a tournament season, a tag-based fall Gulf-wide 4 

tournament, whether it allows testing of intersector trading or 5 

things like that or different use of allocations. 6 

 7 

I think that’s another topic that we need to move forward on and 8 

let these ideas be developed and come out, so that we can come 9 

up with some new ideas and five or ten years from now, if we get 10 

a couple of these ideas worked out, we may all look pretty 11 

smart.  That’s it. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mike.  Next up is Jim Bonnell, to be 14 

followed by Bob Spaeth. 15 

 16 

MR. JIM BONNELL:  Good morning.  I’m Jim Bonnell and I own the 17 

Commercial Fishing Vessel Michelle Marie out of Madeira Beach, 18 

Florida.  It’s a longliner.  I’ve been involved in the fishing 19 

industry for over thirty years and I’ve owned my vessel for 20 

about twenty-five. 21 

 22 

I’m one of the people that Bill Houghton spoke about.  I had a 23 

large portion of my IFQs that were in gag grouper.  We lost most 24 

of those this year.  I went through all of my gag grouper IFQs 25 

in the first month of the year and so we had to rely more 26 

heavily on our red grouper and we went through those and I 27 

started probably about a month-and-a-half ago having to lease, 28 

not for my entire trip, but portions of my trip I had to lease. 29 

 30 

We started out at forty-cents a pound for red grouper and then 31 

fifty-cents a pound for red grouper and then sixty-five-cents a 32 

pound for red grouper to lease them and now I’m hearing seventy-33 

five, but I can’t find any even at seventy-five.  I have an ad 34 

I’ve been running and no response. 35 

 36 

From the landings I’ve seen, we’re pretty much where we should 37 

be.  We’re a little over half of the landings for the year that 38 

we’re allowed at a halfway point through the year and so it 39 

seems that there’s still a large portion of them out there and I 40 

don’t know if -- I know some people that have a fair amount of 41 

them that are holding on to them because they think they’re 42 

going to need them themselves, which is understandable. 43 

 44 

Others are holding on to them in the hope that the price is 45 

going to go up more.  Right now, I’m at the point that our last 46 

trip we finished everything that I have except for the gag 47 

grouper that we were just recently given back. 48 
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 1 

I have a whole half year to go with no idea what I’m going to 2 

do.  I don’t have any idea where I’m going to be able to get 3 

enough fish for the next trip.  Like I said, I’ve been involved 4 

in this for years and I’m hoping that you’ll all see fit to 5 

return some to us this year so that we can continue throughout 6 

the year. 7 

 8 

Like Ed Maccini had said, this has been a learning year for us.  9 

Last year really wasn’t a normal situation.  We have learned 10 

we’re going to have to pace ourselves more, but also one thing 11 

that I’ve seen in my years of fishing is that this has been a 12 

good year so far starting and so when you’re catching fish, you 13 

do fish hard, because the next month you may not be catching 14 

anything.  The idea of thinking we’re just going to parcel it 15 

out through the year doesn’t always work.  You have to catch 16 

when they are available. 17 

 18 

The other thing I wanted to address is the red snapper 19 

situation.  I started out bandit fishing and a third of my catch 20 

was red snapper.   21 

 22 

That changed over the years and in longlining, we didn’t get the 23 

amount that we originally used to, but I ended up with a 200-24 

pound trip limit on the red snapper before the IFQ system.  25 

Unfortunately, because of the way things were set up with the 26 

season, it was open for ten days at the beginning of the month. 27 

 28 

We make ten to fourteen-day trips and so if we kept red snapper 29 

at the beginning of the trip, they may be illegal at the end of 30 

the trip, buried down under our other fish, and we would be in 31 

violation of the law when we got to the dock and so we didn’t 32 

keep them. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Jim, you need to wrap it up.  Your time is up. 35 

 36 

MR. BONNELL:  All right.  What I just wanted to say is that we 37 

paid heavily to rebuild the stocks and we’ve really taken a 38 

beating on them.  I had an allotment of 125 pounds for the year 39 

and we’re throwing back a tremendous amount and so I hope 40 

somewhere that will be addressed. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Jim.  We have a question for you from Kay. 43 

 44 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Jim, what was your qualifier to get a Class 2 45 

permit? 46 

 47 

MR. BONNELL:  I’m not sure.  I believe it was based on the 48 
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historic landings that we had and for a number of years, we 1 

hadn’t had great landings here. 2 

 3 

MS. WILLIAMS:  You don’t recall the poundage, like one pound? 4 

 5 

MR. BONNELL:  No, I don’t really remember what the requirement 6 

was.  I’m sure it was -- A lot of guys didn’t qualify for them 7 

at all and so I know it was substantially more than one pound 8 

and whether it was 5,000 or 10,000 or what, I have no 9 

recollection of that. 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Jim.  Next up is Bob Spaeth, to be 12 

followed by Bob Zales. 13 

 14 

MR. BOB SPAETH:  Thank you, council members.  I want to start 15 

off by saying a lot of people think that the Southern Offshore 16 

Fishing Association is anti-IFQ.  I want to make that straight.  17 

I brought a bunch of members that are high-liners here and I 18 

hope you take advantage of it during the breaks, to talk to the 19 

guys.  They’re on the water. 20 

 21 

We do not want to trash the IFQ at this point.  What we want to 22 

do is fix it.  It’s not working.  I heard testimony here that 23 

it’s the greatest thing.  What I did is there’s a survey and I 24 

think it’s on your thing, the IFQ SOFA survey. 25 

 26 

What we did is this is very informal.  It’s not a dyed-in-the-27 

wool.  This was a snapshot of what the guys on the water -- They 28 

weren’t necessarily shareholders, but these are the worker bees.  29 

These are the captains and mates. 30 

 31 

I’ll go through it quickly with you.  One of the questions, and 32 

I think you hear it over, is am I able to purchase red snapper 33 

allocations -- There were seventy-nine respondents and fifty-34 

seven of them said no.  IFQ allocations for snapper at a fair 35 

price, yes was two, and I know who they were, and seventy-five 36 

said no.   37 

 38 

The other one is if you do not have allocation, what is your 39 

estimate of red snapper discards on the average trip, numbers a 40 

trip, and please be as accurate as possible.  I want to put a 41 

caveat in there.  There was some double counting.  The mates 42 

would say the same thing and so there is a large amount of 43 

discards.  I think it would be better if when we get time to 44 

look at it from the observer studies. 45 

 46 

Here’s the other one we hear all the time.  Has IFQ red snapper 47 

made you more or less money?  Yes said three and seventy-five 48 
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said no.  Do you feel that the Gulf fishermen got a fair shake 1 

on that 200-pound limit that Mr. Bonnell talked about prior to, 2 

where we didn’t have a chance to get our allocations?  That’s 3 

part of the problem.   4 

 5 

There’s a lot of red snapper in the Gulf and the last one was 6 

what the confidence level was with the people on what they saw 7 

in the water versus the stock assessment.  We’re not out -- What 8 

we want to do is on this five-year snapper review, we would hope 9 

to be able to sit at the table and not just the snapper people 10 

that have it. 11 

 12 

The grouper industry is very much affected by the snapper IFQ 13 

and so when we do the five-year review, we would like to 14 

participate and we have some ideas of how we can fix this IFQ 15 

and we’re working on it, with some suggestions in the future.  16 

Thank you. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bob. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Bob.  Is there a reason you didn’t ask 21 

them about how they felt about the red grouper IFQ rather than 22 

the red snapper? 23 

 24 

MR. SPAETH:  They’re very -- That’s part of the reason we did 25 

this.  The red snapper IFQ and the grouper IFQ -- The red 26 

grouper or the grouper IFQ is not working for us.  We’ve got too 27 

many discards.  We’re throwing away half our fish. 28 

 29 

We’ve got to stop this and it’s -- People are not happy.  These 30 

people are not happy with the grouper IFQ at this point and it’s 31 

because of multispecies and a lot of discards. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Why haven’t we had those people come to us and 34 

say it’s not working and just do away with it?  I haven’t had 35 

one person tell me that, even though I’ve asked them.  They 36 

would just say oh, no, it’s okay, but we just want some red 37 

snapper. 38 

 39 

MR. SPAETH:  I’m not sure what you’re getting at, but our 40 

grouper guys think that this may be a management measure that 41 

works, but we’re not sure that it is.  It isn’t working now and 42 

if we can’t fix it, then we’ll have to look at other alternative 43 

measures, but right now, we’re into this program.  A lot of 44 

people are vested and there’s been a lot of things and we need 45 

to try to fix what we’ve got. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  Next up is Bob Zales, to be followed 48 
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by Wayne Werner. 1 

 2 

MR. SPAETH:  I’ll leave this with you.  This is the guys and the 3 

people that filled out these surveys. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  If you would leave that with staff, Bob, we would 6 

appreciate it. 7 

 8 

MR. BOB ZALES, II:  Bob Zales, II, President of the Panama City 9 

Boatmen Association.  Real quick, two issues, Amendment 32 and 10 

the recreational red snapper underage that we got last year.  On 11 

the Amendment 32, we pretty much support everything that the 12 

Reef Fish AP suggested and especially with the season length in 13 

there.  There was some extensive discussion on that. 14 

 15 

In my mind, there’s good representation on that panel of the 16 

guys from up and down the west coast of Florida, for sure, 17 

because there were people from St. Pete south and that January 18 

season and the split season of January and also into the summer, 19 

even though it’s fewer days, seemed to be the most reasonable 20 

for people to capitalize on people that would be in their area 21 

for business. 22 

 23 

The issue on extended closures, we recommended status quo.  24 

Nobody wants to see any more closures other than the current 25 

forty-fathom break issue and the Madison-Swanson and Steamboat 26 

Lumps things. 27 

 28 

The issue on red snapper is we’ve worked hard to try to get this 29 

million pounds that we weren’t able to catch last year put into 30 

this year and attending the SSC meeting, it was clear to me and 31 

others who were there that we believe that the SSC members 32 

clearly wanted to go there. 33 

 34 

There’s plenty of discussion talking about the ways things are 35 

today that it probably wouldn’t hurt the fishery to add two-36 

million pounds to it.  They ended up with a 345,000-pound 37 

recommendation.  That only works into somewhere in the 38 

neighborhood of about five days.  Five days in the fall would be 39 

a plus. 40 

 41 

Now, I’ve asked people, because there’s been some discussions 42 

about whether or not we would want Labor Day and maybe a weekend 43 

following.  I’ve had some suggestions that maybe sometime in 44 

October would be better, around Columbus Day and that type of 45 

thing, because for the guys in Destin, that would be very good, 46 

because of the fact that they have their rodeo in Destin. 47 

 48 
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For other areas, it would be good because of the three-day, 1 

generally, weekend that comes along with Columbus Day and things 2 

like that.  We would encourage you to do all you can under 3 

emergency action to try to apply that total 345,000 pounds to 4 

the recreational sector for the one-time shot this year. 5 

 6 

We weren’t interested in what was happening next year out of 7 

that million pounds.  The computer models clearly have within 8 

them that that million pounds from 2010 was included in their 9 

estimations for all their ABCs and everything that the 10 

scientists do. 11 

 12 

As far as the virtual world is concerned, those fish are gone 13 

and they don’t exist.  Clearly we’ve benefited from having those 14 

fish in the water, because they’ve been able to spawn however 15 

many times they normally do and so we don’t think that it’s 16 

going to be harmful to the resource and discussions we heard 17 

from the scientists, they clearly go along with that same route.  18 

They’re constrained by the requirements that they’re under to do 19 

what we wanted, but that’s it.  I’m done.  Any questions? 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  I have one for you.  I think what 22 

came out of the Reef Fish Committee is consistent with what the 23 

Reef Fish AP recommended, with the exception of the time/area 24 

closures. 25 

 26 

If that’s incorrect, let me know, but if that’s correct, that 27 

says you basically agree with where we’re at, with that one 28 

exception?  Is that correct? 29 

 30 

MR. ZALES:  Which exception? 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  The time/area closures.  The Reef Fish Committee has 33 

the additional Edges in it and the Reef Fish AP recommended no 34 

additional closures.  I don’t think there’s any other 35 

difference. 36 

 37 

MR. ZALES:  I may have misspoke.  I wasn’t talking about your 38 

Reef Fish Committee stuff.  I was talking about the Reef Fish AP 39 

recommendations and so if I misspoke, I’m sorry, but we’re 40 

supporting the Reef Fish AP recommendations for that and when it 41 

comes to closures, clearly we don’t want anymore. 42 

 43 

MR. TEEHAN:  Bob, thanks for your comments.  Let’s get back to 44 

red snapper real quick.  The supplemental 345,000 pounds, if 45 

that were to go all recreational, I think your calculations are 46 

correct that it would be about five days. 47 

 48 
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The Labor Day weekend has been kicked around because that seemed 1 

to be very popular with at least some of the industry, but 2 

you’re suggesting that perhaps taking those five days and 3 

applying them to sometime during October would be more 4 

beneficial? 5 

 6 

MR. ZALES:  It could be in a number of ways.  Number one, Labor 7 

Day is good because you’re going to get people Labor Day anyway, 8 

primarily, but by putting it off until October, it gives you 9 

more time to work on the regulatory issues. 10 

 11 

It also gives us more time that if we leave here tomorrow, where 12 

you all say, okay, we want to do this and we’re going to do it 13 

and we’re going to give you five days in October, then we’ve got 14 

time to advertise to people and to get it out there and to build 15 

from it. 16 

 17 

The season last year was decent, but that was the problem.  It 18 

was done so late you really weren’t able to get the word out and 19 

so it may be beneficial.  Past October, it’s probably not going 20 

to do anything.  Five days is five days of business. 21 

 22 

MR. TEEHAN:  Just real quick, do you know what the Destin rodeo 23 

dates are this year? 24 

 25 

MR. ZALES:  It’s an October thing.  It’s always October 1 to the 26 

31st. 27 

 28 

DR. ABELE:  I want to make sure I understood you.  Are you 29 

opposed to closing the gag spawning area just for the spawning 30 

time and not permanently, but just for spawning season? 31 

 32 

MR. ZALES:  Yes, Larry, because -- Madison-Swanson and Steamboat 33 

for whatever they do apparently is okay, the current forty-34 

fathom break closure, plus on the other side you have the 35 

recreational side and we’re shut down in March and April. 36 

 37 

We don’t see the need and to be honest with you, and I think 38 

you’re hearing this from a lot of people and you may have seen 39 

it yourself, right now we’re seeing gags out the roof.  It’s 40 

almost like snapper.  In the past week, my boat has thrown back 41 

probably three-dozen gags, all real decent fish.  This has gone 42 

along with everybody up there and so we don’t see the need for 43 

any additional closures. 44 

 45 

DR. ABELE:  I guess given the low quota, I think most people are 46 

going to hit their quota well before spawning season, won’t 47 

they? 48 
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 1 

MR. ZALES:  It all depends on when people are fishing and what 2 

the weather is like and the economy too.  In the past, it’s -- 3 

We’re looking at a proposed season, either a combination -- On 4 

the recreational side, a combination of some number of days 5 

straight through or a split season. 6 

 7 

Whether or not we’ll hit that quota during that time, I don’t 8 

know, but clearly if you do one straight season, you’re going to 9 

mess up somebody’s deal, because this fishery is not one season 10 

for everybody.   11 

 12 

It changes up and down the coast how you go and to be fair and 13 

equitable to the people that use it, we believe that the split 14 

season is much better and like I said, we just don’t believe 15 

that the closures are necessary. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  Next up is Wayne Werner, to be 18 

followed by John Schmidt. 19 

 20 

MR. WAYNE WERNER:  I’m Wayne Werner, owner and operator of the 21 

Fishing Vessel Sea Quest.  First thing, I’ve caught over four-22 

million pounds of fish out of the Gulf of Mexico and I’ve got to 23 

tell you now at 92:20 degrees West, and that’s off Morgan City, 24 

I’ve managed to catch some fish with lesions on them, huge 25 

lesions on them.  I think it’s time for this council to at least 26 

talk about it, because it’s happening.  It’s there.   27 

 28 

As far as some of the other issues here is IFQs and I hear a lot 29 

of things.  I was part of the original panel.  We wanted a use-30 

it-or-lose-it.  We wanted a lot of things we didn’t get.  We 31 

wanted a use-it-or-lose-it in our program and unanimously voted 32 

for it.  We unanimously voted to keep it in the reef fish 33 

fishery and the council overturned that. 34 

 35 

This is a case of just taking your medicine to get to a better 36 

system.  I hear a lot about these leasing prices and all and I 37 

know why the lease prices are high.  38 

 39 

I unload at a dock where a guy never was in our fishery and got 40 

a reef fish permit and now he’s landing 300,000 pounds of 41 

snappers a year, all leased, 100 percent.  Now, it started out 42 

at 180,000 and then 200,000 and now he’s up over 300,000.  This 43 

is an incredible number and I think that’s one reason why we 44 

need this panel to meet, because they have some things out 45 

there, some issues, that they want to bring up that need to be 46 

addressed. 47 

 48 
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There’s a lot more to it.  There was a lot of discussion about 1 

catch your fish or get out.  I think there’s a lot that this 2 

panel is going to bring to the table.  I think there needs to be 3 

changes.  I don’t think you all just need to put a stamp on this 4 

thing and let it go. 5 

 6 

The only way to progress is to have change.  I brought up cap 7 

busting.  This needs to be addressed.  There’s quite a few 8 

things that need to be addressed in this system.  You all can 9 

put your stamp on it and let it go and it will be no better of a 10 

system. 11 

 12 

Where I come from, I think the best thing to do is to try to 13 

improve your system and move forward.  Don’t just remain the 14 

same.  It’s a good system.  It just needs its little fixes.  15 

Thank you. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Wayne.  We have a question for you from 18 

Larry. 19 

 20 

DR. ABELE:  Can you tell me why the use-it-or-lose-it didn’t 21 

pass?  Were you there for the discussion? 22 

 23 

MR. WERNER:  It passed with the fishermen.  I can’t tell you why 24 

the council didn’t pass it.  It was unanimous with the 25 

fishermen. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That was one of my questions, because I know that 28 

it did pass and the council removed it and what was the other 29 

one that the fishermen put in there that the council removed?  30 

Do you remember? 31 

 32 

MR. WERNER:  Yes, it was the keep it amongst reef fish fishermen 33 

after five years.  We didn’t want any large corporations to come 34 

in and buy them or put them on a shelf.  There’s always a bigger 35 

dog in the hunt. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Wayne.  Next up is John Schmidt, to be 38 

followed by Tom Golden. 39 

 40 

MR. JOHN SCHMIDT:  I want to thank the council for this 41 

opportunity to make a few comments.  Most of the recent comments 42 

have been about the quota program and so I would like to also 43 

make some comments about that topic. 44 

 45 

The last two years of fishing have been the most extreme 46 

conditions in our lifetimes in the eastern Gulf of Mexico.  In 47 

2010, we had the coldest winter in a hundred years and I’m a 48 
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diver and also a fisherman and I dive out to 180 feet and 1 

sometimes 200, from Carrabelle to the Dry Tortugas. 2 

 3 

I can’t count the times I’ve heard fishermen say the fish aren’t 4 

biting.  What I’ve found is that when they’re not biting, 5 

they’re not there.  That cold winter drove the fish away and so 6 

fishing was not good last year. 7 

 8 

The longline boats were not able to fish inshore.  They had to 9 

be at the forty break or thirty-fathoms and more throughout 10 

August and that’s the first time in many, many years we had that 11 

kind of a prohibition or loss of capacity.  12 

 13 

We had the worst environmental disaster in U.S. history in the 14 

Gulf last year, which affected fishing in the eastern Gulf and 15 

so we left several million fish or grouper in the Gulf last 16 

year.  We caught less grouper than we have as far as we’ve been 17 

keeping records, from what I could see.  In our lifetimes, it 18 

was the worst fishing year ever. 19 

 20 

In 2011, we had some of the best fishing in the beginning of the 21 

year that we’ve had in many years.  It was the first and 22 

toughest year of the grouper rebuilding process and so the TAC 23 

is set lower than it has been in many years. 24 

 25 

The way some of the people that I’ve seen fishing under these 26 

conditions, where the TAC is set for rebuilding circumstances, 27 

it made me kind of think they must have unlimited quota, because 28 

they come back with huge trips time after time and there was 29 

actually, in some cases, an overabundance of fish at the fish 30 

house. 31 

 32 

Now we’re midway through the year and we have a little more than 33 

half the grouper TAC left and so the system is pretty close to 34 

working right, but some guys are having a tough time finding 35 

quota and I understand that. 36 

 37 

There are people like me who are hanging onto to their quota to 38 

make sure it lasts through the year and that’s why quota is not 39 

abundant.  The previous year, the first year of the quota 40 

program, there was an overabundance of quota.  I actually gave 41 

some away and so that kind of did trick people. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  John, you need to wrap it up. 44 

 45 

MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I guess what I want to wrap it up with is 46 

that the fishermen that are fishing for me have the best jobs 47 

they’ve ever had since they’ve been fishing.  They’re making 48 
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plenty of money and we’re going to make it throughout the year.  1 

It probably does make sense to consider releasing a little more 2 

quota, but I wouldn’t sacrifice our future to do it. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, John.  Next up is I believe it’s actually 5 

Jack Golden.  Jack Golden will be followed by Scott Daggett.  Is 6 

Jack in the room?  I don’t see him.  Scott Daggett, to be 7 

followed by Libby Fetherston. 8 

 9 

MR. SCOTT DAGGETT:  Good morning.  I’m an owner/operator out of 10 

Madeira Beach.  I’ve been fishing for twenty-four years.  I 11 

started when I was a kid and this is the only thing I do.  I’m 12 

not here really to trash the IFQ system.  It’s worked out pretty 13 

good, but to reiterate on other things, this year we are 14 

catching some fish. 15 

 16 

For me, for instance, I won’t work this summer.  I started the 17 

year leasing fish, just to make sure I could make it through.  18 

With thirty-five fathoms, where the fish were this year, we’ve 19 

all been fishing thirty-five fathoms.  That’s where the fish 20 

were. 21 

 22 

This summer, you’re really not going to catch them out there.  23 

You’re going to see a drop this summer when the fish get caught.  24 

There’s no ifs, ands, or buts about it, because we beat it up.  25 

In September, when we’re allowed inside of thirty-five fathoms, 26 

you’ll see it go back up. 27 

 28 

My point is if I could lease them right now -- I’m not fishing 29 

this summer, but to make it through the year, I would write the 30 

check today, but people are going to hold on to them and hold on 31 

to them and it’s just natural, because you’re trying to make the 32 

most money you can and I understand that. 33 

 34 

I don’t know where I’m going and I’m kind of getting lost here, 35 

but I would just to wrap it up and don’t be naïve about thinking 36 

that people won’t invest money in this fishery.  You know what I 37 

mean, the big investors that come in.  Don’t be naïve about that 38 

and trust me, because there are whispers of it and I can see it 39 

happening and that’s basically it. 40 

 41 

I’m really not trashing the IFQ system.  It’s working pretty 42 

good, but like I said, you could tweak things about it.  I don’t 43 

know and it’s working out all right.  That’s about it.  I kind 44 

of got lost. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Scott.  I appreciate it.  Libby 47 

Fetherston, to be followed by Jason Delacruz. 48 
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 1 

MS. LIBBY FETHERSTON:  Good morning, council members.  My name 2 

is Libby Fetherston and I’m here on behalf of Ocean Conservancy.  3 

I wanted to thank Joe Hendrix and Ed Sapp for their dedication 4 

not only to this council process and to the issues, but also to 5 

their commitment to listening to all sides of an issue and their 6 

openness to dialogue and so we really appreciate what you’ve 7 

done for the process and wish you well on your extended 8 

vacation, I think someone said. 9 

 10 

Briefly, in Amendment 32, I just wanted to support the 11 

committee’s final work on this document this week, particularly 12 

their attention to the vulnerable spawning times and areas.  We 13 

included some detailed comments on this in our letter and I’m 14 

happy to talk with any of you about that this week. 15 

 16 

On the annual catch limits, we wanted to thank the committee for 17 

their detailed discussion of this document.  We thought it was 18 

really informative and appreciate what you guys went through 19 

sort of item-by-item to get through that.  We look forward to 20 

seeing this amendment finalized and implemented as quickly as 21 

possible. 22 

 23 

Finally, I just wanted to offer some comments on the recent 24 

trend of recalculating allowable biological catch based only on 25 

an update to the landings. 26 

 27 

The stock assessments, as you’re all aware, represent a very 28 

complicated formula with a number of inputs and we’re concerned 29 

that only updating one of these inputs doesn’t accurately allow 30 

you to project into the future and increase or decrease 31 

allowable catches based on just one parameter. 32 

 33 

While we fully support this idea of moving to an annual 34 

specification process, we would encourage you to clearly 35 

articulate your goals for doing this and then establish data 36 

collection and monitoring priorities that allow you to reach 37 

those goals. 38 

 39 

While on the topic, it is our assertion that the restoration 40 

process provides a very interesting and excellent opportunity to 41 

articulate some of these goals in the offshore fisheries to the 42 

relevant bodies in charge of restoration and we encourage you to 43 

have some dialogue about what it is that you need to move to be 44 

able to monitor annually the species that may have been impacted 45 

by oil and clearly articulate that to the bodies, be it the task 46 

force or the NRDA process. 47 

 48 
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You all spend a lot of time caring about the needs of the 1 

stakeholders in the offshore marine environment and you really 2 

represent the right body to be putting forward the restoration 3 

goals for offshore fisheries and we encourage you to embrace 4 

that role and execute it as appropriate.  Thank you so much for 5 

your time. 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  Libby, in Amendment 32, do you guys support the 8 

extension of that closed area along the forty-fathom break 9 

during the spawning season? 10 

 11 

MS. FETHERSTON:  I’ll forgive for not having committed our 12 

letter to memory, but yes, we do support that. 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  I appreciate that. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Jason Delacruz, to be followed by Juan Soca, Jr. 17 

 18 

MR. JASON DELACRUZ:  Good afternoon.  I’m Jason Delacruz and 19 

most of you know me.  I’m kind of getting too common around 20 

here.  I have just a couple of quick thoughts. 21 

 22 

I think my first one is we make a lot of rules and I say we 23 

because I feel I’m part of helping that process now.  We let 24 

them go and we give them time and some not time and I guess I 25 

kind of want to just make a note that we need to give the quota 26 

system just a little bit of time to find its equilibrium. 27 

 28 

Last year was an anomaly, much like John said, in a lot of 29 

different ways and then this year was even a different anomaly.  30 

The process of the processers, the fish houses, learning to work 31 

within the system and the fishermen learning to work within the 32 

system all needs to get a chance to work itself out. 33 

 34 

I’ve talked to a lot of the guys that were the snapper guys and 35 

the fish houses and they had that learning curve and we’re still 36 

at the beginning of it for us.  We haven’t had a chance to 37 

really learn that and there is a situation where there’s not as 38 

much say red grouper quota available, but the reality of it is 39 

that the fish are being caught and the people that have it are 40 

holding onto it to make sure they can continue to harvest. 41 

 42 

I think also you’re going to find that that equilibrium happens 43 

too as this begins to move forward with snapper and grouper.  44 

Kind of like Buster mentioned, he can’t seem to get red grouper 45 

and I can’t seem to get red snapper, but yet we haven’t found 46 

the equal where we’re both happy. 47 

 48 
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As soon as those two things come around, which I think they are 1 

right now, I think you’re going to find that that does come to 2 

fruition and I just urge everyone on here to be patient.  Let’s 3 

let this system do its thing.  This is a bottom-up management 4 

change.  This wasn’t just one little rule.  This is a whole new 5 

way of looking at the system and so I would encourage everybody 6 

to do that. 7 

 8 

A couple of other quick things and like I mentioned at the round 9 

table, and I don’t know how many of you guys were here, but 10 

there’s some early restoration money available and I think the 11 

people that are in charge of that are looking to the council for 12 

suggestions. 13 

 14 

I think a couple of really good quick ideas that might help this 15 

council make rules in the process is one, maybe a turtle stock 16 

assessment.  We don’t have money for that, but they have early 17 

restoration and turtles are part of the problem and let’s do a 18 

stock assessment on them. 19 

 20 

Two, let’s get a new round of VMS and VMS on every commercial 21 

boat in the Gulf of Mexico, so we can monitor restoration and 22 

use that as a better data collection system, so that we can get 23 

quicker, real-time data.  It’s out there.   24 

 25 

The software is out there and everything is out there, the 26 

technology, and it’s foolish for us to be doing it the way we 27 

are.  I’m so fed up with logbooks that I want to strangle 28 

somebody.  That’s another story. 29 

 30 

Then the one last thing is when it comes to amberjack, a quick 31 

fix for our amberjack problem, I think at the very least we need 32 

to look at a trip limit, some sort of trip limit to slow 33 

amberjack down, so we can spread it out and use it for bycatch, 34 

because we don’t have enough to have really a lot of directed 35 

fishery. 36 

 37 

Whether it be a head count or a poundage count, I’m good with 38 

either one, but I hate to see those fish discarded and that’s 39 

where we’re at now, because we’re going to run into them 40 

incidentally. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Jason.  43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  Jason, on amberjack, what poundage would you 45 

recommend on a trip limit or what range do you think we ought to 46 

look at? 47 

 48 
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MR. DELACRUZ:  When we’re longlining, we don’t catch as many and 1 

then when I’m spearfishing, I obviously can control what I 2 

spear.  2,000 pounds would be -- It’s got to be low like that, 3 

because we have such a small quota and you saw what happened 4 

last year. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  Thank you.  I appreciate it. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Jason.  Next up is Juan Soca, Jr., 9 

followed by Keith Guindon, Buddy Guindon.  Is Juan Soca here?  10 

We’re moving on then to Buddy Guindon, to be followed by Lee 11 

Starling. 12 

 13 

MR. KEITH GUINDON:  I’m Buddy Guindon, Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish 14 

Shareholder’s Alliance, KV Seafood, fish house owner, boat 15 

owner, and now a dual permit holder, because my twenty-year-old 16 

son decided he wanted to go charterboat fishing. 17 

 18 

I’m here today and I was going to speak about a lot of things, 19 

but this red grouper thing seems to be a big problem.  I guess 20 

when you look at what’s happening, there’s lots of red grouper 21 

being caught.  22 

 23 

Big trips were landed early in the year.  The IFQ system seems 24 

to be working great.  They’re getting higher prices for their 25 

fish.  The only hitch part there is a few people didn’t have a 26 

very good business plan coming into this season.  They didn’t 27 

plan for them to use up all their fish. 28 

 29 

I guess if you decide let’s make up for these guys with the poor 30 

business plan and give them some more fish, you’re going to 31 

punish people next year and you’re going to punish the people 32 

this year that did have a good business plan coming into this, 33 

that have saved their quota and balanced it out through the year 34 

and are expecting to get very high prices at the end of the 35 

year, because they’ll have the only fish left. 36 

 37 

I don’t want to punish anybody, but it is a business and if you 38 

come into it with a business plan, you’ll do well and if you 39 

don’t, if you just try to grab what’s there and make your money 40 

now, then you will suffer later in the year. 41 

 42 

I hope that fishermen get a voice in this decision, all 43 

fishermen, the ones that are out there on the water, the ones 44 

that have been frugal through the beginning of the year that are 45 

going to be able to manage their fish through the rest of the 46 

year.  I hope they get to have a say-so in the decision making 47 

process of whether you turn quota loose or not.  It makes no 48 
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difference to me.  I don’t have any. 1 

 2 

The next thing is the recreational fishery.  They’re suffering 3 

the worst problem that they’re probably going to suffer until 4 

next year. 5 

 6 

They really need some way of managing a fishery that will work 7 

better than it’s working now and I hope you give them the 8 

ability to explore those options, whatever they might be.  They 9 

just need the ability to explore the options so that maybe there 10 

will be a few of them left in the next couple of years. 11 

 12 

I want to speak a little bit about Bob’s survey.  I sent sixteen 13 

of those surveys into him and they didn’t make it into the pile, 14 

for some reason.  I don’t know why. 15 

 16 

Lastly, the Gulf of Mexico Reef Fish Shareholder’s Alliance has 17 

started a program called Gulf Wild and I think all of you are 18 

aware of it.  I want you to know it’s just doing fantastic.  19 

We’re getting the best response and I never thought it would be 20 

like this, but we’re getting calls from all over the country.  21 

They want our fish.  They want to see those tags and they want 22 

to look at our computer and see our ugly-ass fishermen and so 23 

it’s working out great and that’s all I have and thank you. 24 

 25 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Buddy.  We have a question from Kay. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Buddy, tell me about this Gulf Wild, just 28 

briefly.  What are you talking about? 29 

 30 

MR. GUINDON:  It’s a fish tagging program where we have a 31 

seafood safety testing program.  We have a conservation covenant 32 

that you can’t be in it unless you sign up and say that you’re 33 

going to do a lot of things that’s not required by the National 34 

Marine Fisheries or by the council or by anyone else.  It’s only 35 

required by our group. 36 

 37 

We put a tag on a fish and the consumer can get that number and 38 

when they go to the restaurant or when they go to the retail 39 

market, they can look that fish up on the computer and they can 40 

see where and when it was caught and who caught it and a little 41 

story about the fisherman.  It’s a program that’s being embraced 42 

around the country really well. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Buddy.  Next up is Lee Starling, to be 45 

followed by Jack Golden. 46 

 47 

MR. LEE STARLING:  I’m Lee Starling and I’m actually from here, 48 
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in Key West.  I’m a day boat.  I’m primarily a spear fisherman 1 

and crawfish.  The council, you’re already reviewed the data for 2 

the trap thing and so I won’t even go there.  I appreciate you 3 

reviewing that data. 4 

 5 

I have a question for you.  As we sit right now, are we in the 6 

Gulf or are we in the Atlantic?  Anybody?  We’re in the Gulf, 7 

because if you walk across the street over here, you’re in the 8 

Atlantic and that poses a problem for us down here, because 9 

literally where I fish, I could go from the Gulf into the 10 

Atlantic two or three times a day, depending on the tide. 11 

 12 

As I said, I primarily spearfish for my finfish.  The IFQ 13 

program has been a disaster for us day boats down here.  Even 14 

though I had my 8,000 pounds of landings, I was given I think 15 

260 pounds of quota, which was pretty much a disaster, 16 

considering that if I go a quarter mile this way, suddenly I 17 

can’t have a grouper on my boat. 18 

 19 

Surprisingly, I don’t mind the VMS too much.  I would actually 20 

like to see the VMS, and this is going to be real unpopular, on 21 

all commercial boats. 22 

 23 

I’m dually permitted.  I guess I’m quadruple permitted.  I’ve 24 

got both permits for the Atlantic and for the Southeast Atlantic 25 

and I want to comply with the rules.  Unfortunately for your 26 

smaller fish markets, like Half Shell Seafood, NRG, they will 27 

not participate in the IFQ program.  They say it is simply too 28 

complicated.  There’s too much paperwork involved and it’s not 29 

worth it for the 260 pounds of quota that I have. 30 

 31 

You’ve got to go hustle your fish off to someplace else other 32 

than your regular fish market.  Personally, I would like to see 33 

the Florida Keys made into a separate area, the line for the 34 

Gulf moved up to Collier County, and we have a spawn-based 35 

fishery down here. 36 

 37 

One thing you don’t do is you don’t kill a cow as they’re having 38 

a calf and so we shouldn’t be killing our fish as they’re 39 

spawning.  IFQ sorts of defeats that program.  I would rather 40 

have that closure and know that I’m going to have a better year, 41 

especially a few years down the line, rather than to be running 42 

around trying to swap out pieces of paper that just until 43 

recently were useless. 44 

 45 

I want to sum this up and the crew thing, they say you’re 46 

handling the crew size thing for spear fishermen, to increase 47 

how many crew members are on.  This goes totally against 48 
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everything about a sustainable fishery. 1 

 2 

Since you have got a low IFQ, what you have to do is you’ve got 3 

to turn around and you’ve got to kill more hogfish and you’ve 4 

got to kill more gray snappers and species that we weren’t 5 

harvesting before and so what you’re doing is you’re putting an 6 

adverse impact on other fish groups, other species, to make up 7 

for the lack of IFQs that we were given.  Like the other day, 8 

when I went into the channel -- 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Lee, you need to wrap it up.  We have a question for 11 

you from Bill. 12 

 13 

MR. TEEHAN:  Lee, you kind of indicated an answer to what my 14 

question was as far as one of the remedies to the two different 15 

fisheries council jurisdictions in Monroe County would be to 16 

take Monroe County out and give it to one or the other.  You 17 

mentioned Collier County and would you want the South Atlantic 18 

Council to be managing this entire county or would you prefer to 19 

have the Gulf Council managing it? 20 

 21 

MR. STARLING:  I don’t really have a preference over which area 22 

would control it, but I think it needs to be a spawn-based 23 

thing, because here in the Keys, we can specifically say -- 24 

We’ve got a long chain, just like this table, and we can 25 

specifically spot here’s a mutton aggregation, here’s a grouper 26 

aggregation. 27 

 28 

What we need to have is biologists.  Like this opening of our 29 

grouper season was a disaster if you were a black grouper, 30 

because in April, we had cold water upwelling and that cold 31 

water upwelling was fifty-nine degrees and what it did is it 32 

made the spawn delay. 33 

 34 

When we opened up here in May, they were spawning, fully 35 

spawning.  Every grouper I cut open or every other grouper had 36 

roe in it the size of a sweet potato and so what we need to do 37 

is we need to have marine fisheries biologists out there 38 

catching those fish and testing them and saying this fish is 39 

still spawning and let’s delay that spawn opening. 40 

 41 

I thought the idea is that we’re supposed to protect the stock 42 

so it will be sustainable and then the rest of the year, we’ll 43 

be able to harvest and do well.  Once you get a little bit 44 

older, you can see I don’t need to kill every fish that’s out 45 

there.  That’s a young man’s thing. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Lee.  We appreciate your input.  Last call 48 
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for Jack Golden.  Is Jack in the room?  I’m not seeing him.  1 

Bobby Cardin, to be followed by -- We do have four cards from 2 

speakers who have already spoken.  We will acknowledge those 3 

cards and they will be following and so following Bobby will be 4 

Russ Nelson. 5 

 6 

MR. BOBBY CARDIN:  Thank you, Bob.  I’m here mainly to comment 7 

about the spiny lobster tailing permit.  It’s a useful tool.  We 8 

all know that if you try to hold the lobsters on ice or try to 9 

keep them alive for several days that you end up with a bad 10 

product. 11 

 12 

However, having to land all of one or the other, to me, makes no 13 

sense.  I don’t know how it would help law enforcement and 14 

landing both gives me better marketability.  The fish market 15 

wants a couple of great big lobsters sitting there around a pile 16 

of tails. 17 

 18 

Where I live at, off of Fort Pierce, Florida, we have lobsters 19 

from a pound to twelve or thirteen pounds.  Now, restaurants and 20 

what have you want the whole, live lobster.  They want the 21 

little lobsters.  That’s one market and then the big lobsters, 22 

they freeze the tails.  It’s two totally different markets. 23 

 24 

It’s just like some of your reef fish you gut and some you 25 

don’t.  It’s the way the fishery has developed itself.  Like 26 

down in the Keys, I think they have a two-pound break.  In Fort 27 

Pierce, we have a three-pound break.  That’s our price break. 28 

 29 

Quite often, when the large lobsters -- When there’s a lot of 30 

lobsters on the market, then the large lobster price drops.  I 31 

can make more money at that time selling the tails than I can 32 

off the whole lobster.  Other times, lobster prices are high and 33 

then I want to sell the whole lobster. 34 

 35 

This really takes the marketability away from my product.  Every 36 

year -- I remember thirty years ago, I would take the first two 37 

weeks off of work and I would make $600 a day lobster diving.  38 

Right now today, it’s hard to do that, because there’s so many 39 

people, recreational and commercial. 40 

 41 

We’re pushed in this box of having to take less and less fish.  42 

There’s less and less available and we need this tool to make 43 

more off of our product and that’s all I have to say and thank 44 

you. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bobby.  I have a question for you.  Why 47 

can’t you target your trips to the markets you intend to serve 48 
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for that day?  For a given day, you do tailing or the next day 1 

you do whole or however you want to structure it, but what’s 2 

wrong with that? 3 

 4 

MR. CARDIN:  Our tailing trips are multi-day trips and so, of 5 

course, the older lobster you want tailed and chilled and dipped 6 

and brined and then, of course, it’s hard to keep the lobster 7 

alive for five or six days and so the last day of the trip, or 8 

the last two days of the trip, then you cull out the little ones 9 

or high-grade the little ones and keep them whole.  The lobsters 10 

just don’t hold well on ice. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bobby.  Next up is Russell Nelson and 13 

he’ll be followed by Chad Hansen. 14 

 15 

DR. NELSON:  I thank you for the extra opportunity.  I am going 16 

to be referencing page 88 and then page 209 in the ACL/AM 17 

Amendment and I thank Assane for straightening me out.  I was 18 

mistaken earlier when I said there was a section that didn’t 19 

have an economic analysis. 20 

 21 

I just couldn’t, from the language in here, understand what that 22 

was.  If you look at Action 2.7.4 on page 88, Alternative 1 23 

reads: No action, do not establish sector allocations for black 24 

grouper based on the council’s allowable biological catch. 25 

 26 

Assane explained to me, although it’s never been mentioned that 27 

I’ve heard at one of these meetings, what that really is, it’s 28 

status quo with the allocation at 30 percent recreational and 70 29 

percent commercial. 30 

 31 

There’s no reference to that fact, that that is what the status 32 

quo is, but if you look at the table on page 209, the 33 

Alternative 1, which is the baseline, so there would be no 34 

economic analysis, and the other reductions are compared to that 35 

baseline, shows that in the recent years the recreational catch 36 

has been 30 percent, which means that by reducing it to 18 37 

percent in your preferred alternative, you’re reducing it to 60 38 

percent of current, which would seem to me then that you’re 39 

going to force the recreational fishery to close in the middle 40 

part of the year. 41 

 42 

I don’t know that any of this has been talked about or 43 

considered.  Again, our position is the allocations are properly 44 

undertaken by considering the economic, social, and conservation 45 

issues that are set out in the catch share policy. 46 

 47 

We would suggest with the black grouper that you simply did what 48 
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you did yesterday with Spanish mackerel, set an ACL for the 1 

total fishery.  You’ve got an amendment that you’re working on 2 

now that’s going to look at grouper allocation and that would be 3 

the place to do this.  Thank you. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Russ.  Next up is Chad Hansen, to be 6 

followed by Donnie Waters.  Chad is done?  Donnie Waters, to be 7 

followed by Bob Zales.  Bob is the last card I have at this 8 

point. 9 

 10 

MR. WATERS:  Thank you very much for this opportunity to finish 11 

my public testimony for this afternoon and I hope everyone has a 12 

good day.  That kind of brings me back to the blind leading the 13 

blind or maybe getting the cart before the horse or whatever. 14 

 15 

You hear these complaints from the fishermen about stuff that 16 

fishermen needs to address and again, it brings me back to where 17 

I’ve been for over a year, asking for you to convene a panel of 18 

fishermen for us to work out our differences sitting at the 19 

table, however bloody it may be. 20 

 21 

It could save you all from having rocks thrown at you.  You 22 

could put us in the room and let us throw rocks at each other 23 

and you all could watch in amusement and then we could come back 24 

and maybe offer some legitimate, some very legitimate, ways to 25 

work out the things that it seems that you all have so much 26 

trouble working out and then when you do it, then you have 27 

another fisherman over there going oh, my God, no that ain’t 28 

what I want and this is what I want. 29 

 30 

Why not like put the people that’s fighting amongst themselves 31 

in a room and let them come out with a thing and take the advice 32 

of the advisory panels? 33 

 34 

That seems what the biggest thing that we have right now, 35 

because I sat on the original Red Snapper AP.  We asked for a 36 

use-it-or-lose-it and we asked for this not to become public.  37 

Now we’re fighting over it and the people on the west coast of 38 

the Gulf may have some legitimate complaints about they’re 39 

catching fish they can’t -- What if, to quote what Mr. Bob Shipp 40 

said to me six years ago, what if CCA bought a million pounds 41 

and sat them on the shelf?  I kind of lost my edge right there 42 

in front of him that morning.   43 

 44 

This makes less quota available to the west coast.  What if we 45 

could only lease 50 percent of the fish we own?  What if we had 46 

a use-it-or-lose-it?   47 

 48 
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These are the things the fishermen needs to be able to work out 1 

and I beg you to let the fishermen -- Put us in a room.  You all 2 

will be a whole lot less bloodier and you all will catch a whole 3 

lot less ribbing and we can fight amongst ourselves and it takes 4 

you out.  What better answer can you have? 5 

 6 

I think that there’s also some other things that we need to 7 

address.  I’m down to two seconds.  You all have a great 8 

afternoon and enjoy yourselves. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Donnie.  There’s a question for you from 11 

Robin. 12 

 13 

MR. RIECHERS:  Donnie, did you vote for the referendum?  Did you 14 

vote yes? 15 

 16 

MR. WATERS:  Yes. 17 

 18 

MR. RIECHERS:  I think I was chair the last day we passed this 19 

through the council.  Did you support the whole program, 20 

understanding you had things you didn’t like, understanding 21 

there were council members that had things they didn’t like, but 22 

as a total on that last day, did you come before the council and 23 

say support this? 24 

 25 

MR. WATERS:  I supported that because the system that we -- It 26 

was better than the system of what we was in. 27 

 28 

MR. RIECHERS:  Thank you, Donnie.  I appreciate it. 29 

 30 

MR. WATERS:  I’ll finish answering my question.  There was 31 

things in that system that I did not support and I mean it’s a 32 

better system than what it was. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Donnie.  Next up is Bob Zales.  We have 35 

gotten another card for Shawn Watson to follow Bob. 36 

 37 

MR. ZALES:  Bob Zales, II, again.  I appreciate the opportunity 38 

to do this again, because there’s two issues that I would like 39 

to talk about that I didn’t get a chance to before.  One, I put 40 

a request in for the sector separation issue that’s been out 41 

there for a couple or three years now. 42 

 43 

At the Orange Beach meeting, I believe that you all moved the 44 

next discussion of that for the Austin meeting in August and 45 

part of the reason was because in the Keys we’re on the far 46 

eastern range of your jurisdiction and so it really wasn’t fair 47 

to fishermen to do that. 48 
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 1 

Well, for the same reason, Austin is kind of on the far western 2 

edge of that range and so your October meeting is in New Orleans 3 

and that’s pretty well centralized for the Gulf and it’s also at 4 

a good time because people are done, pretty much, with fishing 5 

for this time of year and whatnot and so that might be a better 6 

way to do it. 7 

 8 

You also will have two new council members in August who some 9 

may know a little bit and some may not and so October would give 10 

them time to get up to speed a little bit on that. 11 

 12 

The other one is the issue that was brought to me on my way down 13 

here Sunday from a couple of guys in Destin and I’ve talked to 14 

Roy briefly about this.  Apparently there’s been some discussion 15 

between Roy and some people in Destin about amberjack. 16 

 17 

The opinion on Sunday when I talked to -- When these guys told 18 

me this, they’re under the impression that you all might be able 19 

to open up amberjack on the 19th of July, for the final two weeks 20 

of July, because there will be nothing other than about king 21 

mackerel that you’ll be able to keep, with the understanding 22 

that it would probably screw up November and December, but not 23 

October. 24 

 25 

In talking to Roy, that wasn’t necessarily correct, because he 26 

said it could be that it might screw up October and the 27 

likelihood of it getting done will probably be nothing at all, 28 

but in fairness to them, because they asked me to mention this, 29 

if you all discuss it, clearly they don’t want -- If anything to 30 

do with jacks keeps them out of October, leave it alone, but if 31 

there’s some way you can move it up with a halfway guarantee 32 

that it won’t do anything in October, then they would like to 33 

see the fish.  That’s it.  Thank you very much. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Bob.  The last speaker is Shawn Watson. 36 

 37 

MR. SHAWN WATSON:  Good evening, council.  I just want to 38 

address the IFQ situation.  I’m a new owner in this business.  39 

I’m still learning quite a bit about this business, but with the 40 

IFQ, I can tell you that it’s not working for me, a newcomer 41 

coming into this business. 42 

 43 

I’m having to lease IFQs, if they’re available.  They’ve been 44 

tough in the bandit and longline industry, which is what I’m 45 

doing.  It’s been real hard for me to just get a hold of getting 46 

IFQs and with the price of the IFQs continually going up, with 47 

the price of grouper and snapper, my guys cannot make a good 48 
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living. 1 

 2 

I’m having to go into my pocket to make sure that when they go 3 

out fishing for two weeks and they come in -- After they pay 4 

their IFQ price, they come back and they say, hey, boss, we’re 5 

not making any money and so the IFQ program needs to be fixed 6 

and it needs to be addressed in some way, because from what I’ve 7 

heard today, the little bit of testimony that I have heard, this 8 

is working for a few people on this whole IFQ program, but it’s 9 

not working for 90 percent of the industry. 10 

 11 

It may be working for 10 percent of the industry, but it’s not 12 

working for the 90 percent and we need to look at growing this 13 

industry in fishing and if we can’t do that, where are we going?  14 

We need to take a hard look at how we’re going to fix the IFQ 15 

program and make it work for everyone and not just a few.  16 

That’s all I have to say and thank you. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Hold on just a second.  We’ve got a 19 

couple of questions. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  Shawn, thanks for your testimony.  Are you speaking 22 

of red snapper IFQ, grouper, or both of them? 23 

 24 

MR. WATSON:  Both. 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  You said you’re new and where are you -- Are you 27 

from Florida or Texas? 28 

 29 

MR. WATSON:  I’m from Florida.  I fish out of Madeira Beach. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That concludes our public testimony.  We’re a 32 

little out of whack on the agenda and so the original agenda has 33 

us reconvening at two o’clock, but let’s make it 1:30.  That 34 

gives us almost an hour-and-a-half and so at 1:30 we’ll 35 

reconvene. 36 

 37 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 12:15 p.m., June 9, 2011.) 38 

 39 

- - - 40 

 41 

June 9, 2011 42 

 43 

THURSDAY AFTERNOON SESSION 44 

 45 

- - - 46 

 47 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 48 
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Council reconvened at the Marriott Beachside, Key West, Florida, 1 

Thursday afternoon, June 9, 2011, and was called to order at 2 

1:30 p.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We are going to refer back to the original 5 

agenda and follow it and we’ll catch up as best we can.  The 6 

next thing on the agenda is Dr. Bortone and Fisheries 101. 7 

 8 

FISHERIES 101 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s always bad to be the first 11 

speaker after lunch, but here we go.  As you know, we’ve had a 12 

series that we’ve been trying to do every session on fisheries, 13 

an introduction. 14 

 15 

The first few talked about the need for data, the kinds of data, 16 

a general introduction to some of the assessment models.  The 17 

plan today is to go into a little bit more detail on some of 18 

those.  My original plan for next time was to do even more of 19 

this, but I think maybe Mr. Steele will be talking next time. 20 

 21 

Phil is going to talk about the process itself.  We’ve got some 22 

new members coming in for orientation and it sounds like a good 23 

message to give them and so we’ll continue with this and, again, 24 

I would appreciate any ideas some of you have on topics that we 25 

might cover.  It’s potentially infinite. 26 

 27 

Two times before, I talked about some of the general kinds of 28 

approaches.  There are production models and structural dynamic 29 

pool models.  Of the production models, which we’re going to 30 

talk about today, there are more fishery independent types than 31 

fishery dependent. 32 

 33 

One is index-based and the other is effort-based and so we’re 34 

going to give a little introduction to those and, again, it’s a 35 

quick and dirty one, but basically you’ve already seen, even at 36 

this meeting, some index-based production models. 37 

 38 

You can really use anything.  They’re usually done for data-poor 39 

species, especially when you’ve got irregular effort data.  40 

We’ve talked a little bit already about effort and how it tends 41 

to drift with sophistication with time, making it not too 42 

comparable, but as you see here, we’ve got some examples.  43 

You’re all familiar with the -- At least Bob Shipp is familiar 44 

with the Dow Jones Industrial Average. 45 

 46 

Then we have the number of people in suits shopping at Wal-Mart 47 

as another index of something and I’m not sure, but the point is 48 
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you can index just about anything and get some idea of trends. 1 

 2 

A basic model for an index-type production model would be an 3 

indicator of some type, and we’ll talk about what those might 4 

be, over some unit of time and there’s usually some reference 5 

measure.  In our case, it might be an ACL or an ACT or an MSY, 6 

maximum sustainable yield, and then there might be some target 7 

as well that we would look at. 8 

 9 

Basically, the index production models -- Usually, again, they 10 

have some timeframe.  It’s usually annual, but it could be in 11 

groups of five years, three years, or it could be even monthly, 12 

in some cases.  That’s a dependent.  The important point is that 13 

over some period of time, it’s standardized. 14 

 15 

The fisheries indices could be fishery-dependent, based on catch 16 

or even sales.  This is not really the best type of data to use 17 

on these.  We would rather have fishery-independent indices and 18 

we could talk about some things like stock abundance, biomass, 19 

density, in number of fish or pounds per unit area or volume. 20 

 21 

One of the more common indices, and I’ll show one of those 22 

later, are larval or juvenile abundance indices, but that 23 

assumes there’s a relationship between larvae and juvenile and 24 

adults.  That may not be true for all fisheries. 25 

 26 

Spawning potential ratios, which we’ll talk later in another 27 

series about, growth rates, or actually anything.  In some 28 

freshwater groups, it could be the number of nests in a stream 29 

or for those that mate and things, it could be the number of 30 

scars on the side of the female, anything that’s reflective of 31 

the density or abundance of something that’s out there and so 32 

it’s really quite flexible in what we do. 33 

 34 

Here’s some examples.  I took these from the Atlantic States 35 

Marine Fisheries Commission.  They put this out and this is one 36 

-- This is number of crabs by some standard tow or sampling 37 

device that they have and as you can see, over time -- It begins 38 

at 1990 and goes up to 2010 and there’s some fluctuation in 39 

that. 40 

 41 

There’s two levels.  There’s something called a threshold level 42 

of age one abundance and the interim target that we might want 43 

to reach.  This is a standard way that an abundance might work, 44 

but maybe more familiar would be something like biomass. 45 

 46 

This is bluefish on the Atlantic coast and you can see the same 47 

thing, some trend in abundance over time, whatever that unit is.  48 
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In this case, it’s biomass, but we also have indicated on here 1 

the biomass target and some threshold as well, but also what I 2 

find interesting that the Atlantic States do is they indicate 3 

events. 4 

 5 

Here we see Amendment 1 that was passed and that’s kind of an 6 

interesting thing to see, because you can then very easily look 7 

at that and determine was a management strategy effective or did 8 

it have a change in this index? 9 

 10 

Another example is this of the tautog.  It’s the same kind of 11 

thing.  Here’s biomass also, but now you see on the axis, or on 12 

the graph, a number of different amendments and fisheries plans 13 

that were instituted and how that may have reflected in the data 14 

that we see and so, again, it’s annual data in this case with 15 

some index, in this case biomass over time. 16 

 17 

The striped bass juvenile index is probably the one or the most 18 

notable.  It goes back to 1954 and it’s kind of interesting.  19 

It’s an index of sampling for juveniles.  It’s twenty-two sites 20 

at fixed stations in the Chesapeake Bay portion of Maryland, I 21 

might add.   22 

 23 

It’s collected three times a year with replicate samples with 24 

the seine net.  The seine net is always the same and over years, 25 

they’ve been able to build up this index, which is quite an 26 

interesting one and it’s used very judiciously to help monitor 27 

that fishery, but, again, that fishery shows a really good 28 

relationship between juveniles and adults. 29 

 30 

What’s important and why I’m going to show this is this is an 31 

index.  It’s that relative scale based on that sampling of those 32 

methods and so that number doesn’t really mean anything except 33 

to itself and over time. 34 

 35 

This is -- I’ve thrown on top of this one the Virginia striped 36 

bass juvenile index.  It’s the same species, but a different 37 

sampling technique was used.  However, the index -- Again, we 38 

just have to talk about proportional and so we can put these two 39 

indices together and compare, but the scales would be different, 40 

because they used a different sampling technique, but, again, we 41 

are able to use these indices quite easily. 42 

 43 

I think there’s some advantage in many fisheries of using 44 

indices and especially in the Gulf as we develop more let’s say 45 

video sampling techniques, fixed camera stations throughout the 46 

Gulf.  These may become a very, very good way of monitoring 47 

fisheries over a long period of time. 48 
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 1 

Just to show one of these, and the scale doesn’t mean too much.  2 

We have a biomass at maximum sustained yield on two different 3 

levels, but it shows below here that smoothing that you’ve heard 4 

about and you’ve seen something about. 5 

 6 

In this case, it’s a five-year average that’s smoothed and so 7 

notice you don’t see the red line in the first five years.  It 8 

only shows up in the fifth year and the purpose of this is it’s 9 

an index, but it’s smoothed to get rid of some of the extremes, 10 

both highs and lows.  We’re going to talk a little bit more 11 

about smoothing later, because it’s become an interesting topic 12 

and certainly worth discussion, but, again, here’s biomass over 13 

time. 14 

 15 

These are some examples of indices and they’re really very 16 

useful, but, again, usually for data-poor species, but the 17 

important point is that the method of sampling is pretty much 18 

standardized over that time unit. 19 

 20 

One of the things you can do with an index like this is you 21 

might be able to compare both fishery-independent and fishery-22 

dependent indices.  I just made up this example, but let’s say 23 

we had a fishery-independent one and a fishery-dependent one.   24 

 25 

You might be able to calibrate say one versus the other to get 26 

some more useful data out of that particular projection and so I 27 

think we’re going to see some of these.  I think, again, some of 28 

our data-poor species will be well served by this. 29 

 30 

Another type of approach, which is also a production approach, 31 

uses specifically the fishery-dependent data versus effort and 32 

we talked before, again, about how effort needs to be consistent 33 

and if it gets more efficient or less efficient with time, it 34 

kind of throws the data off a little bit, but just a little bit 35 

of a primer into what this is all about. 36 

 37 

To use effort-based production methods, we usually involve 38 

catch.  Now, catch can be defined in various ways, as long as 39 

it’s consistent, whether it’s true landings, harvest, yield, but 40 

it’s fishery-dependent and lately, we are starting to see some 41 

fishery-independent versions of effort-based production models. 42 

 43 

Then, as I mentioned before, in one of our previous talks, about 44 

the kinds of effort that might be used.  Again, as long as it’s 45 

consistent, number of trips, number of hooks, number of boats, 46 

number of fishermen, boat size, soak time, or combinations of 47 

that.  For example, the number of person days or number of hook 48 
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days all could be used as ways of calibrating the effort part to 1 

compare with this. 2 

 3 

Now, typically what one would see -- We call these surplus yield 4 

models and sometimes you’ll see them called Schaeffer models, 5 

but there are many kinds of models.  Sometimes it’s a Gordon-6 

Schaeffer model.  There are various versions.  It just changes 7 

the shape of the curve that we’re talking about with a few 8 

different assumptions. 9 

 10 

Notice here that we start with Year 1, 2, 3, 4, 5.  There’s 11 

usually some drift as a fishery projects.  Obviously when a 12 

fishery starts out, there’s virtually no catch and there’s no 13 

effort and at some point, it increases and then when we start 14 

maybe hitting past the overfishing line, you’ll start seeing 15 

effort increase and catch decreasing.  This is the typical 16 

principle behind using this type of surplus yield model or what 17 

we call another kind of production model. 18 

 19 

An equation or a curve is calculated and it’s an equilibrium 20 

curve.  We always talk about sustainable fisheries.  Actually, 21 

any place along that line is sustainable, in theory.  It’s just 22 

where you want it to be sustainable, but we force the equation 23 

through the zero point and some endpoint and so it always has 24 

this parabolic or concave shape to it. 25 

 26 

We can take things a little bit further when we look at these 27 

models.  Again, we start out with a basic model and, again, the 28 

shape could be slightly different, depending upon which theory 29 

is backing it, but they generally have the same idea. 30 

 31 

At some peak, there’s what we might define as maximum 32 

sustainable yield.  This is where the fishery would sit at 33 

equilibrium and is sustainable, but the point is if you go 34 

slightly over that, you wind up getting lower catch and so we 35 

don’t want to do that.   36 

 37 

We might want to have an optimum yield, which is at some point, 38 

and it could be mathematically defined or even socially defined, 39 

based on social factors, at some level below that particular 40 

level.  This is kind of the use of this, but one thing I caution 41 

everybody when you look at these -- Again, there are different 42 

models and under different conditions, that maximum sustainable 43 

yield may be in a different place. 44 

 45 

As ecological changes occur in the Gulf, perhaps as a result of 46 

the oil spill or a hurricane or something else, that theoretical 47 

peak at maximum sustainable yield may be slightly different and 48 
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the curve might have a different shape as well and so we need to 1 

watch for that. 2 

 3 

Again, I guess if we were really to be the best we could be, we 4 

would want to see these data that we just talked about, the 5 

catch effort data for each year, kind of rotate around this top 6 

point, but, again, we don’t want to go over it and so often what 7 

we see is a fishery sort of maybe ideally somewhat below that 8 

and so we might not want to talk about maximum sustainable 9 

yield, but some yield on an equilibrium basis circling around 10 

some point before it hits its particular maximum.  That way, the 11 

fishery is robust and it’s able to actually accommodate some 12 

other stresses or change that come to the population. 13 

 14 

Here’s a typical data scatter that you might see of catch versus 15 

effort and notice the data -- This is maybe more typical of what 16 

you see.  The data points are really all over the place.   17 

 18 

They don’t really follow that line all that well and we know 19 

why.  There’s differences in definitions of catch, effort.  All 20 

kinds of factors enter into it, but nevertheless, the model 21 

still makes the curve have this shape, which could be good or 22 

bad. 23 

 24 

Note that there might be a statistical parameter to this.  That 25 

is, the maximum sustainable yield might have some variability 26 

about it.  It may not just be a number, but a number with some 27 

positive or negative standard deviations, some estimate of 28 

variance around that particular point.  That can be useful in 29 

management. 30 

 31 

Now, one thing I want to just show you a small example of -- A 32 

lot of times this is black box fishery.  We don’t know what the 33 

maximum would be.  We don’t know what the maximum effort might 34 

be and so imagine this dataset from the previous one, but 35 

superimpose little versions of it on top of this curve. 36 

 37 

We never know really on this curve where we are and so, for 38 

example, maybe we have in Block B -- This is the only dataset 39 

that we have, yet it’s part of this bigger curve that goes all 40 

the way across, the black curve, or maybe we only have data from 41 

C.  That’s reality, but in fact, remember the whole population 42 

is in this larger perspective, but we never know where we are on 43 

this continuum. 44 

 45 

Unless you’ve got a lot of data and you’re confident in it, you 46 

may have a mystery and let me just show you a second example.  47 

If I only had data from the B portion and that’s all I had and I 48 
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ran the model and I calculated, this is what I would wind up 1 

with. 2 

 3 

It could be very misleading.  I might calculate an MSY from a 4 

production model, but because I don’t have a complete dataset 5 

through the entire potential continuum, I’ll wind up with a 6 

very, very false impression and so follow-up studies, maybe 7 

coupled with an index, is the way to go. 8 

 9 

Now, I mentioned this a little bit last time I talked, about the 10 

idea of looking at fishing mortality.  If we look at that same 11 

dataset of catch versus effort, but convert it to catch per unit 12 

effort versus effort, we get a straight line, which is basically 13 

fishing mortality. 14 

 15 

We can do a lot with this.  Sometimes these data are put into 16 

different models, but realize also there’s variance about these 17 

particular lines.  It’s not just a straight line that we can say 18 

that’s reality.  There’s also some variance and here’s two 19 

examples of a tightly-clustered group around that line and 20 

sometimes quite a big variation about that line. 21 

 22 

This last slide of the set just shows you what some real data 23 

are like.  The one on one side are just the scatter of points of 24 

catch per effort and I think down at the bottom it says number 25 

of vessels.  They’re two different fisheries. 26 

 27 

It shows you what the curves could be.  It shows you what the 28 

curve looks like and then, again, imagine these data with just 29 

the line and no data or just the data and no line and you’ll see 30 

that there’s a real different perspective you get and likewise, 31 

the same thing happens when we look at the line data. 32 

 33 

That’s a brief introduction to what I’ll call production models.  34 

They’re very useful and up until recent times, up until maybe 35 

twenty years ago, this was how you did fisheries.  There really 36 

wasn’t much else and when we did the first plan for snapper and 37 

grouper in the Gulf, these were the kind of models that we used, 38 

because it’s all that we had. 39 

 40 

Next time, I was going to talk a little bit more about Fisheries 41 

101, but I think we’ll kind of leave that topic open and what I 42 

would like to do, again, is get some feedback from you as to 43 

what other topics we need to cover. 44 

 45 

Hopefully Phil can talk next time about the process itself, the 46 

IPT process and where it fits, but after that, we’re going to go 47 

back to some more kinds of models, but they’ll be more of the 48 
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dynamic pool models that involve biological data.  Thanks for 1 

your time. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve got time for two quick questions or none 4 

at all.  It looks like none at all is the option, Steve, but 5 

we’ll be with you this evening.  The next item on the agenda is 6 

the Advisory Panel Selection, but before we get into that, I 7 

think Ed wanted to make some comments. 8 

 9 

ADVISORY PANEL SELECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 10 

 11 

MR. SAPP:  I would like to initiate some council discussion and 12 

in order to accommodate that discussion, I’m going to go ahead 13 

and make a motion to get it started and if I get a second, I’ll 14 

provide some rationale and maybe some topics for us to bat 15 

around a little bit.  The motion is that the council not move 16 

forward with appointment of a headboat IFQ advisory panel. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second? 19 

 20 

MR. BOYD:  Mr. Chairman, I’ll second it for discussion. 21 

 22 

MR. SAPP:  I’m going to come at this from three different angles 23 

to see if we can generate some discussion and what I hope is 24 

that the discussion will provide a mechanism for allowing the 25 

public to know what our intent is as we move forward with some 26 

of these catch share programs that we keep talking about. 27 

 28 

The first angle that I want to come from is from the most recent 29 

law that was passed as part of the budget and it’s commonly 30 

referred to as the Jones Amendment and I think probably all of 31 

you have had an opportunity to see and read it. 32 

 33 

It comes about because there are some people that have the idea 34 

that the councils are basically hell bent on cramming catch 35 

shares down the throats of people and I know that’s not shared 36 

by everybody, but it is at least a perception that’s out there 37 

and with these folks frustration with not being able to make any 38 

progress at the council level, some of them have gone to 39 

Congress and asked for some help from them. 40 

 41 

These are recreational anglers and these are commercial anglers 42 

and what they did was they got a couple of House of 43 

Representatives members to -- They sponsored a piece of 44 

legislation and it got through the House of Representatives and 45 

evidently it was a fairly strongly worded document that would 46 

not allow the councils to proceed with new catch share measures 47 

using any of the 2011 budget money. 48 
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 1 

What finally would up being passed as an amendment to the budget 2 

is something that’s a pretty much watered-down version of what 3 

the original House of Representatives was and immediately when 4 

it became law, I know that Eric Schwaab asked for a legal 5 

opinion from NOAA Counsel and the legal opinion was issued and I 6 

think that probably all of you have had the opportunity to 7 

review that.  8 

 9 

It’s pretty clear from the legal opinion that the council, if we 10 

choose to, can move forward with the development of catch share 11 

programs if we so choose to. 12 

 13 

Understand that that is NOAA’s legal opinion and we, of course, 14 

have heard that there are others that have a different 15 

interpretation of it, but be that as it may, I think it’s 16 

probably appropriate for us to act based on what the NOAA 17 

version of it is. 18 

 19 

As a follow-up to the legal opinion, the sponsors of the 20 

original amendment addressed a letter to Jane Lubchenco and 21 

asked for some more clarification and in that letter and, again, 22 

I think you’ve probably all had an opportunity to see that 23 

letter, there was a little bit of a challenge issued to whether 24 

or not it’s appropriate for the councils to move forward with 25 

new catch share programs. 26 

 27 

That’s where we’re at right now.  We’ve got for consideration 28 

what is in effect a new recreational catch share program in the 29 

form of this headboat IFQ program and so that’s one avenue for 30 

discussion and I think it’s important for us to get on the 31 

record what our intent is, what our interpretation of that law 32 

is, and how we intend to move forward based on what’s been done. 33 

 34 

The second angle that I want to come at this from is if we 35 

decided that it was appropriate for us to move forward with a 36 

headboat IFQ program, it seems like we ought to be looking at 37 

the timeline and putting things in some kind of a rational 38 

sequence for how we develop. 39 

 40 

If we’re talking about a recreational catch share program, it 41 

seems like we ought to do what we’ve already committed to begin 42 

the process of and that is a review of the allocations for any 43 

of the fisheries that we’re talking about developing 44 

recreational IFQs for. 45 

 46 

I’ve pushed for allocation reviews for three years and the 47 

council has finally committed to doing it for gag grouper and 48 



97 

 

red grouper and black grouper and I suspect that we’ll move 1 

quickly into red grouper and amberjack and the other important 2 

species, but it seems to me like we’re putting the cart before 3 

the horse when we start talking about taking a portion of an 4 

allocation and divvying it up a little bit further until we know 5 

really what we expect that portion to be or what that allocation 6 

should be and so I think we ought to get through the review 7 

process. 8 

 9 

The other thing that’s going on is if we were setting up a new 10 

IFQ program, you would think we would want to look at how it 11 

might be structured and if we were looking today, what we’ve got 12 

as a model is the red snapper and the grouper IFQ programs. 13 

 14 

I think we all understand that that red snapper IFQ program 15 

that’s coming up for review has got some problems with it and I 16 

wouldn’t begin to guess where we might go as we move through the 17 

review process.   18 

 19 

Are we going to shelve the whole thing or are we going to keep 20 

it in place the way it is or are we going to come in and make 21 

minor tweaks or are we going to make major tweaks?  The point is 22 

I think we ought to get through that process before we begin 23 

talking seriously about any new IFQ programs. 24 

 25 

The third angle that I want to come at this from is the point of 26 

the public’s perception of what the heck it is that this council 27 

does.  You guys have heard the same things that I’ve heard and I 28 

expressed it the other day in closed session. 29 

 30 

There is at least some public perception that there is an 31 

agenda-driven administrative push for us to move as quickly as 32 

we can into new catch share programs.  I don’t know if any of 33 

that is true or not.  I suspect that probably most of it isn’t 34 

true, but what I do know to be true is that even if there is 35 

some kind of conspiracy that starts from the top and trickles 36 

down, I have never seen that trickle down to my level. 37 

 38 

I suspect that that’s probably true of all of the rest of the 39 

sixteen of you sitting around the table here and so what that 40 

means is that what the public perception should be is based on 41 

what it is that we do and not what happens at some level that’s 42 

above what we control. 43 

 44 

I think that it’s real important that we make clear to the 45 

public what it is that we intend to do and so if it’s true that 46 

we really aren’t subject to any administrative agenda, like I 47 

suspect is the case, who is it that we should be listening to 48 
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when we seek guidance as to how we should be moving forward with 1 

some of these issues? 2 

 3 

The first group that we listen to obviously is the fishermen 4 

themselves and I can tell you that I’ve never heard anything 5 

from any of the recreational fishermen other than hell, no, we 6 

don’t want any catch share programs. 7 

 8 

Now, we’ve heard a little bit different from some of the 9 

recreational fishermen that are in the charterboat industry and 10 

that are in the headboat industry, but the vast overwhelming 11 

preponderance of testimony we get from the recreational is that 12 

we don’t want it. 13 

 14 

When we look at the commercial industry, it’s more of a split.  15 

The ones that it’s worked out well for obviously favor it and 16 

the ones that have been kept out of the process and have trouble 17 

participating in that process want us to do something different, 18 

but there’s definitely not any overwhelming support for new 19 

catch share systems that I’ve seen from the majority of the 20 

commercial industry. 21 

 22 

Who else might we listen to?  One of the places that I would 23 

hope that we would get input is directly from the states and in 24 

this case, four of the governors have written letters directly 25 

to our council expressing their opposition to us moving forward 26 

with any catch share programs or with any sector separation 27 

programs. 28 

 29 

Lastly, who do we listen to?  I don’t think we could ignore the 30 

voice of Congress and we can argue about what the intent of that 31 

legislation was or we can decide that we want to support what it 32 

seems that they were trying to say as they passed this 33 

legislation, but before we move forward with any new program, 34 

including this one that we’re getting ready to appoint a panel 35 

for, I think it’s real appropriate that we have the discussion 36 

and make it clear to the public what we want to do.  Thank you, 37 

Mr. Chairman. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Sapp.  Do we have some 40 

additional discussion on this motion?  We have a motion on the 41 

floor. 42 

 43 

DR. CRABTREE:  Since the Jones Amendment came up, I thought it 44 

might be worth my reading it to you.  It’s only one sentence, I 45 

believe, and I think you’ll find when you hear it that it’s not 46 

at all ambiguous. 47 

 48 
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It says none of the funds made available by this division may be 1 

used to approve a new limited access privilege program, as that 2 

term is used in the Magnuson Act, for any fishery under the 3 

jurisdiction of the South Atlantic, Mid-Atlantic, New England, 4 

or Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Councils in Fiscal Year 5 

2011, providing that nothing in this section shall prevent 6 

development activities related to limited access privilege 7 

programs. 8 

 9 

This isn’t ambiguous.  It clearly says that councils can proceed 10 

with developing limited access privilege programs and I don’t 11 

think there is any way that anyone who has actually read it 12 

could read it to mean anything else. 13 

 14 

You clearly can proceed with this and you are consistent with 15 

what Congress has told you.  It’s just they’ve said that the 16 

Secretary cannot approve a plan this fiscal year. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  To that point, I think part of the confusion arises 19 

because the original Jones Amendment passed by the House was 20 

considerably stronger language and did not allow for developing 21 

using 2011 funds, but that document is not the will of Congress.  22 

That was the will of the House. 23 

 24 

The will of Congress is what’s represented in the continuing 25 

resolution version of that, which is the one that Dr. Crabtree 26 

just read.  I think there’s some confusion amongst many folks as 27 

to what the law currently tells us that we can and can’t do. 28 

 29 

I guess the only other point I wanted to make at this point was 30 

that we don’t have any active development of an IFQ program in 31 

any event.  What we’re discussing here is a pilot study and 32 

that’s not the same thing as an IFQ program. 33 

 34 

It may result in the development of an IFQ program, but it by 35 

itself is merely a pilot study to try and see if something can 36 

be developed that makes sense and the answer is it may or may 37 

not.  We won’t know until we do the pilot study, but we’re not 38 

in the process of developing a headboat IFQ program. 39 

 40 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Gill beat me to the pilot study concept.  I 41 

would just remind the council members that we have asked for 42 

volunteers to serve on a committee.  We got a few that submitted 43 

résumés and we went out again and asked for volunteers who may 44 

be willing to serve if we were to appoint such a committee and 45 

we did come back and we had a number of applicants. 46 

 47 

We have been working on trying to develop an advisory panel for 48 



100 

 

this pilot program, which has been going on for some time now.  1 

I appreciate Mr. Sapp bringing this up and I’m with him.  Let’s 2 

vote it up or down.  Personally, I am against the motion. 3 

 4 

MR. PEARCE:  Ed, you very eloquently put all the parameters of 5 

this on the table and I appreciate that as well.  One of the 6 

statements you said jumped up out at me, “an agenda as quickly 7 

as we can”.  There’s nothing that happens quickly at this 8 

council, that’s for sure. 9 

 10 

I think that every option we have to get something to move ahead 11 

or at least explore and look at something -- Like Bob Gill said, 12 

this is just a way to check what people might want or might not 13 

want and so I believe that even with the five-year review coming 14 

up, even with everything else that’s laid on the table, I think 15 

we need to keep these things moving ahead and we need to listen 16 

to the public testimony that also said that they wanted IFQs for 17 

the charterboats. 18 

 19 

I understand there was testimony on both sides, but I think we 20 

need to explore all options and I appreciate your position and I 21 

appreciate where you’re coming from, but I too am going to be 22 

against this motion. 23 

 24 

MR. TEEHAN:  This is indeed a momentous occasion when Mr. 25 

Pearce, Mr. Perret, and Mr. Gill and I can all agree on 26 

something.  I would oppose this motion because I think what 27 

we’re trying to do here is explore all of the alternatives that 28 

we have for fisheries management and as Mr. Pearce said, nothing 29 

moves at the speed of light.  It moves at the speed of 30 

government and this is probably going to be some time down the 31 

road before we even get anything out of this advisory panel. 32 

 33 

I’m a little bit concerned with the make-up of the advisory 34 

panel, but it is what it is.  Those are the folks that applied.  35 

I would have liked to have seen a few more headboat folks show 36 

some interest in this, but it didn’t happen. 37 

 38 

I think Mr. Sapp’s intent to find out what our intent is as 39 

individual council members is fine, but we do listen to the 40 

other folks who are against IFQ programs.  That’s why we’re 41 

moving at a snail’s pace and not just developing something and 42 

handing it to the industry, be it recreational or be it 43 

commercial. 44 

 45 

I think in my mind that IFQ programs have always been an 46 

industry-driven issue.  If you don’t have industry buy-in, then 47 

you don’t have an IFQ and I think what we’re trying to do here 48 
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is to see if there’s a portion of the recreational industry, 1 

i.e., the headboats, that it may work with.  The only way we can 2 

find that out is to at least begin the initial step and so I 3 

would oppose the motion. 4 

 5 

MR. RIECHERS:  Ed, I appreciate you coming forward with your 6 

motion and having a discussion about whether or not we should 7 

move forward with this panel.  I don’t necessarily agree that we 8 

should move forward with this panel.   9 

 10 

I think we have some issues that, as you put, we have been 11 

trying to devote some attention and staff time to and for 12 

whatever reasons, we’ve not been able to move the ball very much 13 

forward in those corners at this point in time and that includes 14 

the issues regarding creating systems and having a discussion 15 

about how we create transferability amongst these systems, if we 16 

do create more of them, and in our existing ones. 17 

 18 

It includes that notion of how are we going to trade between 19 

sectors and this would be a continuation of doing these in very 20 

confined and very silo kind of environments if we go forward 21 

with this, even though it may be a pilot. 22 

 23 

Certainly as we come out of that, the notion would be that it’s 24 

going to be in that silo environment again, or quite possibly it 25 

would, and so I think that if we could take a step back and make 26 

some movement on those other things, that might allows us to 27 

them approach this in a more holistic way and we would also have 28 

an opportunity to get the reviews that we’re expecting to get 29 

from a couple of these different groups as we move forward. 30 

 31 

In that respect, I probably will support the motion, in the 32 

notion that it’s not necessarily not going forward with this, 33 

but it’s delaying it for a short period of time, until we can 34 

get some of those other things in place.  With that, I think we 35 

need to broaden the charge of this group as well and I may be 36 

prepared to help do that in a little bit. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  Getting back to what Bill talked about, getting 39 

buy-in from the fishermen, let’s all not lose sight of the fact 40 

that if we were to implement a headboat IFQ program, it would 41 

require a referendum and so in the Gulf, there’s not going to be 42 

any sort of limited access privilege program put in place unless 43 

the fishery votes in favor of it. 44 

 45 

MR. HENDRIX:  I think one of the things that we really need to 46 

focus on with this, and I had hoped creating this ad hoc 47 

advisory panel would do, is it would look at all aspects and 48 
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broaden the scope of the charge that we give to this advisory 1 

panel. 2 

 3 

Along those lines, I would like to make a substitute motion that 4 

reads exactly as that one, but eliminate the individual fishing 5 

quota portion of the -- Omit that from the motion, please, if I 6 

can get a second. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second to the substitute motion? 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll second it. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would like to comment that I would have voted 13 

against the first motion, but I might can support this one, 14 

depending on additional comment.  I think we need a much broader 15 

charge. 16 

 17 

MR. PERRET:  Let me understand.  If this motion were to pass, we 18 

still -- Somebody answer this for me.  We still have a committee 19 

motion to come forward recommending the appointment of an Ad Hoc 20 

Headboat Individual Fishing Quota AP and how do we handle that 21 

difference?  That was a full council motion, excuse me. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a problem with the logistics here.  I 24 

think the intent of Joe was -- Do you still intend for this to 25 

be a motion in the negative?  If in fact -- 26 

 27 

MR. HENDRIX:  Also eliminate “not”.  Sorry.  It’s that the 28 

council move forward with the appointment of the ad hoc headboat 29 

advisory panel, but without “IFQ” and without “not” in it. 30 

 31 

MR. TEEHAN:  Now that the wording and the intent of the motion 32 

has done a 180, I don’t have a comment. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  I don’t have a problem with the motion, Joe, but it 35 

seems to me that what we need to do is define what that charge 36 

is going to be before we do anything in terms of establishing a 37 

panel, because we went out and advertised twice based on the 38 

existing intent for a panel. 39 

 40 

This suggests a different panel with a different charge.  It 41 

seems to me that if we’re going to change the intent of the 42 

original one, we ought to define that charge and then consider 43 

how we handle it and re-advertise or whatever. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  Is there something missing in this motion?  Don’t 46 

you want “not” after council?  Mr. Gill said exactly what I 47 

wanted to say.  We’ve asked for months for people to volunteer 48 
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to serve on this type panel and we, the council, have not come 1 

out with any specific charge at this time and that’s something 2 

that we would need to do. 3 

 4 

I don’t know why we want to delay.  We’ve already approved a 5 

motion to go forward with a panel.  We can dictate what the 6 

charge of the panel is.  We’ve asked for volunteers and we’ve 7 

gotten volunteers from throughout the Gulf.   8 

 9 

We may or may not like all that we got and we would like more, 10 

but still, we can always add.  We’ve been talking about this for 11 

months and we’re hearing about how slow things move and this is 12 

a perfect example of how slow things move. 13 

 14 

We moved on an issue yesterday and here the next day we’re 15 

changing or we may change our minds.  Now, that’s not something 16 

we haven’t done before, but I suggest we move forward with the 17 

motion we passed yesterday. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We will if this motion fails. 20 

 21 

MR. HENDRIX:  Can I address that point, Mr. Chairman?  In 22 

reference to those comments specifically, my intent here is not 23 

to back up on this and I fully would intend that we include 24 

discussion of IFQs as part of the options to be explored by the 25 

advisory panel. 26 

 27 

To that point, Robin wrote this and I agree with it.  The charge 28 

of the Ad Hoc Headboat Advisory Panel is to explore management 29 

issues, including current regulations and business practices, 30 

options for reducing discards, data collection improvements, and 31 

any other management considerations or practices that may be 32 

addressed by the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council. 33 

 34 

Under that, if discussion about IFQs is part of what they want 35 

to discuss or the fishermen decide to discuss, I think it’s very 36 

important that they include it.  It’s not excluding the IFQ 37 

discussion. 38 

 39 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That was my understanding when you made your 40 

motion, Mr. Hendrix.  All this does is we’re not tying their 41 

hands strictly to an IFQ.  They can talk about IFQs, ITQs, days 42 

at sea, tags.  This way, we’re giving them a broad range and 43 

that way, we’re not tying their hands. 44 

 45 

We’re also not preventing them from talking about an IFQ system 46 

should that be the majority of that panel, should that be the 47 

way that they vote.  This just gives them more options is the 48 
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way I see it. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  The only comment I wanted to make was let’s not 3 

forget that the whole reason this thing started in the first 4 

place was a request by industry to start one and that’s why 5 

we’ve gone down this path.  That wasn’t a council-initiated 6 

action.  It came from industry and we responded remarkably 7 

rapidly, but we were responding to the request to do precisely 8 

what they asked and that’s what we did. 9 

 10 

MR. FISCHER:  I’m curious, looking at what the marching orders 11 

were that was just on the board a second ago, why are we 12 

limiting it to just headboats and why not all charterboats?  13 

Anything that happens, any decision that affects headboats, will 14 

affect the rest of the charterboats. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  In fact, that’s how this came about, because 17 

the original AP did not have headboat members on it and if we 18 

had had headboat members on at that time, we may not be going 19 

down this road and so a better solution might be just to 20 

repopulate that committee, because you’re right that it impacts 21 

everybody. 22 

 23 

MR. PERRET:  I just wanted the motion up there, Phyllis, and 24 

could you please put it up?  Joe, is that your motion? 25 

 26 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 27 

 28 

MR. RIECHERS:  A parliamentary clarification here, if I can. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 31 

 32 

MR. RIECHERS:  Joe’s motion is, in effect, really creating a new 33 

committee now, unless he wants to say he’s renaming it, he’s 34 

renaming the previous panel.  I believe that was his intent, but 35 

it’s just not reflected in the current motion and so I think we 36 

need to clarify that, because I think that may be what Corky is 37 

getting after here. 38 

 39 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes, that was my intent.  I don’t intend, Corky, 40 

to create a new panel.  I think it would have greater utility to 41 

take this panel and take the individual fishing quota out of the 42 

name of it and then give them a specific charge of what to 43 

review.  In that case, it’s all management options, really. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  Okay.  So that is your motion on the board? 46 

 47 

MR. HENDRIX:  My intent was to change the name of the current 48 
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headboat advisory panel that we’re forming and the way I did it 1 

was a little confusing, obviously. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:   Now I’m confused.  Joe, did you intend that 4 

the original AP, the for-hire AP -- You’re talking about a new 5 

panel? 6 

 7 

MR. HENDRIX:  The one we’ve been currently discussing at this 8 

meeting and ask for volunteers for the headboat advisory panel. 9 

 10 

MR. SIMPSON:  My question and comment is the charge or the 11 

direction that Robin worked up and that Joe agreed to, is that a 12 

charge or is that part of some future motion?  If it is a future 13 

motion, then I don’t think you ought to automatically disband 14 

them after two meetings.  I think you can just put a period 15 

after the end of “report back in October”. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My take is that if we pass this motion, then a 18 

second motion would be appropriate regarding the charge, but I 19 

don’t want to muddle the motion. 20 

 21 

MR. HENDRIX:  That’s the intent, exactly.  I would agree with 22 

you, Larry.  Once the function and the utility of the advisory 23 

panel has been realized, then we would disband them. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m in agreement with Bob Gill.  It seems like 26 

we’ve just lost sight of what this was all about.  We had 27 

fishermen come to us.  We had charterboat guys wanting to try 28 

some sort of days at sea approach and we had headboat guys 29 

wanting to try a pilot study to test a headboat IFQ program.   30 

 31 

That was the impetus to pulling this together, because we had 32 

another panel looking at working on a days at sea kind of 33 

program, but we didn’t have any headboat folks on it and so we 34 

decided to pull some headboat members together to design a 35 

study. 36 

 37 

It just seems to me now we’re backing away from that and 38 

broadening this and it’s likely that we’re not going to get a 39 

study design from it and so I don’t know.  I think my preference 40 

is to stay with where we were.  If we’re interested in doing a 41 

pilot study for a headboat program, then we ought to pull this 42 

group together and ask them to try and design a study so we can 43 

do it. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My understanding from a parliamentary point of 46 

view is if we vote this one down and we voted the first one 47 

down, we would still be left without a motion and we would need 48 
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a motion to create such a panel. 1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  No, I disagree, respectfully disagree.  We passed a 3 

motion as a council of the whole yesterday and so it seems to me 4 

that would be our motion.  Now, my question on the substitute 5 

motion is this. 6 

 7 

If this motion passes, do the people that we in closed session 8 

voted on to appoint to the committee serve or are we going to go 9 

through a whole new process for appointments?  That’s one 10 

question and secondly, let me say this. 11 

 12 

In closed session, we all hear it’s supposed to stay in closed 13 

session and we had a closed session to make appointments and we 14 

have already received emails from at least one individual and 15 

I’m not going to name names and I’m not going to name states, 16 

but from an individual in the west opposed to one of the people 17 

we recommended yesterday to put on this committee and so 18 

somebody sure as heck is not keeping silent about what we do in 19 

closed session. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I wanted Shep to address that.  First you, 22 

Robin, and then Shep. 23 

 24 

MR. RIECHERS:  Corky, I had the same question when I received 25 

that and the reality of it was is it was sent out by our staff 26 

as an announcement because they thought it was the final action 27 

on closed session and so I too questioned how that happened and 28 

wondered how that news got out there as quickly as it did, but 29 

yes, it did. 30 

 31 

MR. GRIMES:  Almost a point of order, but yesterday, or whenever 32 

it was, we met as a committee of the whole in full council and 33 

made a decision.  You created a panel and you appointed people 34 

to it.  That’s the status quo. 35 

 36 

Some of this discussion seems misguided.  It doesn’t matter to 37 

me which way you go, but you can undo what you did, but the fact 38 

of the matter is you already have a panel and you’ve already 39 

appointed those people to it. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s move this ahead.  I think everybody 42 

understands where we are.  We can either pass this motion or 43 

not.  We can either pass the previous motion or not and if we 44 

vote both of them down, we revert back to the motion in full 45 

council yesterday.  Mr. Perret and then I’ll ask somebody to 46 

call the question. 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  If this substitute motion passes, do we have 1 

individuals that are already named or do we start from scratch?  2 

That’s my question. 3 

 4 

MR. GRIMES:  I would say all this does is rename the panel.  5 

You’ve got the same people you voted earlier in the week to put 6 

on, which you can always reconsider. 7 

 8 

MR. PERRET:  If that’s the correct answer, I support the name 9 

change. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are we ready to -- One more, Kevin. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  To that point and more of a clarification from 14 

Shepherd Grimes.  We put an announcement out, the council did, 15 

that the panel would be charged with investigating a 16 

developmental program for a red snapper and gag grouper 17 

voluntary individual fishing quota pilot program. 18 

 19 

We’ve had some discussion about giving a charge to this panel, 20 

if this motion passes.  Does that charge violate this 21 

publication, I guess, and the request for individuals and trying 22 

to get the appropriate individuals on the panel? 23 

 24 

MR. GRIMES:  I wouldn’t say there’s a legal problem with it, but 25 

as a matter of routine and logic, it would seem that if you’re 26 

going to change the charge of the panel, then you ought to 27 

reconsider your membership on it and maybe even send out a new 28 

announcement that solicits people with an interest in serving on 29 

the panel as with its revised charge. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are we ready to vote on this thing?  Okay.  All 32 

in favor of the substitute motion on the board, signify by 33 

raising your hand; opposed.  The motion passes thirteen to 34 

three. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Chairman, would it be appropriate for me to 37 

give my Advisory Panel Report and tell the public who is on this 38 

panel now? 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have to decide whether that -- 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  I asked that question and the answer was those 43 

individuals would be on it.  That’s the only reason I voted for 44 

that motion. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I understand and I think Mr. Grimes indicated 47 

that we do not have a legal problem, even though we might change 48 
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the charge a little bit. 1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Hendrix indicated the same people would be on 3 

it and that’s why I voted for the motion. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  For the record, Mr. Chairman, I think the next step 6 

ought to be that we ought to define the charge, whatever that 7 

happens to be for this newly renamed thing.  Once we’ve done 8 

that, assuming it’s something similar to that being proffered, I 9 

fully intend to offer a motion that we re-advertise to fill this 10 

new panel. 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  Then my vote would be different.  I want to 13 

reconsider the motion.  I voted on the prevailing side. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Perret, voting on the prevailing side, has 16 

requested that we reconsider and so I think the proper process 17 

is to vote to reconsider.  Is that correct? 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  Correct. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  Can I ask a question? 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 24 

 25 

MR. TEEHAN:  Before I do this, I need to know what Corky needs 26 

to know, I guess.  What happens to the people that we appointed 27 

yesterday?  Are they off if this prevails or do we add to them? 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The question put before Shep was that we don’t 30 

have a legal problem with keeping them on there, but perhaps we 31 

want to consider re-advertising. 32 

 33 

MR. GRIMES:  Let’s clarify here.  What I said initially is you 34 

took action already.  You created a panel and you’ve appointed 35 

individuals to it and inadvertently or otherwise, you have 36 

already notified those individuals of their membership on the 37 

panel. 38 

 39 

Should you want to change the charge of the panel -- If you 40 

change the name of the panel, that seems like that’s just no big 41 

deal whatsoever, but if you’re going to change the charge of the 42 

panel, I think from a legal perspective you can keep who you 43 

have on it, but if you’re changing the nature of it, I think you 44 

ought to go back out and solicit new membership for it.  After 45 

all, you’ve changed the purposes of it.  You’ve changed what you 46 

told the public you were doing with it. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The question is the original charge that we 1 

gave, is it appropriate with the change in title?  Perhaps we 2 

don’t need to change the charge.  That would be the -- 3 

 4 

MR. RIECHERS:  Was there a charge passed in full council or how 5 

did you all do that last time, Bob? 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t think we ever had a charge.  We just 8 

inferred what the charge would be when we advertised for 9 

volunteers. 10 

 11 

MR. HENDRIX:  My intent was only to broaden the scope of what 12 

the advisory panel does.  That was my only intent and that was 13 

part of the name change.  The individual fisheries quota is 14 

definitely one of the topics they’re going to discuss in the 15 

panel and work to develop. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  As I recall, this council did not develop a 18 

charge for this panel.  Industry came and asked for them to be 19 

allowed to work on an IFQ.  We never said, and this really just 20 

blew me away, that it was for red grouper or gag grouper.  I 21 

thought it was a snapper issue myself, but I guess it can 22 

address everything that’s out there, but I thought I heard 23 

somebody say that it referred to grouper. 24 

 25 

With all those Texas folks, I don’t believe it was at that 26 

particular time that they were thinking grouper.  I think they 27 

were thinking red snapper, but be that as it may, since we 28 

didn’t officially pass a motion on a charge, I think we’re 29 

perfectly okay, however, I’m not the attorney, to let them 30 

develop it as they wish. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I totally agree with Kay and in that case, it’s 33 

got to be right.  Do you still want to reconsider or not, Corky?  34 

It appears that we’re on safe ground to keep the current 35 

appointments. 36 

 37 

MR. PERRET:  No, I will not, but Mr. Hendrix has so much 38 

influence on me that I would like my vote changed from yea to 39 

nay, to save time.  I would not have voted for that motion had I 40 

known we were not putting these individuals on the committee. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  But we are. 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  Now we are? 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Then I leave it alone.  Now do you want me to -- 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would like to terminate this discussion and 3 

move on, if there’s no objections.  We have passed a motion and 4 

we’ve resolved the membership in the panel and we’re ready to 5 

move on. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  We don’t have a charge. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We don’t have a charge, that is true.  I would 10 

request that staff, based on our discussion, develop a charge 11 

for this panel. 12 

 13 

MR. RIECHERS:  Actually, I’ll do you one better.  Would you put 14 

up the motion for a charge?  If I get a second for that, then I 15 

will have a discussion with Larry about the timing of that. 16 

 17 

MR. ANSON:  Second for discussion. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve got a motion and a second involving a 20 

charge for this ad hoc committee and this would not replace a 21 

previous charge, since we didn’t have one.  This is fresh and 22 

new and applied to this panel. 23 

 24 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll read it for the record and then have a 25 

little bit of discussion.  The charge of the Ad Hoc Headboat 26 

Advisory Panel is to explore management issues, including 27 

current regulations and business practices, options for reducing 28 

discards, data collection improvements, and any other management 29 

considerations or practices that may be addressed by the Gulf of 30 

Mexico Fishery Management Council.   31 

 32 

I go on beyond the charge to say the council will support two 33 

meetings for this discussion and would like this report or 34 

suggestions delivered at the October council meeting and at such 35 

time, the panel will be disbanded. 36 

 37 

The reason why I did that, Larry, is because we’ve been getting 38 

into kind of advisory group proliferation and we’ve got a lot of 39 

them out there working and we seem to kind of get bits and 40 

pieces and at some point, we need to get those things and we 41 

need to consider what they’ve done and some of it we like and 42 

some of it we don’t like and we need to send some clear signals 43 

about that and we need to start with what they’ve given us and 44 

go forward. 45 

 46 

My viewpoint is they can do a lot of work in two meetings, 47 

because it’s not into a plan amendment yet.  It’s just the work 48 
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that would have us start on a plan amendment.   1 

 2 

Now, if it’s a voluntary IFQ program that they come out of there 3 

with, they can also, because it’s voluntary, that’s something 4 

that basically NMFS is going to be doing most of and we’re not 5 

going to have a lot of input into that whole process then at 6 

that point.  That’s kind of like the electronic logbook program 7 

that’s going on now in Port Aransas and in Florida.  That’s my 8 

rationale.  You may agree with it or not, but that’s why I did 9 

that. 10 

 11 

MR. SIMPSON:  I think this is a complicated issue and why 12 

automatically have a disbandment?  You can disband it at any 13 

time is my comment.  If you want to put, as Robin indicated, to 14 

kind of give them an indication, you could say it is the 15 

intention of the council that this panel be disbanded. 16 

 17 

MR. RIECHERS:  I would accept that, if my seconder would. 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  Robin, one other suggestion.  Snapper season is 20 

open for a while and calling meetings and getting people 21 

together takes some time and I’m just wondering why the October 22 

date.   23 

 24 

Is that enough time, do you think?  I don’t want to prolong 25 

anything, but with fishing activity and so on and so forth going 26 

on, I wonder if that’s enough time to do what we want to try and 27 

do. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  In general, my impression is that 30 

an ad hoc meets until it has accomplished its goal and we don’t 31 

usually put time limits on them, but the other thing we haven’t 32 

been doing is when they’ve finished their goal is to let them 33 

go. 34 

 35 

The other is remember we just gave you a table the other day 36 

that was pretty well fleshed out and there is a matrix of dates 37 

behind that of when things can take place.  We can probably 38 

squeeze one in without too much problem.  If we try to get in 39 

two before the end of the year, something has got to give and 40 

not just in terms of the calendar, but in people availability, 41 

et cetera.  That’s something to consider. 42 

 43 

MR. RIECHERS:  Can I make a suggestion then on the motion, 44 

what’s up here?  Let’s put “delivered at the first available 45 

council meeting”? 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If your seconder will agree. 48 
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 1 

MR. RIECHERS:  That way, we give you two meetings, but we don’t 2 

lock you into when you deliver the product. 3 

 4 

MR. PEARCE:  I want to make a substitute motion that we accept 5 

the first paragraph and just kill the second one. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a substitute motion.  Is there a 8 

second? 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we all know where we stand on this and 13 

we’re taking an awful lot of time.  I tend to agree with Mr. 14 

Pearce.  Let’s leave the rest of it open and we’ll move along at 15 

breakneck speed when we can. 16 

 17 

We have a substitute motion that deletes the second paragraph.  18 

Any further discussion on that?  Hearing none, let’s vote.  All 19 

in favor of the substitute motion, which includes the original 20 

charge but deletes the second paragraph regarding timing and 21 

number of meetings, all in favor signify by raising your hand; 22 

all opposed.  It’s twelve to four and the motion passes. 23 

 24 

MR. GILL:  Not to belabor this issue, but I’m going to.  It 25 

seems to me that we would be doing a disservice if we did not 26 

consider other folks on this panel.  For example, the other one 27 

had the title “Headboat IFQ Pilot Program”.   28 

 29 

I could see where folks that are opposed to such a program 30 

wouldn’t apply and we certainly know they exist in the universe.  31 

On the other hand, for the panel we just created, they would be 32 

more than happy and they would be desirous of being on that 33 

panel. 34 

 35 

If we just stay where we were, and I grant you this builds a 36 

time delay, but we’re building a panel to give us 37 

recommendations, as best they can do, relative to the subject at 38 

hand and if you limit it to folks that had a vested interest in 39 

what the topic was, you’re not going to get that kind of advice. 40 

 41 

You’re going to get a much more narrow range of advice and so 42 

I’ve heard all the words and I know we’ve beat this to death, 43 

but it seems to me that it’s important for this panel to give us 44 

the broad range of advice and not just from folks that we’re 45 

trying to develop an IFQ pilot program.  With that in mind, I 46 

move we re-advertise and reconstitute this panel. 47 

 48 
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MR. SAPP:  Second. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Isn’t that out of order?  We just discussed all 5 

of that. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, that’s not out of order.  This is an 8 

additional motion. 9 

 10 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Gill, I have not yet had the opportunity to 11 

give the Advisory Panel Report.  If I’m ever allowed that 12 

privilege, I think it would be appropriate for that motion after 13 

I get my names on the list and then it might fit a little 14 

better.  That’s my suggestion to you, if you would hold off a 15 

little bit on it. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  If I have the opportunity to offer it upon 18 

completion, then I will defer to the honorable Mr. Perret. 19 

 20 

MR. SAPP:  The seconder agrees. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The seconder agrees and so with that, are we 23 

ready to move into your report, Mr. Perret? 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  Yes, sir, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.  Report of the 26 

AP Selection Committee and the Full Council, all council members 27 

were present except Mr. Fisher, Pearce, and McKnight.   28 

 29 

After discussion, the following persons were appointed to the Ad 30 

Hoc Headboat Individual Fishing Quota Advisory Panel and these 31 

are:  Mr. Tom Becker from Mississippi, Mr. Randy Boggs from 32 

Alabama, Mr. Cliff Cox from Florida, Mr. Chad Haggert from 33 

Florida, Ms. Mary Ann Heimann from Texas, Mr. Michael Miglini 34 

from Texas, Mr. Ed Schroeder from Texas, Mr. Steve Tomeny from 35 

Louisiana, and Mr. John Williams from Texas.  That was approved 36 

by the full council. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  For all the reasons previously mentioned, plus to put 39 

it on the record, I make the following motion, to re-advertise 40 

for the Ad Hoc Headboat Advisory Panel and repopulate the panel.  41 

This effectively takes those members just mentioned by Mr. 42 

Perret off and we’re starting fresh again if this motion passes. 43 

 44 

MR. SAPP:  Second. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay. 47 

 48 
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MR. SAPP:  I agree with all of the points that Bob just made and 1 

I’ll make another point and that is that maybe I just feel like 2 

I’m the only one that cares very much about what the public 3 

thinks about what we do, but if all we do is take the old panel 4 

that we named and renamed them without the three letters “IFQ” 5 

in the middle and changed their charge slightly, it’s going to 6 

look like we did just exactly that. 7 

 8 

If we do it this way and we go through the process, we’ve 9 

broadened the scope of what it is they’re going to discuss and 10 

we open it up for people that might be opposed to IFQ programs 11 

to provide some participation.  I feel like we’ve accomplished a 12 

whole lot more than if we just rename the other panel. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It sounds like you’re speaking in favor of the 15 

motion. 16 

 17 

MR. SAPP:  I am. 18 

 19 

MR. PERRET:  Well, I think the public is going to take us for 20 

just what we are, a bunch of blooming idiots.  We passed a 21 

motion to add ten people to a panel on one day and we’re taking 22 

them off the next day. 23 

 24 

I thought Mr. Gill’s motion was to go out to get additional 25 

people to add to the ones we’ve already appointed, which I would 26 

fully support, to get more input.  27 

 28 

Inadvertently, the public has been notified electronically of 29 

these appointments.  I’ve just announced them and now we’re 30 

going to take them off and start from scratch.  If I were one of 31 

the ten, I would have completely lost any interest in trying to 32 

do anything to help this council. 33 

 34 

We’ve advertised and we’ve requested volunteers for two or three 35 

straight meetings for this and now we vote on them and we’re 36 

taking them off.  Why not leave them on and ask for additional 37 

volunteers? 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Corky, you could make a substitute motion. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  I’m thinking about it, but I want to hear some 42 

other discussion. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We could re-advertise for additional members 45 

for. 46 

 47 

MR. PERRET:  I was going to do it, but I want to hear some other 48 
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comments first. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are there other comments?  Hearing none, you 3 

had better go ahead and do it. 4 

 5 

MR. BOYD:  I just want to support Corky’s motion. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  He hasn’t made it yet. 8 

 9 

MR. PERRET:  I would offer a substitute motion to retain the 10 

nine previously appointed members to the committee and to 11 

advertise for additional volunteers to serve on such panel. 12 

 13 

MR. BOYD:  Second. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s moved and seconded.  Discussion?  16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  I will likely support this motion.  However, we ought 18 

to recognize that what we’re doing here is making a much larger 19 

AP.  We don’t have the option of a nine -- Well, we do, which by 20 

its own right would be foolish, but we don’t have the option of 21 

a smaller AP.  That’s one of the effects of this motion. 22 

 23 

MR. PERRET:  Bob, I realize that and the larger the group, of 24 

course, the more input, but the more difficult it is to get 25 

anything done.  My biggest problem is it’s going to take more 26 

time to do this and we started out and Robin was shooting for 27 

two meetings, by October.  Now it’s going to obviously take a 28 

lot more time, but if we get a better work product, so be it.  29 

We’ll do a better job with what we get. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would like to add to that that some of those 32 

original members are not headboat, per se, and so we already 33 

have a little bit of diversity in the group, as Ms. Williams 34 

pointed out before. 35 

 36 

MR. TEEHAN:  In the interest of eventually getting to Reef Fish, 37 

can we call the question on this, please? 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We can indeed.  Any objections to calling the 40 

question?  Seeing none, all in favor of the substitute motion 41 

signify by raising your hand.  The motion passes.  Does that 42 

conclude your report, Mr. Perret? 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  No, sir.  I’ve got something else.  Again, the AP 45 

and council committee as a whole, after discussion, appointed 46 

Mr. Robert Phong Nguyen was appointed to the Shrimp Advisory 47 

Panel.  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report and thank you all 48 



116 

 

very much. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Perret, for being so brief.  Dr. 3 

Bortone, I think you have a comment. 4 

 5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The comment was made that the 6 

release of those names was inadvertent.  Past policy and how at 7 

least since I’ve been onboard is when the full committee meets, 8 

even in closed session, when it’s finished, it’s done and that 9 

has been published.  It wasn’t our understanding that it was 10 

inadvertent and if you would like to change that policy, that’s 11 

fine. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The next committee report is Data Collection.  14 

Mr. Pearce, are you ready? 15 

 16 

DATA COLLECTION COMMITTEE REPORT 17 

 18 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Before I start, the one 19 

motion we’re going to pass, I want to get a little clarification 20 

on, if I might, before we start.  It’s the development of a 21 

Vessel Monitoring System Data Collection Advisory Panel. 22 

 23 

Do we call it the Vessel Monitoring System Data Collection 24 

Advisory Panel or do we call it the Data Collection Vessel 25 

Monitoring System Advisory Panel?  I’m playing.  I’m kidding. 26 

 27 

Our Data Collection Committee met.  The agenda was adopted as 28 

written and the minutes of the February 7, 2011 were approved 29 

with no modifications.  Dr. John Froeschke gave a summary of the 30 

VMS Advisory Panel meeting held in Tampa, Florida on May 24 and 31 

25, 2011. 32 

 33 

During this meeting, the VMS Advisory Panel heard presentations 34 

from four Gulf fisheries VMS service providers.  The 35 

presentations from each vendor addressed several issues, 36 

including costs and billing, customer service, dispute 37 

resolution, an overview of new upcoming products and services, 38 

and a discussion of cost/functionality tradeoffs for VMS. 39 

 40 

The VMS Advisory Panel put forth five motions for consideration.  41 

The Data Collection Committee recommended combining the Ad Hoc 42 

Data Collection and VMS panels into a single, standing advisory 43 

panel.   44 

 45 

The committee recommends, and I so move, to combine the Vessel 46 

Monitoring System Advisory Panel and the Data Collection 47 

Advisory Panel into one panel and to eliminate the ad hoc 48 
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status. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  3 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes.  4 

 5 

MR. PEARCE:  The committee recognized the similarity of issues 6 

being considered by these advisory panels and stated that 7 

combining the expertise of these groups may provide better 8 

advice to the council and avoid duplicity in advisory panel 9 

recommendations.  10 

 11 

Mr. Sapp expressed continued interest in enhanced data 12 

collection methods for private recreational anglers and this 13 

topic may need to be addressed by a future advisory panel.   14 

 15 

Doctors Bonnie Ponwith and Steve Branstetter provided a status 16 

update of motions from the April 2010 council meeting to improve 17 

electronic data collection capabilities.  Dr. Branstetter stated 18 

the SEFSC and SERO are developing an electronic dealer reporting 19 

program.   20 

 21 

Dr. Ponwith provided a status update on implementing one-month 22 

reporting waves and stratifying fisheries data by states.  She 23 

stated that both remain high priority issues.  However, full 24 

implementation has not yet been confirmed.   25 

 26 

Finally, she provided an update of the pilot electronic data 27 

collection program for the for-hire sector in Texas and Florida.  28 

She stated that timely reporting has been excellent in Texas but 29 

lower than expected in Florida.  However, reporting rates are 30 

improving in the Florida region.  The pilot program will 31 

conclude fall 2011 and analyses and a report will be released 32 

when completed.  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Pearce.  The next committee 35 

report on the agenda is Budget/Personnel and I think, Dr. 36 

McIlwain, are you ready? 37 

 38 

BUDGET/PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORT 39 

 40 

DR. MCILWAIN:  I’m ready.  The Budget/Personnel Committee met in 41 

Key West on June 8.  We had a quorum.  The Budget/Personnel 42 

Committee was convened by Chair Tom McIlwain at 8:30 a.m.  The 43 

agenda was approved as written.  The minutes of the 44 

Budget/Personnel Committee meeting held in Orange Beach, Alabama 45 

on April 11, 2011 were approved as written. 46 

 47 

Dr. Leard reviewed the activities portion of Tab E-3.  For 2011, 48 
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council salary will be budgeted at $185,600; council travel at 1 

$163,200; staff travel at $150,300; AP travel at $111,400; SSC 2 

stipends at $64,900; SSC travel at $88,200; and other travel at 3 

$16,200.  4 

 5 

Ms. Readinger advised the committee that at the May Council 6 

Coordination Committee meeting, NOAA advised the councils to 7 

plan to receive the same amount of funding that was received for 8 

2010, or approximately $3.583 million.  As of today, the 9 

councils have not received their official 2011 funding level and 10 

the budget proposed by staff in Tab E-3 is based on the 2010 11 

funding level. 12 

 13 

Ms. Readinger reviewed the travel costs based on the activities 14 

reviewed by Dr. Leard.  Total meeting travel costs is budgeted 15 

at $529,300.  Total personnel compensation, which includes 16 

council salary, staff salary, SSC stipends, and overtime pay is 17 

budgeted at $1,672,700.  Fringe benefits, including Social 18 

Security and Medicare, health, dental, disability/life and 19 

retirement is budgeted at $647,600. 20 

 21 

As detailed on page 6 of Tab E-3, non-capital equipment is 22 

budgeted at $23,500; capital equipment is budgeted at $6,000; 23 

supplies are budgeted at $22,500; and contractual services are 24 

budgeted at $373,400. 25 

 26 

Rents and leases are budgeted at $167,500; meeting room expenses 27 

at $65,000; communications costs for phones, air cards, land 28 

lines, and cellular service are budgeted at $18,000.  29 

Miscellaneous communications costs, which includes postage fees, 30 

internet service, and subscriptions are budgeted at $15,500.  31 

Shipping fees are budgeted at $7,500 and printing costs to 32 

update the council brochure, regulations brochures and other 33 

collaterals are budgeted at $35,300.  On behalf of the 34 

committee, I so move to adopt the 2011 budget, as indicated in 35 

Tab E-3 in the amount of $3,583,800. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  38 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 39 

 40 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Mr. Chairman, this concludes my report. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. McIlwain.  We are almost within 43 

an hour of catching up.  Let’s take a very short ten-minute 44 

break so that you have time to pull up this lengthy Reef Fish 45 

Report on your computers, but we are going to reconvene at 46 

exactly three o’clock and not 3:15 or 3:10. 47 

 48 
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(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The Reef Fish Committee, Tab B, Mr. Gill. 3 

 4 

REEF FISH MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  As you mentioned, the Reef 7 

Fish Committee Report is Tab B.  I would comment that this 8 

report is a little bit different than previous.  The last page 9 

has a spreadsheet of the options requested by the committee for 10 

recreational gag management and so you may want to consider 11 

that, recognizing it’s there, when we get to gag.  I’m not going 12 

to read this report.  It’s thirteen pages long.  You all can do 13 

that. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I want to comment on those first two items. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  I’m going to talk about them item-by-item and 18 

summarize the category and see if there’s any discussion by the 19 

council.  We’re not going to ignore them, but I’m basically 20 

going to summarize and go to motions as rapidly as possible, 21 

rather than do a word-by-word, to expedite and save time. 22 

 23 

We did meet on Monday, June 6, and went through the agenda and 24 

changed the minutes a little bit and the first item that we had 25 

on the agenda was a presentation by Dr. Hogarth and Dr. Murawski 26 

relative to studies they are planning to do.  I believe neither 27 

are funded.   28 

 29 

One was to try and get a handle on the lesions in fish in the 30 

Gulf that has been discussed rather extensively and was 31 

mentioned at public testimony and the second one was to develop 32 

a process and a procedure to develop the basis for a 33 

comprehensive data assessment for reef fish stocks.  With that, 34 

are there any questions by the council? 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I just wanted to point out that we just 37 

forwarded to Trish an updated report on our survey, our ongoing 38 

survey, on the health of the snapper stocks.  It’s also 39 

accompanied by an FDA comment and Trish hasn’t had time to send 40 

it out yet, but sometime this afternoon, you’ll get an update of 41 

the 3,000 fish we’ve collected in the 140 or 150 stations. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Any other discussion by the council?  The next item 44 

on the agenda was the Rerun of Gag and Red Grouper Projections 45 

Using Updated Landings.  The Center ran through that and it 46 

resulted in no changes in ABC recommendations by the SSC, but 47 

the rerun did show that there was a possible increase of 48 
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approximately 1.2 million pounds in the ACT. 1 

 2 

As a result of that information, there’s a chart that shows how 3 

it came out on the top of page 3.  By a vote of seven to zero, 4 

the committee recommends, and I so move, that the council revise 5 

the red grouper yield stream in accordance with the 2011 rerun, 6 

starting in 2011 and implemented as soon as possible. 7 

 8 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 9 

discussion on this motion?   10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  So we’ll come back in August, I guess, and try to 12 

vote this up and then we’ll have to go through the rulemaking.  13 

One of the things that kind of came up at the Q&A is the 14 

fishermen are aware that by getting the extra fish this year, 15 

then the increase the next year is somewhat less. 16 

 17 

Is there like a date certain that you want them to get the fish 18 

by or you would prefer to not get them?  If the rulemaking drags 19 

on and they weren’t going to get the extra quota until 20 

Thanksgiving, would it still -- Do you see what I’m getting at? 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  Yes.  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree.  We heard testimony 23 

that fundamentally if it’s much later than October, it’s 24 

probably too late to do any good and the tradeoff doesn’t go and 25 

so I think the objective is sometime in October, or very close 26 

thereto. 27 

 28 

I guess the question back to you all is what do we have to do to 29 

do that and what’s the likelihood that that might be achieved, 30 

so that the public is aware of what the consequences of this 31 

motion is? 32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think if things go smoothly that we can come 34 

close to it and we can talk about this again in August when we 35 

have the document and everything in it and go from there, but I 36 

think it’s just something to think about, but you could, I 37 

guess, put something into your document that if it didn’t happen 38 

by such and such a date that you don’t want it or I don’t know.  39 

It’s just something to think about before August and that we 40 

ought to come back to. 41 

 42 

MR. GRIMES:  For clarity’s sake, this functionally means staff 43 

will go home from this meeting and start to prepare some action, 44 

presumably a regulatory amendment or a framework action, that 45 

will increase the red grouper total allowable catch and then 46 

that will result in issuing additional quota, red grouper quota, 47 

under the IFQ program and it would increase the recreational ACL 48 
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accordingly, because we’ve increased the overall catch. 1 

 2 

Maybe we can come back to this in Amendment 32, but if you’re 3 

changing the underlying yield stream, then it’s going to change 4 

the numbers in Amendment 32 as well, I believe. 5 

 6 

DR. ABELE:  I just want to make sure I understand this.  7 

Currently, the ACL is 5.68 million and we’re told that six 8 

months into the season they’ve done about half of that.  If they 9 

only had a month or even two months, they would have to double 10 

the average monthly catch to reach it and so is this realistic? 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  I think if, at least from the commercial side, they 13 

know that they have this additional quota coming late in the 14 

fall, they’ll tend to use up their quota differently than they 15 

would if they’re trying to string it out during the year. 16 

 17 

I guess the other comment I wanted to make to Roy’s point about 18 

a drop-dead date is I don’t think there is a hard and fast drop-19 

dead date.  However, there is some point at which when you get 20 

down to December 15th that we’re chasing our tail and just being 21 

cognizant that there is that kind of pressure to be on the other 22 

end, without getting down to the nits of is it October 2 or 23 

October 8, there is no hard date, but it is an issue that we 24 

need to be cognizant of. 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes and that’s fine.  My view with respect to 27 

Amendment 32 is that we just leave Amendment 32 with the numbers 28 

it is.  It’s based on the TACs and the quotas and what’s in 29 

place now and we’re going to vote Amendment 32 up in August and 30 

none of that will be changed. 31 

 32 

You’ll then have another amendment in the pipeline which will 33 

change it and I guess build on it, but I don’t see how we could 34 

change Amendment 32 based on some other action that we haven’t 35 

approved and put in place. 36 

 37 

The last thing I would ask you and this again came up in the 38 

Q&A.  Someone brought up what about the recreational fishery and 39 

are you going to increase their bag limit?  I could foresee us 40 

getting to August and being asked that you’re giving us our ACL, 41 

but that doesn’t do us any good and why don’t you give us 42 

another fish in the bag limit. 43 

 44 

If you have any thoughts of that, you ought to decide that now, 45 

so that staff puts that into the document, because I suppose you 46 

could do that here. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We were still discussing the committee motion 1 

that the council revise the red grouper yield stream in 2 

accordance with the 2011 rerun, starting in 2011 and implemented 3 

as soon as possible. 4 

 5 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Two things.  We did raise the bag limit and since 6 

we did raise the bag limit, I think that probably addresses what 7 

you just said, Roy, as far as the bag limit increase.  Two, I 8 

still do not understand when the projections were made based on 9 

numbers that really were not correct and there were fish left 10 

over that went through the whole assessment part as far as 11 

discard mortality and all of the other things. 12 

 13 

These were the amount of fish that could be taken and they were 14 

not taken and so I don’t understand why in the yield streams in 15 

the future, the way that they’re done, why you would necessarily 16 

have to go take fish away, because if they had been landed back 17 

when they were allowed to be landed, then they were already 18 

accounted for. 19 

 20 

If nothing else, the fact that they stayed in the water another 21 

year or two actually helped the fishery and so I don’t 22 

understand why when you do the yield streams in the years to 23 

come that they’re going to lose some.  Can you explain that to 24 

me? 25 

 26 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes, it’s very simple.  It’s what you just said.  27 

If you leave the fish in the water this year and don’t catch 28 

them this year, then you get next year and so you get more of an 29 

increase next year if you don’t do it this year. 30 

 31 

You’re going to get an increase any way you slice it.  No one is 32 

talking about taking it away.  It’s just if you increase it this 33 

year, then the increase you get next year is somewhat less, 34 

because you’ve already taken some of those fish out of the 35 

water. 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Just one thing to that point, real quick.  Roy, 38 

they were already accounted for to be taken out of the fishery.  39 

They thought they took them and they didn’t. 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  Kay, that’s all been factored into the 42 

projections.  The landings being used aren’t wrong.  They’re 43 

correct now.  We’re using the best landings that we have and 44 

that’s all factored in. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay.  Any further discussion on the committee 47 

motion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  I guess to Roy’s point relative to recreational bag 2 

limit, and Kay raised it, but that’s in Amendment 32.  Amendment 3 

32 will not be done in time for 2011 and so the bag limit 4 

changes will not be in effect and so if there’s any member of 5 

the council that wants to entertain that issue, now is the time 6 

to do it or we’ll move on to red snapper. 7 

 8 

DR. ABELE:  I would like to move that if we raise the red 9 

grouper that there also be a change in bag limit and I would 10 

turn to fisheries experts to ask three or four, rather than the 11 

current two? 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  We’ll have staff put an alternative in to go to 14 

three and one to four. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Dr. Bortone, have you noted that? 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I have. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay.  We have a motion to request staff to add 21 

alternatives that in the event the quota for red grouper is 22 

raised that alternatives of an increase in the bag limit of 23 

three and an alternative to increase to a bag limit of four be 24 

added. 25 

 26 

MR. GREENE:  Second. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on this motion?  Any 29 

opposition?  The motion passes. 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  I have a question.  If we put the bag limit 32 

adjustments into this regulatory amendment, I presume we would 33 

just pull them out of Amendment 32 then.  If we’re going to do 34 

it here, there’s no reason to have them in Amendment 32 anymore. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that’s right.  37 

 38 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It looks like we’re getting really 39 

tight on scheduling of staff having to do things and so if you 40 

could give us a priority of some of these issues as you’re doing 41 

this. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that’s certainly a priority and an easy 44 

one to do.  Okay, Mr. Gill. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Did we respond to Dr. Bortone’s request? 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think our top priority has to be to finish all 3 

of our ACL amendments and vote those up in August and then I 4 

think our next priority has to be to finish Amendment 32 and get 5 

that done. 6 

 7 

I know these are all priorities and we want to see all these 8 

things to do, but we have legal requirements and deadlines with 9 

respect to ACLs that we have to meet.  Now, I think those are 10 

pretty well along. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay, Mr. Gill. 13 

 14 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The next subject was the 15 

Rerun of Red Snapper Projections Using the Latest Landings.  16 

They came back and indicated that as a result of the rerun, the 17 

ABC could be raised from 7.185 million pounds to 9.85 million 18 

pounds in 2011, but the SSC recommended an increase of 345,000 19 

pounds and the yield stream is shown on the top of page 4. 20 

 21 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 22 

move, that the council move forward with increasing the 2011 red 23 

snapper total allowable catch by 345,000 pounds. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there 26 

discussion? 27 

 28 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’m not sure if this is the right place to do it 29 

and I’m asking advice, but it is my intent to make a motion or 30 

tack some language onto this motion to dedicate or assign that 31 

345,000 pounds to the recreational sector.  Would you rather 32 

have that as a separate motion or can we make that as a 33 

substitute here? 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would rather that be a separate motion. 36 

 37 

MR. TEEHAN:  So be it. 38 

 39 

DR. CRABTREE:  Given Mr. Teehan’s motion that’s coming, you need 40 

to clarify the vehicle you’re talking about here.  If you want 41 

to do anything other than 49/51, this would have to be 42 

implemented via emergency rule, I suppose.  If you’re asking for 43 

an emergency rule here, then it has to be a roll call vote and 44 

those kinds of things. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think the request for the emergency rule 47 

would be part of your motion. 48 
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 1 

MR. TEEHAN:  Right. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Currently, we’re just talking about the 4 

345,000-pound increase. 5 

 6 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To what Mr. Teehan said, that’s probably going to 7 

affect the way that I vote, because allowing this increase in 8 

the future years, the TAC is going to be lowered. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, hold your discussion until he makes his 11 

motion though.  That’s more appropriate. 12 

 13 

MR. GRIMES:  Consistent with the way we’ve just dealt with the 14 

last motion and I inquired about this in committee, because I 15 

think this is kind of ambiguous, the last one had the same 16 

language relative to red grouper and we specifically stated 17 

that’s to prepare a regulatory amendment and move down the road 18 

towards implementing that.  I think this would logically be 19 

interpreted the same way.  If that’s what you intend, then 20 

that’s fine. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I respectfully disagree.  This is not the same 23 

situation as red grouper. 24 

 25 

MR. GRIMES:  This motion says exactly the same thing as the last 26 

motion relative to red grouper. 27 

 28 

MR. GILL:  I agree, Shep.  By not requesting this as an 29 

emergency action, then it should be considered a regulatory 30 

amendment and that’s the way it’s intended.  Now, that may 31 

change if there’s a subsequent motion that says no, we want to 32 

do emergency action, but this one does not say that. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, I think that’s right.  Any further 35 

discussion on the simple motion as stated? 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  If you pass this motion then to do this as a 38 

regulatory amendment, then if you come in wanting to change 39 

that, you’re going to have to have a motion to reconsider and go 40 

through all of that. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  What is your suggestion? 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  If your intent is to ask for an emergency rule, I 45 

think you need to put all this in there and ask for an emergency 46 

rule. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  As part of this same motion? 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  Or a substitute motion, however you want to do 3 

it. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Steven, is it to that?  Go ahead. 6 

 7 

MR. STEVEN ATRAN:  I just wanted to point out that we currently 8 

have a regulatory amendment in progress that contains provisions 9 

to raise the red snapper TAC.  That’s the one that would also do 10 

away with the fall closed season, but our timeline for that has 11 

us taking final action in October and so I don’t think we can 12 

raise the TAC in 2011 using that methodology and so we cannot do 13 

it by a regulatory amendment if you want it in 2011. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Teehan, are you going to offer a substitute 16 

motion? 17 

 18 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.  I apologize for not 19 

getting this to Phyllis.  I would like to make a motion to 20 

request that NOAA Fisheries develop an emergency rule to assign 21 

the entire 345,000 pounds of increased total allowable catch of 22 

red snapper to the recreational sector for the 2011 season only.  23 

That’s my motion. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  There is a second.  Is 26 

there discussion? 27 

 28 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, if we pass this and for some reason or even 29 

if the recreational sector does not go over their allocation, 30 

does that mean when you compute the whole yield stream in the 31 

coming years, including 2012, that the TAC is going to be lower 32 

and that they’re not going to get the raise in TAC had they have 33 

stayed in line or does this mean just by doing this they’re not 34 

even going to get the raise, their overall raise, in TAC in the 35 

coming years? 36 

 37 

DR. CRABTREE:  If we go over this year and, Steve, do we have 38 

any automatic -- We would have to take a framework action to 39 

raise the TAC for 2012, correct?  There’s nothing automatic 40 

right now? 41 

 42 

MR. ATRAN:  Correct. 43 

 44 

DR. CRABTREE:  I presume that you are going to come in this fall 45 

and want to do yet another framework to raise the TAC for 2012, 46 

because we have this new yield stream now that allows the TAC to 47 

go up. 48 
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 1 

Your ability to do that will be dependent upon did we go over 2 

the TAC this year and if we do go over the TAC this year, then I 3 

guess you’ll have to go back to the SSC again and ask them to 4 

figure out what that means. 5 

 6 

I think, to get to yours, is if one sector or the other goes way 7 

over this year, will that result in lower TACs in the future and 8 

the answer is yes, it likely would. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, let me ask you a logistics question, time-11 

wise.  We’re going to meet in August.  By that time, do you 12 

think you all will have a feel for whether the recreational have 13 

exceeded their current quota so that this 345,000 might be used 14 

as supplement to that or will August be too early? 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  When do we meet in August? 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We meet in early August. 19 

 20 

DR. CRABTREE:  The 15th?  We normally would get the MRFSS data 21 

around August 10th or so. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s the 15th to the 19th of August. 24 

 25 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we should have it and that would give us 26 

June numbers and we should, if we have June, have a pretty good 27 

idea of what’s going to be caught. 28 

 29 

MR. RIECHERS:  Certainly I look at this as a one-time event.  I 30 

look at this as the notion that it was requested to look into 31 

this because of the extreme circumstances or the underage that 32 

had occurred on the recreational side because of the large 33 

impacted area due to Deepwater Horizon and the underage was 34 

quite a bit in their sector. 35 

 36 

The commercial sector did have and while not completely open 37 

fishing grounds, they were able to move around those fishing 38 

grounds a little bit better, certainly, than some of the 39 

recreational sectors that were taking tourists out in those 40 

locations and didn’t have tourists because of the Deepwater 41 

event. 42 

 43 

That’s how I characterize the event.  The one question I have 44 

for Bill, and to try to think about this a little bit is, and 45 

then what Bob was getting at, was the dates and how we want to 46 

consider when this might be added.  We didn’t include that in 47 

the motion here and I don’t know if we should or not, but 48 
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that’s, I know, a consideration here as well. 1 

 2 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thanks, Robin, for bringing that up.  Obviously 3 

this is due -- Some of the justification for this motion you 4 

explained, about the recreational areas were closed during their 5 

season and the commercial were still allowed to harvest. 6 

 7 

The way I crafted this and I hope this -- This is my intent, is 8 

to not narrow down to days and say Labor Day or whatever at this 9 

point, but to go ahead and make it plain that this is where the 10 

quota is going to go or the increase is going to go, but at the 11 

same time, if the forty-eight-day season that we’re establishing 12 

goes over, that this can be applied toward that. 13 

 14 

That’s one of the destinations that I think the 345,000 can go 15 

to.  If we don’t go over in that season, then in August we can 16 

decide what the best distribution of that poundage is. 17 

 18 

DR. CRABTREE:  Remember when we had the fall season last year 19 

that we had the issue with the September 31st closure date that 20 

remains on the books for red snapper.  If we have a Labor Day 21 

weekend fishery or something and there’s extra quota, we have 22 

authority to just do that without another rulemaking, but if you 23 

are contemplating or think there’s any chance you might 24 

contemplate an opening after September 31st, you need to request 25 

in this emergency rule that we suspend the September 31st closure 26 

date for 2011.  Then we would have authority to reopen after 27 

that. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Would you like to add that to your motion? 30 

 31 

MR. TEEHAN:  Sure and so I guess it’s to request that NOAA 32 

Fisheries develop an emergency rule that would suspend the 33 

September 31st closure date for the recreational red snapper 34 

season and to assign the entire 345,000 pounds -- Does that 35 

cover your concern? 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there seconder okay with that?  Okay.  38 

Robin, did you have a comment? 39 

 40 

MR. RIECHERS:  I was trying to check, because in our motion last 41 

year when we did it, we did specify the dates and I’m trying to 42 

figure out if we need to do that here as well.  If we’re 43 

thinking if there is overage that we apply it on weekends only -44 

- I don’t know what your thoughts are, Bill, but I think at 45 

least from a notion, it’s probably five days or so and so it 46 

would make some sense to me to do the weekend notion again. 47 

 48 
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Given our meeting in August and us only finding that out in mid 1 

to late August, I would think maybe pointing at the first 2 

weekends in October would probably make sense, but I’m trying to 3 

figure that out myself a little bit, just from a timing 4 

perspective.  I think in order to give people time to advertise, 5 

that’s what you’re going to have to do. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Robin, we had discussion with some of the 8 

stakeholders at lunch and I think the consensus is that Labor 9 

Day is probably not viable, because of the short timeframe, but 10 

for the very reason that you suggested, October would be the 11 

preferred period.  Also, I think Andy would have to do some 12 

analysis on that, but going that late, we might get seven days 13 

instead of five, using last year’s comparisons. 14 

 15 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’m looking at a calendar here and we can pick days 16 

out, but I think it’s premature. 17 

 18 

MR. RIECHERS:  Let’s assume we wanted weekends only and let’s 19 

assume Andy brings that data to us in August and would it 20 

behoove us at least at this point to signal to the public that 21 

if there are days that they would begin on X? 22 

 23 

I’m asking it from a couple of perspectives.  One, can we do it 24 

that way, guys?  Then for you all, if we can do it that way, 25 

would it be better to go ahead and stipulate the start date? 26 

 27 

DR. CRABTREE:  I don’t foresee that Andy will bring you 28 

anything, because we have nothing more to analyze than what we 29 

had a year ago, I suspect.  Would it be useful to the public if 30 

you gave them some idea as to what you’re thinking about in 31 

terms of when these extra days would be?   32 

 33 

My guess is it would be useful to them, at least to the 34 

charterboat guys.  I imagine they would like to have some notion 35 

as to when they’re going to be able to fish as soon as we can, 36 

but in terms of when we would actually formally notify them as 37 

to when they can fish, it’s going to be after the August meeting 38 

and so if it’s -- 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep, did you want to add anything to that? 41 

 42 

MR. GRIMES:  I wanted to I guess answer Mr. Riechers’ questions 43 

directly and I think if you want to bind the agency to opening 44 

on specific dates, then you need to do that in your request for 45 

the emergency rule. 46 

 47 

I think they have the flexibility to open it at different times 48 
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or let’s say split up a later season with a few days open and 1 

let’s say do weekends only for two weekends, but that would 2 

largely be at the agency’s discretion and when it deemed that to 3 

be appropriate.  I think you could likely wait until August and 4 

give them your input then and I suspect they’ll do what you 5 

think is appropriate. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we ought to go through the season and 8 

see how it comes out rather than stipulate preferred dates here. 9 

 10 

MR. GREENE:  I think that’s my point exactly, is we need to see 11 

where we’re at at the end of the year and look at it.  However, 12 

if we’re looking at only five or six or seven days, instead of 13 

maybe doing weekends only -- If you do five days at one 14 

continuous run and you have a run of bad weather, then nobody is 15 

going to go fishing. 16 

 17 

I would throw out on the table to maybe consider doing five 18 

particular Saturdays, do all the Saturdays in October or one in 19 

September and all the rest of them in October, just as an option 20 

to keep a hurricane or bad weather or something from blowing out 21 

the entire season that may be there. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I still think we can do that in August and 24 

don’t need to tie it to this motion right now.  Shep, did you 25 

want to add something? 26 

 27 

MR. GRIMES:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, just a few final things.  28 

I think Mr. Riechers was getting at some of this, but I would 29 

prefer that I hear some specific discussion relative to how the 30 

council considers this to be fair and equitable to all fishermen 31 

in the red snapper portion of the reef fish fishery. 32 

 33 

I would also like to hear some discussion as to why the council 34 

feels this is an emergency situation, the recent unforeseen 35 

circumstances, and how it meets the regulatory guidelines that 36 

the Secretary of Commerce has published. 37 

 38 

For clarity’s sake, I would like everybody to understand this.  39 

This is an emergency rule request.  The current total allowable 40 

catch for red snapper for 2011 is 7.185 million pounds.  You add 41 

this 345,000 pounds in and give it all to the recreational 42 

sector, if that’s what would happen, and it would mean that 43 

there’s a total allowable catch of 7.53 for 2011. 44 

 45 

We get that done and we exceed the total allowable catch for 46 

2011.  We exceed the ACL and that means that the TAC, total 47 

allowable catch, for the year 2012 is 7.185 million pounds, 48 
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because it goes back down to the level it should have been or it 1 

was in 2011, because this 345,000 pounds is a one-year increase. 2 

 3 

If we don’t increase this and we don’t exceed the overall ACL 4 

for 2012, based on the stock assessment and the projections, the 5 

TAC in 2012 would be increased to 7.7 million pounds.  I just 6 

want everybody to be clear on that. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  Shep went where I’m going.  Not surprisingly, I’m 9 

going to vote against this motion, because I don’t see where it 10 

is fair and equitable.  Recollect that in the red snapper 11 

fishery, the sector that overruns the quota is not the 12 

commercial sector.  It’s the recreational sector. 13 

 14 

Recollect that that could be as much as two-million pounds, as 15 

it was in 2009, and as Shep just pointed out, and he took my 16 

thunder, if we lose the increase in 2012, the commercial takes 17 

the hit along with the recreational, but they were not the cause 18 

of the problem. 19 

 20 

I understand the sentiments and I understand that we’re dealing 21 

with nickels and dimes here, but the principle of this is it 22 

goes all one way and it’s not a sharing of the good and the bad 23 

and I cannot support this motion. 24 

 25 

MR. TEEHAN:  Some justification, I guess, Shep, and I hope this 26 

is enough for you.  The original request was 1.1 million pounds 27 

that was not caught by the recreational fishermen in the 2010 28 

season and the primary or the exclusive reason for that was the 29 

Deepwater Horizon oil spill, which closed down major portions of 30 

the prime recreational red snapper fishing grounds, including 31 

230 square miles in the State of Florida, from the 2nd of July 32 

through the 31st of July. 33 

 34 

The federal closures happened earlier and extended later and so 35 

the closures happened in the middle of the recreational season 36 

and so they were not able to achieve their recreational quota.   37 

 38 

The commercial harvesters were still allowed to fish in the 39 

western Gulf and in parts of the southwestern Florida Gulf and 40 

they reached 96 percent of their quota.  The recreational 41 

shortage is an underage and I realize that it’s not the norm for 42 

this fishery, but in this particular instance, it’s an 43 

extraordinary situation due to the oil spill that I believe we  44 

can give back a little bit of fish to the recreational community 45 

who took an amazing financial hit because of this oil spill. 46 

 47 

As I say in the motion, this is just a one-time shot.  It’s for 48 
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this year.  The intent is not to try to set up sort of a 1 

precedent that underages get carried over in fisheries.  I don’t 2 

know if that does it for you or not. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was actually looking for it in Magnuson, but 5 

there is a place in there that says in a fishery that is 6 

overfished and/or undergoing overfishing that any gains or 7 

reductions will be done fair and equitably across the board. 8 

 9 

Now, that’s different.  Where the difference comes in is if the 10 

fishery is overfished and/or undergoing overfishing and so that 11 

right there is a difference in itself that may prevent you from 12 

doing that. 13 

 14 

Number two, there have been years when the recreational industry 15 

was a million, two-million, three-million pounds over the 16 

allocation, which also affected the rebuilding of that fishery 17 

that the commercial industry that was fishing ten days, fifteen 18 

days a month and eventually they had no other option but to go 19 

to an ITQ to be able to be allowed to survive and become 20 

accountable and so that’s what they had to do, even though 21 

they’ve been criticized for it in the past, but that’s what they 22 

had to do to become accountable. 23 

 24 

They chose measures to stay within their allocations.  This 25 

fishery has rebuilt and I believe by them staying within their 26 

allocations over the years, they have contributed to that 27 

rebuilding. 28 

 29 

Now, if we do this and as Shep says, if they go over, it’s going 30 

to take fish away from the commercial industry that have been 31 

accountable and stayed within their allocation.  Be it oil or no 32 

oil, they stayed there and so I don’t see how if that happens, 33 

and we don’t have a crystal ball to see, are you willing to 34 

jeopardize both industries for maybe a five-day season?  I just 35 

don’t see the rationale in that.  Thank you. 36 

 37 

MR. PERRET:  I guess that’s what makes the world go around and 38 

makes this council so interesting.  Number one, insofar as 39 

adding to what Mr. Teehan said and so far as Shep asking for a 40 

rationale for an emergency, Shep, we’ve heard in public 41 

testimony at council meetings for the last several meetings 42 

about the economic hardships that fishermen, for-hire people, 43 

cost of fuel, operating expenses and so on and so forth, tackle, 44 

boats, and so on. 45 

 46 

I suspect another five or seven days, with people being able and 47 

the for-hire sector, charter for recreational anglers, to buy 48 
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fuel, bait, tackle, et cetera, run their boats, that probably 1 

will help financially a number of small businesses across the 2 

northern Gulf. 3 

 4 

Now, we’ve got a sector that did not take their quota.  We asked 5 

for a million, 1.1 million I think it was, and the SSC says 6 

345,000.  I’m going to support this and I’m going to support it 7 

for a couple of reasons. 8 

 9 

One, if this should happen in the future and the commercial 10 

sector, due to manmade or natural disaster, is unable to catch 11 

their quota, I hope this same council that’s considering adding 12 

to the recreational will certainly give the same consideration 13 

to add to another sector that didn’t meet their quota and so 14 

keep that in mind. 15 

 16 

I hope we’re never in a situation like this again, but if we are 17 

and if this is approved for one sector, in the future if we 18 

should ever need it, I certainly hope they would be given the 19 

same consideration. 20 

 21 

MR. GRIMES:  Just to inform you, the provision that Ms. Williams 22 

referenced in Section 303(a), Number (14).  I would read it to 23 

you, but it basically says harvest restrictions, recovery 24 

benefits, whatever, need to be fair and equitable to all sectors 25 

in a fishery. 26 

 27 

It really doesn’t matter if it’s undergoing overfishing or not.  28 

It’s fair and equitable across the board and that’s some of the 29 

discussion that I’ve asked for you to have here today and the 30 

other thing, just to clarify my prior comments, is the potential 31 

TAC increase that’s projected to occur in 2012, if we exceed the 32 

ACL this year, regardless of whether you pass this motion to 33 

request an emergency increase to that ACL, it means you won’t 34 

likely get a TAC increase in 2012. 35 

 36 

The projections are all contingent upon staying below and so 37 

while increasing this and potentially lengthening the season may 38 

increase the chances of that, the chance of losing the increase 39 

in 2012 exists regardless of whether you do that. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep, that’s kind of the reason that we were 42 

talking about getting some numbers in August, for that very 43 

reason.  If it looks like that we’re going to go over, then the 44 

345,000 would be a buffer. 45 

 46 

MR. ANSON:  I’m going to vote in favor of this motion myself and 47 

I won’t add much more to what Mr. Teehan or Mr. Perret had added 48 
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as far as providing some justification or rationale for the 1 

decision, if in fact it gets passed. 2 

 3 

When we come back in August, we’ll be in a different position.  4 

We’ll be able to take the lay of the land at that time and we’ll 5 

be able to look and see, based on June’s calculations, as to 6 

whether or not we’re going to come close or shoot the ACL or 7 

whatever and at that point, it will be a decision we can make 8 

and we can not go forward, but at least to let the public know 9 

that we are taking their comments into consideration as far as 10 

the recreational sector and the damages that they had incurred 11 

during the oil spill last year.  That’s my comment. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think part of the rationale with respect to 14 

Shepherd’s question about how this meets the criteria for an 15 

emergency rule, you have to remember we have new and unforeseen 16 

information.   17 

 18 

We do have a new ABC from the SSC now and none of us foresaw 19 

that or knew that would happen at the previous council meeting 20 

and so we do have new and unforeseen information and 21 

unquestionably, we have economic hardships in the recreational 22 

fishery and particularly in the charterboat sector at this time. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we’ve had plenty of discussion on this.  25 

Are you all ready to vote? 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  One other thing and I’ll shut up.  Roy, we just 28 

had a similar discussion on the grouper and you’ve already heard 29 

from the grouper industry.  They could have used an emergency 30 

action.  They have people that’s run out of fish.  Fish houses 31 

are going to close and all sorts of things and we didn’t use the 32 

same consideration for that fishery, just not five minutes ago. 33 

 34 

When I asked one of our SSC members when they were here, and it 35 

was Doug Gregory, why can’t they have them -- They didn’t catch 36 

a million pounds and why can’t the recreational industry have 37 

their million pounds and that’s not fair and he said it’s 38 

because they went over and we deducted it. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy, if you want to comment, but otherwise, 41 

let’s vote. 42 

 43 

DR. CRABTREE:  This is different than the grouper situation.  We 44 

did not get a new ABC from the SSC for grouper and we don’t have 45 

any information other than the same runs that we had at the 46 

previous council meeting.  Furthermore, we’re not under the same 47 

time constraints with grouper right now. 48 
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 1 

Having said all that, the council made the decision to go the 2 

path we’re on, but with grouper, we’re looking at trying to get 3 

something done, rule-wise, by October.  In this situation, 4 

you’re looking to do something much more quickly than that. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s vote.  Everybody sees the motion on the 7 

board.   8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  It has to be a roll call vote. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Are you ready, Dr. Bortone? 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Yes, ready.  Dr. Crabtree. 14 

 15 

DR. CRABTREE:  No. 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 18 

 19 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 20 

 21 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  No. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Abele. 26 

 27 

DR. ABELE:  Yes. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 30 

 31 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 32 

 33 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 34 

 35 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 36 

 37 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight is absent.  Mr. 38 

Greene. 39 

 40 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 43 

 44 

DR. MCILWAIN:  No. 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 47 

 48 
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MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 1 

 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 5 

 6 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 7 

 8 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 11 

 12 

MR. PEARCE:  No. 13 

 14 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 15 

 16 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 19 

 20 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 21 

 22 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Boyd. 23 

 24 

MR. BOYD:  Yes. 25 

 26 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 29 

 30 

DR. CRABTREE:  I just wanted to explain my vote, that I’m 31 

procedurally required to vote against emergency rules by the 32 

Department of Commerce and it doesn’t indicate that I disapprove 33 

of this or whether I approve of it. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The motion passes.  What was the count, Dr. 36 

Bortone? 37 

 38 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It was twelve for, four against, 39 

and one abstention. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Because Damon was gone.  Mr. Gill, back to you. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  By a unanimous voice vote, 44 

the committee recommends, and I so move, that the council ask 45 

the SEDAR steering committee to request a benchmark 2012 red 46 

snapper stock assessment. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 1 

discussion? 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  If I recollect correctly, during discussion in 4 

committee when this issue came up, Dr. Ponwith indicated that we 5 

would have to consider taking some other assessment and reducing 6 

it in order to accommodate the timeframe and I think that if 7 

this motion passes, then we need to have that discussion. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My recollection is that red snapper was 10 

scheduled in 2012 in any case.  Is that not correct, Bonnie? 11 

 12 

DR. PONWITH:  Yes, red snapper was on the schedule for 2012 as a 13 

standard stock assessment.  Putting it on as a benchmark, the 14 

difference, just from a logistics standpoint, the difference 15 

between having it on as a benchmark versus having it on as a 16 

standard is that we’ve created the three tiers. 17 

 18 

If you run a benchmark, the stock assessment scientist who is 19 

the lead scientist for that benchmark is done for the year.  20 

That represents their stock assessment effort for the year, 21 

because setting up to do it and then gearing down, dealing with 22 

the questions and answers after the fact, pretty much consumes 23 

the year. 24 

 25 

If a lead scientist takes on a standard assessment, that can be 26 

completed in a short enough time that after they’ve completed 27 

sort of the shut-down of that assessment, they have time left 28 

within the year to actually add an update to their efforts for 29 

that year. 30 

 31 

Again, with a benchmark, that precludes that.  It also precludes 32 

-- A red snapper benchmark stock assessment is, at this time, 33 

the most complex, convoluted, and demanding stock assessment 34 

that we do in the Gulf of Mexico and it would impinge on time of 35 

additional stock assessment scientists within the Center to be 36 

able to carry that out. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Ponwith.  Any further discussion 39 

on the motion?  Any objections to the motion?  Hearing none, the 40 

motion passes. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  The next section was the SEDAR-22 Yellowedge Grouper 43 

Benchmark Assessment and we received a review from Dr. Linton 44 

and learned that yellowedge grouper is not overfished and 45 

overfishing is not occurring, but there is considerable 46 

uncertainty in the stock status. 47 

 48 
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We did not make any decisions regarding ACL because that’s being 1 

covered in the Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee.  Is 2 

there any discussion on yellowedge by the council? 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  You just said we had a benchmark and it said it 5 

wasn’t overfished or undergoing overfishing, yet they didn’t 6 

have information?  We just heard Bonnie saying that a benchmark 7 

is about the best of the best and so I don’t understand that.  8 

No, I didn’t hear that?  I’m sorry. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  What’s your question, Kay? 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Why is it if we did a benchmark they still didn’t 13 

have enough information and why did we have to move this over to 14 

the Ecosystem? 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bonnie, do you want to tackle that one? 17 

 18 

DR. PONWITH:  There are multiple reasons why a benchmark stock 19 

assessment could result in scientific advice that’s not strong 20 

enough to be used for management measures.  Is that the question 21 

that you’re after? 22 

 23 

So we often, when we conduct a benchmark stock assessment, 24 

particularly if it’s for a new stock, would gather up all the 25 

information that we have available on landings, on fishery-26 

independent, on biological sampling, and all the other 27 

information we can and pool it together and conduct a stock 28 

assessment. 29 

 30 

There are cases where in spite of the fact that we’ve gathered 31 

everything we have, the model is not conclusive in the results 32 

and that would be a case where then you would turn back to the 33 

control rule for setting an ACL. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Go ahead, Mr. Gill. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The next section was the 38 

SEDAR-22 Tilefish Benchmark Assessment, which was also reviewed 39 

by Dr. Linton and there was a high degree of uncertainty in this 40 

assessment as well, due to the conflicting signals from indices 41 

and catch series, et cetera.   42 

 43 

No action was taken by the panel because this ACL is also chosen 44 

in the Sustainable Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee.  Is there any 45 

discussion by the council relative to the tilefish assessment?  46 

Seeing none, the next section is Reef Fish Amendment 32. 47 

 48 
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We basically went through Reef Fish Amendment 32 to determine 1 

whether changes to preferred alternatives that we had chosen at 2 

our last meeting or where there were no preferred alternatives, 3 

to make such preferred alternatives. 4 

 5 

Action 1, the rebuilding plan for gag, which there was no change 6 

to Preferred Alternative 2, which is adopt a rebuilding plan of 7 

ten years or less. 8 

 9 

Action 2, recreational bag limits, size limits, and closed 10 

seasons for gag and red grouper, Action 2.1, Gag Scenarios, we 11 

had some discussion on how to handle the recreational season.   12 

 13 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 14 

move, that in Action 2.1, to make Alternative 4, Option a the 15 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 4 is to set the longest gag 16 

season possible: July 1 through October 31, two fish gag bag 17 

limit, four fish aggregate bag limit, for a total of 123 days.  18 

Option a is a twenty-two-inch minimum size limit, which results 19 

in a 50 percent reduction from the 2009 baseline and a 53 20 

percent reduction from 2006 through 2008 baseline. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  We discussed it a 23 

lot.  Is there any further discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing 24 

none, the motion passes. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Action 2.2, Red Grouper Bag Limit, no change to the 27 

Preferred Alternative 3, to increase red grouper bag limit to 28 

four fish with a provision to reduce it back to three fish and 29 

then two fish if ACL is exceeded. 30 

 31 

Action 3, Commercial Gag and Shallow-water Grouper Quota 32 

Adjustment to Account for Dead Discards, there was no change in 33 

the Preferred Alternative 2, to reduce gag commercial quota to 34 

86 percent of the annual catch target to compensate for dead 35 

discards not being reduced to projected levels needed to achieve 36 

100 percent of the ACT.  I neglected to pause after Action 2.2, 37 

the Red Grouper Bag Limit, to ask if there was any council 38 

discussion. 39 

 40 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just indicate, as Dr. Crabtree discussed, 41 

when we go back to St. Pete and start to put the amendment 42 

together or the framework action relative to red grouper, that 43 

the red grouper bag limit analyses would be pulled out of this 44 

document.   45 

 46 

We ask that you understand and be patient with us, because we 47 

may have to make some changes to Amendment 32 and so next time 48 
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you see it, it’s going to be different, as we pull things out 1 

and put it in that separate action.  Thank you. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Grimes.  I had read Action 3 on the 4 

commercial gag and shallow-water grouper quota adjustment for 5 

dead discards and is there any discussion by the council on that 6 

section? 7 

 8 

Seeing none, Action 4, Adjustments to Mufti-Use IFQ Shares, the 9 

committee had no change to the current Preferred Alternative 4 10 

to adjust red grouper IFQ multi-use allocation, but we 11 

considered that in the long term we needed to consider 12 

additional preferreds. 13 

 14 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 15 

move, that in Action 4, establish Alternative 3 as an additional 16 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 3 is based on the commercial 17 

red grouper annual catch limit, red grouper allocation, and gag 18 

allocation, set the percentage of gag individual fishing quota 19 

allocation converted into multi-use allocation as follows: gag 20 

multiuse in percent equals 100 times [red grouper annual catch 21 

limit minus red grouper allocation] divided by gag allocation.  22 

The gag multi-use percentage will be recalculated following 23 

adjustments in red grouper annual catch limit, red grouper 24 

allocation, or gag allocation.  If a rebuilding plan is in 25 

effect for red grouper, these multi-use shares will be suspended 26 

until NOAA Fisheries declares red grouper fully rebuilt. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  This was a unanimous vote by the committee.  29 

It’s a committee motion.  Any discussion?  Any objections?  One 30 

objection noted and the motion passes. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Action 5, Commercial Gag Size Limit, there was no 33 

change to the Preferred Alternative 2 to reduce the commercial 34 

gag minimum size limit to twenty-two inches total length.  Is 35 

there any discussion by the council?  36 

 37 

Seeing none, Action 6 is Time and Area Closures.  This section 38 

had no preferred alternative.  We had to choose a preferred in 39 

Time and Area Closures. 40 

 41 

By a voice vote with one nay, the committee recommends, and I so 42 

move, that in Action 6, the preferred alternative be Alternative 43 

3, Option c.  Alternative 3 is to close an area bracketing the 44 

forty-fathom contour between the current closed areas of 45 

Madison-Swanson and the Edges, approximately 244 square nautical 46 

miles, making one continuous area.  It provides the boundaries 47 

for that additional area, which I will not read, but it includes 48 



141 

 

the area between the current Edges and the south end of Madison-1 

Swanson.  Option c is all fishing is prohibited January 1 2 

through April 30 and all fishing allowed May 1 through December 3 

31 (identical to current Edges regulations). 4 

 5 

MR. TEEHAN:  I would like to offer a substitute motion and that 6 

would be no action, do not create additional time and area 7 

closures that prohibit fishing for gag and other reef fish. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ve had a motion and a second.  Is there 10 

discussion? 11 

 12 

DR. CRABTREE:  We went through all this at Reef Fish Committee 13 

and laid out our rationale and passed it and so I would be 14 

curious to hear Mr. Teehan’s rationale for the substitute 15 

motion. 16 

 17 

MR. TEEHAN:  The Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 18 

Commission does not see a need at this time for adding an 19 

economic burden to the commercial or the recreational fishermen 20 

by closing additional areas. 21 

 22 

DR. ABELE:  We discussed this during the subcommittee meeting or 23 

the committee and it is less than 1 percent of red and less than 24 

4 percent of gag.  It has no measurable economic impact on 25 

anybody. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I totally concur.  I am glad that Bill gave his 28 

rationale.  It’s understandable. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I just wanted to make a comment, because at the 31 

last council meeting when we were discussing these closures and 32 

some of those other sections had been put in there that I wasn’t 33 

aware of that I did ask Libby about this and in our quick 34 

conversation, it was my understanding that she didn’t have a 35 

problem with it, but what she actually meant was she thought 36 

that it should be closed to all fishing year-round and not that 37 

she didn’t have any concerns.  There was kind of a 38 

miscommunication there and I wanted to go on the record with 39 

that.  Thank you. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay.  Any further discussion on the substitute 42 

motion?  Let’s go ahead and vote on that.  All in favor of the 43 

substitute motion on the board, no action, signify by raising 44 

your hand; all opposed.  The substitute motion fails and so 45 

we’ll go back to the original motion.  The original motion you 46 

have in your handout and it’s rather lengthy.   47 

 48 
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MR. BOYD:  Just a point of clarification.  Does this prohibit 1 

surface trolling in that area during that time period? 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  All fishing is prohibited January 1 through 4 

April 30. 5 

 6 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s correct, Doug, but when we went through 7 

all the discussions with Madison-Swanson, where there were 8 

concerns by folks who want to surface troll, we ended up 9 

allowing surface trolling May through I think October, because 10 

the testimony we have is that’s when they go out there to 11 

surface troll and so there’s really not much surface trolling 12 

activity that goes on out there, based on the input we had some 13 

years back.  I haven’t heard anything contrary to that since. 14 

 15 

MR. BOYD:  Thank you. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  All in favor of the committee motion signify by 18 

saying aye; opposed.  The motion passes. 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  You can wait until after the report or whenever, 21 

but it seems to me that then you want to request HMS enact 22 

compatible regulations at the point where you take final action 23 

on this, but I hadn’t thought about that before and your staff 24 

just mentioned it and it’s something we at least need to keep in 25 

the queue. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Grimes.  Go ahead, Mr. Gill. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  Action 7 was Gag, Red Grouper, and Shallow-water 30 

Grouper Accountability Measures.  Action 7.1, the commercial 31 

accountability measures, we made no change to the Preferred 32 

Alternative 2.  The accountability measures for the gag, red 33 

grouper, and shallow-water grouper commercial sector will be the 34 

current individual fishing quota program. 35 

 36 

Action 7.2, the recreational accountability measures, no change 37 

to the Preferred Alternative 4, but there was questions by 38 

various committee members and we had considerable discussion, 39 

but made ultimately no changes.  40 

 41 

By a voice vote with one nay, the committee recommends, and I so 42 

move, that the council postpone final action on Amendment 32 43 

until the August 2011 council meeting. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a committee motion.  Any discussion?  Any 46 

objections?  The motion passes. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  We then got into a discussion and made a motion on 1 

public hearings for this document.  However, we also had 2 

subsequent issues that also addressed the question of public 3 

hearings that we finally did not conclude successfully. 4 

 5 

As a result of that, I would ask the council’s indulgence to 6 

bypass this motion.  I have put together a spreadsheet 7 

framework, I guess you would call it.  It’s pretty rough and 8 

pretty crude, but it would allow us to look at all these things 9 

together and look at them relatively and address the issues of 10 

need from a legal standpoint, workload, timing, what we really 11 

want to do rather than do it in a hodge-podge, issue-by-issue 12 

motion.  If I hear no objections -- 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We need a motion to table, I think. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Do you? 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  I think we could just come back to it. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Just ignore it?  Okay. 23 

 24 

MR. GILL:  That’s my thought.  We will address later in this 25 

document public hearings for a multitude of issues and I 26 

included the Generic ACL/AM Amendment, because that question has 27 

come in as well, but to look at everything in an entire context 28 

and we’ll do that at the tail-end. 29 

 30 

Options Paper for Amendment 35 to Adjust the TAC for Greater 31 

Amberjack, we reviewed those.  By unanimous voice vote, the 32 

committee recommends, and I so move, that in the Options Paper 33 

for Amendment 35 to Adjust TAC for Greater Amberjack, in Action 34 

2.3, to add a new Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is no closed 35 

season. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  38 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, 41 

and I so move, that in Action 2.3, to add a new alternative that 42 

modifies Alternative 1, beginning the closure in May. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 45 

discussion?  Is there any objection?  Hearing none, the motion 46 

passes.  Sorry, I missed that, Robin. 47 

 48 
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MR. RIECHERS:  After the motion, I’m ready to make a motion, if 1 

I could. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 4 

 5 

MR. RIECHERS:  I would like to make a motion and, Carrie, since 6 

there was some confusion over this motion, I want to make sure 7 

we understand it.  It would be the same motion, that we start 8 

the closure in May and, again, the notion of getting the 9 

appropriate percent reduction, but we actually -- Let me make 10 

sure I understand how I’m trying to do this. 11 

 12 

I’m trying to basically -- I’m trying to go from the end date of 13 

snapper and have the closure go backwards from that date the 14 

appropriate number of days.  We heard some discussion about it, 15 

that basically whenever snapper ends, greater amberjack begins 16 

again.  17 

 18 

We start from the day after snapper ends and we work back as 19 

many days and so it will probably go further into May than this 20 

motion would go.  Shep, go ahead and ask your question, because 21 

I can tell by Carrie’s reaction that she’s not understanding and 22 

I’m not very being very clear about it, but I’m -- 23 

 24 

MR. GRIMES:  Do you mean you start from the day that red snapper 25 

begins and work -- 26 

 27 

MR. RIECHERS:  Right now, we have greater amberjack closed and 28 

we thought we were closing it when red snapper was open, but as 29 

the red snapper season has shrunk, we now have fifteen or so 30 

days there at the end that are kind of -- Neither opportunity is 31 

available and so when red snapper basically closes, the day 32 

after is when greater amberjack would open.   33 

 34 

That would be your day and then you have to work back from that, 35 

through July, June, and then into May, however many days.  It 36 

may be a subset of this one.  We may not need a whole -- I’ll 37 

leave that to you all, but conceptually, I want that to be what 38 

we’re trying to achieve. 39 

 40 

DR. CARRIE SIMMONS:  I understand what you’re asking for.  The 41 

only concern I would have is we don’t know what the 2012 red 42 

snapper season would be and so I’m assuming, unless we change it 43 

in the red snapper regulatory amendment, that I would go with 44 

the current season? 45 

 46 

MR. RIECHERS:  Can we word it in such a way that it would have 47 

that flexibility or would we know in time would be my question.  48 
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I don’t know, but that would be the question to the Center. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  Roy, is it to that point? 3 

 4 

DR. CRABTREE:  I understand what you’re trying to do.  I think 5 

it creates a timing difficulty for us, because you wouldn’t know 6 

when the amberjack closure is going to begin until we announce 7 

the closure date for red snapper, but we might not announce the 8 

closure date for red snapper until May and that’s a problem 9 

because you would then be announcing the amberjack closure date 10 

too soon to the rule publishing and one, I think our 11 

constituents wouldn’t like that degree of uncertainty.  12 

 13 

Usually too these rules are not effective for thirty days after 14 

they publish and so I think that’s a problem and, Robin, I was 15 

actually going to make a motion that we put an alternative in 16 

there just to have amberjack open up when red snapper closes, 17 

but I was just going to have the closure for amberjack would 18 

start June 1, but then it would end when -- That might mean that 19 

the amberjack closure gets short and you could be heading 20 

towards amberjack closing later down the year, but I’m not sure 21 

how to fix that.  I think this one timing-wise is a problem. 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  Timing-wise if it’s so difficult you don’t think 24 

we should even add an option, at this point I’ll withdraw it, 25 

but we can work the number of days out and at least we would 26 

have that at the next meeting. 27 

 28 

MR. GRIMES:  I think I misunderstood that.  I thought we were 29 

talking about closing in May and then reopening when red snapper 30 

closed, but the beginning date was not a fixed date was what you 31 

were saying?  Okay. 32 

 33 

I think we could do this.  For one, you’re not targeting a 34 

specific reduction, not exactly.  There are complications with 35 

what you suggested, but doing what Dr. Crabtree just mentioned, 36 

I think you could reopen amberjack on the day that red snapper 37 

closed.  That wouldn’t be a problem. 38 

 39 

It wouldn’t be a fixed date.  You’re not trying to achieve a 40 

specific target reduction, but just like he said, you’re not 41 

going to get a fixed benefit from it either and so you 42 

potentially reach that annual catch limit and trigger your 43 

accountability measure that much earlier in the season, but it 44 

seems like it’s a viable option. 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  We do have an alternative in there to begin the 47 

closure in May and so if you coupled that with it, then you 48 
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should get it and so I think you could put some alternatives in 1 

here that would get at that that sort of thing.  I’ll make a 2 

motion that staff add some alternatives that allow greater 3 

amberjack to open on the day after red snapper closes. 4 

 5 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll second it. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded and I think 8 

everybody understands.  Is there any further discussion?  All in 9 

favor of the motion say aye; opposed.  The motion passes. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  It seems to me in comments we heard some interest 12 

in an amberjack trip limit, didn’t we?  I’m wondering if there’s 13 

any interest in the council in looking.  I believe I asked 14 

someone and they said 2,000 pounds. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, that was a commercial trip limit 17 

suggestion. 18 

 19 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would also move that we add some alternatives 20 

to look at commercial amberjack trip limits. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Can you help Phyllis with the wording on that? 23 

 24 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes.  I move that we add a suite of alternatives 25 

to evaluate a commercial amberjack trip limit. 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  Second. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s been moved and seconded. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Roy, in the analysis, would you ask them to look 32 

and report back to us what the normal trip limit has been caught 33 

by commercial on the various trips and by gear? 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  I’m sure the analysis will look at how many 36 

trips.  Steve Branstetter just told me it’s already in there and 37 

is that correct?  Apparently we already have those.  I withdraw 38 

my motion. 39 

 40 

MR. TEEHAN:  I withdraw my second. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Everybody’s brain is turning to mush. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  We had further discussion on this options paper and 45 

this was one of those that we discussed the timeline and came to 46 

no conclusion.  We came to a conclusion, but not necessarily the 47 

right one and so this will be part of the discussion on the 48 
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spreadsheet that we’ll do at the end of the committee report.  1 

Any further discussion on the amberjack options, Amendment 35? 2 

 3 

Seeing none, the Options Paper for Regulatory Amendment to 4 

Address Red Snapper Recreational Fall Season, we discussed that 5 

and there’s three actions in it, revise or eliminate the October 6 

through December fixed closed season, provide for weekends only 7 

or weekdays only, fishing periods through the recreational red 8 

snapper season or in a subsequent season if the recreational 9 

fishery is reopened after being prematurely closed, and increase 10 

the 2012 red snapper TAC based on the 2011 projection rerun 11 

analyses. 12 

 13 

We then went through and suggested some public hearings, but 14 

this too is another one of those that get enmeshed in the 15 

timeline of workload and public hearings and we’ll discuss that 16 

at the conclusion of the committee report.  Were there any other 17 

discussions on the red snapper recreational fall season? 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a question.  Don’t run off real quick.  Is 20 

it your intent to wait until we have the report in August and 21 

then address that?  Okay.  Thank you. 22 

 23 

MR. GILL:  The next section is Options Paper for Earned Income 24 

and Crew Size, Amendment 34.  We had considerable discussion on 25 

that.  By a voice vote with one opposed, the committee 26 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 1, that Alternative 2 27 

be the preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is to eliminate 28 

income requirements. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion? 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  For any of you that are not fully with us right 33 

now, this is the earned income requirement.  This is your 34 

commercial, right?  It’s my understanding it’s your permit and 35 

eliminate the commercial reef fish income requirement.   36 

 37 

I think we need to keep this in there to keep this future 38 

whatever happens with the tradability through these ITQs that 39 

you do have to have something to prove that you are commercial 40 

to keep someone from coming in and buying them up. 41 

 42 

Truthfully, I don’t know how we’re going to keep track of that, 43 

especially when you’re not supposed to barter, sell, or trade.  44 

You’re supposed to be a commercial entity.  I can go out there 45 

tomorrow and buy a commercial reef fish permit and go and lease 46 

a coupon at the first of the year or buy one and go catch it and 47 

I’m not more commercial as far as being dependent on that than a 48 
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man in the moon and so this is the wrong thing to do.  I think 1 

we’ve got to have an income requirement. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  We had quite a bit of 4 

discussion in committee.  Any further discussion?  All those in 5 

favor of the committee motion signify by saying aye; opposed.  6 

Let’s do a show of hands.  All in favor signify by raising your 7 

hand; opposed.  It’s eight to eight and the motion fails. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  Did you vote? 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I did vote to create a tie.  It fails anyway. 12 

 13 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just like to add the document is going to 14 

come back before you again and it will have some discussion, 15 

because some of what was said is not true relative to the 16 

purpose this serves and its role relative to IFQ programs, but 17 

that will all be clear in the document. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP: Thank you, Shep.  Go ahead, Mr. Gill. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The next section was Draft 22 

Rule to Allow Transfer of Red Snapper Individual Fishing Quota 23 

Shares and Allocation to U.S. Citizens and Permanent Resident 24 

Aliens Beginning January 1, 2012. 25 

 26 

Scott Sandorf reviewed proposed rule changes  and explained the 27 

details of the system to start January 1.  By a vote of four to 28 

two, the committee recommends, and I so move, to accept the 29 

regulations in Tab B, Number 14 as presented and deem them 30 

necessary and appropriate and submit them to the Secretary of 31 

Commerce for implementation. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  34 

We need to vote on this one. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Could you just briefly tell us what they said? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I can’t. 39 

 40 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Gill, could you tell us briefly what those 41 

were that we’re going to submit? 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  These rule changes that are proposed are to comply 44 

with the provision in the IFQ program under Amendment 26 to make 45 

the shares freely transferable after five years, which in effect 46 

is 1 January 2012. 47 

 48 
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Although anybody will be able to own shares, a reef fish permit 1 

and red snapper license will still be needed to harvest red 2 

snapper commercially.  In order to verify citizenship status, 3 

shareholders will be required to fill out a form every two years 4 

to verify citizenship.  There will be no fee and the form will 5 

be available through the IFQ website. 6 

 7 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  You almost got that one by me. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep, do we need a roll call vote on this, to 10 

submit to the Secretary of Commerce? 11 

 12 

MR. GRIMES:  I believe that’s in your SOPPs. 13 

 14 

MR. SIMPSON:  I would question, Chairman Gill, is the only 15 

filter to determine if you’re a citizen or a permanent resident 16 

alien a checkmark on that box, on that form, or is there some 17 

other means which we verify citizenship and resident alien? 18 

 19 

MR. GILL:  I will ask Mr. Sandorf to respond to that, since he 20 

knows the details of this form better than I or can Shep do it? 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Shep seems to have an answer. 23 

 24 

MR. GRIMES:  It’s a check box at this point.  We do that with 25 

the current earned income requirements and we could move towards 26 

some other means of documentation, but also understand that it’s 27 

a crime to lie to the government and lying on that form is 28 

punishable. 29 

 30 

I would also add that this rule is not changing what you’ve 31 

already put in place.  Basically, all this rule does is 32 

implement information collection requirements that are necessary 33 

in order for us to implement decisions that you have already 34 

made. 35 

 36 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I disagree and I would like to say why.  There’s 37 

been a lot of discussion and with the way that this is up on the 38 

board, and that’s why I asked that Mr. Gill inform us what was 39 

that we’re voting on. 40 

 41 

There’s been discussion that we should have allowed this 42 

industry to go ahead and meet because there were things that 43 

passed, as you said, that were already approved that the 44 

industry at that time did not support; however, the make-up of 45 

the council at that time did. 46 

 47 

It was this, that anybody could buy them.  There’s been 48 
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discussion that we don’t want just anyone to be able to buy them 1 

and we want it to stay within the commercial industry so that 2 

they can move back and forth between people that have commercial 3 

reef fish permits. 4 

 5 

That’s what I heard and had we already had this review panel 6 

meet, that suggestion would have probably already come to this 7 

council and asked that that be one thing that is changed, just 8 

like we can change anything else that’s in there. 9 

 10 

By going ahead and approving this, should they come before us 11 

and ask us to do that, and you’ve already heard testimony that 12 

that’s something that they will do once we start having those 13 

meetings or hearings, then this council is going to have to go 14 

back in and it’s going to be difficult to take it away from 15 

someone at that point.  I don’t see why we need to do this.   16 

 17 

Do we need to make an emergency rule at this point because of 18 

this unforeseen consequence that can occur because we’re going 19 

to allow this, just anyone to buy them, a monopoly of let’s say 20 

an organization could form several corporations and buy them up 21 

and just sit there and hold them? 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Assane I think wants to comment, Kay. 24 

 25 

DR. ASSANE DIAGNE:  Yes, just a brief comment.  As it was said, 26 

this is a follow-up, really, on a decision that the council has 27 

already made.  January 1, 2012 is five years after the fact of 28 

the implementation. 29 

 30 

What I wanted to comment on is that about three council meetings 31 

ago, three or four, and I can check, but the council had 32 

requested that we prepare a paper looking at options that would 33 

address the transferability of shares under the IFQ programs, 34 

which we did and it was discussed before you and perhaps some of 35 

the complication and consequences of opening up the shares to 36 

everybody were highlighted. 37 

 38 

We specifically asked you if you wanted to pursue action to do 39 

something before the deadline, which is January 1, 2012, but as 40 

a body, you chose not to take action and so this is a direct 41 

consequence of that at that time. 42 

 43 

MR. GRIMES:  I certainly don’t want to belabor this point, but 44 

I’m going to read to you directly from the regulations, because 45 

there appears to be some uncertainty, but the regulations 46 

specify that until January 1, 2012, IFQ shares and allocations 47 

can only be transferred to a person who holds a valid commercial 48 
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vessel permit for Gulf reef fish.  Thereafter, IFQ shares and 1 

allocations can be transferred to any U.S. citizen or permanent 2 

resident alien. 3 

 4 

As I said a few minutes ago, this is already in the regulations.  5 

This is going to happen.  The regulatory changes that we are 6 

implementing now are not changing that.  They are implementing 7 

information collection requirements that we will need in order 8 

to do this appropriately.  Thank you. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s move on this.  The question is do we need 11 

a roll call vote? 12 

 13 

MR. GRIMES:  I think your SOPPs say you’ll do roll call votes 14 

for submission of regulatory amendments and I would view this as 15 

a submission of the regulations, at least, and so yes. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s have a roll call vote.  One last comment 18 

quick, Kay. 19 

 20 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Shep, that means in five years the review is up 21 

and there’s nothing that this council passed five years ago that 22 

we can’t -- We’re not allowed to change nothing and this is the 23 

done deal and the five-year review is over.  That’s what they 24 

passed five years ago. 25 

 26 

MR. GRIMES:  This has absolutely nothing to do with the five-27 

year review and it means come January of next year, this happens 28 

and we’ve discussed it at a number of meetings now and the 29 

council has chosen not to take action to do anything. 30 

 31 

If as part of that process, the five-year review or any other 32 

process, you decide you want to change it, you can do so at that 33 

time.  Thank you. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s have a roll call vote, Dr. Bortone, 36 

please. 37 

 38 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Boyd. 47 

 48 
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MR. BOYD:  Yes. 1 

 2 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  No. 5 

 6 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 7 

 8 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 11 

 12 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 13 

 14 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight.  Absent.  Mr. Pearce. 15 

 16 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 17 

 18 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 19 

 20 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 21 

 22 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 23 

 24 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 25 

 26 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 27 

 28 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 29 

 30 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 31 

 32 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 33 

 34 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 37 

 38 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 39 

 40 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 43 

 44 

MR. GREENE:  No. 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Abele. 47 

 48 
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DR. ABELE:  I feel like I have to abstain.  I just don’t know 1 

enough to understand this issue. 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 6 

 7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s thirteen for, two no, one 8 

abstain, and one absent. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Go ahead, Mr. Gill. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The next section was 13 

Consultant-Based Fishing Chartering for Free.  We were to 14 

discuss reports of vessels that do not have a charterboat 15 

permit, but are taking folks out for hire under the guise of 16 

consulting. 17 

 18 

Law enforcement was not present to give us their view on the 19 

extent of the problem and possible resolutions and so I would 20 

ask at this time that if Tracy Dunn would come to the podium to 21 

further discuss this issue. 22 

 23 

MR. TRACY DUNN:  I’m talking about the issue with regard to the 24 

permits? 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Yes and consultant-based charter fishing. 27 

 28 

MR. DUNN:  Right.  Basically, my office started to receive some 29 

information about organizations that were providing what 30 

amounted to a charter trip under a consulting package and 31 

therefore, they did not require a charter permit, because it was 32 

based on this contract for consulting services. 33 

 34 

We took a look at the regulations pretty close and realized that 35 

that was allowable under the regulations, even though it clearly 36 

is -- I don’t know about clearly, but it does have the 37 

appearance of trying to get around getting a charter permit, 38 

even though it is allowable. 39 

 40 

Whether it’s a true consulting package or not would have to be 41 

determine through some questioning, but the reality is in order 42 

to investigate it and come to the conclusion that it is not a 43 

true consulting package would take a great deal of investigative 44 

time and the best way to deal with it would be through a 45 

regulatory change. 46 

 47 

I conferred with our General Counsel for Enforcement and 48 
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Litigation and I guess they conferred with Mr. Grimes as to the 1 

best way to clean up the regulations that are written now to 2 

better define what a charter vessel is and therefore, what 3 

vessel would require a charter permit. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  If I could ask a question.  What you’re saying is 6 

that at this point, the way the regulations and definitions 7 

read, there is not much that we can do to enforce the existing 8 

situation and so we need to change that in order to tighten that 9 

loophole? 10 

 11 

MR. DUNN:  Correct.  The only way I would be able to do anything 12 

about it is if I could show that the consulting package or the 13 

consulting services was a scam, which would take a great deal of 14 

effort on our time and time on our part. 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Grimes, do you have some recommendations in that 17 

regard or can you bring forward, perhaps at another meeting, 18 

recommendations that would help address this situation? 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  We discussed this issue in a number of instances 21 

and yes, essentially.  If we want to change the regulations to 22 

do this, it would just be a matter of adding some language that 23 

a vessel will be considered to be operating as a charter vessel 24 

or headboat when -- They we would borrow language that’s 25 

included now in the U.S. Coast Guard -- It’s statutes related to 26 

the U.S. Guard and vessel documentation that refer to carrying a 27 

passenger who pays a fee, which means consideration is provided 28 

as a condition of carriage on the vessel, whether directly or 29 

indirectly flowing from the owner, charter, operator, agent, 30 

blah, blah, blah, but the point is that it’s any consideration. 31 

 32 

The way they’ve gotten around our regulations is the fact that 33 

our regulations say to carry a passenger who pays a fee.  In 34 

this instance, they pay a fee for something else and in exchange 35 

for paying for that fee for something else, they get a free trip 36 

out of the deal. 37 

 38 

I think that’s clearly skirting the legal requirements.  We’ve 39 

all been copied on emails that discuss this and I think it would 40 

be a relatively easy regulatory fix and I have some language 41 

ready that I’ve been vetting within the Office of General 42 

Counsel Enforcement and Litigation and I think we could easily 43 

put something together and have it ready to present to you 44 

officially in a written form in August. 45 

 46 

MR. GILL:  Discussion by the council? 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Is it a Gulf-wide problem? 1 

 2 

MR. GRIMES:  All I know so far, I think the main complaints I’ve 3 

heard have been off the Texas coast, but that’s just what’s been 4 

brought to my attention. 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  Obviously the laws of the states involved are not 7 

adequate to handle the problem either and I’ll go one further.  8 

If and when regulations are drafted, please make sure the state 9 

law enforcement personnel and their attorneys have opportunity 10 

to comment on it also. 11 

 12 

MR. GRIMES:  Just in response to that, I would say I don’t know 13 

what the various state laws do, but this is with regard to our 14 

federal permit requirement and I think most states, at least the 15 

ones I know, don’t have -- They certainly don’t have those 16 

limited access for-hire permits on their vessels and so this is 17 

in order to require our limited access permit to fish in the 18 

EEZ.  We would include payment of this quid pro quo but not a 19 

direct fee payment. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  Any other discussion by the council?  We will 22 

presume, Shep, that you will draft such recommendations and 23 

bring them back to the council for our August or October 24 

meeting? 25 

 26 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes.  I’ll work with your staff and we’ll all bring 27 

something back, yes. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  Very good.  Thank you. 30 

 31 

MR. PERRET:  Who meets first in October, Gulf States or Gulf 32 

Council?  If Gulf States meets before the Gulf Council, I think 33 

there’s a law enforcement committee of all the appropriate 34 

people.  The feds are on it too and it might be an opportunity 35 

for that group, when they’re together, to take a look at it and 36 

offer their comments. 37 

 38 

MR. GRIMES:  I think it would certainly be a good thing for all 39 

associated enforcement folks to be engaged with, including the 40 

Coast Guard. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Tracy. 43 

 44 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’m just looking for the timing on this, because 45 

before that meeting, while our law enforcement folks will be 46 

there, our legal counsel folks will not be there and so if we 47 

can certainly get that draft where we can share it, I think that 48 
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would be useful for us, from a state perspective.  Are we going 1 

to get that in August?  I guess that’s what I’m asking. 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  Yes, that’s the plan, that they’re going to bring 4 

that back to us in August.  Is that correct, Mr. Grimes?  Thank 5 

you.  That concluded the regular agenda items under Reef Fish 6 

Management Committee.  We went into Other Business and an item 7 

was added of Artificial Reefs and Abandonment of Oil Platforms. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I just wanted to point out that before Dr. 10 

Bortone was hired by us, he and I published a peer-reviewed 11 

paper on the importance of artificial habitat in the management 12 

of red snapper.  I’ve got additional copies of that.  If anybody 13 

gets into a discussion with agencies that have some influence on 14 

this, you’re welcome to it.  I’ve got copies for anybody who 15 

might be interested. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  The discussion relative to this was the impact on 18 

habitats in regards to fishery management by the removal or 19 

destruction of oil and gas platforms.  We had discussion on the 20 

issue. 21 

 22 

By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 23 

move, that the council write a letter to the Director of BOEMRE 24 

to indicate the council’s concern with the current rate of 25 

platform removal and to consider taking steps to slow that 26 

removal and consider the biological implications. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 29 

discussion? 30 

 31 

MR. PERRET:  I would like to amend that, that we copy the Gulf 32 

States congressional delegation and the heads of the five Gulf 33 

States natural resource agency departments. 34 

 35 

MR. GILL:  Second. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We need to vote on the amendment first.  Is 38 

there any discussion on the amendment?  Is there any objections 39 

to the amendment?  Hearing none, now we can vote on the new 40 

motion. 41 

 42 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Shep, this is an implied request of 43 

Congress.  Is this stepping over the line with regard to 44 

lobbying? 45 

 46 

MR. PERRET:  We’re copying them for information, but I’ll let 47 

Shep -- Am I lobbying Congress by copying them on a letter we’re 48 
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sending or is the council lobbying Congress? 1 

 2 

MR. GRIMES:  We’ve done that in the past and I’ve never been a 3 

big fan of it.  I apologize, because I wasn’t paying enough 4 

attention, but can you put the previous motion back up there?  I 5 

just shut the report down already. 6 

 7 

I don’t read this as an explicit request for funding and so I 8 

guess I -- The devil is always in the details and so it depends 9 

on the precise wording of the letter, but the way I read this 10 

motion and the way I would write the letter in response to this 11 

motion, I would not have a problem copying my congressional 12 

delegation on it. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other discussion on the amended motion? 15 

 16 

DR. CRABTREE:  Are we going to see the letter at the August 17 

meeting?  Would that be the procedure? 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Why would we have to wait?  Could it not be 20 

distributed whenever it’s drafted? 21 

 22 

DR. CRABTREE:  So you would distribute it by email, but we’ll 23 

see it before it goes out? 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, I think we should see it before it goes 26 

out, but I don’t think we need to wait until the August meeting.  27 

Any further discussion?  Any objections to the amended motion?  28 

Hearing none, the motion passes. 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  We’re voting on the amendment? 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We already voted on the amendment.  I’m sorry.  33 

We voted on the amendment and there were no objections and then 34 

I asked if there were objections to the full amended motion and 35 

I heard none, but I guess I hear them now. 36 

 37 

MR. FISCHER:  Mine wasn’t to make an alteration to the motion, 38 

because we were giving staff license to print it, but when you 39 

read the motion and it discusses the biological implications, we 40 

don’t want to deem the removal of the platform, meaning like the 41 

blowing up or whatever and killing the snapper, but we mean 42 

leaving them in the water for the long-term reef benefit. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, staff would get that. 45 

 46 

MR. HENDRIX:  I think it would also be useful to schedule a 47 

meeting of the Habitat Committee at the next council meeting to 48 
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pursue this further with a representative also.  Do you need a 1 

motion? 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  First, does that imply that you would rather 4 

wait until after the letter is drafted?  Then the other thing is 5 

we have an Artificial Reef Committee as well.  It would be a 6 

joint meeting of the Habitat and Artificial Reef Committee?  The 7 

Artificial Reef Committee I think would be the best.  Do you 8 

want to make that in the form of a motion? 9 

 10 

MR. HENDRIX:  I would move that the Artificial Reef Committee be 11 

scheduled for a meeting at the August council meeting to discuss 12 

oil and gas platform removal and the loss of habitat associated 13 

with the removal and have staff arrange for a BOEMRE 14 

representative to attend. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second?  We need a second.  I know 17 

it’s almost five o’clock, but we need a second. 18 

 19 

DR. ABELE:  Second. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there discussion? 22 

 23 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Larry and I actually went before them and gave a 24 

presentation about the removal and how the technology exists to 25 

cut it below the mud lines and your oil companies were there and 26 

they didn’t want to spend the money and that was the end of it, 27 

but that took place way before I ever got on this council. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on the motion?  Any 30 

objections to the motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 31 

 32 

DR. CRABTREE:  One thing I heard on the letter was the talking 33 

about the biological benefits of artificial reefs towards 34 

rebuilding and I don’t have a problem with writing BOEMRE asking 35 

them to take into account the biological implications, but if 36 

the letter is going to then start getting into what those 37 

implications are, there’s a body of science that indicates that 38 

artificial reefs just concentrate fish and don’t increase 39 

productivity and so I think we need to be careful. 40 

 41 

If we’re going to go beyond just asking them to consider the 42 

biological implications and get into what all that is, then 43 

that’s a letter I would want to see before I approve it. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I concur.  Okay, Mr. Gill.  We are near the 46 

finishing line. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Now that we’ve got to the 1 

tough part, Phyllis, could you put up the spreadsheet, please?  2 

What I tried to do is map out all the items that might or might 3 

not need some kind of public hearing, et cetera. 4 

 5 

The thought was if we did it on a spreadsheet basis and looked 6 

at it relative to one another that rather than piecemeal it and 7 

find out we’re double-dipping and we’ve got a gazillion public 8 

hearings which nobody attends, maybe they could be done by 9 

webinars or whatever, but there might be a better approach of 10 

how to do this in a more cohesive basis than to do it piecemeal. 11 

 12 

I think the first question is -- Let me back up a minute.  I 13 

thought the process would be that Shep could weigh in on the 14 

requirement for that particular action of having a public 15 

hearing, because I don’t believe that’s well understood by the 16 

council. 17 

 18 

Perhaps then we could have some discussion about when the 19 

completion date is really needed and that’s some of the legal 20 

and it’s some of the agency considerations and not to mention 21 

workload considerations, given the things that we’re doing. 22 

 23 

Then we could start to try and plug in the approach that we take 24 

to it and make some decisions about what we do and where we do 25 

it, if at all, for example, whether or not we have additional 26 

public hearings on Amendment 32 and the Generic ACL Amendment.  27 

For example, we’ve heard a lot of public comment, both written 28 

and oral, that we’re unhappy with the late arrival of the 29 

document and so we wanted more time to derive them and so 30 

perhaps that should be a consideration. 31 

 32 

Focusing face-to-face public hearings in the areas of greatest 33 

interest and dispensing with the rather automatic public 34 

hearings that we have everywhere just to do them, at which we 35 

don’t have much attendance and perhaps those could be attended 36 

by electronics or a webinar or something. 37 

 38 

Given that, my attempt was to try and capture the things we 39 

needed to consider and then I started filling some in and making 40 

some modifications to what we had already discussed, with some 41 

of those thoughts in mind. 42 

 43 

I guess the first question is whether the headers are right and 44 

whether we’ve incorporated all the items in question.  There’s 45 

nothing in there that’s sacred.  It’s open for discussion and 46 

this is merely a let’s start the discussion talking and take 47 

columns out and take line items out or whatever. 48 
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 1 

The idea is that we look at it cohesively and by the end of the 2 

time we get done, we get all the blanks filled in and then we 3 

probably need a motion to make that happen, so that that would 4 

cover the motions made in committee, for example in Reef Fish, 5 

relative to public hearings and public hearing locations and 6 

techniques. 7 

 8 

This would cover all that ground in one fell swoop and so I open 9 

it to the floor, to the council and staff, of any place to 10 

start.  It looks like Mr. Atran first. 11 

 12 

MR. ATRAN:  Based on my notes, you probably need to add a 13 

regulatory amendment to increase the red grouper TAC in 2011. 14 

 15 

MR. RIECHERS:  To complicate this a little further, staff just 16 

helped me find Tab A-6, which also has a host of the 17 

prescheduled items that we have ongoing in our briefing book.  18 

We may want to lay that over this or this over that as well. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  This could get complicated.  You’re right.  I think 21 

that’s a good point.  It just makes it tougher. 22 

 23 

MR. PHIL STEELE:  I don’t know if it needs to belong on the 24 

spreadsheet, but another action you just voted on was the 25 

emergency rule for red snapper. 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’m just wondering whether we need to get 28 

overlaying spreadsheets right at the moment, but perhaps just 29 

looking at your spreadsheet and deciding whether the topics that 30 

are there warrant public hearings or not.  We might be able to 31 

whittle this down a little bit. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  I think that was the point.  This is perhaps 34 

modifying the spreadsheet that we have in terms of council 35 

schedule.  That’s the whole thought, trying to modify that and 36 

do it, rather than that piecemeal way. 37 

 38 

MR. RIECHERS:  Let the record show I agree with both Mr. Teehan 39 

and Mr. Gill. 40 

 41 

MR. GILL:  This is a record-setting session.  Phyllis, would you 42 

add emergency action to increase red snapper TAC in 2011? 43 

 44 

MR. STEELE:  It’s on there now.  One thing you might to consider 45 

at this stage is prioritizing these issues, which ones you think 46 

come first.  Then we can go from there. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Some of that has to do with completion date needed.  1 

By assigning a completion date, then that does, in essence, 2 

provide a priority.  If you want to put a column in there or 3 

something, that’s fine. 4 

 5 

MR. TEEHAN:  You’ve got one for completion date, the first 6 

column. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  I’ve got completion date in there and obviously 9 

that’s one of the places we were getting hung up in committee, 10 

because the discussion was when do we need this by and we all 11 

kind of floundered. 12 

 13 

Part of the benefits is, Phil, that you see it and Dr. Bortone 14 

sees it and so you can integrate your comments relative to staff 15 

workload and the realized ability of actually accomplishing what 16 

it is we think we want.   17 

 18 

DR. SIMMONS:  You’ve got mackerel and those have already been 19 

selected, but there’s a long series of public hearings for 20 

mackerel. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  Can you provide the information to Phyllis for a line 23 

item? 24 

 25 

DR. RICHARD LEARD:  I was just going to suggest that since we’ve 26 

been using our spreadsheet for the actions and the timeline and 27 

everything for quite a while now, several years, why don’t the 28 

staff just go back and take these new actions and whatnot and 29 

put them into that spreadsheet and put them into some sort of 30 

timeline and just send it out to the council for comments and 31 

suggested changes to that?  Then that way, we just keep one 32 

spreadsheet going as to what we’re doing and how we’re doing it. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  It’s a good suggestion, but the thinking here was 35 

this wasn’t a permanent item.  This was something that says, 36 

okay, here’s where it is and then it gets integrated into your 37 

sheet rather than either being an additional one or supplanting.  38 

That wasn’t the intent.  This is a working document and when we 39 

get all done, you use it as a source document and integrate it 40 

into your stuff and go from there. 41 

 42 

The difference is putting in things like public hearings and 43 

public hearing locations and all that kind of thing and the 44 

other question is timeline.  If we’re interested in public 45 

hearings before the next council meeting, we won’t get it 46 

accomplished that way. 47 

 48 
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MR. RIECHERS:  It seems to me that we had discussions about 1 

Amendment 32 and the Generic ACL/AM Amendment.  We’re 2 

anticipating going to final action on those, maybe the ACL/AM, 3 

tomorrow or August. 4 

 5 

The only discussion was whether or not to have an additional 6 

hearing and I think we had said in our motion the Tampa/St. Pete 7 

area and you have Sarasota there.  I think that needs to be a 8 

decision. 9 

 10 

We had a motion by the committee and it was for I guess it was 11 

for Amendment 32, to have an additional hearing.  If we want to 12 

have that hearing, it seems to me that you could also have the 13 

ACL/AM, assuming those places -- You heard those same kind of 14 

comments about late publication, et cetera, in those particular 15 

locations.  That would be decision point number one, if we’re 16 

going to do that in the summer. 17 

 18 

Then the others all seem to have the ability to, basically the 19 

next three, have the ability to weigh into that larger 20 

spreadsheet schedule and possibly piggyback on anything that we 21 

might have coming up, such as king mackerel, where we probably 22 

would be going to a larger set of folks or more hearings. 23 

 24 

Then I guess it’s my viewpoint that once we get to crew size and 25 

earned income and below, both either because of the size or 26 

scope of action or because of timing, it looks to me like those 27 

are going to be actions that are going to have just their 28 

hearings at our August meeting. 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  That’s certainly true. 31 

 32 

MR. SAPP:  To start at the same place Robin did, I agree 32 and 33 

the Generic Amendment are the two most immediate concerns and 34 

we’ve already agreed that we ought to have one of the meetings 35 

in Sarasota. 36 

 37 

I would argue as strongly as I can that we need to have one also 38 

in the Fort Myers area.  Remember that when we did scoping there 39 

that we had -- We counted almost a hundred people that were at 40 

the scoping and we only had twenty people for the public hearing 41 

and we heard the testimony down there real strongly, just give 42 

us an opportunity to review the documents and we’ll provide some 43 

comments to you. 44 

 45 

Whatever locations we decide to have for Amendment 32, I don’t 46 

know any reason why we can’t piggyback 32 and the Generic 47 

together and have just one evening to cover both of the issues 48 
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and it might be that there’s some others that we can piggyback 1 

in on the same evenings.  It’s something for us to talk about 2 

anyway. 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  Thank you.  Robin was correct on 32.  The motion in 5 

committee was for Tampa and not for Sarasota and, Ed, you did 6 

make comments in committee for Fort Myers and my thinking was 7 

we’ve already done one round of hearings, which was less than 8 

successful, and why not split the baby and have it in Sarasota 9 

and it’s an hour from each and it can be accommodated with one 10 

face-to-face. 11 

 12 

Now, relative to the Generic ACL/AM, it seems to me that public 13 

understanding of that document is not good and perhaps a more 14 

fruitful way to do that, rather than tie additional staff, et 15 

cetera, is try a webinar type approach and those that want to 16 

entertain on that, but that’s a whole lot easier and if there’s 17 

not much attendance, not much is lost and there was not much in 18 

regards to that in the public hearings that we held, due in part 19 

to the late arrival of the document. 20 

 21 

That’s my modifications that I put in there relative to 22 

Amendment 32 and Generic ACL/AM, but if you all want to do 23 

something differently, that’s fine, but that’s my suggestion on 24 

how to accommodate the fact that our first round was pretty poor 25 

and something else is probably helpful, but we don’t want to 26 

spend a million bucks trying to accomplish it and not have any 27 

attendance. 28 

 29 

MR. RIECHERS:  If that’s the case then and if people are in 30 

agreement with not putting ACL/AM in with Amendment 32, then I 31 

think that just reverts us back to your committee motion to 32 

establish that one, but we would just need to modify it to 33 

Sarasota. 34 

 35 

Then the ACL/AM, I don’t know that we have to ask staff to do a 36 

webinar as a hearing, but we can certainly add that to that 37 

motion as well and then that would get us past those two 38 

options, if that’s what you would like, Mr. Gill. 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Robin.  That might be. 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It was my understanding that when we were 43 

discussing this that 32 and the ACL/AM was probably going to be 44 

done together.  I don’t recall supporting any type of electronic 45 

hearing. 46 

 47 

Those have been conducted with sessions open at some of the 48 



164 

 

National Marine Fisheries Service places.  All sorts of things 1 

can happen that can cause problems when you’re doing those 2 

things electronically. 3 

 4 

Most of the industry already feels that we have moved away from 5 

this public service stuff to like just go on the web and that’s 6 

where it is and you get it if you want it.  I don’t think this 7 

is promoting good reach out to the necessarily industry people. 8 

 9 

Like I said, everybody doesn’t have computers at home and 10 

everybody doesn’t have wireless at home.  There’s a whole lot of 11 

things where I don’t think we’re meeting our mandate anyway just 12 

with the way that we’re doing business. 13 

 14 

Some people needs the actual documents and trying to get the 15 

document downloaded at, like I said, a particular time and do 16 

they even access to where they can do that?  We’ve heard where 17 

our own SSC webinars are not working and different things like 18 

that. 19 

 20 

You’re really taking public service away from the public when 21 

you start doing things electronically.  You talk about staff and 22 

it takes two staff people or maybe three.  There was one at one 23 

of mine and that was out reach out lady and while she did that, 24 

she was on the road because she was visiting with the industry. 25 

 26 

I don’t see this as this huge big cost, because of that.  Some 27 

of this, yes, but most of it, no.  I hope that this will come 28 

back before the full council for more discussion at the next 29 

meeting, Mr. Gill. 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  Not stepping on Chairman Riechers toes, but we did 32 

not discuss another hearing on the Generic ACL/AM at the 33 

committee and as I mentioned, the Amendment 32 and Generic 34 

ACL/AM up there that I have are my modifications of what we did 35 

in the Reef Fish Committee and a suggestion on what might be an 36 

appropriate way to approach anything, if we do anything, on the 37 

Generic ACL/AM and Amendment 32. 38 

 39 

It’s open for discussion by the council and whatever you all 40 

wish, fine.  I just think that’s a better way to go.  I don’t 41 

think, in the case of the Generic ACL/AM Amendment, that the 42 

public generally understands that.   43 

 44 

I think if we go to another face-to-face that we’ll have 45 

predominantly the NGO community making comment and they are 46 

working with it and are here and are deeply involved in that 47 

document and so we won’t learn any more by doing a face-to-face 48 



165 

 

with them in Oshkosh or wherever it happens to be. 1 

 2 

That’s my suggestion, but it’s whatever the council’s pleasure 3 

is and, Robin, if you would like to make a motion, that sounds 4 

good to me. 5 

 6 

MR. RIECHERS:  Do we revert back -- I’m just asking, but do we 7 

just revert back to the committee motion or do you want a new 8 

motion? 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  We do have that committee motion and so we either 11 

have to replace it or revise it or do something with it or 12 

supplant it. 13 

 14 

MR. RIECHERS:  I’ll move that the council hold an additional 15 

public hearing in the Sarasota area for Amendment 32 no less 16 

than fifteen days after the availability of the document. 17 

 18 

MR. TEEHAN:  I’ll second it.  The more I’m thinking about this, 19 

and I hate to say this, but especially since you’ve suggested to 20 

move the St. Pete meeting down to Sarasota, I think I be remiss 21 

if I didn’t ask for a workshop or a public hearing somewhere in 22 

the Panhandle area. 23 

 24 

I had talked with Steve about this earlier in the week as far as 25 

location and I would leave that up to the staff for what they 26 

can find and what’s the best route for them to travel there, but 27 

I think I’m going to have to make a request for somewhere in the 28 

Panama City area and that would be anywhere from Destin to 29 

Apalachicola, I guess.  Robin, if you would consider that a 30 

friendly, to add that in there. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  Do we have a second on this motion? 33 

 34 

MR. TEEHAN:  It’s Robin’s motion and I seconded it. 35 

 36 

MR. SAPP:  I guess the only way to get this discussion is to 37 

make a substitute motion and my substitute motion will be the 38 

same, except that public hearings be held in Fort Myers, Tampa, 39 

and Panama City. 40 

 41 

I just know that there were a lot of mad people down there in 42 

Tampa when I was there for the scoping meeting and I can’t 43 

imagine the conflict or the controversy we’re going to stir up 44 

if we decide not to go back down there, if we do decide to have 45 

public hearings. 46 

 47 

I know that the issues are staff time and the issues are also 48 
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budget, but after hearing the budget report, it sure doesn’t 1 

sound like should really be much of a consideration.  If we 2 

can’t do it within the line item for this year, we’ve certainly 3 

got some carryover that we can use. 4 

 5 

If I need to come out of retirement to make a car trip down 6 

there in one day to Fort Myers, I would sure be glad to do it 7 

and so I would sure like to see us accommodate those Fort Myers 8 

folks. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Ed, the motion was for the Tampa area and not 11 

Sarasota, correct? 12 

 13 

MR. SAPP:  Tampa and -- 14 

 15 

MR. GILL:  Tampa, Fort Myers, and Panama City.  Do we have a 16 

second on the substitute motion? 17 

 18 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Second. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  It’s seconded by Kay. 21 

 22 

MR. GRIMES:  The only reason I would say this is you and I spoke 23 

before and you wanted me to mention this, but the statute -- In 24 

Section 302(h) of the Magnuson Act, it discusses a requirement 25 

to hold public hearings. 26 

 27 

The requirement reads to conduct public hearings at appropriate 28 

times in appropriate locations in the geographical area 29 

concerned so as to allow interested persons an opportunity to be 30 

heard in the development of fishery management plans and 31 

amendments to such plans and with respect to the administration 32 

and implementation of the provisions of the Act. 33 

 34 

They’re very general public hearing requirements.  I know I 35 

think councils in the Southeast and this council in particular 36 

has really gone to great lengths to make sure that they held a 37 

lot of public hearings throughout the Gulf, but based on some of 38 

the discussion I heard in committee and some discussions I’ve 39 

had with your staff, it would seem reasonable that you guys 40 

would sit down maybe and put, God forbid, a committee together 41 

to think about your policy towards holding public hearings. 42 

 43 

As you and I discussed, given that there have been aquaculture 44 

FMPs and in recent times you’ll go around and hold seven public 45 

hearings around the Gulf of Mexico to get seven people to attend 46 

and so it wouldn’t seem unreasonable for you to want to revisit 47 

your overall approach to it. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Shep, for that information.  Any other 2 

discussion on the motion on the board? 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Thank you, Shep.  We’ve heard that before and we 5 

appreciate our Vice Chairman having you read that to us again 6 

and stress his pleasure for doing things in a different manner.  7 

We didn’t say that they necessarily had to be. 8 

 9 

I have visited other councils.  The Mid-Atlantic Council and the 10 

New England Council, they all hold the same public hearings.  11 

Their meetings go until midnight.  Some of them have eight, ten, 12 

twelve meetings a year and so if you think we’re overdoing it, 13 

you’re wrong.  Thank you. 14 

 15 

MR. GILL:  We’re going to vote this one up or down.  All those 16 

in favor of the substitute motion that the council hold 17 

additional public hearings in the Fort Myers, Florida; Tampa/St. 18 

Petersburg, Florida; and Panama City, Florida areas for 19 

Amendment 32 to be held no less than fifteen days after the 20 

availability of the document say aye; opposed like sign.  The 21 

motion passes. 22 

 23 

I think, if I understood correctly, that Robin’s suggestion is 24 

that we let staff develop the remainder and either send them out 25 

or discuss it at the August meeting and that will suffice for 26 

the remainder.  Do I have that correct, Robin? 27 

 28 

MR. RIECHERS:  I think so and I think yours and Shep’s notion 29 

and even Kay’s input in this and maybe it would be good if we at 30 

the next available -- I don’t know what committee it goes 31 

before, but Administrative Policy or something, maybe look at 32 

this hearing and this hearing schedule and if we can help to 33 

bundle some options -- I know staff typically tries to do that 34 

anyhow, but if there’s any assistance we can help provide them 35 

and guidance, maybe we look at it from a kind of overall 36 

perspective. 37 

 38 

MR. GILL:  Rick, the direction to staff is clear enough as to 39 

where we’re leaving this?  Are you okay with that?  Mr. Anson, 40 

you had items you wished to discuss? 41 

 42 

MR. ANSON:  Yes and thank you, Mr. Chair.  I’ll try to be as 43 

brief as possible.  The first, and the easiest, is just a 44 

correction for your report.  I’m sorry I didn’t bring it up 45 

earlier, but on page 4, it referenced the number of days that 46 

could potentially be added to a recreational red snapper based 47 

on the 345,000 pounds the SSC recommended.  It has nine there 48 
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and it probably should be five, just for clarification. 1 

 2 

Then I want to go back to the item that was discussed relative 3 

to the red snapper IFQ program and the paperwork that would be 4 

required that we voted on.  Shep or Dr. Crabtree, if you could 5 

just, for my edification, describe what the process might be if 6 

we’re going to be reviewing the red snapper IFQ program, the 7 

process and the timeline as you see it, and then I’ll have a 8 

follow-up question. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and that concludes my 11 

report. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  I had a question.  There was a question mark at the 14 

end of that. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Would you repeat the question? 17 

 18 

MR. GRIMES:  I heard your question and the Fisheries Service can 19 

comment on it in terms of there’s a review.  I believe there’s a 20 

review ongoing, not necessarily the council review, but there is 21 

some effort in the Regional Office with it, but your five-year 22 

review is your five-year review. 23 

 24 

It seems to me what you said in the FMP, I believe in the FMP 25 

amendment, was that you would review the plan to see if it was 26 

achieving the objectives, or the goals I believe is the 27 

terminology used, whether it’s achieving the goals of the IFQ 28 

program.  I think that’s largely up to you guys. 29 

 30 

MR. ANSON:  Then my next question, because that could be a 31 

lengthy process and we’re coming to the end here, is there is an 32 

opportunity for addressing one or more individual items within 33 

the existing IFQ program through an emergency rule? 34 

 35 

DR. CRABTREE:  It’s hard to say without knowing what they are, 36 

but I would say for the most part it would be difficult to do 37 

them through emergency rules, but I guess I would want to know 38 

what they were. 39 

 40 

MR. ANSON:  I don’t know at this time, but they could over the 41 

next coming months, while we wait for the review and for us to 42 

look at potentially the report, there might be some items that 43 

could potentially be addressed through an emergency rule and I 44 

just wanted to make sure that that was an option that was 45 

available to the council. 46 

 47 

MR. GRIMES:  If I might, I would respond that I -- Without 48 
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knowing what the precise items are, it’s very difficult, but a 1 

five-year review of this program that’s been in place for the 2 

last five years is going to come up with recent and unforeseen 3 

things -- 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  He doesn’t know what they are yet and so they’re 6 

unforeseen. 7 

 8 

MR. GRIMES:  That might be a little bit of a hurdle.  Think an 9 

emergency rule, again, is a very short-term fix.  If you wanted 10 

to implement long-term changes, then obviously that’s not going 11 

to accomplish it. 12 

 13 

MR. ANSON:  I was just looking at it as a potential stop-gap 14 

while we were waiting for the review process or the amendment 15 

process to address those items long-term. 16 

 17 

MR. STEELE:  Kevin, also, depending on what these situations are 18 

that you want to examine, depending on the severity of them, it 19 

may require implementation of a new referendum. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think that concludes our activities for 22 

today.  We’re adjourned. 23 

 24 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 5:15 p.m., June 9, 2011.) 25 

 26 

- - - 27 

 28 

June 10, 2011 29 

 30 

FRIDAY MORNING SESSION 31 

 32 

- - - 33 

 34 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 35 

Council reconvened at the Marriott Beachside, Key West, Florida, 36 

Friday morning, June 10, 2011, and was called to order at 8:30 37 

a.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Before we start in on the agenda, Dr. Bortone 40 

sent out a notice yesterday afternoon, I think a little after we 41 

closed down and it’s fairly important and I wanted to turn the 42 

meeting over to Joe Hendrix for just a minute to make sure that 43 

everybody saw what was sent and so, Joe, if you would relate it. 44 

 45 

MR. HENDRIX:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The council spent a lot 46 

of years working on a fishery management plan and there was a 47 

press release from the National Aquaculture Office yesterday and 48 
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I just wanted to read an excerpt from it here. 1 

 2 

Commerce and NOAA released national aquaculture policies to 3 

increase domestic seafood production, create sustainable jobs, 4 

and restore marine habitats.  It goes on down to read: Along 5 

with its new policy, the Department and NOAA announced 6 

additional steps in the future to support the development of the 7 

aquaculture industry through, Number 1, developing a national 8 

shellfish initiative in partnership with the shellfish industry 9 

and, Number 2, implementing the Gulf of Mexico Fishery 10 

Management Plan for Aquaculture, which includes the regulatory 11 

infrastructure needed for offshore aquaculture development in 12 

the Gulf.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Hendrix.  That’s really 15 

something, because it was about three or four years in the 16 

making and some 500 pages. 17 

 18 

MR. HENDRIX:  Six-and-a-half years in the making. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  With that, we’ll move to the Sustainable 21 

Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee Report.  Mr. Riechers, are you 22 

ready? 23 

 24 

SUSTAINABLE FISHERIES/ECOSYSTEM COMMITTEE REPORT 25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes, I am, sir.  Just for those who might try to 27 

follow along in the amendment as well as the committee report, 28 

in the amendment it is G-3(a) again and we will start at the top 29 

of page 8. 30 

 31 

With that, the agenda was adopted with a change in the order of 32 

items under Generic ACL/AM Amendment.  The minutes of the April 33 

2011 meeting were adopted with corrections. 34 

 35 

Next, Emily Muehlstein summarized the public hearing and written 36 

comments that were received.  Steven Atran reviewed the Reef 37 

Fish AP recommendations and Assane Diagne reviewed the 38 

Socioeconomic Panel comments.  The committee then proceeded to 39 

go through the actions in the amendment  40 

 41 

Action 1 was Management of Species by Other State of Federal 42 

Agencies.  Carrie Simmons reviewed the sub-actions in this 43 

section.   44 

 45 

The council previously had selected preferred alternatives for 46 

Actions 1.1, octocorals, and 1.3, Nassau grouper.  I’ll pause to 47 

see if anyone wants to make a motion in regards to those 48 
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preferred options.  Seeing nobody, the committee had no changes 1 

to those preferred alternatives.   2 

 3 

Action 1.2 had alternatives for withdrawing the Stone Crab FMP, 4 

but since that request has already been made to NMFS, this 5 

section is left in the amendment as a placeholder. 6 

 7 

In Actions 1.4, yellowtail snapper, and 1.5, mutton snapper, 8 

Carrie Simmons reviewed how landings in south Florida are 9 

divided between South Atlantic and Gulf jurisdictions.  She 10 

noted that an example is given on page 16 of the amendment. 11 

 12 

Bill Teehan noted that Florida FWC has sent letters to both 13 

councils and to NMFS stating that they do not feel that they can 14 

adequately manage yellowtail snapper and mutton snapper in the 15 

EEZ off Florida.   16 

 17 

Florida cannot regulate vessels that are not registered in the 18 

state or do not land their catch in the state.  Unlike 19 

octocorals, which require special equipment and must be landed 20 

alive, or stone crabs, which are fished with eighty-pound traps, 21 

there is no special gear needed to harvest yellowtail snapper 22 

and mutton snapper and opportunities exist for out of state 23 

vessels to fish off Florida and return to port without landing 24 

in Florida.   25 

 26 

Furthermore, if removed from the federal Reef Fish FMP, there 27 

would no longer be a requirement for fishermen to hold a federal 28 

reef fish permit, which has been serving as a form of effort 29 

control on the fishery. 30 

 31 

As a result of Florida FWC’s position, the following motions 32 

were made.  By unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, 33 

and I so move, that in Action 1.4, Alternative 1 be the 34 

preferred alternative.   35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 37 

discussion?  Is there any objections?  The motion passes. 38 

 39 

MR. RIECHERS:  Moving down to the next motion, by a unanimous 40 

voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so move, that in 41 

Action 1.5, the preferred alternative be Alternative 1. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  44 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 45 

 46 

MR. RIECHERS:  That’s going to move us down to Action 2 and if 47 

you’re again trying to follow, it looks like it starts at pages 48 
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14 and 15. 1 

 2 

Kay Williams asked if there would be any catch restrictions on 3 

stocks that are removed from the FMP.  Steven Atran responded 4 

that there would be no restrictions, but fishermen harvesting 5 

the species to be removed would most likely be permitted reef 6 

fish fishermen, who are required to sell their catch to 7 

federally-permitted dealers.   8 

 9 

Ms Williams also expressed concern that fishermen would need to 10 

be able to identify different species of reef fish in order to 11 

determine which species to throw out.  Mr. Atran responded that 12 

if the council felt that there might be misidentification issues 13 

with a species subject to removal, it might decide to keep the 14 

species in the FMP under Preferred Option B.   15 

 16 

The committee had no changes to the preferred alternatives in 17 

this action, which would remove the following species and I 18 

don’t think I need to read those, but if there’s someone who 19 

wants to change a species option here, we’ll pause for a moment. 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think where it says there would be no 22 

restrictions on these species, there would be no federal 23 

restrictions, but there would be state restrictions on these 24 

species and so it’s not accurate strictly to say there would be 25 

no regulations at all. 26 

 27 

MR. RIECHERS:  Point noted. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  During public testimony in this section, we heard 30 

some comments made about consideration of a way of going back 31 

and reassessing -- That may be the wrong word, but relooking at 32 

whether or not our FMPs are appropriately configured relative to 33 

species, inclusion or exclusion or whatever.  It seems to me 34 

that’s a worthy idea. 35 

 36 

I have a motion that I would like to proffer.  I would like to 37 

move to request that council staff examine inclusion and 38 

exclusion of species or species groupings in FMPs for 39 

suitability every five years, at a minimum, and make 40 

recommendations to the council after review by the SSC. 41 

 42 

The intent of this is to incorporate that as a mechanism that 43 

says do we have the right species in there for all the right 44 

reasons or should we take some out or put some in.  It’s not an 45 

exhaustive review.   46 

 47 

It’s a fairly simplistic thing, but something that says we’re 48 
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looking at it every once in a while, as opposed to where we are 1 

now, which we haven’t looked at it for a long time and you tend 2 

to get into these situations of maybe we should do something 3 

differently. 4 

 5 

Maybe some would go in or some would go out, whatever comes out 6 

of the result of the process.  That’s my motion and hopefully it 7 

will get a second. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second? 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll second it. 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  My question is, Mr. Gill, after four years have 14 

passed, who is going to remember that we need to do this? 15 

 16 

MR. GILL:  Dr. Bortone. 17 

 18 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just ask if you would establish some kind 19 

of policy document or put this in your SOPPs or unwritten 20 

understanding amongst staff? 21 

 22 

DR. ABELE:  Are some of these species the ones that there are 23 

some identification problems with?  I seem to recall a 24 

discussion of yellowfin grouper and blackfin snapper being 25 

confused with other species. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  They sometimes are.  Yellowfin grouper are 28 

pretty much southern Gulf and very rare in the north and they’re 29 

rarely caught and there are also some ciguatera problems with 30 

that species.  There may be identification problems with that.  31 

Blackfin snapper looks an awful lot like a red snapper and so 32 

there could be identification problems with them.  Is there any 33 

further discussion on the motion? 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  Getting to Dr. Abele’s comment, are we going to 36 

choose to exclude these species strictly because they have 37 

identification problems?  I don’t see it in this motion, but 38 

being it was just brought up.  Is this something we could 39 

discuss after this motion? 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re excluding them because they’re just 42 

either rarely encountered or of very little economic value and 43 

it causes a lot of extra effort for a minimal amount of 44 

importance, I guess, but we can discuss it after the motion.  Is 45 

there any further discussion on the motion?  All in favor of the 46 

motion signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion passes.  Mr. 47 

Riechers, I guess we’re back to you.  Myron, let’s address your 48 
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concerns. 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Do you want to discuss something openly or do you 3 

want a motion to discuss? 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We probably should have a motion. 6 

 7 

MR. FISCHER:  I move that we do not remove the species of 8 

blackfin snapper, queen snapper, and yellowfin grouper from the 9 

grouping.  I’ll explain if I get a second. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second?  Second by Dr. Abele. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  Some of the justification is it belongs in the 14 

group.  If it’s a misidentification, let’s get over that hump 15 

and see what it is and see what the volume, see what the 16 

quantities, harvested are.  It’s something we could remove after 17 

the fact, but removing them strictly because we can’t identify 18 

them doesn’t justify removal. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s not why we’re removing them. 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  Then let’s discuss why then. 23 

 24 

MR. GRIMES:  That’s what I was going to point out.  The 25 

preferred alternative is remove species that have average annual 26 

landings of 15,000 pounds or less, except those with prohibited 27 

harvest and Preferred Option B is those that may be 28 

misidentified as another species in the Reef Fish FMP. 29 

 30 

I think we had a discussion of these and the ones that were 31 

listed in there weren’t considered to present a problem with 32 

misidentification.  I guess you disagree with that and so maybe 33 

-- Your motion would be I guess to keep those in because you do 34 

feel there are misidentification problems. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  That’s correct.  If there is a misidentification 37 

problem, we don’t know what the landings are. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:   I guess the way we’ve laid it out, the 40 

appropriate thing is since there is a misidentification problem, 41 

to include them in the grouping that Shep mentioned, for that 42 

very purpose.  I do think the landings on these are well below 43 

those standards, but still, since there is a misidentification 44 

problem, I would support your motion.  Anyone else? 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  Until we find out what the real landings are.  47 

It’s not part of the motion, but it would be logical. 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  Is that the motion? 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  No, it’s queen snapper, yellowfin grouper, and 4 

blackfin snapper. 5 

 6 

MR. GILL:  Myron, to your point of until we straighten it out, 7 

there’s nothing that’s going to change in terms of straightening 8 

it out and so I don’t see where we’re getting anywhere in terms 9 

of anticipating that we’ll resolve the identification problems, 10 

because nothing is going to happen in that regard.  11 

 12 

There’s no action taking place or intended to take place to 13 

solve that problem and so that’s always going to be there and so 14 

what you’re really saying is that you’re putting them back in 15 

because of the identification problems, but they will probably 16 

always be there. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  We’re putting them back in because they’re unknown 19 

at this time and possibly the identification problem gets 20 

rectified and then we find out what the total landings actually 21 

are.  Then staff may recommend that we remove them at that time.  22 

I’m just trying to be precautionary on this. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we’ve had enough discussion on this 25 

one.  Shep, one more. 26 

 27 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just comment that I think the purpose of 28 

the five-year review that you just discussed, and as NMFS staff 29 

mentioned to me, is to monitor species like this that some 30 

people may or may not feel have a misidentification problem. 31 

 32 

If you see a spike in the landings of something like blackfin 33 

snapper, then it may be an indication that they’re either 34 

landing more of it or people are deliberating misreporting red 35 

snapper as blackfin snapper and that would call your attention 36 

to it.   37 

 38 

It seems like a lot of this could be addressed through the five-39 

year review and I think we’ve had extensive internal discussions 40 

over which species we thought there were misidentification 41 

problems with and it seems like now coming up at the last minute 42 

here and adding these seems to fly in the face of a lot of the 43 

past discussion we’ve had. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  I guess my question is if we put these back in, 46 

where do they go in terms of the ACLs?  Do they then fall into 47 

some of these species groups, but as I look at the species 48 
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groups, they’re not listed and so I guess I would ask staff, 1 

what are the implications of this? 2 

 3 

If we leave these in, do we know where they ought to -- Do they 4 

automatically go into some species group and then do we just 5 

adjust up the ACLs for those groups? 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Steve Atran has an answer. 8 

 9 

MR. ATRAN:  It’s exactly what Roy just said.  All of these came 10 

out of species groups and so we’ll just add them back into 11 

species groups and the SSC specified that when they said what 12 

the ABCs and OFLs would be, they were specifying the methodology 13 

to use and not specific number and so we can just adjust the 14 

number. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and move on with this.  All in 17 

favor of the motion signify by raising your hand; opposed same 18 

sign.  The motion passes. 19 

 20 

MR. GILL:  Steve mentioned it, but we haven’t considered and put 21 

our blessing as to what the ACLs are or the methodology, because 22 

they’ve been in the excluded frame.  It seems to me that having 23 

passed this motion, we’ve got to go through that and either 24 

accept the methodology or define the ACL or whatever, but we 25 

have to do something other than just okay, we’ll do what the SSC 26 

said, because we haven’t done that as a group before. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Steve Atran, I don’t know if you heard the 29 

comments and so, Bob, you might need to make them again. 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  Steve, my comment relates to yours and that is the 32 

council has not reviewed and blessed either the methodology or 33 

the ACLs for these species, because they’ve been on the removal 34 

list.  It seems to me that we need to specifically do that 35 

rather than accept carte blanche what the SSC proposed, because 36 

they’re in the ABC business and we’re in the ACL business. 37 

 38 

MR. ATRAN:  That’s fine, but I was just checking to make sure 39 

that these were originally in one of the existing groups and the 40 

three species you just mentioned, yellowfin grouper was in the -41 

- It was in the shallow-water grouper group and blackfin snapper 42 

and queen snapper were both in the mid-water snapper grouper. 43 

 44 

What the SSC recommended was that if these groupings get revised 45 

by adding or deleting species that the same methodology -- Which 46 

for snappers, it would be using the mean of the years 1999 47 

through 2008 and for the grouper, it would be using 1992, I 48 
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think, either 1992 or 1995, to 2008 to estimate the mean and 1 

then set OFL at two standard deviations above that and set the 2 

ABC one standard deviation above that and then add together all 3 

those individual OFLs and ABCs. 4 

 5 

That was the methodology and their indication was that if the 6 

groupings are changed, the same methodology should be used and 7 

applied to whatever species are added to the group, but if you 8 

feel that the council needs to make a specific motion, the 9 

council trumps the SSC. 10 

 11 

DR. CRABTREE:  That’s essentially the methodology we’re already 12 

using for some of these species and these groupings, correct?  I 13 

think we have basically accepted this, it seems, as an offshoot 14 

of our control rules, to some degree.  I don’t think we want to 15 

rehash all of that at this point. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I agree. 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I don’t agree, because we don’t know what effect 20 

that’s going to have and the years that they were using to set 21 

the range, I would have to go back and look at that, if those 22 

were the years that they didn’t land even half of their 23 

allocations due to regulations that we put that affected that.  24 

I don’t know -- I’m not certain.  Did you say yellowfin or 25 

yellowedge? 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yellowfin.  It’s a totally different animal. 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Right.  Yellowedge is deepwater, but still -- 30 

When you talk about our ACLs and AMs, all those control rules, 31 

Roy, was actually supposed to come back before us and the 32 

council was going to vote on them as a list when that workgroup 33 

got through and we never did that.  I can show it to you in the 34 

minutes. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and address this directly.  Bob 37 

is ready with a motion so we can move on. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  I move that the annual catch limits for queen 40 

snapper, blackfin snapper, and yellowfin grouper be the mean of 41 

the landings using the time period of the groupings that they’re 42 

in.  That’s not real good on the end and somebody help me here. 43 

 44 

MR. GRIMES:  I think what we have to do is they don’t have 45 

species-specific annual catch limits.  They’re going to be added 46 

back into their respective complexes in Alternative 5, as we 47 

heard staff discuss just a minute ago. 48 
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 1 

I think what you’re talking about is you will add that mean of 2 

those landings for each of these species and you’ll calculate 3 

that number and you’ll add that to the respective complexes 4 

where you’ve included these species and that’s actually the 5 

annual catch limit for that complex. 6 

 7 

DR. JOHN FROESCHKE:  The comment I was going to add is for the 8 

years, you may want to just recommend some language to use the 9 

years that the ABC was set on, the time period that the SSC 10 

selected for using the ABC, to use that same period when you’re 11 

calculating the ACL, the mean and standard deviation or whatever 12 

you choose to use. 13 

 14 

DR. CRABTREE:  Aren’t we effectively saying that their catch 15 

limits, et cetera, will be done following the way the SSC set it 16 

up?  I’m not sure if the way the SSC did it is just a mean.  I 17 

think the OFL was mean plus a couple of standard deviations and 18 

I want to make sure we don’t use language that’s somehow not 19 

consistent with what we’ve done here. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Why don’t we, if you would, Mr. Gill, withdraw 22 

your motion and let staff develop the language that would be 23 

appropriate and sometime later on this morning, we will address 24 

it. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  The motion is withdrawn. 27 

 28 

MR. TEEHAN:  I guess my question would be of these species, I 29 

believe all we have is commercial landings.  Are these captured 30 

in MRFSS at all?  We would be basing an ACL on commercial 31 

landings only? 32 

 33 

MR. ATRAN:  We have both commercial and recreational landings on 34 

those species. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay, Robin, do you want to continue on? 37 

 38 

MR. RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  For those following 39 

along, I believe we’re now on Action 3, Species Groupings, and 40 

that would be page 42 in your amendment. 41 

 42 

There are two preferred alternatives to this action.  There was 43 

no change to Preferred Alternative 4, which sets species 44 

groupings to be compatible with IFQ groupings for tilefishes, 45 

deep-water grouper, and other shallow-water grouper.   46 

 47 

However, under Preferred Alternative 5, the Preferred Option b, 48 
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to use assessed stocks in a group as the indicator species for 1 

the group, is not compatible with the IFQ allocations.  Mr. 2 

Atran suggested that if the Preferred Option were changed to c, 3 

no indicator species is used, then the alternative would be 4 

compatible with IFQs.   5 

 6 

Committee members noted that the wording of the preferred 7 

alternative was incorrect, since it indicated how, not whether, 8 

indicator species would be used.  Editorial license was given to 9 

staff to modify the wording of the alternative. 10 

 11 

The committee passed a motion to change the preferred option 12 

from b to c, so that the preferred alternative and option now 13 

read as follows.  By a unanimous voice vote, the committee 14 

recommends, and I so move, that in Action 3, the preferred 15 

alternative be Alternative 5, Option c. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  18 

Is there any objection to the motion?  The motion passes. 19 

 20 

MR. RIECHERS:  We’re now on Action 4, Acceptable Biological 21 

Catch Control Rule.  That’s on page 50 in your amendment.  Larry 22 

Abele asked for clarification on how the control rule works, and 23 

asked staff to work through an example in Table 2.4.2 of 24 

applying different tiers to a vermilion snapper stock.   25 

 26 

Dr. Abele stated that he liked to keep rules simple and 27 

suggested that the committee consider Alternative 3, which 28 

applies a fixed buffer.  However, Roy Crabtree responded that 29 

the fixed buffer does not take into account uncertainty or 30 

biological differences between stocks. 31 

 32 

Bob Gill asked for a discussion on how the risk level is 33 

selected in tiers 2, 3a, and 3b.  These tiers allow a choice of 34 

buffer or risk levels between the overfishing limit and the 35 

acceptable biological catch.   36 

 37 

Currently, the SSC is deciding which buffer level to use and is 38 

submitting an ABC to the council based on that buffer.  Roy 39 

Crabtree stated that it is the council’s decision on how much 40 

risk is acceptable.   41 

 42 

If the council disagrees with the risk level selected by the 43 

SSC, they can return the ABC to the SSC with the reasons why it 44 

is being returned, and can ask for a new ABC based on the 45 

council’s decision.   46 

 47 

Committee members asked about the phrase “default level for 48 
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unassigned stocks” in Tiers 2 and 3b.  Mr. Atran explained that 1 

the wording was meant to indicate the buffer level that would be 2 

used unless a different buffer level had been selected.  It was 3 

suggested that, to reduce confusion, the wording could be 4 

shortened to “default”.  Except for the editorial revision, 5 

there were no changes to the preferred alternative. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  Robin, I have a discussion there.  On the paragraph 8 

on the risk level, what they’re really doing is recommending 9 

what risk level to use and so the council then has the option, 10 

if they disagree with that, to choose a different risk level and 11 

since they’ve established whatever their methodology is for 12 

coming up with the ABC, that would change the ABC, but I don’t 13 

see that we necessarily have to go back to the SSC, because the 14 

risk level choice is ours and the ABC choice and methodology is 15 

theirs, but if you change the risk level, then the ABC changes 16 

and we’ve already established that. 17 

 18 

If we say you chose Risk Level B and we think it ought to be 19 

Risk Level C, then that will change their ABC as opposed to them 20 

deciding which buffer level, risk level, to use. 21 

 22 

MR. RIECHERS:  This was Roy and I remember the discussion in 23 

committee.  He certainly suggested that if we didn’t like or if 24 

we thought that the SSC had not used an appropriate risk level 25 

or something like that, we would send it back to them. 26 

 27 

I don’t exactly know how that works in context to what you’re 28 

suggesting, which is if we have a sliding scale of risk and they 29 

give us an ABC that deals with that sliding scale and then we 30 

choose the risk level here, that’s a different matter, I assume.  31 

That was certainly a committee discussion and I think the 32 

minutes are fairly reflective of what it said in committee. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  If I could follow up, it seems to me a better 35 

procedure is that we have the format laid out in the control 36 

rule and rather than go back and forth with the SSC, that the 37 

ABC control rule pretty well lays it out and once they tell us 38 

where it need to be, then we choose a risk level and the 39 

associated ABC with it. 40 

 41 

It is not a back and forth and I think that would be a much 42 

preferable way to go, rather than bounce back and forth between 43 

the SSC and the council as to where the appropriate ABC is going 44 

to reside.  Am I incorrect, Roy? 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  There are probably different ways it could work 47 

and I think once we get through the August amendment and we get 48 
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this amendment and 32 and some of these things behind us that we 1 

ought to sit down and develop a strategy for how we’re going to 2 

address risk and how we’re going to interact with the SSC in the 3 

future to refine all of this. 4 

 5 

MR. RIECHERS:  We’re now to Action 5, ACL/ACT Control Rule.  6 

Again, in your amendment, that should be page 57.  That’s where 7 

it starts.  Kay Williams questioned how the council could set 8 

ACLs for data poor stocks that have no stock assessment and no 9 

indication of where overfishing occurs.   10 

 11 

Steven Atran responded that for those stocks where there was no 12 

reason to think overfishing was occurring, the ACL was being set 13 

higher than the mean catches so that current levels of catch 14 

would be unaffected.   15 

 16 

Roy Crabtree also added that ACLs are required for all stocks in 17 

a fishery management plan.  Ms. Williams also noted that the 18 

purpose of ACT is to achieve optimum yield, but optimum yield 19 

includes socioeconomic considerations, which are not included in 20 

the point system.  Mr. Atran pointed out that the ACL/ACT 21 

control rule process includes a review by the Socioeconomic 22 

Panel. 23 

 24 

Bob Gill suggested an editorial revision to Alternative 4, 25 

deleting the words, “use the ACT calculated in the ABC Control 26 

Rule Tier 3a (if used) or”.  Mr. Atran explained that this 27 

wording was from an earlier version of the alternative and was 28 

no longer applicable. 29 

 30 

I questioned the inclusion of stock status as a weighting factor 31 

in the Preferred Alternative 2 spreadsheet.  Mr. Atran explained 32 

that when the SSC developed the ABC control rule, they decided 33 

that stock status was not an element of scientific uncertainty 34 

and should not be part of the ABC control rule, but it should be 35 

included somewhere in the setting of ACL.   36 

 37 

Bob Gill added that none of the weighting factors in the control 38 

rule had ever been vetted.  In order to allow flexibility to 39 

modify the control rule, Mr. Riechers made a motion to add a 40 

statement to Preferred Alternative 2 that the factors or 41 

components considered for future ACL/ACT actions can be added, 42 

deleted, or refined in future stock reviews by the council. 43 

 44 

Shepherd Grimes stated that if the control rule is incorporated 45 

into the fishery management plan, a framework procedure or plan 46 

amendment would be needed to change it.  However, a note could 47 

be added to the control rule to allow for variances, as was done 48 
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for the ABC control rule.   1 

 2 

Mr. Riechers withdrew his motion and made a new motion to change 3 

the preferred alternative to Alternative 1, do not have an 4 

ACL/ACT control rule.  However, the motion failed by voice vote.  5 

There were no changes to the preferred alternative. 6 

 7 

If I may, Mr. Chair, deviate from the report here, I would just 8 

ask whether we can do it by editorial license or whether we need 9 

to do it by motion.  Shep, we had that discussion in committee 10 

and I don’t think we ever followed up with the notion of 11 

actually incorporating the language, much as it is, with the ABC 12 

control rule. 13 

 14 

I think that would be worthwhile to do that under the ACL/ACT 15 

control rule.  Do we need to do that by motion or can we just 16 

incorporate that language in the table, much like we have in the 17 

ABC control rule? 18 

 19 

MR. GRIMES:  I think you would be okay -- If there’s some 20 

general consensus, I don’t think a motion is necessary and we 21 

can just add it.  I don’t see any disagreement. 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  If we would just make a note of that and let’s 24 

try to add that.  Next, we go to Action 6, Generic Framework 25 

Procedure, and that’s on page 66. 26 

 27 

The Preferred Alternative 2, base framework procedure, and 28 

Alternative 3, broad framework procedure each contain a 29 

provision to allow specification of ABC and ABC control rules.  30 

Mr. Atran suggested that the framework be modified to also allow 31 

modifications to the ACL/ACT control rule. 32 

 33 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 34 

move that in the alternatives in Action 6, modify the language 35 

to include specification of ACTs or sector ACTs and 36 

modifications to the ACL/ACT control rule. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 39 

discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 40 

 41 

MR. RIECHERS:  We’re now on Action 7, Initial Specification of 42 

Annual Catch Limits.  Again, if you’re following along in your 43 

document, it’s page 74.  Action 7.1, stone crab ACL, has no 44 

alternatives, since the council recommended that the Stone Crab 45 

FMP be withdrawn.   46 

 47 

Preferred alternatives have already been selected for Action 48 
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7.2, Royal Red Shrimp ACL, and Action 7.3.1, Apportionment of 1 

Black Grouper, and there were no changes proposed by the 2 

committee.  I’ll pause just to see if there’s any changes to 3 

those sections that someone wants to recommend.  I will move on 4 

then, Mr. Chair. 5 

 6 

Action 7.3.2, Apportionment of Yellowtail Snapper, and it’s on 7 

page 84, preferred alternatives for apportionment of the 8 

yellowtail snapper and mutton snapper stocks were not previously 9 

selected because the council’s preferred alternatives in Action 10 

1 had been to remove these stocks from the Reef Fish FMP and 11 

allow Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission to manage the stocks.   12 

 13 

Since the preferred alternatives are now to retain the stocks, 14 

apportionments between the Gulf and South Atlantic Councils are 15 

now needed.  For Action 7.3.2, Alternative 3 implements the same 16 

methodology used in the preferred alternative for black grouper. 17 

 18 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 19 

move, that in Action 7.3.2, Alternative 3 be the preferred 20 

alternative. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 23 

discussion?  Any objections?  I hear none and the motion passes. 24 

 25 

MR. RIECHERS:  We’re now at Action 7.3.3, Apportionment of 26 

Mutton Snapper.  In your document, it’s page 86.  For mutton 27 

snapper, the existing alternatives incorporated landings through 28 

2006.  The committee asked that the apportionments be 29 

recalculated using landings through 2008 for consistency with 30 

black grouper and yellowtail snapper.  When that information was 31 

presented, Alternative 2 was modified. 32 

 33 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 34 

move, that in Action 7.3.3 for mutton snapper, that Alternative 35 

2 be the preferred alternative, reflecting the catch history 36 

through 2008. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 39 

discussion?  Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 40 

 41 

MR. RIECHERS:  Action 7.4, Recreational and Commercial Sector 42 

Allocations for Black Grouper in the Gulf of Mexico, there were 43 

no changes to the Preferred Alternative 2, to base allocation on 44 

the years 1986 to 2008.  That’s 18 percent recreational and 82 45 

percent commercial. 46 

 47 

MR. TEEHAN:  I would like to offer a motion to make Alternative 48 
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4 the preferred alternative, using the Gulf Council’s allocated 1 

acceptable biological catch and divide the annual catch limit 2 

between the commercial and the recreational sector based on 3 

average landings from 2004 to 2008, which would give us an 4 

allocation of recreational at 27 percent and commercial at 73 5 

percent. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do I have a second?  We have a second.  Is 8 

there discussion? 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  I speak in opposition to the motion.  It uses the 11 

shortest period of landings that we have as alternatives, 2004 12 

through 2008, and we have, in recent history, chosen the longest 13 

valid period of landings as the best basis for choosing 14 

allocation. 15 

 16 

What we’re doing here is effectively saying whatever the recent 17 

landings are, that’s going to drive it and totally ignore the 18 

landings from prior years.  The previous Preferred Alternative 2 19 

had the longest period of landings.  It was based from 1986 to 20 

2008 and so we’re changing methodologies with very little 21 

rationale and I think improper rationale and I oppose the 22 

motion. 23 

 24 

MR. TEEHAN:  Since I don’t need a ride home with Mr. Gill, I’m 25 

not going to take that.  I have heard comments from council 26 

members that we’re stuck in methodologies that we use over and 27 

over again that may not pertain to today’s situations. 28 

 29 

I feel that the alternative that I’ve put forward with the 27 30 

recreational and 73 percent commercial more accurately reflects 31 

what is going on on the water today and the Florida Fish and 32 

Wildlife Conservation Commission wholeheartedly supports this 33 

allocation. 34 

 35 

DR. ABELE:  My question is it notes that prior to 1991 there was 36 

issues of species identification and has that influenced, does 37 

anyone know, the 1986 to 1991 or if you use the later run, would 38 

it have an influence? 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t know the answer to that.  I do know 41 

that the distinction between gag and black is something that has 42 

been refined in recent years.  Ten years ago, a lot of people 43 

made no distinction between the two, especially outside the 44 

Keys. 45 

 46 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I know the State of Florida does not use Magnuson 47 

when they’re looking at their laws or what it is that they’re 48 
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supposed to do and they do not have the same requirements that 1 

this council has and we are supposed to go back and look at 2 

historical participation.  That’s one of the requirements in 3 

Magnuson, is to do so. 4 

 5 

What you’re suggesting here is changing allocations just based 6 

on maybe it’s -- If you went back and looked at the landings, 7 

they went -- You’re not supposed to perhaps reward a sector 8 

because they happened to catch more fish one year.  You’re 9 

supposed to go back and you’re supposed to use something to 10 

gauge it by and historical period is what we’ve always used. 11 

 12 

When you talk about things have changed, maybe things have 13 

changed.  Maybe there were more restrictions that stopped 14 

commercial fishing to where they couldn’t catch more or maybe we 15 

raised bag limits.  Very often what we do affects what happens 16 

as far as catches and so I’m going to speak in opposition to Mr. 17 

Teehan’s motion.  If you’re wanting to reallocate, that’s a 18 

whole different story and doesn’t even belong here.  Thank you. 19 

 20 

DR. ABELE:  I was under the impression, just in the three 21 

meetings I’ve attended, that we have used the last ten years of 22 

landings to make certain distributions.  Sometimes it’s based on 23 

identification problems and sometimes it’s based on better 24 

confidence in the more recent data.  At least my sense is that 25 

we have used different methodologies. 26 

 27 

MS. WILLIAMS:  To that point, when you say there’s been 28 

misidentification between black and gag, that’s probably why the 29 

recreational sector holds such a large percentage of the gag 30 

right now.  Maybe they should have been holding black instead of 31 

gag, but to me, they’ve already been rewarded. 32 

 33 

DR. SIMMONS:  I just wanted to answer Dr. Abele’s question.  34 

These landings came from the stock assessment and so they did 35 

their best to correctly apportion those gag landings between gag 36 

and black grouper, to separate those identification problems all 37 

the way back to 1986, but we just wanted to note and show you 38 

that MRFSS was notably improved in 1991.  That’s just for your 39 

information. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other discussion on this motion?  Let’s 42 

vote it up or down.  All in favor of the substitute motion 43 

signify by raising your hand; opposed.  Roy didn’t vote. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  No, I’m abstaining on this allocation decision. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Chairman, it’s eight for, seven 48 
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against, and one abstention. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The motion passes. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It’s eight to four, you said? 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s eight to seven and one abstention. 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s eight votes for and seven 9 

against and one abstention. 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Did you vote, Bob? 12 

 13 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  You voted for?  Okay. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay, Mr. Riechers. 18 

 19 

MR. RIECHERS:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I believe that takes us 20 

to Action 7.5, where we specify ACL and ACT for stocks and stock 21 

groupings. 22 

 23 

In Preferred Alternative 2, an editorial revision was suggested 24 

to revise the phrase, “or as specified in Table 2.7.5.1.1, since 25 

it is the ACL/ACT control rule and not the table that sets the 26 

ACL/ACT.   27 

 28 

The revised wording for the Preferred Alternative 2 reads as 29 

follows and it just says no motion was need to do that as a 30 

preferred alternative and it’s just that we’re going to reword 31 

it, but it’s now Preferred Alternative 2, set annual catch 32 

limits, and optionally annual catch targets, as indicated by the 33 

annual catch limit control rule selected in Section 2.5.  A 34 

summary of the resulting ACLs and ACTs are provided in Table 35 

2.7.5.1.1. 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ve got to ask Shep something.  Shep, is there 38 

anything where we went out to the public where the public ever 39 

even conceived that we were going to come in and start changing 40 

allocations in this document, since this is an ACL/AM document?  41 

To me, what we just did is totally out of order. 42 

 43 

MR. GRIMES:  The document went out and it contained -- You just 44 

picked an alternative that was in the document and so in that 45 

regard, I would say yes.  This is something that you’ve been 46 

discussing all along. 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay, but as an ACL/AM measure, but not as a 1 

reallocation.  I just want that to be on the record.  Thank you.  2 

Go ahead. 3 

 4 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Chair, can I go? 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 7 

 8 

MR. RIECHERS:  Action 8, Accountability Measures, Alternative 2 9 

currently implements only post-season accountability measures, 10 

while Alternative 3 implements both in-season and post-season 11 

alternatives.   12 

 13 

The committee debated whether the wording in the alternatives 14 

would cause accountability measures to be implemented when the 15 

ACT is reached.  It was suggested that the wording be revised to 16 

clarify that accountability measures are triggered only when the 17 

ACL is exceeded.  In the revisions to Alternative 3 below, 18 

references to ACT have been removed. 19 

 20 

Roy Crabtree felt that the alternatives could be simplified 21 

further.  He felt that vermilion snapper is the only fishery 22 

covered in this amendment that needs in-season monitoring and 23 

that post-season accountability measures were sufficient for the 24 

other stocks.   25 

 26 

He suggested simplifying Alternative 3 by removing the provision 27 

for post-season accountability measures and making it an in-28 

season alternative only.  By a unanimous voice vote, the 29 

committee recommends, and I so move, that in Action 8, modify 30 

Alternative 3.  31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  33 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 34 

 35 

MR. RIECHERS:  Roy Crabtree also suggested adding a new 36 

alternative for in-season accountability measures.  Rather than 37 

require a subsequent season to be shortened if ACL is exceeded, 38 

the new alternative would implement in-season monitoring and, if 39 

necessary, closing the fishery when the ACL is reached.   40 

 41 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 42 

move that in Action 8, add a new Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 43 

would be if the ACL for a given year is exceeded in the 44 

following year, implement in-season accountability measures as 45 

described in Alternative 3. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 48 
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discussion? 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  As I read the way this is written, I think we have a 3 

misplaced comma and I’m surprised Mr. Grimes hasn’t chirped up 4 

here, but it seems to me that what we want to do is have the 5 

comma after “exceeded”, as opposed to after “year”. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think you’re right. 8 

 9 

MR. GILL:  We can do it editorially, but it has a totally 10 

different meaning. 11 

 12 

MR. GRIMES:  I would agree with that, yes. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We will instruct staff to make that really 15 

minor but important editorial change.  Good catch, Mr. Gill. 16 

 17 

MR. GRIMES:  Nice catch, Mr. Gill, yes. 18 

 19 

MR. TEEHAN:  We need to be sure that the minutes reflect that 20 

Mr. Grimes agreed with Mr. Gill.  Again. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a motion on the board, a committee 23 

motion.  Is there any further discussion, after that correction?  24 

Any objections?  The motion passes.   25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Gill, your high school English composition 27 

teacher applauds you today. 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  I never got higher than a C. 30 

 31 

MR. RIECHERS:  Roy Crabtree recommended that a combination of 32 

Alternatives 3 and 4 be adopted as a preferred alternative, with 33 

in-season monitoring implemented for vermilion snapper and post-34 

season accountability measures for the other species.   35 

 36 

He also suggested that to avoid the complications associated 37 

with using moving averages, the option be adopted that ACL 38 

triggers be based on annual catches rather than a moving 39 

average.  Since no stocks included in the amendment are in a 40 

rebuilding plan, the option to require overage adjustments for 41 

stocks in a rebuilding plan is unnecessary. 42 

 43 

By a unanimous voice vote, the committee recommends, and I so 44 

move that in Action 8, for reef fish, royal red shrimp stocks 45 

and sectors with ACLs that do not currently have accountability 46 

measures, except vermilion snapper, the preferred alternative is 47 

Alternative 4, Option a. and Option d.  Alternative 4 is if the 48 
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ACL for a given year is exceeded in the following year, 1 

implement in season accountability measures as described in 2 

Alternative 3 and that would be Option a, trigger the AM if the 3 

annual landings exceed the ACL and Option d, do not apply 4 

overage adjustments.  Then for vermilion snapper, the preferred 5 

alternative is Alternative 3, Option a. and Option d.  Option a 6 

is trigger the AM if the annual landings exceed the ACL and 7 

Option d is do not apply overage adjustments. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any further 10 

discussion?  Any objections? 11 

 12 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just note that your staff has emailed you 13 

around a revised Action 8 and just so if you want to see it, it 14 

includes the preferred alternative you’re about to vote on and 15 

it lays it all out, because it was a slightly different format 16 

than what was originally contained in the document.  I just 17 

wanted to bring that to your attention. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Shep.  Any other comments or 20 

discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 21 

 22 

MR. RIECHERS:  Mr. Chairman, that concludes my report. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  We are well ahead of schedule now 25 

and let’s take a fifteen-minute break.  I know some people are 26 

gathering their goods and checking out and so let’s resume at 27 

twenty minutes to ten. 28 

 29 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If everyone will take their seats, we have two 32 

or three issues still hanging over from the previous committee 33 

report.  One is the decision on whether to send this to the 34 

Secretary or not and I’m assuming we’re not going to, but 35 

nevertheless, we need to bring it up just in case.  I think we 36 

don’t have a quorum and so I’m going to wait a couple of 37 

minutes. 38 

 39 

Now that Mr. Pearce is here, we have our quorum and Mr. Anson 40 

has reinforced the quorum.  Does anyone want to discuss whether 41 

or not we should send this to the Secretary? 42 

 43 

In committee, it was decided not to send it and to bring it back 44 

at the August meeting and so if I don’t hear anything to the 45 

contrary, Mr. Grimes, I assume we don’t need a motion at all.  46 

Is that correct? 47 

 48 



190 

 

MR. GRIMES:  Yes, that is correct, but I guess I would at least 1 

advise you -- It seems to me that we’re going to go back to St. 2 

Petersburg and revise the document to reflect decisions that 3 

were made here and try to get a draft environmental impact 4 

statement filed with the Environmental Protection Agency as fast 5 

as we can reasonably do it.  At least that’s my understanding. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do you anticipate we’ll have any problem making 8 

it by the August meeting? 9 

 10 

MR. GRIMES:  I wouldn’t think so. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  There are a few other loose ends.  Steve Atran, 13 

did we get anything on the verbiage regarding the three species 14 

that we have brought back into the management unit? 15 

 16 

MR. ATRAN:  I believe John Froeschke should have emailed it.  I 17 

haven’t received it yet, but he should have sent it to you and 18 

Trish. 19 

 20 

DR. FROESCHKE:  I just sent it at warp speed here and so you 21 

should have it momentarily. 22 

 23 

MR. GRIMES:  Mr. Chairman, I guess just to add a little bit on 24 

to what I said earlier, since we’ve decided to add these species 25 

back in, you’ll see them appear in the complexes.  There’s that 26 

alternative for how we break out the stocks. 27 

 28 

They will be added back into their respective places there and 29 

the tables will be revised and the ACL numbers that are in the 30 

tables will be revised consistent with that decision and I 31 

believe that black grouper decision as well. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Grimes.  Are we going to need a 34 

motion to address what John Froeschke is sending?  I haven’t 35 

gotten it up yet. 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Does anybody know what he is sending and where 38 

these are going to be placed? 39 

 40 

MR. GILL:  Given what Mr. Grimes just said, it seems to me we 41 

don’t need the motion.  We’ll be readdressing this in August and 42 

we already know what the process is and that’s consistent with 43 

what we’ve said and so we’ll see it in August and deal with it 44 

then. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, I think what it is, it’s just adding those 47 

three species back into the proper grouping and we will then 48 
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take action in August, when we see it again.  It will all be in 1 

the new format and at that time, we’ll make any motions that are 2 

necessary. 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, the reason I’m asking is when you 5 

say we’re going to move those back into the proper groupings, I 6 

don’t know if you’re talking about moving those into the proper 7 

groupings where we just change some percentages as far as 8 

allocations that ITQs have been issued on. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  The groupings in which they were originally 11 

placed, they will be replaced, as they were then. 12 

 13 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Can you tell me what they are?  Apparently 14 

somebody knows. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes, Mr. Atran mentioned it before. 17 

 18 

MR. ATRAN:  The yellowmouth grouper is going to go into the 19 

shallow-water grouper aggregate and the two snappers are going 20 

to go into the mid-water snapper aggregate. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a problem.  It’s yellowfin and not 23 

yellowmouth. 24 

 25 

MR. ATRAN:  The yellow ones, other than yellowedge. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I am a little puzzled about that though, 28 

because yellowfin are not shallow-water groupers, but 29 

nevertheless, it’s a minor thing. 30 

 31 

DR. STEVE BRANSTETTER:  I’ve been getting emails from my staff 32 

back home and they are concerned about the Action 8, the way 33 

it’s worded under a NEPA perspective.  It makes it very 34 

difficult to compare them and can you give the IPT a little 35 

editorial license to maybe tweak those alternatives a bit to 36 

make them more NEPA compliant? 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I don’t have it up on the screen.  Robin, can 39 

you address that? 40 

 41 

MR. RIECHERS:  Those were given to us by Dr. Crabtree, but 42 

certainly if you want to edit his work, you go ahead. 43 

 44 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there anything else on the Sustainable 45 

Fisheries/Ecosystem Committee that we need to address?  If not, 46 

we’re going to move to Other Business.  We don’t have any more 47 

committee reports and some of the scheduled agenda items for 48 
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this afternoon have to be during that time, because people are 1 

flying in this morning. 2 

 3 

The afternoon agenda will pretty much stay the same and what 4 

we’ll do now is address Other Business.  Dr. Bortone, would you 5 

like to mention these Other Business items? 6 

 7 

OTHER BUSINESS 8 

APPROVAL FOR THE OUTREACH AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE TO BE CONVENED 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The first are two items from Mr. 11 

Gill. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The Outreach and Education 14 

AP needs to reconvene for a number of items and the most 15 

significant of those are to finish up on the strategic plan 16 

which they’ve been working on, take the report that the USF -- 17 

The audit that the USF folks did and consider that and also 18 

consider a possible stakeholder survey.  I move that we 19 

reconvene the Outreach and Education AP at a time determined by 20 

staff. 21 

 22 

MR. TEEHAN:  Second. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s get the motion on the board and then 25 

we’ll address it.  We have a motion on the board.  Is there any 26 

discussion of this motion?  Mr. Gill, any further discussion? 27 

 28 

MR. GILL:  No, there’s obviously other things that they’ll be 29 

talking about, but those were the primary things that I covered 30 

and they really do need to be moving on with them. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are there any objections to the motion?  33 

Hearing none, the motion passes. 34 

 35 

MEETING REPORTS 36 

REPORT OF THE CCC MEETING 37 

 38 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I have a couple of reports I would 39 

like to give.  The first one is on the Council Coordinating 40 

Committee.  On the 3rd through the 5th of May, we met in 41 

Charleston.  I think the meeting was actually the 4th and 5th. 42 

 43 

We had a CCC meeting, Council Coordinating Committee, and 44 

myself, me, and Dr. Shipp and Mr. Gill were present there.  Just 45 

to briefly summarize, George LaPointe was hired by NOAA to 46 

discuss allocation fisheries issues and he presented his 47 

progress on that particular report. 48 
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 1 

He’s just partway through.  I think he’s got two-thirds of it 2 

done and then he may or may not make recommendations with regard 3 

to what councils should do with regard to allocation.  However, 4 

the CCC discussed this at length and at first even argued that 5 

the report shouldn’t be submitted and they objected to the 6 

report without even seeing the report. 7 

 8 

Finally, a motion was passed that the CCC would consider the 9 

report and mainly objected to the idea of NOAA telling councils 10 

what to do with regard to allocation I think was the gist of 11 

that particular motion. 12 

 13 

We had a presentation by Galen Trumble on performance measures 14 

and just to report that the national performance measure that 15 

they use, Fisheries Stock Sustainability Index, is increasing 16 

and on the rise and things are looking good. 17 

 18 

There was a national bycatch report, which was presented to us 19 

and then I’ve since been able to obtain copies and send it 20 

around to you.  If you have comments on that, please let me 21 

know.   22 

 23 

The basic problem that people had was the most recent data was 24 

2007 data in this particular report and so that gave some 25 

concern to other councils and two councils have written letters 26 

objecting to the report.  We’re going to look that over and see 27 

if there’s any problem.  I think the fact that it’s a 2007 28 

report says it all and I don’t think we have to do too much.  29 

What’s that? 30 

 31 

MR. GILL:  2005. 32 

 33 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  2005?  It’s a 2005 report and so 34 

it’s even older. 35 

 36 

MR. PERRET:  Dr. Bortone, or I guess this is for Dr. Crabtree.  37 

Why would the agency employ an individual to develop a paper on 38 

an allocation study when the agency doesn’t allow its Regional 39 

Administrator to vote on allocation issues? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  There’s no set policy that prohibits the Regional 42 

Administrator from voting on allocation issues.  I just have 43 

generally not done that and left that up to the council to do. 44 

 45 

MR. PERRET:  I guess if the agency comes out with a paper on 46 

allocations with recommendations, you’ll obviously have to 47 

follow the agency paper recommendations, you and other Regional 48 
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Administrators? 1 

 2 

DR. CRABTREE:  If we come out with guidance or something along 3 

those lines, it’s a safe assumption that I would tend to follow 4 

that. 5 

 6 

MR. PERRET:  When will the paper be available?  The S&S didn’t 7 

want to see it, but I’m sure the council members would like to 8 

see it. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  What’s happening, Corky, is that NOAA has contracted 11 

with George to conduct a survey and make recommendations 12 

relative to allocation from headquarters’ perspective of whether 13 

they should or should not do anything at all, provide additional 14 

guidance, et cetera. 15 

 16 

What he’s doing is conducting this survey and compiling it and 17 

then ultimately making recommendations.  My understanding is 18 

that the report will be available this fall.  I think the target 19 

is September and may or may not result in anything and they will 20 

look at it. 21 

 22 

The CCC is concerned, I think is a fair expression, and the way 23 

it stands right now, they want to see the report before they 24 

make any further recommendations. 25 

 26 

MR. PERRET:  Do we have any idea what this study is costing the 27 

taxpayers of the United States of America? 28 

 29 

MR. GILL:  Whatever they’re paying George. 30 

 31 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  If I can continue, we discussed at 32 

length the coastal marine spatial planning issue.  The issue 33 

mainly is that the councils are not sitting at the table.  Mr. 34 

Gill will be representing the council, but he doesn’t have a 35 

voting seat, I guess would be the way to put it. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  The issue is on the regional planning bodies, which 38 

are being set up, currently no council participation at the 39 

table is currently envisioned and so the CCC feels very strongly 40 

that the councils need to be on those planning bodies, rather 41 

than just inputting to them.  That will be part of the 42 

discussion at the June workshop, which starts June 21 in 43 

Washington. 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Then just another announcement is 46 

there’s a National SSC Workshop.  Doctors Powers and Keithly 47 

will represent our council from our SSC.  It’s the 4th through 48 
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the 6th of October in Williamsburg on the subject of 1 

socioeconomics and ecosystems relationships relative to ABC and 2 

OY. 3 

 4 

There’s a Managing our Nations Fisheries III Conference being 5 

planned.  A preliminary plan was brought before the CCC and was 6 

rejected and so they’re going back to the table to come up with 7 

dates and timing.  Some of the issue is funding, because 8 

officially funding isn’t available, yet they’re being asked to 9 

put out funds for a conference that may or may not be funded and 10 

so it’s a little difficult, but that concludes my CCC report. 11 

 12 

MR. CUPKA:  Not a question, but just a comment.  The way the CCC 13 

operates now, the chairman of the host council gets to serve as 14 

chairman of the CCC for a year in which they host in.  This 15 

year, the CCC meeting was held in Charleston and so I got the 16 

pleasure of serving as the CCC chairman for this year and about 17 

two weeks ago, I signed a letter to Eric Schwaab expressing 18 

concern for the whole CCC on this allocation project. 19 

 20 

That has been done and I assume that copies of that letter will 21 

be coming to the other councils and executive directors.  I 22 

think it was coordinated with them before I ever signed off on 23 

it, but we have, on behalf of all eight councils, expressed 24 

concern about that project and some things we would not like to 25 

see it do, like provide a directive from Washington that we 26 

would have to reexamine allocation.  That is in the works. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, David.   29 

 30 

MR. PERRET:  Could I give a one-minute report on some good news.  31 

I just got a call from Mr. Les Hodgson down in Brownsville and 32 

he and Dr. Burchfield at the Brownsville Zoo have been involved 33 

with this Kemps Ridley project at Rancho Nuevo.  It’s the beach 34 

where most of the Kemps nest. 35 

 36 

Anyway, to date, they’ve had 18,000 nests.  One day, I think he 37 

said last week, they had the biggest arribada, and an arribada 38 

is when the turtles come in to nest, since 1947 and one day, 39 

from five o’clock until midnight, they were able to harvest 40 

7,000 nests and they bring the eggs and put them in an enclosed 41 

area where the predators and so on can’t get them and they ran 42 

out of corral space and so 18,000 nests to date.  Thank you, Dr. 43 

Shipp. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That is great news and didn’t the population 46 

get down into the hundreds about a couple of decades ago? 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  That’s correct and it’s been steadily increasing 1 

over the years, but this was the largest since the 1947 video 2 

and they’ve got videos and all that that he’s supposed to send 3 

me and I’ll forward it to Dr. Bortone. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you for the good news, Mr. Perret.   6 

 7 

REPORT ON BEYOND THE HORIZON FORUM 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Thanks to the folks in Charleston.  10 

It was a great CCC meeting.  I’m also going to report on the 11 

Beyond the Horizon Forum that was held at Mote Marine Laboratory 12 

on the 11th through the 13th of May. 13 

 14 

I attended as well as Dr. Burns.  I also gave a presentation on 15 

the status of the fisheries, an economic status of fisheries, in 16 

the Gulf of Mexico.  Subjects covered by this group were 17 

national -- We had reports from the National Resource Damage 18 

Assessment Group and also the Restoration Task Force and we’re 19 

going to hear later today from Mr. Hankinson, who also presented 20 

there. 21 

 22 

Presentations involved special features of the Gulf of Mexico, 23 

biological and geological special areas to protect, already 24 

existing MPA programs, marine protected area programs, 25 

international programs that existed, the economics of the region 26 

from the oil companies and fisheries were presented, and also 27 

stressing connectivity within the Gulf and between the Gulf and 28 

Caribbean and that was a big issue. 29 

 30 

Basically, the summation of the conference, which is going to 31 

come out in a publication which will get distributed, there’s 32 

more connectivity among fish and larvae in the Gulf and 33 

Caribbean than was suspected. 34 

 35 

There’s much more of an interconnectivity between the air/sea 36 

interface and we need a lot more data on socioeconomics to be 37 

able to evaluate some things and there was a stress on trying to 38 

bring Cuba in and Mexico as partners in the management of the 39 

resources in the Gulf.  That concludes my report on the Beyond 40 

the Horizon Forum. 41 

 42 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I have a question.  On the economic report that 43 

you gave, do you have anything on that so that we can see what 44 

the report said? 45 

 46 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  That report will be included in the 47 

presentation that I’ll send out.  It’s essentially summary 48 
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abstracts of all the talks and I basically used data that’s Gulf 1 

of Mexico fisheries statistics from 2009 is what I used. 2 

 3 

REPORT OF THE SEDAR STEERING COMMITTEE 4 

 5 

We had a SEDAR meeting in Charleston the day before these 6 

meetings of the CCC.  Basically, as you may know, the SEDAR 7 

group consists of a steering committee group from the South 8 

Atlantic Fisheries Management Council, Gulf Council, Caribbean 9 

Council, Atlantic States and Gulf States Marine Fisheries 10 

Commissions, the SERO Office, and the Southeastern Fisheries 11 

Science Center Office.  They’re all part of that group. 12 

 13 

A couple of the major high points is the SEDAR Technical 14 

Committee was recommended to be formed, which would essentially 15 

meet electronically to discuss and provide recommendations 16 

regarding SEDAR scheduling and procedures for at least looking 17 

forward a couple of years ahead. 18 

 19 

We also discussed the idea, and Bonnie was part of this 20 

discussion as well, of the analysts being present at both SSC 21 

and council meetings and that was an agreement.   22 

 23 

We have come to a conclusion with regard to streamlining the 24 

guidelines.  The final copy of that is not ready yet.  As soon 25 

as it is, I’ll send it out to you.  We’ve had to go back and 26 

forth with a few little editorial issues, but the basic gist of 27 

the SEDAR guideline renovation is to streamline it, not only the 28 

guidelines themselves, but to streamline the process, so we can 29 

get more assessments in, better and faster. 30 

 31 

Just to give you a highlight, we’ve worked it out now so that 32 

updates may take more than two months, standard assessments four 33 

months, and benchmarks hopefully finishing in nine months time. 34 

 35 

We also set up in the guidelines some stipulations as regards to 36 

membership and how many people would be involved in that and, 37 

again, I’ll be sending out those final guidelines in hopefully 38 

another week, Bonnie, do you think that will be ready?  Yes, in 39 

another week.  That concludes my report from the SEDAR Steering 40 

Committee meeting. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any comments on Dr. Bortone’s reports?  Hearing 43 

none, is there other business? 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Yes, Harlon wanted to speak about 46 

shrimp trawls. 47 

 48 
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MS. WILLIAMS:  You do have me down for the three items I wanted 1 

to talk about? 2 

 3 

MR. GILL:  I’m down for one, Dr. Bortone. 4 

 5 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Go ahead, Harlon. 6 

 7 

DISCUSSION OF TURTLE BYCATCH IN SHRIMP TRAWLS 8 

 9 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  As you know, we’re under 10 

the threat of lawsuits pertaining to turtle catch in shrimp 11 

trawls in the Gulf of Mexico and potentially shutting our 12 

fishery down.  I just wanted to be proactive with this and to 13 

really lay some things on the table that can show that really 14 

the shrimp guys we need to be worried about and why. 15 

 16 

I asked the National Marine Fisheries Service to give us a 17 

report on their checking of TEDs in the shrimp trawls and 18 

exactly what’s going on with that and how they feel about what’s 19 

going on in the shrimp industry and I would like to have them 20 

come up and give their report first, if I can, and then we’ll 21 

keep going from there, if that’s okay. 22 

 23 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s fine with me.  Who is going to give the 24 

report?  Tracy? 25 

 26 

MR. DUNN:  Just a thumbnail sketch of our involvement.  Of 27 

course, when the elevated strandings were brought to our 28 

attention and the agency asked us to get more involved, we 29 

immediately diverted our resources, the agents that were working 30 

on investigations, and had them get back to the docks. 31 

 32 

What we found was -- We immediately looked for any shrimping 33 

vessels that were operating, of course, knowing that would 34 

present the greatest danger, and we had a very difficult time 35 

finding anybody actually working and so we saw very low effort. 36 

 37 

Weather was a determining factor for both them and us getting 38 

patrols underway, but we had to most of our work dockside the 39 

first couple of weeks.  We did find a lot of vessels were not 40 

even rigged yet for shrimping and those that were, the gear was 41 

fairly new, if not brand new, and we did problems in about every 42 

TED we did a courtesy inspection on. 43 

 44 

Our policy is at the docks we’re going to try to work with the 45 

shrimpers as much as possible to get them up to speed and so we 46 

did a lot of courtesy inspections and we did find a lot of 47 

problems. 48 
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 1 

We traced many of those back to net shops, just maybe three or 2 

four net shops, that had been making them out of compliance.  We 3 

worked with the gear monitoring team out of Pascagoula, 4 

Mississippi, and did site visits with those net shops to get at 5 

least the ones being sold cleaned up. 6 

 7 

Since that time, we have been doing a lot of at-sea boardings.  8 

The fleet luckily, like I said, had not been working and so we 9 

were able to intervene early enough that we feel like we got 10 

most of the problems addressed.  To date, we’ve boarded 212 11 

boats.  We’ve seen sixty-one violations.  Those violations range 12 

from minor to more significant and with the great number of 13 

those being angles.  Unless there are more questions on the work 14 

that we did -- 15 

 16 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Tracy.  The angle issue, do you think 17 

that’s more of just the gear settling out and the angle becoming 18 

a little bit different or do you think they’re deliberately 19 

putting them in at the wrong angle? 20 

 21 

MR. DUNN:  I would have to say, based on our observations, they 22 

were putting them at a higher angle, because we know that as the 23 

gear is used that they tend to lay out and, of course, the 24 

assumption is the lower the angle, the more shrimp they’re going 25 

to lose.  We tended to see that in the past. 26 

 27 

I think we’ve worked with the industry, especially the shrimp 28 

organizations, to get them to convince their people that that’s 29 

not necessarily so and it doesn’t matter.  They need to be 30 

properly installed regardless of the assumption of what kind of 31 

effect that will have on their shrimping. 32 

 33 

MR. PERRET:  Tracy, those 212 boardings, was that -- I have to 34 

assume that’s working with your state partners? 35 

 36 

MR. DUNN:  As far as the data I have, that’s all of our effort.  37 

We do have information we’re receiving from the different 38 

states.  Mississippi was very active and Texas is working with 39 

us now in preparation for some upcoming activity in their state 40 

and, of course, Louisiana is a different story. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  If I may, Robin, with the Texas closure in effect, 43 

have you had turtle carcasses or has Texas experienced 44 

strandings when there’s been absolutely no shrimping effort off 45 

of Texas, due to the 200-mile closure? 46 

 47 

MR. RIECHERS:  Corky, I can’t honestly say that we haven’t 48 
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experienced any.  I haven’t looked at the records most recently.  1 

When some of the high strandings were occurring, we looked at 2 

ours and talked with Dale in Mississippi and, of course, he 3 

asked whether we were experiencing some and we had experienced 4 

more than we had in the past, but I have not looked at it since 5 

the closure started to see what we may have experienced. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other questions for Tracy? 8 

 9 

MR. PEARCE:  Let me kind of make some comments.  First off, I 10 

take offense to the people thinking that the shrimp trawls are 11 

the guys that are doing these turtles.  We go from doing thirty, 12 

twenty, fifty turtles a year to 600 in 2011, with no effort at 13 

all. 14 

 15 

I’m going to be working with Tracy and getting him some trip 16 

ticket data to show what’s going on Louisiana, that we had no 17 

boats out there.  We had 278 strandings in 2011 before April, 18 

with no effort in the Gulf at all.   19 

 20 

To throw it at the shrimp trawl guys is just the wrong way to go 21 

and I don’t want to see any turtles killed and that’s for sure, 22 

but I think we really need to find out where the problems are 23 

and not with our shrimp guys. 24 

 25 

I understand that we do have a problem in Louisiana where we’re 26 

not enforcing TEDs, but we in Louisiana are working hard to get 27 

that changed.  We had a bill last session that passed that the 28 

Governor vetoed and we’re working on getting that squared away 29 

now, as we speak. 30 

 31 

We’re going to try to do our job, but the shrimp -- I understand 32 

that you had some problems with the TEDs and those TEDs could 33 

have been net manufacturers and it could have been other people 34 

and I applaud your enforcement going after it right now, because 35 

we really want to make sure the problem is solved and handled. 36 

 37 

I also applaud the way you guys are doing it, because you’re 38 

going out and educating and working with the people and letting 39 

them know what we need to do to make sure we don’t have any 40 

problems, but the fact that people that can throw this on our 41 

shrimp industry is completely false.  It’s wrong. 42 

 43 

If that would have been the case, we would have had a whole lot 44 

more strandings before the oil spill than we did.  You can’t 45 

blame 600 on us right now and what Corky is telling us today, 46 

we’ve got -- Did you say 7,000 nests on one night of turtles? 47 

 48 
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I think Corky brought up to the council that we need to get a 1 

stock assessment on turtles and I think that’s correct.  We need 2 

to know where we stand and what’s going on and we want to keep 3 

the turtles continuing to grow, but as we get more turtles, 4 

we’re going to have more interactions, of course, but I don’t 5 

think that our shrimp trawls are the guys to blame at the 6 

present time. 7 

 8 

I’m not throwing blame anywhere else, but we clearly need to 9 

really evaluate what’s going on and it’s too easy to throw it at 10 

our shrimpers and I read these emails and releases that say it’s 11 

always the shrimp guys and it is clearly not the shrimp guys 12 

that are doing this.  Otherwise, it would have been clearly 13 

happening before this time and in the last year since the spill. 14 

 15 

I want to make sure that I go on the record in saying that they 16 

need to really think back before they do any lawsuits and figure 17 

out what’s really going on before they throw this council or our 18 

groups in the states into a quick fixing type problem, which we 19 

don’t want to be in, because we’re trying to do our job and we 20 

are doing our job and shrimping is one of the major industries 21 

in this Gulf. 22 

 23 

To even consider in today’s time shutting down the shrimp 24 

industry is absolutely absurd.  It’s absolutely absurd.  We 25 

cannot afford to lose any more jobs than we do right now.   26 

 27 

We can’t afford to kill turtles, but I don’t think it’s us 28 

that’s doing it.  I appreciate the time you gave me today and I 29 

want to continue to be working proactive on making sure that we 30 

do our job as an industry and that the NGOs understand that 31 

we’re doing our job as an industry and that National Marine 32 

Fisheries Service is doing their job as enforcement in helping 33 

us make sure everything is done in the right way.  Thank you, 34 

Mr. Chairman. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Pearce. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  Let me make a few points.  I agree with some of 39 

the things Harlon said.  There have clearly been high 40 

concentrations and large numbers of Kemps Ridley in the northern 41 

Gulf, Mississippi Sound area, for the past couple of years.  Why 42 

that is, I don’t know. 43 

 44 

We have had some dredging going on in those areas and when they 45 

use hopper dredges, they do relocation trawlers, where they go 46 

out and trawl without TEDs, short tow times, and catch the 47 

turtles and move them somewhere else. 48 
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 1 

In the relocation trawling, they’ve caught lots of turtles and 2 

I’ll agree with Harlon that the explanation for all the 3 

stranding is not that clear.   4 

 5 

There have been strandings during times when there appeared to 6 

be low shrimping effort going on, but the necropsies and the 7 

examinations from the vets have concluded that drowning, forced 8 

submergence, was the most likely cause of death and some of the 9 

turtles had fish in their guts and so those are things that are 10 

typically associated with shrimp trawls. 11 

 12 

There has been a lot of concern about skimmer trawls.  Skimmer 13 

trawls, if they abide by tow time restrictions, are exempted 14 

from the TED requirements, but we’ve had problems with enforcing 15 

tow time restrictions, because essentially to enforce those, a 16 

law enforcement officer has to sit there and time how long the 17 

nets are in the water and that’s difficult to do. 18 

 19 

The year before last, before the oil spill came in, we were 20 

having problems with enforcing tow times in skimmers and we were 21 

having strandings and in fact, Mississippi came in and reduced 22 

the tow times at that point.  Then the oil came in and the 23 

fishery shut down. 24 

 25 

I think it’s also quite likely that just more people are looking 26 

in these areas now and so we’re getting better counts of how 27 

many strandings have occurred and so it is kind of a puzzling 28 

situation and, Harlon, I agree that we’re trying to avoid knee-29 

jerk reactions and pointing fingers and things like that and 30 

figure out what’s going on now. 31 

 32 

We are talking to the shrimp industry.  They’re holding meetings 33 

around the Gulf now.  We’ve funded a project with the Gulf and 34 

South Atlantic Fisheries Management Foundation to work on TED 35 

outreach.  We’re going to continue a very high level of 36 

enforcement activities as well, but we’re also working with the 37 

shrimp industry to try and address some of these violations. 38 

 39 

I expect that we will begin scoping meetings in the near future 40 

to talk about potentially requiring TEDs in skimmer trawls and I 41 

think that’s something we are going to look at and start doing 42 

the NEPA analysis on that over the remainder of the year. 43 

 44 

Now, we do have a sixty-day notice of intent to sue from the 45 

Center for Biological Diversity, the Turtle Island Restoration 46 

Network, Sea Turtle Conservancy, and the Defenders of Wildlife 47 

and what they are asking us to do is to impose an emergency 48 
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closure of the federal and state water shrimp trawl fishery in 1 

the Gulf until the Fisheries Service promulgates rules requiring 2 

TEDs in all shrimp trawls and nets and requiring 100 percent 3 

observer coverage or a level of observer coverage adequate to 4 

enforce these regulations. 5 

 6 

That’s where we stand right now.  We have reinitiated 7 

consultation on the shrimp fishery and we will be working on a 8 

biological opinion this year and hopefully get that done towards 9 

the end of the summer or in the fall, but it is a serious 10 

problem in that we have had these compliance issues and the 11 

first step of dealing with this problem, I think, is to improve 12 

compliance with the TED regulations and then, as I said, go 13 

through the process of looking at skimmer trawls. 14 

 15 

MR. PEARCE:  A couple of things.  Just because they drown in the 16 

water, it doesn’t mean it’s a net.  The second things is fish in 17 

the bellies and we’ve had weakfish since this oil spill 18 

everywhere in the Gulf and they could be eating these weakfish 19 

too not being in a trawl. 20 

 21 

Skimmer nets, I understand where you’re going with that.  That’s 22 

probably one of our cleanest fisheries.  They can pretty much 23 

observe what’s going on as they’re fishing, but I’m not against 24 

thinking about what we need to do with skimmer nets.  That’s not 25 

a problem. 26 

 27 

In Louisiana, as we speak, we’re having a conference call with 28 

all of our shrimping groups about this problem and how do we 29 

handle it.  Compliance, compliance at the net manufacturer or at 30 

the shrimper?  You’ve got to figure out where this compliance 31 

problem really is. 32 

 33 

I don’t think we have a major shrimper compliance problem.  I 34 

think we’ve just got to get our act together and straighten out 35 

what’s going on and I think that once we get everybody on the 36 

same page, you’ll see that the shrimpers are really trying to do 37 

their job. 38 

 39 

I think that there is a knee-jerk reaction going on now and I’ve 40 

watched it too many times and particularly with the shrimpers 41 

and we have to be very cautious what we do here in the Gulf and 42 

we’ve got to make sure that blame is -- Again, I take offense to 43 

what’s going on, because there’s got to be something else that’s 44 

happening.  There’s got to be something else, from thirty to 45 

fifty to all the way up to 600 all of a sudden, that’s not us.  46 

That’s not the shrimpers. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Pearce. 1 

 2 

MR. PERRET:  Obviously we’ve got a whole lot more turtles out 3 

there than anybody ever dreamed that were out there.  I will say 4 

this.  Not often I think Roy’s agency, but in this case, we’ve 5 

got excellent cooperation with his people and with the people in 6 

Pascagoula and with our law enforcement people. 7 

 8 

I’ve never measured the angle of a TED in a net in my life and I 9 

would probably make an error when I measured it or if I ever 10 

have to measure it.  Obviously there’s a little more involved to 11 

measuring these things and our law enforcement people -- 12 

Wednesday there was a meeting with half of our law enforcement 13 

field agents with the Pascagoula gear people. 14 

 15 

I think there’s another one this coming week and so we will have 16 

more experience on proper measuring techniques and so on.  We’ve 17 

had workshops.  We, the agency, bought TEDs for skimmer 18 

fishermen and gave them to skimmer fishermen to put in their 19 

nets.   20 

 21 

I can’t tell you how many have been implemented insofar as 22 

placing in the nets at this time, but we do have some voluntary 23 

use of the TEDs in the skimmers and we’re all working together 24 

with the industry and so we’ve had real good cooperation with 25 

Roy’s group and I’m sure that’s going to continue. 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  Skimmer trawls, by design, are shallow-water gear 28 

and I don’t know what the size of these turtles -- Obviously you 29 

can catch dinner-plate-sized turtles in inshore waters and so 30 

forth, but before we start going after skimmer trawls, I think 31 

we need to make that correlation, because they are shallow 32 

water. 33 

 34 

However, having said that, in Florida, where we do allow skimmer 35 

trawls, they are required to have TEDs and BRDs in them and they 36 

don’t seem to impede the efficiency of the gear. 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just a question to Bill.  I won’t comment on his 39 

ill-advised use of the word “dinner-plate” and “turtle”, but, 40 

Bill, you guys in Florida, you require TEDs in skimmer trawls 41 

and is that correct? 42 

 43 

MR. TEEHAN:  That’s correct and BRDs, for dinner-plate-sized 44 

fish. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have an exempted permit issue.  Dr. 47 

Branstetter, are you prepared to address this? 48 
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 1 

EXEMPTED FISHING PERMITS 2 

 3 

DR. BRANSTETTER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Back in January of 2010, 4 

you reviewed this same exempted fishing permit, which is in your 5 

briefing book as Tab L-4.  This is for the Gulf and South 6 

Atlantic Fisheries Foundation for their shrimp observer program. 7 

 8 

They have submitted an application.  We have no mechanism to 9 

renew an EFP and so it just has to go all the way through the 10 

process again.  This is for their observer program, where they 11 

may need to retain specimens for archival or later 12 

identification or other research needs. 13 

 14 

They almost never bring anything back, but if they ever needed 15 

to, they need this EFP to be able to handle fish that otherwise 16 

would be prohibited by regulations. 17 

 18 

This is for both the Gulf and the South Atlantic and so the 19 

South Atlantic Council will also have to review this.  To the 20 

state directors, this letter will be coming to you for your 21 

review next week, as soon as I get home.  Dr. Crabtree hopefully 22 

signed it last Friday before I left and so the Federal Register 23 

notice will be filed next week as well and this would be through 24 

-- Their other one expires on July 31 of this year and we are 25 

going to give this one to them through December 31, 2013.  26 

That’s where they have current awards to do this work. 27 

 28 

MR. GILL:  I don’t know if it’s appropriate, given that we have 29 

a draft, but I would make a motion that we recommend approval of 30 

the EFP request by the Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries 31 

Foundation. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second for that motion?  Any 34 

further discussion?  This is pretty much proforma.  Is that 35 

correct, Dr. Branstetter? 36 

 37 

DR. BRANSTETTER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Bob, this is a draft until 38 

-- Obviously we need your approval and we need the South 39 

Atlantic Council’s approval and this must go out for a thirty-40 

day public comment period, plus it needs to be reviewed by the 41 

Coast Guard and the states and everyone else. 42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, show that I abstained on this vote, 44 

please. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a motion on the floor.  Any other 47 

objections to the motion?  Hearing none, the motion passes.  Who 48 
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else has some -- Mr. Gill and then Kay. 1 

 2 

DISCUSSION OF RESEARCH SET-ASIDE PROGRAM 3 

 4 

MR. GILL:  I wanted to bring to the attention of the council 5 

something the Mid-Atlantic is doing that I think we ought to 6 

consider.  That is they have a research set-aside program and I 7 

don’t intend to get into the details of this program at this 8 

time, but briefly, what they do is they take -- Well, let me 9 

read some of it. 10 

 11 

It was created by their council as a vehicle to fund research 12 

projects through the sale of research quota and so what they 13 

effectively do each year, and this program has been in operation 14 

for about ten years, is take some of the TAC and sell a portion 15 

of that TAC to fund research projects. 16 

 17 

If I calculated correctly, their 2011 value was somewhere 18 

between $3 and $4 million and so you’re talking some significant 19 

amount and the number of research projects is rather 20 

substantial. 21 

 22 

What I would like to request, and I can put it in the form of a 23 

motion if the council desires, is that we request staff to 24 

develop a white paper to advise us of this research set-aside 25 

program and see where it might fit or not fit with our programs 26 

in the Gulf of Mexico.   27 

 28 

I don’t think we need a motion, Mr. Chairman, unless the council 29 

thinks so, but I think it’s something that we ought to at least 30 

consider.  I don’t think it’s the highest priority project and 31 

so however it fits with staff’s workload and then bring it back 32 

and we can take a look and see if we want to go further. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I would prefer not to put it in the form of a 35 

motion at this time either, because we haven’t had any -- 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I can help you out, if you will recognize me.  38 

We’ve actually already done this.  We did this a year ago, 39 

because I made the same motion that you just made and staff put 40 

the paper together.  I told them all about how it works in the 41 

Mid-Atlantic and they even talked with the Mid-Atlantic. 42 

 43 

Dr. Bortone gave us a report.  I assume it was Dr. Bortone.  Dr. 44 

Bortone, do you remember what I’m talking about?  The council 45 

voted not to do it and so it’s already been done.  It was about 46 

a year ago. 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Number one, Mr. Gill, for research purposes, we’ve 1 

got research projects of all types going on for fish, to collect 2 

fish and so on, and it doesn’t come -- It doesn’t count against 3 

any quota, to my knowledge, and so why would we want to put a 4 

set-aside of whatever group’s quota for research when an 5 

accepted research project that already allows for the taking of 6 

fish and it would not count against anyone’s quota? 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Perret, as you know, research projects are 9 

constrained by funding availability and this is a funding 10 

vehicle that would allow additional research projects to collect 11 

data, which we all agree is sparse, lacking, or insufficient. 12 

 13 

It helps augment one of our major problems and how we construct 14 

it, I don’t know and I don’t know whether the program proposed 15 

would be something I would favor or not, but conceptually, it 16 

seems to me that we ought to look at it and see if it’s 17 

something that we might consider appropriate here. 18 

 19 

For example, one possibility would be to fund it via any TAC 20 

increase and set aside part of the TAC increase, so that we’re 21 

not impacting the stakeholders currently, but we would take a 22 

portion -- I don’t know, but if we don’t explore it, we’ll never 23 

know. 24 

 25 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Gill, you would have had me if you would have 26 

said it would be an opportunity to fund a sea turtle stock 27 

assessment program, but you did not use that example.  I suggest 28 

to you there’s so much money floating around right now for 29 

research that we don’t need other funds to do research at this 30 

time.  There’s plenty available. 31 

 32 

MR. GRIMES:  Just to some of what Mr. Perret said, research, 33 

scientific research, is not subject to Magnuson.  It’s not 34 

considered fishing and we don’t regulate it, but I think there’s 35 

merit to the idea of looking at just how much harvest is 36 

occurring via research and I think that when we do stock 37 

assessments, we’re required to look at all of the harvest. 38 

 39 

I wouldn’t necessarily view it as taking away from someone’s 40 

allocation, because when you look at the stock, you take into 41 

account all sources of mortality on the stock and the quotas 42 

that would come out at the end would be factored or at least 43 

would consider all the mortality associated with research that 44 

would, say, come off the top before you divvy up the rest of it. 45 

 46 

I know we’ve had some discussions in the Regional Office that 47 

perhaps we need to take a more comprehensive look at all sources 48 
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of mortality.  How many research projects do we have going on in 1 

addition to the quotas that are issued to the respective sectors 2 

for red snapper, let’s say?  How many other thousands of fish 3 

are killed as a result of research and how is all that factored 4 

into the stock assessment?  Thank you. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Mr. Teehan, you have an additional 7 

item under Other Business? 8 

 9 

DISCUSSION OF MOVING TOPIC OF SECTOR SEPARATION TO OCTOBER 10 

COUNCIL MEETING 11 

 12 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and yes.  I have two 13 

things.  One is a piece of trivia and one is a request.  The 14 

trivia is that it’s been brought to my attention, in a shameless 15 

effort for attention and recognition, that Phil Steele is the 16 

one who did the skimmer trawl study for Florida in order to 17 

incorporate TEDs. 18 

 19 

On a business note, in public testimony yesterday, we received a 20 

request to not conduct an agenda item for the August meeting 21 

that would be in Austin regarding sector separation and that 22 

that be moved to the October meeting in New Orleans, which is 23 

more centrally located. 24 

 25 

I don’t think that’s an unreasonable request and I don’t think I 26 

need to make a motion.  I just wanted to see if we can do that, 27 

accommodate that. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I certainly concur and is there consensus 30 

amongst council members that we move the sector separation 31 

discussion to New Orleans, where it’s closer to the people 32 

impacted? 33 

 34 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The only problem that I have with that, Bob, is 35 

we keep moving it off and moving it off and we’re setting ACLs 36 

and AMs and all this other stuff and these guys have come to us 37 

for the last almost two years about this and it just simply 38 

keeps delaying it. 39 

 40 

If we delay it until the next one, I don’t think we have another 41 

council meeting until the next year.  If we don’t do it in 42 

Austin, then the last one I think for this year is probably New 43 

Orleans.  I’m not sure.  I don’t have my calendar in front of 44 

me.  Effectively, we wouldn’t even be able to do anything the 45 

next year and that’s my reason to not move it to New Orleans. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  In response, and I would defer to Dr. Bortone, but it 48 
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seems to me that the plate we’ve got for August is pretty well 1 

jammed up already and so it de facto is going to slide to 2 

October whether we want it to or not.   3 

 4 

We have higher priorities on the plate that are going to occupy 5 

all our time and so I don’t think it’s a questionable issue.  6 

It’s going to happen whether we wish it or not, unless we want 7 

to drop something in priority. 8 

 9 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We could have another meeting.  We could move 10 

back to six meetings. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Despite some 13 

objections, I feel like the consensus is to move it to New 14 

Orleans, but, Kay, if you would like to make a motion, we would 15 

formally address it. 16 

 17 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I would like to make a motion that we leave the -18 

- I’m not going to call it sector separation, but it is sector 19 

allocation discussion -- He’s calling it sector separation, but 20 

it’s really not.  It’s sector quotas. 21 

 22 

MR. GILL:  No, that’s not what he brought up, Kay. 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Tell me the difference between sector separation 25 

then and sector quotas.  I want Mr. Teehan to tell me the 26 

difference. 27 

 28 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If we’re going to have a discussion, we need a 29 

motion. 30 

 31 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I want to make a motion that we leave the sector 32 

separation/sector quotas to the Austin meeting. 33 

 34 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second? 35 

 36 

MR. ANSON:  I’ll second it for discussion. 37 

 38 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Now I would like, if you don’t mind, Mr. Chairman 39 

-- Everybody started this great big thing and we had the meeting 40 

and what does sector separation really mean and are you going 41 

into catch share and all that. 42 

 43 

That’s not what -- They came back to us at the very next council 44 

meeting and said that’s not what we’re talking about.  We’re not 45 

talking about allocations as far as catch shares or fish tags or 46 

anything.  All we’re asking is that you give the charter for-47 

hire a quota, the private recreational a quota, and then you’ve 48 
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got the commercial quota. 1 

 2 

To them, that’s really what sector separation meant to them, 3 

those that asked us to look at it and to consider it.  It got 4 

all blown out of proportion simply because it was called sector 5 

separation and what all of the rumors and discussion that caused 6 

so much heartburn for everybody.  I think it’s appropriate and 7 

as a matter of a fact, it even talks about sector quotas in 8 

Magnuson. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Are we ready to vote? 11 

 12 

MS. WILLIAMS:  If you would, I would like Mr. Teehan though to 13 

tell me why he thinks sector separation and sector quotas are 14 

different. 15 

 16 

MR. TEEHAN:  Well, Kay, historically we’ve been pigeonholing 17 

this whole discussion as sector separation and it deals with the 18 

recreational sector wanting to split some aspects of the 19 

recreational fishery and wanting to split for-hire away from 20 

private and make them two separate entities. 21 

 22 

That’s what we’ve been discussing for a couple of years now.  It 23 

comes as a request from the charter industry and the for-hire 24 

industry.  Now, I also understand that there’s not consensus 25 

within that sector, but my whole request was based upon a public 26 

request that if we have a sector separation discussion in August 27 

that it be moved to a more central location and that is what my 28 

request was based on. 29 

 30 

I don’t understand what you’re quibbling about over the 31 

definition of sector separation.  Ultimately, it would be a 32 

quota, but first, you have to separate the sectors, before you 33 

can assign quotas to them. 34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s vote this up or down.  All in favor of 36 

the motion signify by raising your hand; all those opposed.  The 37 

motion fails.  Are there any other items of new business before 38 

we adjourn for lunch?  Kay, we’re not going to have a long lunch 39 

after all. 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Mr. Chairman, I asked at the very first, before 42 

anyone else asked to put their stuff on the agenda and I just 43 

sort of take offense to that and I’m sorry. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, I’m recognizing you.  I asked for other 46 

items and please go ahead. 47 

 48 
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DISCUSSION OF PROVIDING RÉSUMÉS OF SSC MEMBERS 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  So noted.  I said that I had three or four other 3 

things that I wanted to discuss.  One was we had a request from 4 

the public and they were inquiring about our SSC and they wanted 5 

to know who were they and what was their background.  It had to 6 

do with our Ecosystem SSC. 7 

 8 

They were told that they would need to file a Freedom of 9 

Information Act in order to get that.  I don’t know if that’s 10 

necessary and so I wanted to see if, and I guess Shep could 11 

answer this or Roy or any of the council members -- We tell who 12 

the council members are and we give some background on them and 13 

that’s all this person was asking for, is who sits on your 14 

Ecosystem SSC. 15 

 16 

He was in that field and he had a lot of knowledge about it and 17 

he had been following this council and he was just inquiring for 18 

information of who sat on it and could you give me just a little 19 

bit of information on their background and is there anything 20 

that prevents us from putting something like that on our 21 

website? 22 

 23 

He’s not asking how much money do they make or anything like 24 

that.  He’s just asking for some information or publications or 25 

just something that helps him know who they are and some 26 

background on them.  Are we allowed to do that, Roy or Shep? 27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  I just pulled up our website and I’m looking at 29 

the list of people who are on the Ecosystem SSC right now.  It’s 30 

posted on the website. 31 

 32 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Steve, do you remember sending him the Freedom of 33 

Information? 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Can I speak to that?  Yes, he asked 36 

for résumés and we do have résumés, but they would require a 37 

Freedom of Information to do that.  The information is on his 38 

website.  He said it would take him days to do a Google search 39 

to find the people and it would probably take a half-an-hour to 40 

do that. 41 

 42 

We’ve had these requests before and we’ve always indicated -- I 43 

personally think we should have those, but unfortunately, it’s 44 

our past precedent of how we’ve handled these requests is that 45 

we do not forward the résumés of the memberships. 46 

 47 

MR. GRIMES:  I would advise you that they don’t have to say this 48 
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is a Freedom of Information Act request.  If they ask for the 1 

information, that, in and of itself, is a request for 2 

information that should be viewed as a Freedom of Information 3 

Act request and we should be following the regulations and 4 

providing it.   5 

 6 

Now, we can charge them for copies and all that and then we can 7 

withhold some stuff, but we can’t say no, you don’t get it 8 

unless you use the magic words “FOIA”. 9 

 10 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I don’t quite understand that.  He 11 

asked for that information and I responded that he would have to 12 

file a Freedom of Information Act through our office.  He was 13 

familiar with this process, because he’s done this before, and I 14 

advised him that if he only wanted to know about the information 15 

of the people, it would be simpler to Google rather than go 16 

through the month’s process of that, but you’re suggesting we 17 

should have automatically filed through a Freedom of Information 18 

Act? 19 

 20 

MR. GRIMES:  When he contacted you and requested the 21 

information, that was a request for information that could 22 

easily be viewed as under the Freedom of Information Act.  I’m 23 

going to say FOIA so I have to stop repeating that phrase, but 24 

the law under FOIA is clear. 25 

 26 

You don’t have to say this is a FOIA and I want this 27 

information.  If they request the information, that is a FOIA 28 

request and should be treated as such and we provide the 29 

information.  Now, in a lot of instances, we don’t want to jump 30 

through all the hoops and we just give the stuff out or we post 31 

it and say here’s the information and let’s not trigger all the 32 

specific administrative process. 33 

 34 

MR. SAPP:  To take this out of the legal arena and think in 35 

terms of what’s practicable and reasonable, would it not make 36 

sense for us, since we do place so much importance on the work 37 

of the SSCs, to instruct our staff, in particular Emily and 38 

Charlene, to include something on the website that gives just a 39 

little bit of information about who these people are that serve 40 

on the SSCs and what the background is? 41 

 42 

It doesn’t have to be personal information or salaries or 43 

anything else, but just so that the public knows who it is 44 

that’s making these decisions. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It seems to me that would solve the problem. 47 

 48 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  My understanding is that if the SSC 1 

says it’s okay for us to do that, we can do that, but I’m not 2 

sure we can go ahead and put up that information about them.  I 3 

guess I will ask Shep if he thinks that we can do that.  4 

Actually, I think my advice to him was the best and that is just 5 

go online and Google him and find out anything you want, but 6 

that’s -- 7 

 8 

MS. WILLIAMS:  We do pay them. 9 

 10 

MR. GRIMES:  I think the paying them is irrelevant, but I guess 11 

I would be concerned if there were any personally-identifiable 12 

information on the résumés, if somebody put in their Social 13 

Security number or something like that.  Obviously we don’t want 14 

to make that available and so I think you would go through it, 15 

but as long as there weren’t any kind of personally-identifiable 16 

information or confidential-type information, I think we could 17 

put them online without a problem. 18 

 19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Most of us are egotists, like Dr. 20 

Shipp, and so we wouldn’t mind having our information out there 21 

and so what I can do is ask the SSC for a short bio and if they 22 

provide it, we would post it.  If they don’t, we wouldn’t post 23 

it. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you for the flattering comment.  Kay, 26 

what’s your next one? 27 

 28 

DISCUSSION OF INCREASING TO SIX COUNCIL MEETINGS A YEAR 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I sent a message back to him and told him that I 31 

would ask and so thank you for your consideration and I assume 32 

he can look forward to seeing that posted sometime in the 33 

future. 34 

 35 

The second one had to do with our meetings and when we are 36 

holding our council meetings.  I feel that we need to go back to 37 

six meetings.  We have a lot of work put on not only us, but the 38 

staff and Roy’s staff. 39 

 40 

We’re putting documents after documents -- We used to do a 41 

couple and we’re doing a lot more than a couple.  They are more 42 

involved than ever.  They used to not be involved at all until 43 

pretty much we got through and they went through it and they’re 44 

probably doing over 50 percent of the work or more on all of our 45 

documents and they’re being swamped. 46 

 47 

This idea of taking six meetings and reducing it to five 48 
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meetings and then taking a day away, we’ve got so much crammed 1 

into a short period and it was my understanding when we did that 2 

that we were going to take and spread those meetings out across 3 

twelve months.  We didn’t do that.  We just took a meeting away 4 

and pretty much went and made it through about nine months, all 5 

of our meeting dates.   6 

 7 

I would suggest that we go back to the six meetings a year and 8 

not have a meeting during snapper season, especially when it’s 9 

only like thirty-eight or forty-eight days and that’s why you 10 

don’t have more people here at this meeting, because they had to 11 

work, and give some consideration to that. 12 

 13 

Also, allow more days for our APs and more days for our SSCs, 14 

because our SSC says very often they get there and they get 15 

information when they get there and they haven’t even had time 16 

to look at it and so they’re trying to work and look at 17 

additional information and they’re being rushed. 18 

 19 

If there’s some way that we can accommodate our APs more time, 20 

instead of four hours one day and four hours the next day, and 21 

also our SSCs.  They make such decisions that affect us, the 22 

last thing we want to do is rush them.  I think that’s something 23 

that we should consider and if you want me to make a motion, I 24 

can make a motion.  I would like to hear some discussion of how 25 

some of the other members feel. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We can’t really have discussion unless we have 28 

a motion. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’ll make a motion that we go back to six 31 

meetings a year. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there a second? 34 

 35 

MR. SAPP:  I’ll second it so we can have the discussion. 36 

 37 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Okay.  I’m not through.  Six meetings a year and 38 

allow more time for the AP and SSC meetings and not have a 39 

council meeting during recreational snapper season. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think we would need to separate those.  Your 42 

second item is part of the rationale that would be in the 43 

discussion and be implicit in the motion if it passed, but if 44 

you want to leave it as is, that’s fine. 45 

 46 

MR. PERRET:  My gosh, we do enough damage in five meetings and I 47 

hate to see what we’re going to do in six.  I agree with 48 
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probably the APs and S&S need more time.  I’m not convinced we 1 

need for time for six meetings, Kay. 2 

 3 

It seems to me, and I’m not going to make a substitute motion, 4 

but it seems to me the appropriate thing to do is to have the 5 

Regional Administrator and his appropriate staff meet with Dr. 6 

Bortone and his appropriate staff and the chair and vice chair 7 

and anybody else that’s a major player in meetings and needs and 8 

so on and come back with a recommendation of what it would cost 9 

and all that and either yea or nay for another meeting. 10 

 11 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Another meeting, I think it’s around $55,000 for 12 

a council meeting. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Ed, who is not going 15 

to be involved? 16 

 17 

MR. SAPP:  In that case, my opinion ought to mean more, because 18 

it won’t affect me personally, right? 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Absolutely.  You’re totally objective. 21 

 22 

MR. SAPP:  I would not support moving to six meetings.  I think 23 

we can do what we need to do in five, but just the fact that 24 

we’re having the discussion about a possibility of needing to go 25 

to six points out that we probably shouldn’t at this point even 26 

be considering doing it in four. 27 

 28 

I understand that we still continue to have those discussions 29 

behind the scenes and I know that we’ve had the discussions here 30 

in council and the instructions that we’ve given have been that 31 

we remain at five, but the notion of going to four does not seem 32 

to make any sense to me.  33 

 34 

It might be that things will change when we get through all the 35 

time-required actions that we’re working on now, but for at 36 

least the foreseeable future, I think we ought to table any 37 

discussion of cutting down the number of council meetings. 38 

 39 

MR. TEEHAN:  I agree with Mr. Sapp on that.  I think six is 40 

stretching it.  Five is probably adequate now, but four would 41 

definitely not be. 42 

 43 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion? 44 

 45 

DR. ABELE:  I think my sense, as a newcomer, is that if we could 46 

get a fifth day on some of the meetings, that would allow us -- 47 

We really didn’t finish at the last council meeting everything 48 
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we needed to. 1 

 2 

MS. WILLIAMS:  That would be perfectly okay with me.  I’ve heard 3 

the same rumors about staff wanting us to go to four meetings a 4 

year and as you said, the last meeting we had to work through 5 

lunch and we were rushed and the tension was high around the 6 

table, trying to rush through and rush through, and it’s been 7 

like that for the last couple of years. 8 

 9 

I would be fine and that’s why I felt like I really didn’t need 10 

a motion and that we were just talking about it and that’s why I 11 

made the motion, because the chairman required me to do so to 12 

have some conversation, but I think if we’re going to have the 13 

five meetings, at least maybe go to five days, something to give 14 

us more time and not have it -- Stretch those five meetings out 15 

over a twelve-month period and not have it during red snapper 16 

season. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  I think no matter when we hold meetings, it’s 19 

during someone’s open season.  I’m concerned about the last 20 

phrase, the red snapper season, especially if we go to a weekend 21 

season in the fall.  We won’t have a council meeting all fall 22 

long. 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was relating that to a thirty-eight or forty-25 

eight-day season and not to the weekends.  Like I said, we don’t 26 

even have to have a motion, but really, this was just discussion 27 

so that Dr. Bortone got some feel for how we felt about setting 28 

the meetings. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, since we’ve had the discussion, would you 31 

withdraw your motion? 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Absolutely. 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  I was going to also point out we’ll never hold a 36 

meeting in Texas during snapper season. 37 

 38 

MR. RIECHERS:  I don’t think I’ll comment to Mr. Fischer’s 39 

comment, but I want to make sure that before we leave this 40 

conversation that we don’t automatically hold five-day meetings.  41 

We hold meetings that allow us to do the business that we have 42 

at hand. 43 

 44 

We can always fill up five days, but that may not be with the 45 

business that we really need to get done and we leave that up to 46 

the Chair and Dr. Bortone, to figure out how long those meetings 47 

need to be in regards to the activity that we need to get done 48 
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in that particular week. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Agreed. 3 

 4 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I work with Trish and we’ve tried, 5 

when we can get five days scheduled -- Again, exactly that.  We 6 

look at the schedule and see how much work we have to do, 7 

talking with the committee chairs, and work it that way, but we 8 

can’t always get five days.  Understand that, but when we can, 9 

we’ve tried to do that. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, did you have another item you wanted to 12 

address? 13 

 14 

DISCUSSION OF SEDAR SCHEDULE 15 

 16 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes, thank you.  This subject matter came up as 17 

far as SEDAR the other day, on Monday.  I was talking about we 18 

were supposed to have a vermilion SEDAR meeting and it was going 19 

to be a standard.  Shortly after that, I got an email from Steve 20 

that said no, that that was changed on May 23rd and it was no 21 

longer a standard. 22 

 23 

I think it was changed to an update.  I thought Roy had some 24 

concerns about vermilion and so I couldn’t understand why that 25 

was changed to an update and when I had inquired about it, 26 

before Steve ever sent me the email, I had asked Julie Neer and 27 

she, for some reason, thought I was talking about king mackerel 28 

and she said that this was discussed at the SEDAR Steering 29 

Committee in May. 30 

 31 

Steve said the Gulf did not see any need to hold a king 32 

benchmark in 2012 and proposed that it be considered an update 33 

sometime in the future and, of course, the South Atlantic was 34 

concerned about Spanish and cobia and so they moved that up or 35 

something for 2012. 36 

 37 

I wrote her back and said no, I was talking about vermilion and 38 

I think amberjack that showed a standard being done in 2011 and 39 

that Dr. Bortone had sent something out and said no, there had 40 

been a change in plans and that they were just going to do an 41 

update version.  Because of Roy’s remark on the vermilion, I 42 

couldn’t understand that. 43 

 44 

She also said, like I said, that we were supposed to have -- It 45 

said I thought you were talking about the change in king, but 46 

yes, in 2011, both the vermilion and gray triggerfish standard 47 

assessments were changed to updates at the request of the Gulf 48 



218 

 

by Rick Leard. 1 

 2 

That happened on a conference call held in early March and that 3 

was all the Gulf, as those species are not in a joint plan with 4 

the South Atlantic, and that is final.  The Science Center is 5 

already working on those updates and you should get them later 6 

this year. 7 

 8 

The 2012 species are also final and so for the Gulf, you guys 9 

will be getting benchmark assessments for cobia and Spanish 10 

mackerel and a standard assessment for red snapper and so I was 11 

concerned about that, because I knew that you all were wanting a 12 

benchmark for red snapper. 13 

 14 

It’s my understanding that we receive funding for eight meetings 15 

in the Gulf, four benchmarks and four updates or standards or 16 

something to that effect, and that this work was in addition to 17 

the normal I guess SEDAR stuff that they do and that’s why we’ve 18 

got our own SEDAR person, although I don’t recall us having any 19 

SEDAR meetings for just the Gulf here recently. 20 

 21 

I know we have the funding and it shows the breakdown and it 22 

says an update basically doesn’t cost anything, because all 23 

they’re doing is just plugging the landings in.  It’s really the 24 

standards and the benchmarks, but even those aren’t real 25 

expensive.  She had all that broke down and one was around 26 

$16,000 and one was around thirty-something-thousand. 27 

 28 

My only concern was I hope that we’re not just going to do 29 

updates and that it’s not already decided to where these stocks 30 

that we do have concerns, like the vermilion and all, updates 31 

isn’t going to give us anything.  We’re going to need at least a 32 

standard and most definitely a benchmark.  Are we out of time by 33 

what she said as far as it’s final and it’s over?  I guess maybe 34 

that’s to Bonnie. 35 

 36 

DR. PONWITH:  The decisions on the type of assessment that’s 37 

being done in 2011 is absolutely final, because we are in the 38 

middle of that process right now.  I want to correct some 39 

erroneous assumptions, first of all. 40 

 41 

An update is not an inferior product.  A stock assessment update 42 

is a high-quality stock assessment product.  A standard 43 

assessment is a high-quality stock assessment product, as is a 44 

benchmark assessment. 45 

 46 

There are very distinct differences between the update and a 47 

benchmark and a standard and a benchmark and just the thumbnail 48 
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sketch of what those differences are is a benchmark stock 1 

assessment, everything is on the table.  You can add new data 2 

streams and you can change the model that you choose to use to 3 

conduct the assessment.  You can change the assumptions that 4 

you’ve used in the past to conduct the stock assessment and so 5 

it’s basically starting from scratch using the last benchmark as 6 

a starting point. 7 

 8 

A standard assessment, you can make changes, but those changes 9 

are constrained by the terms of reference and so it allows more 10 

latitude, but it’s not a full benchmark stock assessment in the 11 

scope of that latitude.  That process runs through the SEDAR 12 

process in a way that’s similar to the benchmark. 13 

 14 

The update is conducted by the Southeast Fisheries Science 15 

Center exclusively and the reason is because in an update stock 16 

assessment, there are no assumptions that are made or changed 17 

from the last time around. 18 

 19 

It’s basically taking exactly the same stock assessment model 20 

that was used the last time, using all the same assumptions that 21 

were used the last time, adding the terminal year of data in, in 22 

terms of the landings and in terms of the indices of abundance 23 

from the fishery-independent work, and rerunning it again to do 24 

a refresh on that stock assessment.  That’s what is being done 25 

in 2011. 26 

 27 

We’re going through some growing pains in the SEDAR process, 28 

because we are in a squeeze right now and the squeeze is this.  29 

Everybody wants the most supreme product we possibly can to be 30 

making these very difficult management decisions, but at the 31 

same time, we also want fresh stock assessments on every single 32 

stock that we’re managing. 33 

 34 

I for one don’t think that’s an unreasonable desire.  This is 35 

the gold standard and this is where we want to be.  To get there 36 

is going to take some work.  We’re not at a position where we’re 37 

there right now. 38 

 39 

We have added new stock assessment scientists to the Southeast 40 

Fisheries Science Center staff.  Those are people to work on HMS 41 

species.  They work on Gulf of Mexico species and they work on 42 

South Atlantic and they work on Caribbean and they also work on 43 

the tuna treaty, the ICCAT species. 44 

 45 

We have a broad scope of data demands, of stock assessment 46 

demands, and what we’re trying to do is balance our efforts 47 

among those competing demands. 48 
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 1 

For next year, red snapper was placed on the agenda as a 2 

standard stock assessment.  As I’ve already stated, red snapper 3 

is the most complex stock assessment that’s done in the Gulf of 4 

Mexico.  To convert that to a standard to a benchmark is a non-5 

trivial exercise.  It could only be done if we cut something 6 

else from the list in 2012. 7 

 8 

Right now, I am struggling being able to meet the demands for 9 

what’s already on the plate for 2012 and I’m probably going to 10 

have to call a meeting of the SEDAR Steering Committee as an 11 

interim meeting to talk this over. 12 

 13 

Part of the problem of this is that the councils meet and 14 

discuss what their priorities are and put those priorities 15 

forward.  Those are the priorities from a management 16 

perspective, what stocks do we really think we need to know an 17 

updated status on. 18 

 19 

Another angle to look at this from is the from the scientific 20 

standpoint.  If we see very dramatic changes in indices of 21 

abundance, either fishery-dependent or independent, it raises 22 

questions of is something happening in this fishery that we need 23 

to get on top of quickly and it creates a demand from the 24 

science side, saying we think we need to address this because 25 

something is happening. 26 

 27 

A third angle that we would approach this from is just the mere 28 

logistics.  To do a stock assessment, especially the more 29 

sophisticated ones that are age-based, we have to have our 30 

biological samples up to speed and so if we make a change and 31 

say let’s do this stock instead of that stock, behind the scenes 32 

our biologists in the Gulf of Mexico, the ones that are working 33 

for the states and for the federal government, are madly working 34 

on processing those otoliths and those gonads to get the 35 

biological data ready for the stock assessment. 36 

 37 

If we say we changed our mind and let’s do this one instead of 38 

that one, they have to go back and clear the backlog of the 39 

otoliths that may have accumulated while we were focused on 40 

another species. 41 

 42 

My proposal to avoid having a train wreck in the future is to 43 

pull together a comprehensive group of people representing 44 

management interests, the science interests, and the logistics 45 

interests and having a conference call to discuss what’s on the 46 

list in order of priority from each of those perspectives and 47 

then discuss what is technically executable from each of those 48 
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perspectives and then use that to groundtruth what the full 1 

council desires and then take that to the SEDAR Steering 2 

Committee, so that we don’t trigger the law of unexpected 3 

consequences when we make a decision that at the time seemed 4 

like a rational decision. 5 

 6 

This year in the Gulf of Mexico, for 2012, I’ll have four stock 7 

assessment scientists who are trained and run through their 8 

journeyman process that are capable of running full stock 9 

assessments. 10 

 11 

The problem is that we’ve got more than four stock assessments 12 

on the table already for the Gulf of Mexico.  If we convert red 13 

snapper to a benchmark, that creates a disparity that’s even 14 

broader. 15 

 16 

The good news is that in 2013, because of the hiring that we’ve 17 

done and the opportunity to take those rookies through the 18 

process once, I will be bumped up to seven stock assessment 19 

scientists and so next year, next year meaning 2013, we’re much 20 

better positioned to have a more robust plate of combinations of 21 

benchmark, standard, and update.  I guess I would stop at that 22 

point and allow you to ask questions. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you. 25 

 26 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Bonnie, where I had the concern is it looked like 27 

to me that the Gulf was losing out, because I thought in the 28 

past this council, of course, would tell the Science Center and 29 

they would discuss it and say these are our priorities and this 30 

is number one, number two, and number three.  That’s the way 31 

that I recall that we’ve always done it in the past. 32 

 33 

Then when I saw that the vermilion and the triggerfish that was 34 

scheduled for a standard was decided on to we’ll just do an 35 

update and then where I saw where king was scheduled for a 36 

benchmark and we said we can just do an update on that one, it 37 

seemed like all the Gulf was getting, and not saying that we’re 38 

not getting something with updates, but it just looked like we 39 

were giving up the benchmarks and the standards for updates and 40 

that that’s all that we were getting. 41 

 42 

When you say you’ve got to go back and you’ve got to cut 43 

something, if we originally had king in 2012 scheduled for a 44 

benchmark and we said no, we can just do an update on that one, 45 

that’s not real important to us, but yet we’ve told you that we 46 

want a benchmark on red snapper, I would think that alone 47 

shifted that balance already.  Am I incorrect? 48 
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 1 

DR. PONWITH:  Certainly every decision to add something results 2 

in a decision to subtract something, but by virtue of the fact 3 

that the 2012 slate already exceeds what we’re capable of in 4 

terms of leads is indicative of the fact that things have been 5 

added and so it’s a matter of -- The thing that we want is good 6 

stock assessments on all stocks and refresh rates on those stock 7 

assessments to keep pace with changes in the ecosystem.  That’s 8 

the goal that we’re aspiring to. 9 

 10 

The situation that we get into is let’s assess a stock that 11 

we’ve never assessed before and after weighing it carefully, 12 

we’re like no, we would rather reassess a stock that we’ve 13 

already assessed that’s on a rebuilding plan to see if it’s 14 

tracking that rebuilding plan and do that sooner rather than 15 

wait to add the new stock assessment. 16 

 17 

This is a tension that will exist forever, because no matter how 18 

much we can do, there will always be a demand for more and so 19 

what that requires of us is to be really, really smart in the 20 

way we plan these schedules, to make sure that we’re assigning 21 

the proper level of stock assessment to each of these to get us 22 

through as many of these as we possibly can. 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Just one last comment, but I thought that that’s 25 

what the council had done.  I thought the council had put the 26 

species that they felt like was important to the Gulf and what 27 

they needed benchmarks or standard for and that it was just 28 

changed to an update. 29 

 30 

I just felt like that the Gulf somehow was giving -- It looked 31 

like the Gulf was giving and giving and giving as far as where 32 

it comes to tradeoffs between benchmarks, standards, and updates 33 

is all and I was not aware that we were even doing that and so 34 

when we make a suggestion as a council, it would be helpful, 35 

when you run into these kind of problems and maybe I’ve missed 36 

it somewhere, but I wasn’t aware that we were just doing those 37 

types of tradeoffs is all.  Thank you. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  Do you have one more item, Kay, or are you done? 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m going to let it go and thank you. 42 

 43 

DISCUSSION OF CONVENING AD HOC RED SNAPPER IFQ REVIEW PANEL 44 

 45 

MR. GILL:  I have one item that I think we heard in public 46 

testimony relative to the red snapper IFQ review panel and I 47 

guess it would be helpful for the public to discuss what the 48 
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intent is on convening those to initiate their review of the red 1 

snapper IFQ program.  Dr. Bortone, can you comment? 2 

 3 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I lost you. 4 

 5 

MR. GILL:  The Ad Hoc Red Snapper IFQ Review Panel has been 6 

formed.  I don’t know that we have a charge.  I don’t remember 7 

that, but the question is what is the intent for convening them? 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  I talked with Assane and I believe 10 

we’ll have that before August and we’ll be developing that 11 

charge with the chair, committee chair. 12 

 13 

DISCUSSION OF CIRCLE HOOK PRESENTATION 14 

 15 

MR. GILL:  Very good and thank you.  The other question I would 16 

like to raise is the circle hook presentation which was 17 

preempted during the committee meeting and that has been sent 18 

around to the council and so now I guess the question is whether 19 

the council feels the need to schedule the presentation or 20 

whether the presentation and report suffice or what the council 21 

would like to do with it, if anything, at this point.  It sounds 22 

like it suffices to me and I see no comments. 23 

 24 

MS. WILLIAMS:  The presentation report -- I missed what you were 25 

saying. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  The circle hook symposium report, which has recently 28 

been sent by Karen Burns, that will suffice at this time.  Are 29 

there any other items under Other Business before this council? 30 

 31 

DR. CRABTREE:  I have one thing I need to brief you on if you 32 

would like to go ahead and do that. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Absolutely. 35 

 36 

BRIEFING ON REPORT OF FISHERIES AND MARINE MAMMALS 37 

 38 

DR. CRABTREE:  This has to do with the list of fisheries.  We’re 39 

required annually to publish a list of U.S. commercial fisheries 40 

and categorize the level of injury and mortality of marine 41 

mammals incident to these fisheries. 42 

 43 

Headquarters is currently preparing a proposal for 2012 and 44 

that’s likely to publish sometime this month and there will be a 45 

public comment period on it, but I don’t believe we will meet 46 

again during the public comment period. 47 

 48 
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There’s one change in it that is a southeastern fishery and that 1 

is the stone crab pot fishery is being elevated from a Category 2 

3 to a Category 2 fishery.  Category 3 means no interactions and 3 

Category 2 means there are occasional interactions and that’s a 4 

result of some stranding data that indicated dolphin 5 

mortalities, potentially. 6 

 7 

Apparently at least two dolphin stocks, Biscayne Bay stock and 8 

the Gulf estuarine stock, may have had encounters in the 9 

fisheries.  By analogy, the blue crab fishery is a Category 2 10 

fishery as well. 11 

 12 

What it means is that they will be required to carry a 13 

certificate on board which authorizes incidental takes of marine 14 

mammals and fishing, they will continue to be required to report 15 

injury and mortalities that occur by fisheries and the public 16 

comment period on the rule will be thirty to forty-five days and 17 

so depending on when it published, it could be over by our 18 

August council meeting. 19 

 20 

The plan now would be to try and have a final rule published in 21 

December and effective by January 1, which I think is what the 22 

statute requires.  I don’t think this has any onerous or 23 

burdensome consequences.  As I said, it’s already at a category 24 

that the blue crab fishery falls under, but I wanted to make you 25 

aware of that. 26 

 27 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree. 28 

 29 

MR. TEEHAN:  I think all that’s required of the states, and this 30 

would be Florida at this point, is to supply information on 31 

fishermen within the fishery.  Am I correct?  32 

 33 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would have to check with people who are 34 

specialists on it, Bill. 35 

 36 

MR. TEEHAN:  Okay.  Given that by then, by January, Florida will 37 

have management of the fishery, it sounds like it’s something 38 

that needs to come to the state.  Am I correct on that? 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think that’s something that our offices 41 

probably ought to coordinate on. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  Dr. Bortone, you had an item? 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Just a comment.  I had put on the 46 

agenda a report on GOMA, the Gulf of Mexico Alliance, but I had 47 

already presented most of that during other parts of the 48 
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meeting. 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  Anybody have any other -- 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I was just reviewing the email on those other 5 

three species.  I disagree with that first sentence that comes 6 

out of there.  It says to accommodate historical landings.  We 7 

didn’t choose historical landings and so that does not fit with 8 

these three species.  I don’t know if you all have read it, but 9 

that’s how it starts off, that we’re doing it to accommodate 10 

historical catches, and we’re not. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Kay, I believe that was a proposed motion that never 13 

came up and so it never was addressed.  Does anyone have any 14 

other business? 15 

 16 

MR. PERRET:  What time are we starting? 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  One o’clock we’ll come back to the table and we’ll 19 

very prompt.  We do have presentations to start and so we’ll 20 

recess until one o’clock this afternoon.   21 

 22 

(Whereupon, the meeting recessed at 11:20 a.m., June 10, 2011.) 23 

 24 

- - - 25 

 26 

June 10, 2011 27 

 28 

FRIDAY AFTERNOON SESSION 29 

 30 

- - - 31 

 32 

The Full Council of the Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management 33 

Council reconvened at the Marriott Beachside, Key West, Florida, 34 

Friday afternoon, June 10, 2011, and was called to order at 1:00 35 

p.m. by Chairman Bob Shipp. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’re back in session and we’re going to start 38 

this afternoon, as per our agenda, with presentations and I’m 39 

going to pass it to Roy to make the introduction of our first 40 

presenter. 41 

 42 

MR. STEELE:  Mr. Chairman, Ms. Deb Lambert from our Office of 43 

Sustainable Fisheries at Headquarters is here to give that 44 

presentation on National Standard 10. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Steele. 47 

 48 



226 

 

PRESENTATION ON REVISED NATIONAL STANDARD 10 GUIDELINES 1 

 2 

MS. DEB LAMBERT:  Thank you.  My name is Deb Lambert and I work 3 

for the Office of Sustainable Fisheries in Silver Spring, 4 

Maryland and I’m a Fisheries Policy Analyst.  I want to thank 5 

both of the councils for allowing me to speak today on National 6 

Standard 10 and our Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking. 7 

 8 

Just a quick outline.  I’m going to briefly provide some 9 

information on fishing safety, move on to talk about National 10 

Standard 10 and the current guidelines, and then address some of 11 

the issues that we’re considering addressing when we revise the 12 

National Standard 10 Guidelines and then summarize some 13 

opportunities to provide public comment. 14 

 15 

Although trends in safety at sea have improved in the last few 16 

decades, fatality rates remain high compared to other 17 

occupations.  According to the National Institute for 18 

Occupational Safety and Health, during 1992 to 2008, the average 19 

annual fatality rate for commercial fishermen was 128 deaths per 20 

100,000 workers. 21 

 22 

When you compare that to all U.S. workers, which had a rate of 23 

four per 100,000 workers, it’s quite a high rate and so one of 24 

the things that Congress has done in response to safety issues 25 

is add National Standard 10 into the Magnuson-Stevens Act. 26 

 27 

National Standard 10 states that conservation and management 28 

measures shall, to the extent practicable, promote safety of 29 

human life at sea. 30 

 31 

This figure shows some -- It’s hard to read, but it shows some 32 

fatality information for various occupations in 2009.  On the 33 

left-hand side lists some occupations with fishing and fishing-34 

related workers at the top.  The left-hand side of the figure in 35 

blue represents the fatality rates, which is per 100,000 36 

workers, and the right-hand side of the graph shows the number 37 

of fatal work injuries. 38 

 39 

For 2009, fishers and related fishing workers, there were fifty-40 

six fatalities, for a fatality rate of 200 per 100,000 workers 41 

and so this is much higher than any of the other occupations 42 

shown here, which include occupations like roofers, farmers, 43 

construction workers, and truck drivers. 44 

 45 

This figure shows the number of commercial fishing fatalities by 46 

year and region and the four regions represented here are west 47 

coast, east coast, Gulf of Mexico, and the Alaska region, with 48 
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the years ranging from 2000 to 2009.  What this shows is that 1 

the number of fatalities has ranged between forty and sixty per 2 

year and it shows that fatalities have occurred consistently 3 

within all regions during that time span. 4 

 5 

As I mentioned before, Congress added National Standard 10 into 6 

the Magnuson Act in 1996 and the Fisheries Service published 7 

guidelines for National Standard 10 in 1998 and this is the 8 

primary source of NMFS guidance for the consideration of safety 9 

issues in fishery management plans and regulations. 10 

 11 

Now I’m going to summarize the current version of the National 12 

Standard 10 Guidelines.  There’s five sections of the 13 

guidelines.  The first one simply states the standard as it’s 14 

written in the Magnuson Act.  The second section, Section B, 15 

provides some general statements about fishing and how it’s a 16 

dangerous occupation. 17 

 18 

Section C of the guidelines lists some safety considerations to 19 

consider when evaluating management measures.  For example, one 20 

of those is the operating environment, such as the weather 21 

conditions or the ocean conditions that the vessels are in. 22 

 23 

The second one is gear and vessel loading requirements and so 24 

what this means is that managers should consider the stability 25 

of vessels when requiring specific gear or removal of gear from 26 

the water and the third consideration that’s listed in the 27 

guidelines has to do with avoiding derby fisheries, because they 28 

can lead to safety issues. 29 

 30 

Section D of the guidelines states that the council shall 31 

consult with the Coast Guard and the fishing industry if a 32 

regulation might affect safety of human life at sea and that 33 

consultation can be done through an advisory panel or committee 34 

or through a review and an FMP or regulations. 35 

 36 

Lastly, Section E of the guidelines lists eight mitigation 37 

measures to consider and these are ways to avoid or reduce 38 

potential impacts on safety of human life at sea and I won’t 39 

read through them all, but a couple of examples include allowing 40 

for trip flexibility and reducing the race to fish. 41 

 42 

Recent events suggest a need to consider revising the 43 

guidelines.  The guidelines are thirteen years old and fisheries 44 

management has changed during that time. 45 

 46 

In addition, the science of analyzing safety issues has advanced 47 

during that time.  Recent work by the National Institute for 48 
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Occupational Safety and Health has shown that the fishery 1 

management process can more explicitly address safety issues by 2 

analyzing fatalities in fisheries and the current guidelines 3 

don’t contain any guidance on analytical methods to evaluate 4 

safety. 5 

 6 

In addition, a couple of events happened last fall that 7 

highlighted increased emphasis on safety.  The National 8 

Transportation Safety Board held a safety forum in D.C. last 9 

October that brought together people from different agencies and 10 

different parts of the fishing community to talk about fishing 11 

safety. 12 

 13 

In addition, the Coast Guard Authorization Act of 2010 was 14 

passed and signed by the President last October that gave the 15 

Coast Guard additional authorities and responsibilities related 16 

to safety of fishing vessels.  Because of this increased 17 

emphasis on safety, we decided to look at if there are ways to 18 

improve our National Standard 10 Guidelines. 19 

 20 

We published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking in April 21 

and we’re seeking ideas and solutions on how to improve safety 22 

at sea.  We’ve had some meetings and we’ll have a few more 23 

public meetings this summer and I’ll provide information on 24 

those at the end of the presentation and we have a ninety-day 25 

comment period that ends July 20th. 26 

 27 

The comments that we receive during this time we’ll consider as 28 

we draft proposed revisions to the guidelines.  There’s a 29 

website listed there where we have some information posted on 30 

National Standard 10 and we’ll continue to update it as more 31 

information is available. 32 

 33 

I should note that I left some handouts on National Standard 10 34 

outside on one of the tables and so this PowerPoint presentation 35 

is on the table, along with our Advance Notice of Proposed 36 

Rulemaking. 37 

 38 

In our Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, we laid out eight 39 

issues that are under consideration and we’re considering 40 

developing guidance on these eight issues and we’re seeking 41 

comments on these issues and any other safety issues that people 42 

may have. 43 

 44 

I’ll explain those eight issues now and provide some examples on 45 

how they could be addressed.  I should just note that the issues 46 

are not in priority order and the first four can be seen as 47 

going together, because they represent an analytical process for 48 
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analyzing safety issues. 1 

 2 

The first issue we identified in our Advance Notice of Proposed 3 

Rulemaking is that we could in the guidelines provide guidance 4 

on how to analyze fatality data.  Fatality information is 5 

reported to the Coast Guard and they do maintain a database with 6 

that information. 7 

 8 

In addition, non-fatal injuries are supposed to be reported if 9 

the injury required professional medical treatment and so some 10 

of that information is -- What is reported is maintained by the 11 

Coast Guard and so we could, in our guidelines, provide guidance 12 

on how to assemble this information and analyze it. 13 

 14 

These are some products that were prepared by the National 15 

Institute for Occupational Safety and Health and these are 16 

regional summaries, one for Alaska, the west coast, east coast, 17 

and the Gulf of Mexico.   18 

 19 

In these summaries, they analyze fatality data within those 20 

regions and I just put this here to show how this information 21 

can be analyzed and summarized and I believe there’s examples of 22 

these products in the council briefing books. 23 

 24 

The second issue we identified is the idea of providing guidance 25 

on how to calculate fatality and injury rates.  These rates are 26 

important because they provide a way to compare risks between 27 

various fisheries and also to look at trends over time.   28 

 29 

In order to be able to calculate these rates, you first need to 30 

be able to estimate the workforce in the fishery, which can be 31 

done by using information on the number of active vessels, the 32 

number of operating days, and the average crew size.  We could, 33 

in our guidelines, provide guidance on how to estimate workforce 34 

and fatality rates. 35 

 36 

Here’s an example of what the fatality data would look like.  On 37 

the left-hand side, a few fisheries are listed.  The second 38 

column shows the number of fatalities that occurred between 2000 39 

and 2009. 40 

 41 

The third column lists the full-time equivalent, which is an 42 

estimate of the number of workers in the fishery for each year 43 

during that time period, and in the fourth column is listed the 44 

fatality rate per 100,000 employees. 45 

 46 

For example, for the Atlantic snapper grouper fishery, six 47 

fatalities were reported.  The number of employees was estimated 48 
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at over 3,600, resulting in a fatality rate of 170 individuals 1 

per 100,000 workers. 2 

 3 

The third issue we identified in our ANPR is the possibility of 4 

providing guidance on how to evaluate risks in fisheries.  Risk 5 

assessments could be conducted to identify if there are safety 6 

hazards within the fisheries and then with the objective being 7 

that if there are safety issues, the next step would be to look 8 

at if conservation and management measures are needed to address 9 

those issues.  This is just an example.  A risk assessment could 10 

include information on fatalities, fatality rates, trends over 11 

time, and other factors. 12 

 13 

The current National Standard 10 Guidelines contain three safety 14 

considerations and eight mitigation measures, which I mentioned 15 

earlier in the presentation, for the councils to consider when 16 

developing management measures and so we are seeking comments on 17 

those sections of the guidelines and if additional 18 

considerations should be included. 19 

 20 

For example, one example of a recommendation that could be 21 

included is allowing for emergency relief provisions for safety 22 

purposes, such as allowing a vessel to land their catch in an 23 

area that they would not normally otherwise be authorized to do, 24 

but could do so for safety reasons, such as if there’s bad 25 

weather or if the vessel is in distress.  There’s other examples 26 

and so we welcome comments on those and if those sections of the 27 

guidelines should be revised. 28 

 29 

The fifth topic we identified in our Advance Notice of Proposed 30 

Rulemaking is that we’re seeking information on safety issues in 31 

recreational fisheries and how to address those issues. 32 

 33 

The Coast Guard compiles statistics on the total number of 34 

recreational boating accidents.  This table was taken from a 35 

Coast Guard report and it shows the activity of the vessel at 36 

the time of an accident and I apologize that it’s sort of hard 37 

to read, but that yellow line shows that 270 deaths occurred 38 

while fishing was happening on a recreational vessel.  This 39 

suggests that there could be safety issues in recreational 40 

fisheries and we welcome comments on those issues, on that 41 

topic. 42 

 43 

The sixth issue we identified in our Advance Notice of Proposed 44 

Rulemaking has to do with consulting on safety issues.  The 45 

current guidelines suggest that the councils consult with the 46 

Coast Guard and the fishing industry during the development of 47 

management measures that might affect safety of human life at 48 
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sea and we welcome comments on this guidance and if there are 1 

other ways to consult on safety issues. 2 

 3 

The seventh topic we identified is the idea of including safety 4 

information in stock assessment and fishery evaluation reports 5 

or other council documents.  Safety information could be added 6 

into these reports to better inform the councils and the 7 

Secretary, as appropriate, and we welcome guidance on the type 8 

of safety information to include in these reports or other 9 

council documents or NMFS documents. 10 

 11 

Lastly, the eighth issue we identified has to do with the 12 

relationship between National Standard 10 and fishery impact 13 

statements.   14 

 15 

When Magnuson was reauthorized in 2007, a new requirement was 16 

added into the fishery impact statement section, stating that 17 

the fishery impact statement should look at possible mitigation 18 

measures for the safety of human life at sea. 19 

 20 

The concept of National Standard 10 promoting safety at sea is 21 

similar to this requirement in the fishery impact statement 22 

section and so we’re considering addressing this relationship at 23 

the proposed rule stage and so we welcome comments on this 24 

section. 25 

 26 

Those are the eight issues that we identified and we welcome 27 

comments on those and any other safety issues that people may be 28 

interested in commenting on.  Comments can be given at public 29 

meetings, through the regulations.gov website, via fax or mail, 30 

and that contact information is all within the ANPR and the 31 

comment deadline is July 20th. 32 

 33 

We had one public meeting earlier in May, in Silver Spring, 34 

Maryland.  We’re going to be giving a presentation to the Mid-35 

Atlantic Council and the New England Council later this month 36 

and then we’re going to have an additional public meeting in 37 

Seattle on July 19th. 38 

 39 

In summary, we’re requesting public comment on potential 40 

revisions to the National Standard 10 Guidelines.  Again, the 41 

comment period ends July 20th and the comments we receive during 42 

this time period we’ll consider as we develop a proposed rule to 43 

revise the guidelines.  I welcome comments from the councils and 44 

the public at this time and thank you. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Ms. Lambert.  Any questions? 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Thank you very much for your presentation.  Could 1 

you put the table on page 4 up, please?  While you’re doing 2 

that, this is all marine fisheries or does this include 3 

freshwater? 4 

 5 

MS. LAMBERT:  This is all marine fisheries.  In the table, do 6 

you mean?  Let me get to the table. 7 

 8 

MR. PERRET:  That will do.  That’s the same one.  If I 9 

understand this correctly, in 2009, there were fifty-six 10 

fatalities from fishing and fishing-related activities? 11 

 12 

MS. LAMBERT:  Right. 13 

 14 

MR. PERRET:  Okay.  Can you go to page 20, please?  In 15 

recreational fishing, marine recreational, in 2009, there were 16 

270 deaths and injuries and vessels involved and is that right?  17 

That’s your numbers and so I assume they’re right and here’s 18 

where I’m going.  Can you put page 10 up, please? 19 

 20 

Obviously this is going to be a policy decision at a pretty high 21 

level, but the current National Standard 10 Guidelines, look at 22 

E, Number 6.  Am I to understand that the agency is recommending 23 

we limit participation in all fisheries?  Because if we do, 24 

we’re violating that and we give free recreational fishing days.  25 

We encourage taking kids fishing and we have fishing rodeos for 26 

kids and so tell me a little bit about that limit participation, 27 

please. 28 

 29 

MS. LAMBERT:  This is in the current National Standard 10 30 

Guidelines and these are recommendations on mitigation measures 31 

and so they’re not necessarily saying you must do each one of 32 

these things.  These are things to consider as mitigation 33 

measures to address safety at sea. 34 

 35 

MR. PERRET:  I think you might asterisk that one or -- 36 

 37 

MS. LAMBERT:  Excuse me? 38 

 39 

MR. PERRET:  The agency is not suggesting we limit participation 40 

of recreational fishermen are you? 41 

 42 

MS. LAMBERT:  These are -- 43 

 44 

MR. PERRET:  It’s something to think about. 45 

 46 

MR. HARTIG:  I think from my perspective as a commercial 47 

fisherman, having those deaths parceled out by council area 48 
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would give us a lot more information on what our regulations are 1 

doing to increase deaths in our fisheries, possibly.  If we 2 

could get that from you, that would help, at least for me. 3 

 4 

MS. LAMBERT:  The National Institute for Occupational Safety and 5 

Health has been doing that analysis and those -- I’m not sure 6 

where it is in this presentation now.  This should be in the 7 

council briefing books. 8 

 9 

They have produced four products, summaries, one for Alaska, one 10 

for the west coast, east coast, and Gulf of Mexico.  For each 11 

one of those, there’s more specific information on fatalities 12 

for certain fisheries and so, for example, this table lays out 13 

some fatality information for specific fisheries. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other questions for Deb?  Thank you.  Thank 16 

you, Deb.  Do you have any other comments? 17 

 18 

MS. LAMBERT:  If there’s time, could we see if the public has 19 

any comments to contribute? 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Sure.  If any of the public has any questions 22 

or comments, feel free.  I think not.  We have a bit of hiatus 23 

here.  Our next speaker just arrived at his hotel and is 24 

supposed to be here in a little while, but he’s not and so I 25 

don’t want to lose any time.   26 

 27 

MR. GRIMES:  I just wanted to enlighten Mr. Perret as to the 28 

existing guidelines for National Standard 10 and the list of 29 

things that she indicated, the text of the guidelines now say 30 

the following is a list of factors that could be considered when 31 

developing management measures and one of those is limiting the 32 

number of participants in the fishery.  Thank you. 33 

 34 

MR. PERRET:  I understand that.  I just didn’t know if you did. 35 

 36 

MR. GRIMES:  Thank you. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Let’s go ahead and move into the Joint Gulf and 39 

South Atlantic Full Council Spiny Lobster Meeting and when our 40 

next speaker arrives, when we get to a breaking point in this 41 

full council deliberation, then we’ll insert our speaker and 42 

return, if that’s okay with Mr. Teehan and Mr. Robson. 43 

 44 

MR. TEEHAN:  That’s fine, Mr. Chairman.  Hopefully this won’t 45 

take very long.  Mark and I have kind of worked it out that 46 

since the Gulf is -- Before we get into this, I want to say one 47 

thing. 48 
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 1 

I’m catching a lot of flak for my dinner-plate-sized turtle 2 

comment and I would like to explain that that is not the size of 3 

a turtle that goes on a dinner plate.  It is the size of a 4 

turtle that is the size of a dinner plate.  I just want to make 5 

sure that’s on the record. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Teehan, I think before we start that we do 8 

need to go around the room with introductions, because a lot of 9 

the folks don’t know each other from these two councils.  We can 10 

start on my left with Mr. Gill. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  Bob Gill, Gulf Council. 13 

 14 

MR. TEEHAN:  Bill Teehan, Florida, Gulf Council. 15 

 16 

MR. SAPP:  This empty seat is occupied by Larry Abele from 17 

Florida.  I’m Ed Sapp from Florida and the Gulf Council. 18 

 19 

LCDR DEGEORGE:  Carmen DeGeorge, Coast Guard District 8 in New 20 

Orleans. 21 

 22 

MR. PERRET:  Corky Perret, Gulf Council, Mississippi. 23 

 24 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Tom McIlwain, Mississippi. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  Myron Fischer, Louisiana. 27 

 28 

MR. PEARCE:  Harlon Pearce, Louisiana. 29 

 30 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Kay Williams, Mississippi. 31 

 32 

MR. ROBSON:  Mark Robson, Florida, South Atlantic Fishery 33 

Management Council. 34 

 35 

DR. MACLAUCHLIN:  Kari MacLauchlin, South Atlantic staff. 36 

 37 

MR. CHARLIE PHILLIPS:  Charlie Phillips, South Atlantic Council, 38 

Georgia. 39 

 40 

MR. DUANE HARRIS:  Duane Harris, South Atlantic Council, 41 

Georgia. 42 

 43 

MR. TOM SWATZEL:  Tom Swatzel, South Atlantic Council, South 44 

Carolina. 45 

 46 

MR. GEORGE GEIGER:  George Geiger, South Atlantic Council, 47 

Florida. 48 
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 1 

MR. GREGG WAUGH:  Gregg Waugh, South Atlantic Council staff. 2 

 3 

MR. ROBERT BOYLES:  Robert Boyles, South Atlantic Council, State 4 

of South Carolina. 5 

 6 

DR. BRIAN CHEUVRONT:  Brian Cheuvront, South Atlantic Council, 7 

North Carolina. 8 

 9 

MR. TOM BURGESS:  Tom Burgess, South Atlantic Council, North 10 

Carolina. 11 

 12 

MR. HARTIG:  Ben Hartig, South Atlantic Council, Florida. 13 

 14 

MR. GRIMES:  Shepherd Grimes, NOAA Office of General Counsel and 15 

the Southeast Regional Office. 16 

 17 

DR. CRABTREE:  Roy Crabtree, NOAA Fisheries. 18 

 19 

MR. STEELE:  Phil Steele, NOAA Fisheries. 20 

 21 

DR. PONWITH:  Bonnie Ponwith, NOAA Fisheries Service. 22 

 23 

MR. RIECHERS:  Robin Riechers, Texas. 24 

 25 

MR. BOYD:  Doug Boyd, Texas. 26 

 27 

MR. HENDRIX:  Joe Hendrix, Texas. 28 

 29 

MR. GREENE:  Johnny Greene, Alabama. 30 

 31 

MR. ANSON:  Kevin Anson, Alabama. 32 

 33 

MR. CUPKA:  David Cupka, South Atlantic Council Chair, South 34 

Carolina. 35 

 36 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Steve Bortone, Gulf Council staff. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Bob Shipp, Gulf Council Chair, Alabama.  Mr. 39 

Teehan, would you pick it up? 40 

 41 

JOINT GULF AND SOUTH ATLANTIC FULL COUNCILS RE SPINY LOBSTER 42 

 43 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mark Robson, who is the Chair of the South Atlantic 44 

Lobster Committee, and I have talked about how to present this 45 

and we’ve agreed that since the Gulf of Mexico is the 46 

administrative lead on this, I will go through the document and 47 

then when we get to the portions where there are motions, 48 
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committee motions, by the different councils, I will handle the 1 

Gulf and Mark will handle the South Atlantic. 2 

 3 

It is my intent not to read this entire document.  I’m going to 4 

read a couple of paragraphs off the first page, but from then 5 

on, we will go through the actions.  I’ll just say what the 6 

action is and if the committees had made no changes, then unless 7 

there are changes to be made, we’ll move on to the next action. 8 

 9 

The Gulf Council Committee members were all present: myself, Bob 10 

Gill, Ed Sapp, Larry Simpson, and Mr. Perret.  The South 11 

Atlantic Council Committee members were Mark Robson, Roy 12 

Crabtree, George Geiger, and Ben Hartig and Mr. Lam was absent, 13 

unless his name is Lam Absent.  I’m confused over that. 14 

 15 

The agenda was adopted as written by both chairs and the minutes 16 

of the March 7, 2011 South Atlantic Spiny Lobster Committee 17 

Minutes were adopted by the South Atlantic committee without 18 

modifications.  Minutes of the February 9, 2011 Gulf Spiny 19 

Lobster Committee Minutes (Tab H, No. 3) were approved by Gulf 20 

committee with minor modifications.   21 

 22 

Next, the committees approved the minutes from the Joint Gulf 23 

and South Atlantic Spiny Lobster Committee/Advisory Panel 24 

Meeting in Orlando, Florida. 25 

 26 

Mr. Gregg Waugh then reviewed the South Atlantic Scientific and 27 

Statistical Committee Report.  He discussed the findings of the 28 

2010 Spiny Lobster Update Assessment and the South Atlantic 29 

Council Scientific and Statistical Committee recommendations for 30 

acceptable biological catch, which were consistent with the Gulf 31 

SSC recommendations.   32 

 33 

The assessment determined that the U.S. stock is primarily 34 

dependent upon outside recruitment from the Caribbean 35 

populations and the biomass of this stock could not be assessed 36 

on its own without a Pan-Caribbean assessment.   37 

 38 

Dr. Kari MacLauchlin then reviewed the South Atlantic Advisory 39 

Panel recommendations and Dr. Carrie Simmons summarized the 40 

public hearings held in St. Petersburg Florida and written 41 

comments.  Ms. Sue Gerhart then summarized the Draft 42 

Environmental Impact Statement. 43 

 44 

We’ll move on to page 2.  In Action 1, Other species in the 45 

Spiny Lobster Fishery Management Plan, both of the committees 46 

preferred that the alternative remain at Alternative 4, which is 47 

to remove the following species from the FMP: two Panulirus 48 
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species and two Scyllarides.  Is there any -- 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  That’s a committee motion, isn’t it? 3 

 4 

MR. TEEHAN:  No, there is no committee motion, because we kept 5 

the same preferred that we had and so there was no action there.  6 

Does anybody have any changes that they want to put into Action 7 

1?  Seeing none, then we’ll move on. 8 

 9 

Action 2 is Modify the Current Definitions of Maximum 10 

Sustainable Yield, Overfishing Threshold, and Overfished 11 

Threshold for the Caribbean Spiny Lobster.  The committees 12 

stayed with their Preferred Alternative 4, which is the MSY 13 

proxy will be the overfishing limit, OFL, recommended by the 14 

Gulf SSC at 7.90 million pounds.  Is there any wish by any of 15 

the council members to make any changes to Action 2?   16 

 17 

Then we’ll move on to Action 2.3, which is the Overfished 18 

Threshold (Minimum Stock Size Threshold).  The committees chose 19 

to stay at the Preferred Alternative 3, which is MSST = (1-M) x 20 

BMSY.  If there is no council member changes or comments, then 21 

we will move on. 22 

 23 

Seeing none, we’ll move on to Action 3, which is to Establish 24 

Sector Allocations for Caribbean Spiny Lobster in State and 25 

Federal Waters from North Carolina through Texas.  The 26 

committees chose to keep the preferred alternative, which is no 27 

action, do not establish sector allocations.  Do I have any 28 

comments? 29 

 30 

MR. PERRET:  These were committee recommendations and do we as a 31 

council have to vote on each one? 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I think only when we have a motion.  We’ll 34 

adopt the whole thing after, but if we have any motions in the 35 

meantime, we’ll vote on them and then the whole document. 36 

 37 

MR. TEEHAN:  Does anybody have any comments or changes to the 38 

allocation action, Action 3?  Seeing none, we will now move on 39 

to Action 4, which is the Acceptable Biological Catch Control 40 

Rule, ABC Level(s), Annual Catch Limits, and Annual Catch 41 

Targets for Caribbean Spiny Lobster. 42 

 43 

The committees did not have a motion on acceptable biological 44 

catch.  They chose to keep the preferred alternative, which was 45 

to adopt the following ABC control rule, Preferred Option b, the 46 

Gulf Council’s ABC control rule.  Is there any discussion or 47 

changes to Action 4.1?  No comments?  48 
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 1 

Action 4-2: is to Set Annual Catch Limits for Caribbean Spiny 2 

Lobster.  We have some motions here.  The Preferred Alternative 3 

2 was to set an ACL for the entire stock based on the ABC, with 4 

a Preferred Option a of ACL = OY = ABC.  5 

 6 

The committee discussed the rationale for placing the optimum 7 

yield value equal to the annual catch target and not the annual 8 

catch limit.  Staff explained during previous meetings the OY 9 

value was set equal to the annual catch limit.  After 10 

discussion, the committees made the following motions. 11 

 12 

The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council Committee 13 

recommends, and I so move, to move the OY language from Action 14 

4.2 into Action 4.3 and set OY equal to the annual catch target. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a Gulf committee motion.  Any 17 

discussion?  Any objection?  I hear none and the motion passes. 18 

 19 

MR. ROBSON:  On behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management 20 

Council Spiny Lobster Committee, they recommend to the council, 21 

and I so move, to move the OY language from Action 4.2 into 22 

Action 4.3 and set OY equal to the annual catch target.  On 23 

behalf of the Spiny Lobster Committee, I so move.  Is there any 24 

discussion of that motion from the South Atlantic Council?  Any 25 

objection to the motion?  That motion carries. 26 

 27 

MR. TEEHAN:  In Action 4-3, Set Annual Catch Targets for 28 

Caribbean Spiny Lobster, and there will be some changes in this 29 

based upon the previous motions and changes in Action 4-2. 30 

 31 

The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council Committee 32 

recommends, and I so move, in Action 4.3 that the preferred 33 

alternative be Alternative 2, Option a, to set the ACT for the 34 

entire stock and the ACT is equal to 90 percent of the ACL. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion for the Gulf.  Any 37 

discussion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 38 

 39 

MR. ROBSON:  On behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management 40 

Council, the Spiny Lobster Committee recommends, and I so move, 41 

that in Action 4.3 that the preferred alternative be Alternative 42 

2, Option a, which is to set the ACT for the entire stock and to 43 

set that ACT equal to 90 percent of the annual catch limit.  On 44 

behalf of the committee, Mr. Chairman, I so move.  Is there any 45 

discussion on that motion?  Any objection from members of the 46 

South Atlantic Council on the motion?  Seeing none, the motion 47 

carries. 48 
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 1 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mark.  Action 5 is the Accountability 2 

Measures by Sector and the two committees chose to stay with the 3 

Preferred Alternative 4, which is to establish the ACT as the 4 

accountability measure for Caribbean spiny lobster.  Is there 5 

any discussion or any changes to that preferred alternative? 6 

 7 

Seeing none, we can move on to Action 6.  Action 6 is Develop or 8 

Update a Framework Procedure and Protocol for Enhanced 9 

Cooperative Management for Spiny Lobster.  We do not have any 10 

committee motions for Action 6. 11 

 12 

We retained two preferred alternatives.  One is to update the 13 

current protocol for enhanced cooperative management and the 14 

other preferred alternative was Number 4, to revise the current 15 

regulatory amendment procedures to create an expanded framework 16 

procedure with Preferred Option a, adopt the base framework.  17 

The committees did not make any changes to Action 6 and accepted 18 

the changes brought in by staff.  Is there any discussion on 19 

Action 6?  Any motions or comments? 20 

 21 

Seeing none, we’ll move on to Action 7, which is Modify 22 

Regulations Regarding Possession and Handling of Short Caribbean 23 

Spiny Lobsters as “Undersized Attractants”.  There were no 24 

motion made at the committee level on this and the preferred 25 

option remains as allow undersized spiny lobster not exceeding 26 

fifty per boat and one per trap aboard each boat if used 27 

exclusively for luring, decoying or otherwise attracting non-28 

captive spiny lobsters into the trap.  This language mirrors the 29 

existing language that is in Florida rule presently.  Are there 30 

any comments, changes, suggestions to Action 7? 31 

 32 

Seeing none and hearing none, we’ll move on to Action 8, to 33 

Modify Tailing Requirements for Caribbean Spiny Lobster for 34 

Vessels that Obtain a Tailing Permit.  We do have committee 35 

motions on this. 36 

 37 

The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so move, that in 38 

Action 8 to modify preferred Alternative 3 to read: Revise the 39 

current regulations to clearly state that all vessels must have 40 

either 1) a valid federal spiny lobster permit or 2) a valid 41 

Florida Restricted Species Endorsement and a valid Crawfish 42 

Endorsement associated with a valid Florida Saltwater Products 43 

License to obtain a tailing permit. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a Gulf Committee motion.  Any 46 

discussion of the motion?  Any objections?  Hearing none, the 47 

motion passes. 48 
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 1 

MR. ROBSON:  On behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management 2 

Council Lobster Committee, the committee recommends, and I so 3 

move, that in Action 8 to modify preferred Alternative 3 to 4 

read: Revise the current regulations to clearly state that all 5 

vessels must have either 1) a valid federal spiny lobster permit 6 

or 2) a valid Florida Restricted Species Endorsement and a valid 7 

Crawfish Endorsement associated with a valid Florida Saltwater 8 

Products License to obtain a tailing permit.  On behalf of the 9 

committee, I so move.  Is there any discussion of the motion?  10 

Any objection?  The motion carries. 11 

 12 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mark.  Action 9, Limit Spiny Lobster 13 

Fishing in Certain Areas in the EEZ off Florida to Protect 14 

Threatened Staghorn and Elkhorn Corals, we do have committee 15 

motions here.   16 

 17 

This was the action that the preferred alternative had been to 18 

create twenty-four large closed areas to protect threatened 19 

corals.  There were two committee motions. 20 

 21 

The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council Committee 22 

recommends, and I so move, in Action 9, to adopt Alternative 1 23 

and request that industry representatives, along with NMFS/NOAA 24 

and Marine Sanctuary representatives work together to define 25 

areas of important habitat to protect Acropora coral. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a Gulf committee motion.  Any 28 

discussion?  Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 29 

 30 

MR. ROBSON:  On behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management 31 

Council Spiny Lobster Committee, the committee recommends, and I 32 

so move, that in Action 9, to adopt Alternative 1 and request 33 

that industry representatives, along with NMFS/NOAA and Marine 34 

Sanctuary representatives work together to define areas of 35 

important habitat to protect Acropora coral.  On behalf of the 36 

committee, I so move.  Is there any discussion of the motion?  37 

Any objection?  The motion carries. 38 

 39 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mark.  Action 10, Require Gear Markings 40 

so all Spiny Lobster Trap Lines in the EEZ off Florida are 41 

Identifiable, we have some committee motions. 42 

 43 

The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council Committee 44 

recommends, and I so move, in Action 10, that the preferred 45 

alternative be Alternative 1, no action. 46 

 47 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  48 
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Any objections?  The motion passes. 1 

 2 

MR. ROBSON:  On behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management 3 

Council Spiny Lobster Committee, which recommends, and I so 4 

move, that in Action 10, that the preferred alternative be 5 

Alternative 1, no action.  On behalf of the committee, I so 6 

move.  Is there any discussion of the motion?  Any objection?  7 

The motion passes. 8 

 9 

MR. TEEHAN:  Thank you, Mark.  Action 11 is Allow the Public to 10 

Remove Derelict or Abandoned Spiny Lobster Traps Found in the 11 

EEZ off Florida.  The committees did not make any changes to the 12 

preferred alternative.   13 

 14 

However, there was a great deal of discussion about allowing the 15 

public to be involved with trap removal.  Under the current 16 

preferred alternative, a member of the public can fill out the 17 

appropriate paperwork and apply to Florida FWC to aid in the 18 

trap debris removal program during the closed fishing season.  19 

The committee also discussed other states involvement in a trap 20 

debris removal program in federal waters.   21 

 22 

There were no changes to the preferred alternative, which was to 23 

delegate authority to regulate the removal of derelict or 24 

abandoned spiny lobster traps occurring in the EEZ off of 25 

Florida to the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 26 

Commission.  Is there any discussion on this action? 27 

 28 

MR. PERRET:  We might want to consider -- The way Action 11 is 29 

written, and we’ve got it in bold print, it just looks like, for 30 

those that don’t read into all the alternatives and the 31 

preferred, Action 11 says allow the public. 32 

 33 

Would it be more correct to have language to the effect of 34 

authority to remove derelict or so on and so forth, rather than 35 

start out with allow the public to remove?  Am I the only one 36 

that’s seeing that that could be a potential misleading problem?  37 

Bob, I guess we need a motion to change the title of Action 11? 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  If you wanted to make such a motion, that would 40 

be in order. 41 

 42 

MR. PERRET:  I think it would be clearer if we just made Action 43 

11 as Authority to Remove Derelict or Abandoned Spiny Lobster 44 

Traps Found in the EEZ Off of Florida.  If I may, I don’t think 45 

we need to change any of the language in the alternatives, but 46 

at least the action just gives the authority. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I suppose the protocol here is for the Gulf 1 

Council to act on that motion first and then see if the South 2 

Atlantic is willing to go along.  Is there any discussion, any 3 

further discussion, of Corky’s motion?  Any objections?  Hearing 4 

none, the motion passes.  Mark, would you handle it for your 5 

group? 6 

 7 

MR. ROBSON:  For the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council, 8 

there’s been a Gulf Council motion to modify the wording of 9 

Action 11.  Is there an interest on the part of the council, 10 

South Atlantic Council, to incorporate a similar motion? 11 

 12 

MR. GEIGER:  So moved, Mr. Chairman. 13 

 14 

MR. ROBSON:  Thank you.  There’s a second by Ben Hartig.  Is 15 

there any discussion of this motion, which would be to modify 16 

the Action 11 to read: Authority to Remove Derelict or Abandoned 17 

Spiny Lobster Traps Found in the EEZ Off of Florida?  Is there 18 

any discussion?  Any objection to this motion?  The motion 19 

carries. 20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you.  Go ahead, Mr. Teehan. 22 

 23 

MR. TEEHAN:  I believe Mr. Geiger had his hand up to speak. 24 

 25 

MR. GEIGER:  I’ve been prepared to make two different motions on 26 

this particular action and there’s been a lot of discussion 27 

about this and it started at our Spiny Lobster Committee meeting 28 

back in December, when there was really a paucity of information 29 

available in regard to what constituted the Florida Trap Removal 30 

Program. 31 

 32 

Since that time, I thank Mark and Mr. Teehan for -- I’ve got 33 

numerous emails that I have not been able to read in their 34 

entirety which go into a lot of detail about public 35 

participation and the trap removal program Ad nauseum and I 36 

think the information and a lot of the questions that I had 37 

reference this program have been answered and are answerable, 38 

certainly, in this email by the people in Tallahassee who 39 

administer it. 40 

 41 

The one nagging question that lingers in my mind is the funding 42 

for this program and we heard from Mr. Teehan in the discussion 43 

during the committee that the $25 of the $125 license fee for 44 

spiny lobster and stone crab, or any trap permit, goes for trap 45 

cleanup, which is a contractually-administered program by the 46 

State of Florida. 47 

 48 
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The disturbing part of that is, for me, and I think it really 1 

should be for industry as well, is that that money is kind of in 2 

the general fund and usable by the State of Florida legislature, 3 

and Mark is shaking his head no, at the whim of the legislature. 4 

 5 

Apparently it was in jeopardy this year and there’s potential 6 

that a portion of it or possibly all of it could be used for 7 

something else in the future and a question in one of the 8 

emails, a response was that any reduction in that $25 total fee 9 

that’s currently collected would result in a two-thirds 10 

reduction in the trap removal ability of the state to function 11 

in that trap removal program. 12 

 13 

That’s somewhat disturbing and when we just go ahead and we 14 

carte blanche give responsibility for removal of traps in the 15 

EEZ, we’re now heaping an additional responsibility onto the 16 

state, which you might think could be considered to be unfunded 17 

and whether or not it could be accomplished. 18 

 19 

Now, certainly I made a suggestion to Mr. Teehan that the state 20 

could establish a website where people who identified derelict 21 

gear or trap debris on the bottom could go to a website and 22 

enter in those GPS coordinates and participate in identification 23 

of these areas or this gear so that when the trap cleanup occurs 24 

after the close of the season that efforts could be concentrated 25 

on that type of debris. 26 

 27 

Certainly if you had that website, it might indicate a large 28 

amount of it in one specific area and if it were to occur in the 29 

EEZ, per Mr. Teehan, the state could transfer its efforts to 30 

that concentration of gear in the EEZ, which helps alleviate 31 

some of the financial issue question that I had. 32 

 33 

I just wanted to bring that to everyone’s attention.  That 34 

financing, in my mind, is still a question and a potential 35 

problem that really hasn’t been addressed, in my opinion, 36 

adequately, but I’m prepared to allow us to remain with the 37 

preferred alternative and move on and I’ll work within the state 38 

to see if we can strengthen this program. 39 

 40 

I do believe, based on some of the email that I’ve read, that 41 

adequate provisions are in place to allow the public to 42 

participate in this program. 43 

 44 

In addition to that, I would like to go on public record and 45 

make a correction to a statement that I made concerning the use 46 

of shorts as bait and I made a statement that in other fisheries 47 

we don’t allow the use of shorts as bait and that was a 48 
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statement made in error that was brought to my attention by 1 

Richard Stieglitz, who indicated that in fact in recreational 2 

fishing we use short blue crabs as bait and that’s another 3 

issue, but I wanted to go on the record and correct that 4 

misstatement and so thank you very much. 5 

 6 

MR. ROBSON:  Thank you, George, and I think that a number of the 7 

questions you have regarding the funding, I can try to address 8 

with you.  If the council would like to hear a little bit more 9 

information now, that’s fine. 10 

 11 

Some of what George is concerned about is a concern.  However, 12 

the funds that are earmarked for the trap retrieval program, the 13 

post-season trap retrieval that’s a contract program with 14 

fishermen who have the gear to pull the traps, is part of their 15 

endorsement fee and that money is specified for use on trap 16 

retrieval. 17 

 18 

Those endorsement fees go into the state’s marine resources 19 

conservation trust fund and we have an appropriation in our 20 

budget every year to do that trap retrieval work, which is 21 

tracked back to that revenue coming into the trust fund. 22 

 23 

Assuming that the program and the appropriation is cut from our 24 

budget, the money would still be coming in until the legislature 25 

took action to change that mechanism for the $125 endorsement 26 

and the $25 part of that going to trap retrieval.  We just 27 

simply wouldn’t be able to have an appropriation to do that 28 

work. 29 

 30 

Budget cuts are a reality right now.  We had 15 percent budget 31 

cuts this in our division budget.  One of the line items in our 32 

budget reduction was a severe reduction in the trap retrieval 33 

budget.  That cut was not taken.  It was one of only two cuts in 34 

our division budget that was not taken. 35 

 36 

That doesn’t mean it could not happen in the future, but for 37 

now, there’s no change in the program.  In addition to the $25 38 

additional fee on the spiny lobster trap endorsement, revenue 39 

that’s used for trap retrieval does include administrative 40 

penalties, which are assessed as part of the program. 41 

 42 

When contractors are out on the water collecting traps after the 43 

season -- It’s done through observers.  That information is 44 

collected and under statutory requirements, after the first five 45 

traps are collected, there’s an administrative penalty on each 46 

trap that is picked up. 47 

 48 
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That trap retrieval administrative penalty money also goes back 1 

into the trust fund and that is also allowed to be counted for 2 

the program and then in addition to that, when you look at the 3 

statutory language for the trap endorsement itself, the lobster 4 

endorsement, the spiny lobster endorsement, it does allow for 5 

some portion of that money to be used for trap retrieval and 6 

other management activities. 7 

 8 

That’s one of the reasons why we do have some additional sources 9 

of funding.  It’s never going to be adequate and there’s always 10 

going to be issues with coverage, but historically, and in the 11 

event that there were budget reductions, the focus, the primary 12 

focus of trap retrieval efforts under that contracted program, 13 

would be in Monroe County, most likely, for both spiny lobster 14 

and stone crab, because that’s where the most impacts occur and 15 

that’s where the heaviest density of traps would occur. 16 

 17 

Historically, that’s where we’ve focused our trap retrieval 18 

program.  We’ve tried to extend it up into southwest Florida and 19 

even up into southeast Florida.  In addition to that, we’ve 20 

added a blue crab trap retrieval program which is now state-21 

wide. 22 

 23 

That’s just some of the funding issues and it is dedicated 24 

money.  It’s under statutory control, to a great degree, and 25 

that’s kind of the status of it.  I don’t know, George, if that 26 

helps answer some of those questions that you had. 27 

 28 

MR. GEIGER:  I guess, Mark, one question that arises is are the 29 

stone crab and lobster fees for trap recovery separate from blue 30 

crab, because blue crab occurs statewide and certainly Monroe 31 

County is the majority of stone crab and certainly spiny 32 

lobster?  The money for that particular recovery program is 33 

separate from blue crab, which is statewide, or are all those 34 

monies on one giant pot? 35 

 36 

MR. ROBSON:  We calculate the amount of money coming in from 37 

each of the endorsements and we try to separate the amounts.  38 

The appropriation we get included -- For example, when we 39 

implemented the blue crab trap retrieval program, we got an 40 

additional appropriation for blue crab trap retrieval and so 41 

it’s a separate amount. 42 

 43 

The trap retrieval management program is all one unit and it’s 44 

basically two people.  In that sense, the money is pooled, the 45 

efforts are pooled, but the dollar amounts available are kept 46 

separate. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We thank you both.  According to the agenda, 1 

the South Atlantic is going to vote first to recommend -- 2 

 3 

MR. TEEHAN:  I just need to make one correction.  I don’t make 4 

mistakes very often, but I did this time and Mr. Cupka pointed 5 

it out.  In Action Number 8, which was the tailing permit 6 

action, there was a second preferred alternative that we had. 7 

 8 

There was no committee changes or anything to it and so we don’t 9 

need to take any action, but I just need to get on the record 10 

that the second preferred alternative was that all Caribbean 11 

spiny lobsters be landed either in the whole condition or tailed 12 

and so the committees kept that in and there were no changes to 13 

it and so we have no motions. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Teehan.  Mr. Cupka, will you 16 

handle the roll call vote for the South Atlantic? 17 

 18 

MR. CUPKA:  I’m going to ask Mr. Mahood to handle it. 19 

 20 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We need to read the motion. 21 

 22 

MR. ROBSON:  We would need a motion or, Mr. Chairman, I don’t 23 

know if you would take that from the full council or do you want 24 

me to get a motion from the committee?  This will be a council 25 

vote, right? 26 

 27 

MR. WAUGH:  Use the one right from here. 28 

 29 

MR. ROBSON:  We just need somebody to make a motion. 30 

 31 

MR. WAUGH:  You can move it just like you did the others. 32 

 33 

MR. ROBSON:  I can go ahead and move this then.  Mr. Chairman, 34 

on behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council Spiny 35 

Lobster Committee, I would like to move that we submit Spiny 36 

Lobster Amendment 10 to the Secretary of Commerce for 37 

implementation. 38 

 39 

MR. CUPKA:  We have a motion?  Is there a second?  It’s seconded 40 

by Mr. Geiger.  I’ll ask Mr. Mahood to call the roll. 41 

 42 

MR. MAHOOD:  We’ll start with Mr. Boyles. 43 

 44 

MR. BOYLES:  Yes. 45 

 46 

MR. MAHOOD:  Dr. Cheuvront. 47 

 48 
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DR. CHEUVRONT:  Yes. 1 

 2 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Burgess. 3 

 4 

MR. BURGESS:  Yes. 5 

 6 

MR. MAHOOD:  Captain Hartig. 7 

 8 

MR. HARTIG:  Yes. 9 

 10 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Geiger. 11 

 12 

MR. GEIGER:  Yes. 13 

 14 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Swatzel. 15 

 16 

MR. SWATZEL:  Yes. 17 

 18 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Harris. 19 

 20 

MR. HARRIS:  Yes. 21 

 22 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Phillips. 23 

 24 

MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes. 25 

 26 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Robson. 27 

 28 

MR. ROBSON:  Yes. 29 

 30 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Haymans. 31 

 32 

MR. DOUG HAYMANS:  Yes. 33 

 34 

MR. MAHOOD:  Chairman Cupka. 35 

 36 

MR. CUPKA:  Yes. 37 

 38 

MR. MAHOOD:  The motion passes unanimously.  Mr. Currin is 39 

absent.  Do you get to vote twice? 40 

 41 

DR. CRABTREE:  Absolutely I get to vote twice. 42 

 43 

MR. MAHOOD:  Dr. Crabtree. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 46 

 47 

MR. MAHOOD:  We weren’t going to let you vote twice. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Mahood.  For the Gulf now, Mr. 2 

Teehan, would you like to recommend to full council the motion? 3 

 4 

MR. TEEHAN:  The Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council 5 

Committee recommends, and I so move, to recommend to full 6 

council to submit Spiny Lobster Amendment 10 to the Secretary of 7 

Commerce for implementation. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion and we’ll need a 10 

roll call of the full council. 11 

 12 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Abele. 13 

 14 

DR. ABELE:  Yes. 15 

 16 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 17 

 18 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 21 

 22 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 25 

 26 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 27 

 28 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 29 

 30 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 31 

 32 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 33 

 34 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 35 

 36 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 37 

 38 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 39 

 40 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight is absent.  Dr. 41 

McIlwain. 42 

 43 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 44 

 45 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 46 

 47 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 48 
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 1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 4 

 5 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 6 

 7 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 8 

 9 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Pearce. 10 

 11 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 12 

 13 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Boyd. 14 

 15 

MR. BOYD:  Yes. 16 

 17 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 20 

 21 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 22 

 23 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 24 

 25 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 28 

 29 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  It’s unanimous with one abstention, 30 

sixteen for and one abstain.  The motion passes. 31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  As we discussed in committee relative to Actions 9 33 

and 10, the intent was to not handle them in this amendment, but 34 

to handle them separately and let them go however they get 35 

worked out.  In accordance with that, I move that we copy Action 36 

9 and Action 10 -- 37 

 38 

MR. GRIMES:  I didn’t bring this up because the others were 39 

committee motions, but before you move on to that, you need to 40 

submit the rule that was provided to you and was emailed to you 41 

and it should be Tab H, Revised Spiny Lobster Regulations.  I 42 

received it from Trish Kennedy on your staff at 10:27 this 43 

morning.  That’s the most recent version. 44 

 45 

MR. TEEHAN:  In the exquisitely choreographed rehearsal that we 46 

had for this, Mark was going to read the motion for that. 47 

 48 
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MR. ROBSON:  Yes and I guess I would make this on behalf of the 1 

South Atlantic Council and then the Gulf Council would have a 2 

similar motion.  Is that correct? 3 

 4 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 5 

 6 

MR. ROBSON:  On behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management 7 

Council Spiny Lobster Committee, I would like to make a motion 8 

to the council that we deem the proposed rule as necessary and 9 

appropriate and give the chairs authority to make any necessary 10 

changes.  If we need to modify that language to satisfy legal 11 

requirements, we can do that.  That was my first shot at it. 12 

 13 

MR. GRIMES:  That’s fine. 14 

 15 

MR. ROBSON:  That’s my motion, Mr. Chairman. 16 

 17 

UNIDENTIFIED MALE:  Second. 18 

 19 

MR. ROBSON:  We have a motion and a second.  David, do you -- 20 

 21 

MR. MAHOOD:  Shep, does this require a roll call also? 22 

 23 

MR. GRIMES:  No, if it requires a roll call, it’s because of 24 

your SOPPs.  I’m not sure whether the Gulf Council’s require 25 

that or not.  I certainly don’t know if yours do. 26 

 27 

MR. MAHOOD:  Let’s be safe and do it then, okay?  Mr. Boyles. 28 

 29 

MR. BOYLES:  Yes. 30 

 31 

MR. MAHOOD:  Dr. Cheuvront. 32 

 33 

DR. CHEUVRONT:  Yes. 34 

 35 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Burgess. 36 

 37 

MR. BURGESS:  Yes. 38 

 39 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Hartig. 40 

 41 

MR. HARTIG:  Yes. 42 

 43 

MR. MAHOOD:  Dr. Crabtree. 44 

 45 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 46 

 47 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Geiger. 48 
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 1 

MR. GEIGER:  Yes. 2 

 3 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Swatzel. 4 

 5 

MR. SWATZEL:  Yes. 6 

 7 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Harris. 8 

 9 

MR. HARRIS:  Yes. 10 

 11 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Phillips. 12 

 13 

MR. PHILLIPS:  Yes. 14 

 15 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Robson. 16 

 17 

MR. ROBSON:  Yes. 18 

 19 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mr. Haymans. 20 

 21 

MR. DOUG HAYMANS:  Yes. 22 

 23 

MR. MAHOOD:  Chairman Cupka. 24 

 25 

MR. CUPKA:  Yes. 26 

 27 

MR. MAHOOD:  Mac Currin is absent and the vote is twelve with 28 

one absent in favor. 29 

 30 

MR. TEEHAN:  Mr. Chairman, on behalf of the Gulf of Mexico 31 

Fishery Management Council, I would move to deem the proposed 32 

rule as necessary and appropriate and give the council chairs 33 

authority to make any necessary changes.   34 

 35 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is there discussion? 36 

 37 

MR. PERRET:  Isn’t it NMFS that writes the regulations and not 38 

the council chairs? 39 

 40 

DR. CRABTREE:  At this point it is.  The South Atlantic has had 41 

a contractor in the past, but it no longer does and so at this 42 

point, they are being written by the -- 43 

 44 

MR. GRIMES:  Mr. Perret, the point is that the statute requires 45 

the council to submit FMPs and regulations along with those FMPs 46 

and although the Fisheries Service does actually draft the 47 

regulations, my office often hasn’t had time to review them and 48 
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others haven’t reviewed them and minor changes come up in that 1 

process and we just want to make sure that everyone understands 2 

that and that there’s some means to make minor changes. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion?  Hearing none, we’ll 5 

need a roll call vote as well, Dr. Bortone. 6 

 7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Ms. Williams. 8 

 9 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Yes. 10 

 11 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Boyd. 12 

 13 

MR. BOYD:  Yes. 14 

 15 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. McIlwain. 16 

 17 

DR. MCILWAIN:  Yes. 18 

 19 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Teehan. 20 

 21 

MR. TEEHAN:  Yes. 22 

 23 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Riechers. 24 

 25 

MR. RIECHERS:  Yes. 26 

 27 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Crabtree. 28 

 29 

DR. CRABTREE:  Yes. 30 

 31 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Sapp. 32 

 33 

MR. SAPP:  Yes. 34 

 35 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Anson. 36 

 37 

MR. ANSON:  Yes. 38 

 39 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Perret. 40 

 41 

MR. PERRET:  Yes. 42 

 43 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Hendrix. 44 

 45 

MR. HENDRIX:  Yes. 46 

 47 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. McKnight is absent.  Mr. 48 
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Pearce. 1 

 2 

MR. PEARCE:  Yes. 3 

 4 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Abele. 5 

 6 

DR. ABELE:  Yes. 7 

 8 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Greene. 9 

 10 

MR. GREENE:  Yes. 11 

 12 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Fischer. 13 

 14 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes. 15 

 16 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Mr. Gill. 17 

 18 

MR. GILL:  Yes. 19 

 20 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  Dr. Shipp. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Yes. 23 

 24 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  The motion passes sixteen four and 25 

one absent. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Gill, did you have something you wanted to 28 

do? 29 

 30 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  To repeat myself, as we 31 

discussed in committee, the intent of Actions 9 and 10 were to 32 

take them out of this amendment, so as not to delay it, but 33 

consider them additionally and move them into a separate 34 

amendment.  I move that we copy Actions 9 and 10 into their own 35 

amendment. 36 

 37 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Is this a Gulf action?  We have a Gulf 38 

committee motion to move Action 9 and Action 10 into their own 39 

amendment, which I don’t understand. 40 

 41 

MR. GILL:  Mr. Chairman, I think to copy, so that we’re not 42 

deleting it from this amendment, which was part of that 43 

discussion. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any discussion? 46 

 47 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Gill, didn’t you try this in committee and you 48 
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got beat? 1 

 2 

MR. GILL:  No, what I was talking about was taking them out of 3 

Amendment 10 and moving it into a separate amendment.  We had 4 

some discussion about that and it was considered easier just to 5 

copy them and leave them in this amendment and let this 6 

amendment proceed and not add additional work in making sure 7 

that in the deleting we got all the references and all that.  It 8 

effectively is the same thing, but no, it was not defeated in 9 

committee. 10 

 11 

MR. PERRET:  Will this change affect the drafted regulations?  12 

Have you got to go back and modify them if this motion passes? 13 

 14 

MR. GRIMES:  No, we removed or NMFS staff removed reference to 15 

these closed areas and the line marking requirements from the 16 

regulations, which is why you received a revised version this 17 

morning. 18 

 19 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion from the committee?  We 20 

have a committee motion for the full Gulf Council.  Any 21 

objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 22 

 23 

MR. ROBSON:  Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a similar motion 24 

on behalf of the South Atlantic Council, that we copy Actions 9 25 

and 10 from the Spiny Lobster Amendment 10 into their own 26 

amendment. 27 

 28 

MR. CUPKA:  We have a motion.  Is there a second? 29 

 30 

MR. GEIGER:  Second. 31 

 32 

MR. CUPKA:  Second by Mr. Geiger.  Is there discussion on the 33 

motion?  Is there any objection?  Seeing none, then that motion 34 

is approved. 35 

 36 

DR. CRABTREE:  Just a comment.  Depending on the timing of this, 37 

I believe when Amendment 10 is approved, then this could turn 38 

into a framework action. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Dr. Crabtree.  I believe that 41 

concludes the Spiny Lobster portion of the agenda.  Now we’re 42 

going to turn back to Mr. Hankinson, which is Agenda Item Number 43 

VII, Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration Task Force, Tab K, Number 44 

2.  John, are you ready?  As soon as he finishes his 45 

presentation, we’ll move to the joint Mackerel actions.  We’ll 46 

take a break after his presentation. 47 

 48 



255 

 

PRESENTATION ON GULF COAST ECOSYSTEM RESTORATION TASK FORCE 1 

 2 

MR. JOHN HANKINSON:  Thank you for inviting me to come speak and 3 

tell you a little bit about the Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration 4 

Task Force.  I feel underdressed.  I didn’t bring a laptop with 5 

me and so I’ll just have to do my best. 6 

 7 

MR. TEEHAN:  You’ve got the shirt and that works. 8 

 9 

MR. HANKINSON:  I wasn’t about to wear a suit down here.  I knew 10 

better than that.  I used to have the honor of flying down here 11 

to work on water quality issues at the Marine Sanctuary and I 12 

understand the dress code down here pretty well.  I also 13 

understand on Friday afternoon that I don’t need to be long-14 

winded and so I’ll try to cover this fairly quickly and then 15 

maybe can focus in on things that people want to get some 16 

specific input on. 17 

 18 

Essentially, the task force was a recommendation that came out 19 

of the work of Navy Secretary Ray Mabus.  Secretary Mabus was 20 

asked by the President to come down to the Gulf Coast sort of in 21 

the middle of the BP oil catastrophe and talk to people along 22 

the Gulf Coast to find out what additionally needed to be done 23 

beyond the response effort, to try to respond to the oil spill.  24 

He held a number of public meetings and spoke to a number of 25 

folks and scientists and brought back a report to the President. 26 

 27 

This is not new information to you, but the Gulf is extremely 28 

important in terms of seafood production for the entire nation 29 

and I think this report that Secretary Mabus did really focused 30 

on the value of the Gulf to the whole nation and it’s a really 31 

tremendous ecosystem. 32 

 33 

Our American part spans about 600,000 square miles and we have 34 

like one-third of seafood production in the continental U.S.  I 35 

enjoyed going to the market up in Washington, D.C. to pick up 36 

some shrimp and they were all from the Gulf and I understand 37 

their crabs come a lot from the Gulf, too.  When they brag about 38 

their crab cakes, they’re actually using crab from down here and 39 

they admitted that to me actually, when there was no press 40 

around. 41 

 42 

I don’t need to spend time on this.  You all know what a 43 

catastrophe this was and we’re still dealing with the response.  44 

There’s another process that’s underway.  Some of you may have 45 

heard of the Natural Resources Damages Assessment, which is 46 

trying to assess the damage to the Gulf and to identify what 47 

needs to be done to put the Gulf back in the condition that it 48 
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was on April 19, just before the spill. 1 

 2 

A billion dollars in restoration dollars have been identified 3 

from BP to begin that restoration process, but that is part of 4 

the response, what I call the response portion, of the Deepwater 5 

Horizon events. 6 

 7 

The Gulf of Mexico, however, has a number of chronic stressors 8 

that have been with us for some time.  We have a significant 9 

loss of wetlands in the lower left corner.  This is a map of the 10 

Mississippi Delta and Louisiana.   11 

 12 

It sorts of projects the amount of wetland loss that is going to 13 

happen there, plus losses that have already occurred.  I think 14 

it’s something like a football field every thirty-eight minutes 15 

in terms of wetlands that’s lost and part of that is from the 16 

lack of the ability of the delta to rebuild itself because of 17 

the channelization of the river for navigation and flood control 18 

keeps the sediments from going out in the delta as they did 19 

historically. 20 

 21 

You also have, on the right, the yellow and green chart is a 22 

graphic of the dead zone.  That’s a result from nutrients that 23 

come down the Mississippi River from agricultural operations 24 

primarily, but also municipal wastewater and other sources, and 25 

create a eutrophic situation in the Gulf. 26 

 27 

We’re also dealing with sea level rise and the loss of coastal 28 

barriers from storms.  Speaking of storms, if the Gulf wasn’t 29 

such a resilient place, it wouldn’t exist anymore, because it 30 

seems like we’re always talking about what was the latest 31 

calamity, but it still has a tremendously resilient group of 32 

folks that live around the edge of it and one of our efforts is 33 

to try to increase that resilience while we try to restore the 34 

ecosystem of the Gulf of Mexico. 35 

 36 

As I mentioned, the Mabus report was a recommendation to the 37 

President.  It was delivered there on October 5, 2010.  He 38 

recommended that a task force be established, the one that I’m 39 

the executive director of. 40 

 41 

It was to develop a plan for the long-term restoration and 42 

recovery of the region.  We’re supposed to base development of 43 

that strategy on input from the Gulf and from the best science 44 

that we can find.  It’s not an effort to create a new plan, but 45 

rather to build on the existing plans and programs that are 46 

available in the Gulf and to particularly identify if there are 47 

things that aren’t working, why they’re not working. 48 
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 1 

The interesting part about this task force is that we have both 2 

federal and state membership.  You see the federal members 3 

there.  Lisa Jackson, the EPA Administrator, is the Chair.  4 

Garret Graves from Louisiana is the Vice Chair and we have most 5 

of the key agencies that have a role in the Gulf and we’re 6 

working very hard with all of our members and getting 7 

stakeholder input. 8 

 9 

We’ve had four meetings and countless listening sessions.  Our 10 

effort is, as I said, to build on the efforts that are already 11 

underway, including your own, to help support the restoration of 12 

the Gulf of Mexico, because in addition to the impacts from the 13 

oil spill, there are a number of important components of the 14 

Gulf ecosystem that are under stress. 15 

 16 

This is basically the strategy.  I’m not going to spend -- I’ll 17 

try to encapsulate that in my comments.  One of the important 18 

pieces of the recommendations from Secretary Mabus, who was 19 

formally the Governor of Mississippi, was that in addition to 20 

developing this strategy for restoration, he recommended that a 21 

more permanent council be established. 22 

 23 

We are an advisory group, but even more importantly, perhaps, is 24 

that when there are fines that are obtained from BP and its 25 

codefendants for their misbehavior there in the Gulf that those 26 

fines be directed to support the restoration of the Gulf and its 27 

communities and not simply going back into the Treasury, as it’s 28 

currently provided for in the Oil Pollution Act. 29 

 30 

There’s some legislation that’s in the works, trying to make 31 

that happen.  It’s going to take a congressional fix, but that 32 

would create resources to do a lot of the things that we’re 33 

focusing on in the strategy. 34 

 35 

The principles that we’re relying on in our strategy come 36 

largely from that of the Mabus report, dealing with habitats 37 

along the coast, healthy fisheries, resilient communities, and 38 

healthy offshore and inshore habitats as well. 39 

 40 

I want to move past this pretty quickly.  We are having 41 

listening sessions and we’re to deliver this strategy to the 42 

President on October 5 of this year.  We’ve developed our four 43 

themes based on the Mabus theme and living coastal marine 44 

resources is one of the themes that would be the one most, I 45 

think, of interest to this group. 46 

 47 

One of the things that we’ve gotten a lot of input from, from 48 
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the stakeholders who are interested in fisheries, is that we 1 

need to expand the fisheries-dependent and fisheries-independent 2 

data available to improve the quality, I guess, of stock 3 

assessments and to give us an ecosystem-based way of addressing 4 

fisheries issues. 5 

 6 

We’re finding particularly in what we call the blue water there 7 

that the level of data and understanding is pretty limited and I 8 

think this would be a place to recommend some investment in our 9 

recommendations to the President. 10 

 11 

We also will be dealing with not just fisheries, recreational 12 

fisheries and commercial fisheries, but also fish that are 13 

important to the food web and other species that are included in 14 

the Gulf, some of which fall under the Endangered Species Act. 15 

 16 

We’re incorporating a lot of work on habitat, including your 17 

work on essential fish habitat.  I think the most important 18 

thing we can do is work on the habitat issues of the Gulf and 19 

we’re spending most of our effort looking at the habitat. 20 

 21 

Of course, the big poster child for that is the Mississippi 22 

Delta and the loss of wetlands there, but there are similar 23 

issues across the Gulf, loss of wetlands and loss of the sand 24 

barriers and loss of beaches.  This has gotten critical in many 25 

areas and hopefully we can devise a strategy that will encourage 26 

a better response to some of those areas. 27 

 28 

Our next meeting is in Galveston, Texas on June 27.  We will 29 

have our final meeting in Biloxi on August 29 and we will have 30 

numerous listening sessions across the region and we’ve had 31 

several rounds and we’ve gotten good input from many of the 32 

member organizations and people here in terms of things that we 33 

ought to be considering in developing our strategy and we very 34 

much appreciate that. 35 

 36 

We would encourage you to send us your thoughts right through 37 

this process, so we can make sure the strategy is responsive to 38 

all aspects of Gulf ecosystem restoration.   39 

 40 

With that, I would be happy to answer any questions that you may 41 

have.  Again, I’ve tried to be brief and if I’m too brief, I can 42 

go back and speak for another twenty minutes, but it might be 43 

better just to get some questions and find out what you’re 44 

interested in. 45 

 46 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, John. 47 

 48 
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MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mr. Hankinson, for coming and I 1 

appreciate it every time I get to sit in front of you, because 2 

you guys are doing a good job.  I love to see when you use this 3 

term “national treasure” for the Gulf coast, because it is a 4 

national treasure that we need to preserve and there’s no doubt 5 

about it. 6 

 7 

With that, there’s a motion I want to put up that I would like 8 

to present to the council that we can send something to you, 9 

some requests. 10 

 11 

MR. HANKINSON:  While we’re getting that up, I would just stress 12 

that one of the biggest challenges we have is explaining to the 13 

nation what a national treasure they have here in the Gulf and 14 

why it’s important. 15 

 16 

I think we’re beginning to see glimmers of hope that the nation 17 

is beginning to understand that.  Unfortunately, it has to be in 18 

the context of one disaster or another, but it’s not just a 19 

natural resource of incredible significance, but it’s also an 20 

economic resource of incredible significance and I think that 21 

message is slowly getting communicated. 22 

 23 

A lot of other areas that, in my judgment, don’t have the level 24 

of significance of the Gulf have gotten much more attention and 25 

I really think we all need to pull together and make sure the 26 

resources we need for good management in the Gulf get brought 27 

here. 28 

 29 

MR. PEARCE:  You know, Mr. Hankinson, I’ve had many discussions 30 

with Secretary Jackson about carrying our data collection and 31 

our processes into the future and creating not only the safest, 32 

but the best seafood in the world here in the Gulf of Mexico and 33 

so this motion is aimed at some of that.  I’ll read the motion 34 

to the council. 35 

 36 

The motion is that council staff compose a letter to Executive 37 

Director John Hankinson of the Gulf Coast Ecosystem Restoration 38 

Task Force (Task Force) to provide input on the Task Force’s 39 

Gulf Restoration Strategy due October 5, 2011.   40 

 41 

This letter shall briefly describe the importance of restoring 42 

marine ecosystem health and fishery resources.  More 43 

specifically, the letter shall recommend that the Task Force 44 

include in its Restoration Strategy an Ecosystem Restoration 45 

Goal dedicated to the implementation of an endowed Gulf of 46 

Mexico fisheries data collection, applied research and ecosystem 47 

monitoring program.  The letter shall explain that the program 48 
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be established for these reasons: 1)Track the status, trends and 1 

recovery of coastal, estuarine and marine habitats, and fishery 2 

species; 2)Enhance scientific knowledge of environmental or 3 

oceanographic factors affecting fisheries productivity to 4 

support better predictions of stock health and catch potential; 5 

3)Supply long-term, time-series data on fishery species health 6 

that resource managers can use for adaptive management, a 7 

“foundational element” identified by the Task Force to improve 8 

fisheries management; 4)Lead to innovations in more selective 9 

fishing gear, habitat-friendly gear, etc., based on the results 10 

of applied fisheries research; and 5)Provide a tracking tool for 11 

evaluating effectiveness of restoration efforts so that the 12 

public and decision makers can ‘course correct’ if needed.  That 13 

is my motion. 14 

 15 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Do we have a second?  We have a second.  16 

Discussion? 17 

 18 

MR. PEARCE:  The rationale for this motion is that after the 19 

Exxon Valdez spill, Alaska established and endowed marine 20 

ecosystem research and monitoring program called the North 21 

Pacific Research Board. 22 

 23 

The program has been a success and is a good model for the Gulf.  24 

The Alaska endowed program has led to new scientific insight 25 

into the Gulf of Alaska’s health and has produced new management 26 

tools, reduced interaction conflicts between fisheries, and 27 

resulted in more innovative sustainable fishery gear for Alaska 28 

fisheries. 29 

 30 

This endowment would complement the $500 million provided by BP 31 

for research oil spill impacts by focusing on restoration 32 

effectiveness, overall ecosystem health, and innovative applied 33 

fisheries research.  With that, I ask the council to pass this 34 

motion. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other discussion on the motion?   37 

 38 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Pearce, would you consider, and I don’t know 39 

where, but the second bullet, the second line, I would like to 40 

see us, somewhere in there, put endangered species and marine 41 

mammals, but I don’t know where to put it.  Would fisheries 42 

productivity, fisheries generic, cover everything? 43 

 44 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR BORTONE:  We’ll incorporate all those 45 

features.  I’ll run this letter by all of you and we can get 46 

input as it goes through. 47 

 48 
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MR. PERRET:  Thank you.  I would like to see that included. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Anything else?  Let’s go ahead and have a 3 

raise-your-hand vote on this.  All in favor signify by raising 4 

your hand; opposed.  Mr. Pearce, you have a unanimous motion 5 

passes. 6 

 7 

MR. PEARCE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other questions for John? 10 

 11 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Hankinson, for coming down.  It’s 12 

obvious to I think all of us that what you do and what we do are 13 

joined at the hip and so that makes us vitally interested in the 14 

things that you’re doing and the decisions you make. 15 

 16 

I just wanted to express on the record that we encourage you to 17 

communicate and keep us in the loop and we would be happy to do 18 

likewise the other way, so that when you get to the endpoint, 19 

we’re together on where you get to.  Anything we can do, please 20 

don’t hesitate to ask, but thank you again for coming. 21 

 22 

MR. HANKINSON:  Thank you very much and we certainly intend to 23 

do that.  Our staff is an interagency staff and we have people 24 

that are very familiar with these issues that you know and 25 

certainly the best conduit for that input. 26 

 27 

MR. PEARCE:  Just if you haven’t been working with John, you 28 

really need to.  It’s been good.  Secondly, I know we have a 29 

South Atlantic meeting coming up next week and I would hope that 30 

they would entertain this motion and do the same thing, because 31 

all of our fisheries interact and intermix together. 32 

 33 

MR. GEIGER:  I already voted for it.  It’s a joint meeting. 34 

 35 

MR. PEARCE:  I thought Corky was the only one that voted for 36 

other states and stuff. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Roy does it all the time.  If there’s no 39 

further discussions, let’s go ahead and take about a ten-minute 40 

break and reconvene at about quarter to three and we will go to 41 

Joint Mackerel. 42 

 43 

(Whereupon, a brief recess was taken.) 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Mr. Fischer, are you ready to begin our Joint 46 

Gulf and South Atlantic Mackerel Report, Tab C? 47 

 48 
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JOINT GULF AND SOUTH ATLANTIC FULL COUNCILS RE MACKEREL 1 

 2 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, we’re ready to begin.  Unlike 3 

some other committees, it’s not choreographed and so we’re just 4 

going to do the best we can and wing it. 5 

 6 

Where we’re going to start will be at Action 1 and the South 7 

Atlantic will run us through Actions 1 through 3 and then take 8 

us over from 13 through the end of the document, because theirs 9 

is getting final and ours is just going out for public hearings.  10 

Chairman Geiger, are you prepared to take over? 11 

 12 

MR. GEIGER:  Yes, sir.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Just as a 13 

matter of course here, Myron, I would like to thank you and 14 

Chairman Shipp and certainly members of the Gulf Council staff 15 

for all their hospitality and support of my Mackerel Committee 16 

during the brief time that we were here. 17 

 18 

This has been a great meeting and I appreciate -- Myron, we’ve 19 

worked together for a number of years on these issues and I 20 

appreciate how well I think both of our councils have worked 21 

together with regard to mackerel over that time and so again, 22 

thank you, Gulf Council, for your hospitality.  I appreciate it 23 

sincerely. 24 

 25 

Myron said it wasn’t choreographed.  He learned years ago that 26 

it was worthless to try and choreograph anything with me, 27 

because I would probably forget it.  I’ve already forgotten what 28 

I had for lunch and so with that, we’ll get started. 29 

 30 

Gregg has a fine document here and we’ll use our decision 31 

document to move through the first three joint amendments and 32 

then move on to the South Atlantic Council. 33 

 34 

The Joint Mackerel Committee met on June 8, 2011 in Key West, 35 

Florida.  Under Action 1, the committee made no changes to 36 

Action 1.  Myron, do you need to reconfirm that there were no 37 

changes made to Action 1 and we’ll move on? 38 

 39 

MR. FISCHER:  At this meeting, the Gulf Council committee 40 

members also agreed there would be no changes to Action 1.  We 41 

then went over to Action 2. 42 

 43 

MR. GEIGER:  The South Atlantic Fishery Management Committee 44 

recommends, and I so move, to accept Alternative 3, Option 1 as 45 

the preferred alternative.  Is there any discussion?  Any 46 

opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 1 

move, to accept Alternative 3, Option 1 as the preferred 2 

alternative under Action 2. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  5 

Any objections?  The motion passes. 6 

 7 

MR. GEIGER:  Action Number 3, the committees made no changes to 8 

Action 3.  Action 13, there were three motions and on behalf of 9 

the South Atlantic Committee, I move that we adopt the revised 10 

wording for Action 13-3.  Is there any discussion of that 11 

motion?  Is there any objection to that motion?  Seeing none, 12 

that motion carries. 13 

 14 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, the Gulf of Mexico Committee 15 

recommends, and I so move, to adopt the proposed revising 16 

wording for Action 13-3 as stated. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  19 

Any objection?  The motion passes. 20 

 21 

MR. GEIGER:  Still under Action 13, the South Atlantic Fishery 22 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt 23 

the proposed revised wording for Action 13-4.  Is there any 24 

discussion?  Any opposition?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee met and recommends, 27 

and I so move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 28 

13-4. 29 

 30 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any 31 

discussion?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 32 

 33 

MR. GEIGER:  Under Action 13 still, the South Atlantic Fishery 34 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt 35 

the proposed revised wording for Action 13-5.  Any discussion?  36 

Any objection on that motion?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, the Gulf of Mexico Committee 39 

recommends, and I so move, to adopt the proposed revised wording 40 

for Action 13-5. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  43 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 44 

 45 

MR. GEIGER:  Moving along to Action 14, the South Atlantic 46 

Fishery Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, 47 

to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 14.  Any 48 
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discussion?  Any opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that 1 

motion carries. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 4 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 14. 5 

 6 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  7 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 8 

 9 

MR. GEIGER:  Still on Action 14, the South Atlantic Fishery 10 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, that in 11 

Action 14 that Option 2c, 3c, and 4c be our preferred options.  12 

For the benefit of all the committee members, these motions are 13 

being shown in their entirety on the board.  Is there any 14 

discussion?  Any opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that 15 

motion carries. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 18 

move, that in Action 14 that Option 2c, 3c, and 4c be our 19 

preferred options.   20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  22 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes.  Mr. Geiger, do 23 

you have an additional motion about tracking? 24 

 25 

MR. GEIGER:  Yes, sir. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  To you then. 28 

 29 

MR. GEIGER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Still on Action 14, the 30 

South Atlantic Fishery Council Committee recommends, and I so 31 

move, for the purpose of tracking the ACL, the Atlantic group 32 

king mackerel season will be March 1 through the end of 33 

February.  Is there any discussion?  Any objection to that 34 

motion?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 35 

 36 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, the Gulf Council Committee 37 

recommends, for the purpose of tracking the ACL, the Atlantic 38 

group king mackerel season be set from March 1 through the end 39 

of February.   40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  42 

 43 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m not sure if this is the proper place to do 44 

it, but I just wanted to mention or perhaps maybe in a 45 

subsequent amendment, there’s been a request that this council 46 

move the start date to February, because you have some small 47 

vessels that are like thirty-five feet and they said that the 48 
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mackerel are migrating back to the north. 1 

 2 

They’re having to go out seventy miles in these thirty-five-foot 3 

boats, while some of the other people, because of the times that 4 

it starts, they’re only like twelve miles of travel and if we 5 

should move it back to around February 15, they would have to 6 

travel thirty instead of seventy and the others would have to 7 

travel thirty-four miles instead of twelve and it is a safety 8 

issue and so I don’t know if you can handle it here or not. 9 

 10 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, if I read the motion right, it’s the 11 

Atlantic group and the season will be March 1 through the end of 12 

February and is that not a year-round?  Am I missing something? 13 

 14 

MS. WILLIAMS:  They’re talking about the start date. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I see.  It is Atlantic group and so any other 17 

discussion on this? 18 

 19 

MR. GRIMES:  I would just point out this is just for monitoring 20 

purposes.  If you’re talking about changing the fishing year, 21 

when it’s actually opened, I would handle that separately from 22 

this. 23 

 24 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any other discussion?  Hearing none, any 25 

objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 26 

 27 

MR. GEIGER:  Action 15, the committees made no changes to Action 28 

15.  There was some guidance to staff here and I would like to 29 

take a moment to ensure that that’s read into the record.   30 

 31 

The committees provided guidance to staff that the discussion of 32 

overfishing level should be expanded to indicate that while the 33 

SSC has stated OFL is unknown, the councils will use the total 34 

ACL for Atlantic Migratory Group Spanish Mackerel to determine 35 

whether overfishing is occurring.  If total landings exceed the 36 

total ACL, then overfishing is occurring. 37 

 38 

Action 16, the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 39 

Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt the following 40 

revised wording for Action 16-3.  Is there any discussion?  Any 41 

opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 42 

 43 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf Council discussed Action 15 and there 44 

were no changes made to Action 15.  To move on to Action 16, the 45 

Gulf Council recommends, and I so move, to adopt the following 46 

revised wording for Action 16-3. 47 

 48 
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CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  1 

Any objections?  I hear none and the motion passes.  2 

 3 

MR. GEIGER:  Action 16 still, the South Atlantic Fishery 4 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to use 5 

the same approach the SSC used in calculating ABC for Atlantic 6 

group Spanish mackerel using sector landings for the ten-year 7 

timeframe instead of total landings for the ABC calculation.  Is 8 

there any discussion?  Any opposition to that motion?  Seeing 9 

none, that motion carries.  Chairman Fischer, I don’t know 10 

whether you guys need to ratify that. 11 

 12 

MR. WAUGH:  No, they don’t. 13 

 14 

MR. GEIGER:  I think that’s a separate action for the South 15 

Atlantic. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  I’m just trying to find it in here, George. 18 

 19 

MR. GEIGER:  It’s on page 10 of the decision document, the last 20 

paragraph, of the committee report. 21 

 22 

MR. WAUGH:  Can you just read that paragraph? 23 

 24 

MR. GEIGER:  For clarification, Gregg suggest that let me read 25 

this.  The South Atlantic Fishery Management Council SSC is 26 

being asked to review this change and if they agree, then the 27 

value in Preferred Alternative 2 would be changed to 6.072 28 

million pounds, as that would be the resulting ABC value from 29 

their ABC Control Rule.  The motion does not need to be approved 30 

by the Gulf Committee or the council. 31 

 32 

Still in Action 16, the South Atlantic Fishery Management 33 

Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt proposed 34 

revised wording for Action 16-4.  Is there any discussion?  Any 35 

opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 36 

 37 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf Council Committee recommends, and I so 38 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 16-4. 39 

 40 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?   41 

 42 

MR. GRIMES:  I was thinking about this last night and thinking 43 

about some of the stuff I said during these committee meetings 44 

and in looking at -- It comes up for Atlantic group Spanish 45 

mackerel in Action 16-4 and Action 17 and then we have the same 46 

issue in the Gulf section in Action 12, I believe it is, and 47 

then 14. 48 
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 1 

We set it up so that it’s characterized as a single ACL.  2 

Remember we had this discussion about having sector-specific 3 

accountability measures, but then a single annual catch limit?  4 

While we say it’s a single annual catch limit, for the South 5 

Atlantic you specify what the recreational sector allocation is 6 

and what the commercial allocation is and then accountability 7 

measures are set up so that the commercial sector closes when it 8 

reaches its quota and the recreational bag limit would zero when 9 

it reaches its share of the quota. 10 

 11 

We don’t really have separate annual catch limits.  We may set 12 

it up that way and I had discussed in committee how it was 13 

actually creating the possibility for this floating allocation 14 

and I don’t read it that way. 15 

 16 

To the extent I was saying that before, I was wrong or 17 

misinformed or whatnot and so if that’s what we intend to do 18 

with this, then we need to change what we have in the document 19 

now, but what we have now is essentially two annual catch limits 20 

or one annual catch limit with sector specific allocations and 21 

then accountability measures which are tied to those sector-22 

specific allocations, which is very different than what I had 23 

discussed in committee. 24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Don’t turn your mic off.  Tell us what to do. 26 

 27 

MR. GRIMES:  I think if you’re okay with that, then you vote it 28 

up as you have it and I’m fine with that.  I think what you have 29 

in the document is reasonable.  I read it differently before or 30 

maybe I was just not thinking, but either way, it’s different 31 

now than what I had said in committee.  Mr. Teehan is rubbing 32 

off on me and I’m making mistakes. 33 

 34 

MR. TEEHAN:  Shepherd, I’m shocked. 35 

 36 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We still have the committee motion.  Is there 37 

any further discussion?  If you’re content with the way it is 38 

and there’s no objections, the motion passes. 39 

 40 

MR. GEIGER:  We’re still on Action 16.  The South Atlantic 41 

Fishery Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, 42 

to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 16-5.  Is there 43 

any discussion?  Any objection to that motion?  Seeing none, 44 

that motion carries. 45 

 46 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 47 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 16-5. 48 
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 1 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  2 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 3 

 4 

MR. GEIGER:  Action 17, the South Atlantic Fishery Management 5 

Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt the 6 

proposed revised wording for Action 17, to set Options 2c, 3c, 7 

and 4c as preferred options and to set the accounting period for 8 

recreational and commercial equal to the commercial fishing 9 

year.  Is there any discussion?  Any objection to that motion?  10 

Seeing none, that motion carries. 11 

 12 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 13 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 17, which 14 

is to set Options 2c, 3c, and 4c as preferred options and to set 15 

the accounting period for recreational and commercial equal to 16 

the commercial fishing year. 17 

 18 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  19 

Any objections?  I hear none and the motion passes. 20 

 21 

MR. GEIGER:  Action 18, the South Atlantic Fishery Management 22 

Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt the 23 

proposed revised wording for Action 18.  Any discussion?  Any 24 

opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 25 

 26 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 27 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 18. 28 

 29 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  30 

Objections?  I hear none and the motion passes. 31 

 32 

MR. GEIGER:  Still on Action 18, the South Atlantic Fishery 33 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to 34 

change the preferred alternative in Action 18 to Alternative 1, 35 

no action.  Is there any discussion?  Any opposition to that 36 

motion?  Seeing none, that motion carries. 37 

 38 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 39 

move, to change the preferred alternative in Action 18 to 40 

Alternative 1, no action. 41 

 42 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  43 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 44 

 45 

MR. GEIGER:  Action 19, the South Atlantic Fishery Management 46 

Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt the 47 

proposed revised wording for Action 19-3.  Is there any 48 
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discussion?  Any opposition to the motion?  Seeing none, that 1 

motion carries. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 4 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 19-3, as 5 

stated. 6 

 7 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  8 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 9 

 10 

MR. GEIGER:  Action 19, the South Atlantic Fishery Management 11 

Council Committee recommends, and I so move, that in Action 19-12 

3, Alternative 4, to remove the words “Gulf of Mexico Fishery 13 

Management Council Preferred from Option b”.  Any discussion?  14 

Any opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that motion 15 

carries. 16 

 17 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 18 

move, in Action 19-3, Alternative 4, to remove the words “Gulf 19 

of Mexico Fishery Management Council Preferred from Option b”.   20 

 21 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  22 

Any objection?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 23 

 24 

MR. GEIGER:  Still in Action 19, the South Atlantic Fishery 25 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt 26 

the proposed revised wording for Action 19-4.  Is there any 27 

discussion?  Any objection to that motion?  Seeing none, that 28 

motion carries. 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 31 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 19-4. 32 

 33 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  34 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 35 

 36 

MR. GEIGER:  Still in Action 19, the South Atlantic Fishery 37 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt 38 

the proposed revised wording for Action 19-5.  Is there any 39 

discussion?  Any opposition to that motion?  Seeing none, that 40 

motion carries. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 43 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 19-5. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  46 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 47 

 48 
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MR. GEIGER:  Still in Action 19, the South Atlantic Fishery 1 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt 2 

the proposed revised wording for Action 19-6.  Is there any 3 

discussion?  Is there any opposition to that motion?  Seeing 4 

none, that motion carries. 5 

 6 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 7 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 19-6. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  10 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 11 

 12 

MR. GEIGER:  Moving on to Action 20, the South Atlantic Fishery 13 

Management Council Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt 14 

the proposed revised wording for Action 20 and to select Options 15 

3a, 4c, and 5c as preferred options and that the accounting for 16 

ACLs would be the commercial fishing year.  Is there any 17 

discussion?  Is there any opposition to that motion?  Seeing 18 

none, that motion carries. 19 

 20 

MR. FISCHER:  The Gulf of Mexico Committee recommends, and I so 21 

move, to adopt the proposed revised wording for Action 20 and to 22 

select Options 3a, 4c, and 5c as preferred options and that the 23 

accounting for ACLs would be the commercial fishing year.  24 

 25 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  26 

Any objections?  Hearing none, the motion passes. 27 

 28 

MR. GEIGER:  Before I get the opportunity to do the last action, 29 

I would again like to go on the record and recognize the 30 

Regional Office and the IPT and the staffs for their work in 31 

strengthening the wording in this document. 32 

 33 

Even though it came to us late, I think the work was very 34 

worthwhile and I thank you very much for that.  Also, I would 35 

like to recognize Gregg and our staff for putting together the 36 

decision document that really -- That format really allowed us 37 

to move quickly through this process and so thank you for that. 38 

 39 

Action 21, the South Atlantic Fishery Management Council 40 

Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt the proposed 41 

revised wording for Action 21.  Any discussion?  42 

 43 

MR. BOYLES:  I would like to make a substitute motion that we 44 

select Alternative 6 as our preferred. 45 

 46 

MR. GEIGER:  There’s a motion by Mr. Boyles to substitute 47 

Alternative 6 as our preferred alternative.  Is there a second?  48 
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For purpose of discussion?  I have a second for purpose of 1 

discussion by Mr. Hartig.  Go ahead, Mr. Boyles. 2 

 3 

MR. BOYLES:  The South Atlantic Committee knows that we’re very 4 

concerned about cobia in South Carolina.  Gregg has shared with 5 

us, as part of the discussion document, the projections for when 6 

the ACL would be met. 7 

 8 

I saw some information I think Gregg had that suggest that based 9 

on the accountability measures that we have just selected that 10 

the ACL will be projected to be met in the middle of Wave 3.  11 

That’s at the height of our fishery in South Carolina. 12 

 13 

I think we have the option to do something to reduce catches 14 

during the spawning season, which as designated in Alternative 15 

6, is April, May, and June, to reduce the bag limit to hopefully 16 

keep that catch down without closing the season.  That’s the 17 

reason I make that motion. 18 

 19 

MR. GEIGER:  Is there any other discussion concerning the 20 

motion? 21 

 22 

MR. FISCHER:  I think I would not want to dictate -- I don’t 23 

want to recommend what to do, but I do think you want to state 24 

that outside the spawning season that the limit reverts back to 25 

two. 26 

 27 

MR. BOYLES:  I think that’s implied.  Just during the months of 28 

April, May, and June the bag limit will be reduced from two to 29 

one. 30 

 31 

MR. GEIGER:  Any other discussion? 32 

 33 

MR. HARRIS:  I’m going to vote against the motion because I 34 

understand South Carolina’s dilemma with where the cobia are 35 

caught in that state.  Those are the most important months in 36 

Georgia for the migrating cobia moving offshore and so I’ll 37 

speak against the motion because I want our fishermen to have 38 

the greatest advantage for cobia at that time. 39 

 40 

MR. GEIGER:  Thank you, sir.  Any other discussion? 41 

 42 

MR. ROBSON:  I guess just a question in my mind.  If we were to 43 

select that alternative as the preferred, that would only be 44 

addressing the bag limit reduction?  The rest of the management 45 

in place, such as the size limit and everything, none of that 46 

would change, because that’s all specified in the current 47 

preferred alternative of no action. 48 
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 1 

What we would only be doing would be recommending a change to 2 

the bag limit in the EEZ and so I guess don’t have a real 3 

problem with that change, in that it won’t affect Florida 4 

regulations, because we already have a one fish bag limit and so 5 

in fact what I would prefer to see is that before any action is 6 

taken at the federal level to implement closed seasons, or such 7 

like that, that the other states would try to adopt that similar 8 

bag limit, as Florida has.  I’m okay with the change in the 9 

preferred at this point, from a Florida perspective. 10 

 11 

MR. BOYLES:  Mark, to that point, I would just remind the 12 

councils that under the accountability measure we have here, and 13 

to Mr. Harris’s point, when the ACL is met, the bag limit goes 14 

to zero. 15 

 16 

I look at this as a reasonable and prudent approach to manage 17 

this fishery in a way that we hope will sustain that fishery 18 

throughout the fishing year. 19 

 20 

MR. GEIGER:  Thank you.  Any other discussion concerning the 21 

substitute motion?  Seeing none, let’s have a show of hands.  22 

All those in favor show of hands, five; opposed.  Give me a show 23 

of hands again of those in favor, six; those opposed, five.  The 24 

motion carries. 25 

 26 

The substitute motion now becomes the main motion with the same 27 

sign.  All those in favor of the new main motion raise your 28 

hands, six; opposed, five.  The motion carries. 29 

 30 

MR. GRIMES:  I was just informed, just as an editorial matter, 31 

that the cobia limit is actually a possession limit.  I’m trying 32 

to dig that out of the regulations right now.  I would say 33 

unless you distinguish between a bag limit and a possession 34 

limit that they’re functionally the same thing, but you might 35 

want to consider tweaking the language in your alternative. 36 

 37 

MR. CUPKA:  I would make a motion then, if we need to, to reduce 38 

the possession limit from two to one and the rest of the wording 39 

there. 40 

 41 

MR. GEIGER:  We’ll wait until we get the full motion up on the 42 

board.  Phyllis, I think he said with the rest of the wording 43 

that’s in the current motion.  The motion is to reduce the 44 

possession limit of cobia from two to one -- 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we just voted to do this.  I think all 47 

you need to do is replace the word “bag” with the word 48 
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“possession” in all the alternatives here. 1 

 2 

MR. GEIGER:  Can we make those editorial changes and that’s 3 

acceptable to everybody? 4 

 5 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would think so. 6 

 7 

MR. GEIGER:  So that motion carries. 8 

 9 

DR. CRABTREE:  Wait a minute.  No motion carried. 10 

 11 

MR. GEIGER:  Mr. Cupka, are you going to reconsider your motion? 12 

 13 

MR. CUPKA:  With what Roy just said, if that’s the 14 

understanding, I’ll just remove my motion, retract my motion, 15 

with the understanding that it’s just an editorial change from 16 

bag limit to possession and it doesn’t require a motion. 17 

 18 

MR. GEIGER:  Phyllis, would you go back to the motion that was 19 

approved, to reduce the recreational bag limit?  Can we say 20 

reduce possession from two to one in lieu of the recreational 21 

bag limit? 22 

 23 

MR. CUPKA:  I’m just withdrawing the motion because Shep has 24 

indicated that we don’t need a motion to do that.  Is that 25 

correct?  I guess Roy indicated that. 26 

 27 

MR. GRIMES:  Don’t be attributing his statements to me, but yes, 28 

I think it’s fine as an editorial matter, just so long as we 29 

understand.  I don’t think we distinguish for cobia between bag 30 

and possession, but it is spelled out in the regulations as a 31 

possession limit, apparently.  We can fix that as long as 32 

everybody is okay with it. 33 

 34 

MR. GEIGER:  I’m not seeing any dissent amongst the committee 35 

members and so I guess we’re all okay with it and I guess we can 36 

move on. 37 

 38 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We would need to change ours too and since it’s 39 

the Atlantic, it doesn’t really matter to us.  Would you like to 40 

make that motion, Mr. Fischer? 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  I think procedurally I’ll have to say the Gulf of 43 

Mexico Committee recommends, and I so move, to adopt the 44 

proposed revised wording for Action 21.  However, at this time, 45 

I would introduce a substitute motion to the Gulf Council to, 46 

under Action 21, to use Alternative 6, reworded to state: Reduce 47 

the recreational possession limit from two to one cobia per day 48 
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during the spawning season, April 1 through June 30. 1 

 2 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  3 

We need a second.  Did you second it?  It’s a committee motion, 4 

but we need a second. 5 

 6 

MR. GRIMES:  A point of order, Mr. Chairman.  How could it be a 7 

committee motion?  It’s to make a change. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  It’s a substitute motion and so it will need a 10 

second.  We’ve got a second.  Discussion? 11 

 12 

MR. PERRET:  I think this is more trouble than it’s worth.  In 13 

the Gulf, we’ve got five states.  Mississippi has got a two fish 14 

bag limit and I don’t know if we can change for a two-month 15 

period of time. 16 

 17 

CHAIRMAN PERRET:  This is for Atlantic.  This is not us.  We’re 18 

not changing the Gulf cobia.  This is just the Atlantic, but for 19 

concurrence, we need to go along.  You’re right that that would 20 

start a war, Corky. 21 

 22 

MR. PERRET:  It’s more trouble if you’ve got four states 23 

involved.  I don’t know what the state bag limits are, but for a 24 

two-month period of time whether they can adjust their season or 25 

not, but that’s up to them. 26 

 27 

MR. GEIGER:  Chairman Fischer, could we just possibly change the 28 

wording in your Alternative 6 to say possession limit? 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  I read it to say possession limit. 31 

 32 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussions?   33 

 34 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Dr. Crabtree, would it be possible in this 35 

document to change our start date to February 16th for the Gulf?  36 

We have some small vessels that are thirty-five feet and they’re 37 

having to go, I’m told, seventy miles offshore to fish. 38 

 39 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Kay, I don’t think that refers to this motion. 40 

 41 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I thought you all were completely through with 42 

your motions.  I thought you was asking was there anything else 43 

and I apologize. 44 

 45 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further objections to this motion? 46 

 47 

MR. GEIGER:  It’s not a recreational possession limit.  It’s a 48 
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possession limit, because it applies to both commercial and 1 

recreational. 2 

 3 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We understand, but it’s your business and so 4 

you do what you want.  Any other discussion?  Any objections?  5 

Hearing none, the motion passes.  Mr. Robson, are we finished? 6 

 7 

MR. ROBSON:  I don’t know.  You just said something about -- I 8 

thought that this Alternative 6 as it was originally crafted was 9 

this is a recreational bag limit only and so that’s what I 10 

thought we were just selecting as our preferred. 11 

 12 

MR. GEIGER:  Mr. Grimes indicated that the bag limit and 13 

possession limit were virtually the same, but the bag limit for 14 

the commercial sector is the same.  It’s not somebody is saying. 15 

 16 

MR. GRIMES:  If I might, Mr. Chairman, I’ll read to you the 17 

restriction for cobia in the federal regulations.  This is Part 18 

622 of the Code of Federal Regulations: No person may possess 19 

more than two cobia per day in or from the Gulf, Mid-Atlantic, 20 

or South Atlantic EEZ, regardless of the number of trips or 21 

duration of a trip.  Thank you. 22 

 23 

DR. CHEUVRONT:  Mark, I think what you just voted for was to 24 

have a one fish possession for your commercial fishermen in 25 

Florida during the spawning season as well and if you would like 26 

to reconsider the vote, as being somebody who voted in the 27 

majority, I think that would probably be welcomed. 28 

 29 

MR. ROBSON:  I do want to reconsider then, I’m afraid, because 30 

we have a current state regulation for commercial harvest of two 31 

per person and so this could create all kinds of confusion and 32 

problems, at least in the State of Florida. 33 

 34 

We have a vessel limit and that’s less of an issue, but I don’t 35 

know exactly -- David, can you help me out here?  What do I need 36 

to do here? 37 

 38 

MR. CUPKA:  The alternative originally said the recreational bag 39 

limit and so maybe we could go back and the word “recreational”, 40 

to indicate it was the recreational possession limit that is 41 

going to change during that time period, but if we don’t say 42 

anything about the commercial, then I would assume it would 43 

still be two per day. 44 

 45 

MR. ROBSON:  Again, when I was looking at the current language 46 

in Alternative 6, I was thinking in terms of the recreational 47 

bag limit only. 48 
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 1 

MR. CUPKA:  That’s why I was saying if we go back and add the 2 

word “recreational” and say the recreational possession limit 3 

and not just the possession limit, because if we don’t indicate 4 

that it’s recreational, then it applies to both recreational and 5 

commercial. 6 

 7 

MR. ROBSON:  I guess I need some help.  What do I need to do 8 

here?  9 

 10 

DR. CRABTREE:  You need a motion to reconsider. 11 

 12 

MR. ROBSON:  I would like to make a motion to reconsider. 13 

 14 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I guess the Atlantic is in session right now. 15 

 16 

MR. FISCHER:  I do believe when the motion was read in, the 17 

tapes will reflect that it stated recreational. 18 

 19 

MR. GEIGER:  Originally, it did.  Let’s get it right and redo 20 

it, Mark.  Your motion is to reconsider and you need to make a 21 

motion to read it the way you want it. 22 

 23 

MR. CUPKA:  I would second the motion, but I think he’s right.  24 

It was not put up there right originally.  The only thing we 25 

changed was the term “bag limit” to “possession” and we didn’t 26 

take out the recreational, but when it got put up there, it was 27 

omitted.  If you want the record to be perfectly clear and 28 

straight, we can reconsider that motion and insert the word 29 

“recreational” before “possession limit” and if that’s what you 30 

want to do, I would second Mark’s motion to reconsider. 31 

 32 

MR. GEIGER:  We have a motion and a second. 33 

 34 

MR. BOYLES:  Just in the order of full disclosure, the way the 35 

public information document read, it did reference specifically 36 

the recreational bag limit.  I can tell you from South 37 

Carolina’s perspective that cobia are a bycatch species.  We 38 

don’t have a lot in South Carolina. 39 

 40 

I can certainly live with the clarification, but with the way I 41 

made the substitute motion, it was with the understanding that 42 

it was a possession limit.  Again, I’m concerned about the 43 

fishery shutting down in the middle of that season and I’m 44 

trying to find a way that we can stretch this one out. 45 

 46 

MR. GEIGER:  We’ve got a motion to reconsider.  Is there any 47 

other discussion?  Any opposition?  Seeing none -- 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  We go back to the motion now. 2 

 3 

MR. GEIGER:  We go back to the original motion, if we can find 4 

that.  The original motion was the South Atlantic Fishery 5 

Management Council in Action 21 that the preferred alternative 6 

be Alternative 6.  Alternative 6 is to reduce the recreational 7 

possession limit from two to one cobia per person per day during 8 

the spawning season April 1 through June 30. 9 

 10 

MR. GRIMES:  From what I just heard, this is predominantly a 11 

recreational species anyway and the intent was to slow the 12 

harvest down so that fish would still be available in South 13 

Carolina. 14 

 15 

I haven’t really heard anything, but I think you should address 16 

the differentiation between recreational and commercial, which I 17 

didn’t appreciate the first time around, but how would you keep 18 

-- Is it reasonable to keep commercial fishermen at two while 19 

recreational fishermen are constrained to one? 20 

 21 

DR. CRABTREE:  I voted in favor of this the first time around, 22 

but I’m going to vote against it this time and support leaving 23 

it as status quo.  This, to me, is getting too confused and it’s 24 

too last minute and I am concerned that we’re cutting back on 25 

the recreational but we’re not cutting back on the commercial 26 

and that’s going to lead to all kinds of potential equity 27 

concerns. 28 

 29 

I understand what you’re getting at, Robert, and I’m happy to 30 

revisit it some other time, but I’m afraid right now we’re just 31 

digging ourselves in a hole. 32 

 33 

MR. GEIGER:  We’ve got a motion on the floor and it’s been 34 

seconded.  Any other discussion?  Seeing no further discussion, 35 

a show of hands in favor of the motion. 36 

 37 

MR. WAUGH:  What is the motion? 38 

 39 

MR. GEIGER:  I’ve just been asked what is the motion.  It’s in 40 

Action 21 that the preferred alternative -- 41 

 42 

MR. WAUGH:  That’s it up there? 43 

 44 

MR. GEIGER:  That’s it. 45 

 46 

MR. WAUGH:  I thought what Roy was just saying was he didn’t 47 

want to change it to one. 48 
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 1 

MR. GEIGER:  We’ve got a motion with a second and clarification 2 

to staff.  All those in favor of the motion a show of hands, 3 

please, four; those opposed, six.  The motion fails. 4 

 5 

That was the substitute motion and I guess we go back now to our 6 

main motion.  On behalf of the South Atlantic Fishery Management 7 

Council Committee, I so move to adopt the proposed revised 8 

wording for Action 21.  Any discussion?  Seeing none, that 9 

motion carries. 10 

 11 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We’ll have to revisit ours. 12 

 13 

DR. CRABTREE:  Where we are on the cobia bag limit is we’re back 14 

to no action as the preferred?  Okay. 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  For the Gulf, we need to revisit ours. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, in light of recent discussions by 19 

the South Atlantic, I wish to reconsider our motion on Action 20 

21. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  All those in favor of reconsidering say aye; 23 

opposed.  The motion carries. 24 

 25 

MR. FISCHER:  I would like to -- I created a substitute motion 26 

that I --  27 

 28 

DR. CRABTREE:  I believe we just need to vote on the motion 29 

again and vote it down. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  That’s correct.  All opposed to the substitute 32 

motion signify by saying aye; in favor, none.  That brings us 33 

back to the original motion. 34 

 35 

The committee motion is to adopt the proposed revised wording 36 

for Action 21.  Any discussion?  Objections?  The motion passes.   37 

 38 

MR. GEIGER:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That’s the last action on 39 

our page. 40 

 41 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Thank you, Mr. Geiger. 42 

 43 

MR. GILL:  In public testimony yesterday, we heard several 44 

concerns that have not been addressed relative to king mackerel 45 

and it seems appropriate that we should initiate an amendment to 46 

address these concerns. 47 

 48 
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I move that we start an amendment for king mackerel to include a 1 

transit clause and to increase the hook and line daily trip 2 

limit to 3,000 pounds. 3 

 4 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a second. 5 

 6 

MR. GRIMES:  Don’t we need to go through the Gulf portion of 7 

Mackerel 18 and then get to this, it seems to me? 8 

 9 

MR. FISCHER:  We’re just notifying the South Atlantic that we’re 10 

going to begin a new document. 11 

 12 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  We have a little technical problem here.  I’m 13 

about to leave and Mr. Gill would not be able to make motions in 14 

my absence and so with your indulgence, could we address his 15 

motion first and then return to Amendment 18?  Let’s address his 16 

first.  Any further discussion on his motion?  17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  We also have a slate of other items, including 19 

season start dates, and Rick has a few other issues that could 20 

go into this amendment. 21 

 22 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion of the benefits of this 23 

amendment?  Any objections to the motion?  You object, Kay? 24 

 25 

MS. WILLIAMS:  No, I still need to ask Roy a question. 26 

 27 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Does it have to do with this motion? 28 

 29 

MS. WILLIAMS:  It has to do with this motion. 30 

 31 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Okay, then go ahead. 32 

 33 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I can see where you’re wanting to develop a new 34 

amendment, but I’m just asking Roy if for some reason we can’t 35 

go ahead and do the change date, due to this safety issue that 36 

they’re having with the start date. 37 

 38 

I’ve been asked that they be, and it’s the gillnet fishery, be 39 

allowed to start somewhere around February 16, because they have 40 

thirty-five-foot boats and they’re having to go out seventy 41 

miles.   42 

 43 

The other vessels they’re competing with, they’re going out 44 

about twelve miles, whereas if we were to start them around 45 

February 15 or 16, then they would equally go out around thirty 46 

miles, but I’m only asking because it’s a safety issue, rather 47 

than waiting to develop a new amendment. 48 
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 1 

DR. CRABTREE:  I think we’re at a stage where it would need to 2 

go in this new amendment at this point. 3 

 4 

MR. FISCHER:  Right and I think this is a scoping document and 5 

Kay’s issues and everyone else’s issues will be fleshed out and 6 

obviously it will be more than just two items on the scoping 7 

document. 8 

 9 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  Any further discussion on this motion?  All in 10 

favor signify by saying aye; opposed.  The motion passes.  Mr. 11 

Fischer, we go back to you. 12 

 13 

MR. FISCHER:  Chairman Shipp, you will be departing us rather 14 

soon? 15 

 16 

CHAIRMAN SHIPP:  I am going to be departing very soon.  I need 17 

to make preparations to get on the airplane.  It takes about an 18 

hour for me to do that. 19 

 20 

MR. FISCHER:  I do thank you for getting us through this much 21 

and definitely thank the South Atlantic Council.  Why does it 22 

take so long? 23 

 24 

Okay, council members, the Gulf Council also met concurrently 25 

with the South Atlantic and we have to go through Items 4 to 26 

roughly 12 and get as far as we can.  We actually have to get it 27 

accomplished today. 28 

 29 

I will try to stay with the bold print and not read the detail.  30 

On Action 4, which is to set the Acceptable Biological Catch 31 

Control Rule for Gulf Group Cobia and Set the Annual Catch Limit 32 

for Gulf Group Cobia, the committee recommends, and I so move, 33 

that the preferred alternative be Alternative 2, to adopt the 34 

Gulf Council’s ABC control rule.  There was a side note that the 35 

SSC used Tier 3a to set the ABC at 1.46 million pounds. 36 

 37 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion?  Seeing 38 

no discussion, any objection?  Seeing no objection, the motion 39 

passes. 40 

 41 

MR. FISCHER:  In Action 5, which is to Set Annual Catch Limit, 42 

the ACL, and Annual Catch Target, ACT, for Gulf Group Cobia, 43 

Action 5.1 was the ACL.  The committee recommends, and I so 44 

move, that the preferred alternative be Alternative 2, to set 45 

ACL equal to ABC for Gulf group cobia, which is 1.46 million 46 

pounds based on preferred ABC, with Preferred Option a, to set a 47 

single stock ACL. 48 
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 1 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion 2 

on the committee motion? 3 

 4 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Can you tell me why you chose that time period, 5 

2000 through 2009? 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  That’s not the preferred option, Kay.  The preferred 8 

option is Option a.  You’re talking about Option b. 9 

 10 

MS. WILLIAMS:  About Option b, I’m sorry.  I guess I need 11 

stronger glasses.  I apologize.  Thank you. 12 

 13 

MR. GILL:  Is there further discussion on the motion?  Is there 14 

any objection to the motion?  The motion passes. 15 

 16 

MR. FISCHER:  In addition on 5.1, the committee recommends, and 17 

I so move, that Alternatives 4 and 5, ACL equals 85 percent and 18 

80 percent of ABC, respectively, be moved to the considered but 19 

rejected section. 20 

 21 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion?  22 

Any objection to the motion?  The motion carries. 23 

 24 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 5.2, Annual Catch Target for Gulf Group 25 

Cobia, the committee previously had selected its preferred 26 

alternative, but following discussion, the committee recommends, 27 

and I so move, that the preferred alternative be Alternative 2, 28 

set ACT at 90 percent of ACL for Gulf group cobia, which is 1.31 29 

million pounds, with Preferred Option a, to set a single stock 30 

ACT.  31 

 32 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on the 33 

motion?  Any objection to the motion?  The motion carries. 34 

 35 

MR. FISCHER:  In Action 6, to Set Accountability Measures for 36 

Gulf Group Cobia, the committee recommends, and I so move, that 37 

the preferred alternative be Preferred Alternative 2, set in-38 

season AMs for Gulf group cobia, with Preferred Option a.  If 39 

the ACT is reached or projected to be reached within a fishing 40 

year, the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries shall file a 41 

notification with the Office of the Federal Register to close 42 

the fishery for the remainder of the fishing year. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion 45 

on the committee motion?  Is there any objection to the 46 

committee motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries. 47 

 48 
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MR. FISCHER:  In Action 7, the Acceptable Biological Catch 1 

Control Rule for Gulf Group King Mackerel, the committee 2 

recommends, and I so move, that the Preferred Alternative be 3 

Preferred Alternative 2, to adopt the Gulf Council’s ABC Control 4 

rule.  [Note: the SSC used Tier 1 to set ABC through 2013] at 5 

11.9 million in 2012 and 10.8 million in 2013. 6 

 7 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion 8 

on the motion?  Is there any objection to the motion?  The 9 

motion carries. 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  In Action 8, Set Annual Catch Limit and Annual 12 

Catch Target for Gulf Group King Mackerel, Action 8.1, which is 13 

the Annual Catch Target, the committee recommends, and I so 14 

move, that the preferred alternative be Preferred Alternative 2, 15 

set ACL equal to ABC for Gulf group king mackerel, which would 16 

be 11.9 million pounds for 2012.  Option a is set a single ACL.  17 

Preferred Option b is set separate commercial and recreational 18 

ACLs based on current allocation.  Recreational would be 8.092 19 

million pounds and commercial 3.808 million pounds.  Preferred 20 

Option c is for the commercial sector, set separate ACLs for 21 

hook and line and run-around gillnets, hook and line receiving 22 

3,200,386 pounds and gillnet, 607,614 pounds. 23 

 24 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on the 25 

motion?  Any objection to the motion?  The motion carries. 26 

 27 

MR. FISCHER:  Following further discussion, the committee 28 

recommends, and I so move, that Alternative 6, to set ACL equal 29 

to 75 percent of ABC for Gulf group king mackerel, which is 8.9 30 

million pounds for 2012, be moved to the considered but rejected 31 

section. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion 34 

on the motion?  Is there any objection to the motion?  The 35 

motion carries. 36 

 37 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 8.2, to Set Annual Catch Target for Gulf 38 

Migratory Group King Mackerel, the committee recommends, and I 39 

so move, that the preferred alternative be Preferred Alternative 40 

1, no action, do not set an ACT for Gulf group king mackerel. 41 

 42 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on the 43 

motion?  Any objections to the motion?  The motion carries. 44 

 45 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I had discussion. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  I’m sorry, Kay. 48 
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 1 

MS. WILLIAMS:  Can you tell me if the quotas have ever been over 2 

on either side, commercial or recreational?  When you said don’t 3 

set an ACT, do we have those under control? 4 

 5 

MR. FISCHER:  Yes.  Steve can address it for you. 6 

 7 

DR. LEARD:  The catches haven’t been over since probably about 8 

1998, when we increased the total allowable catch to 10.6 9 

million pounds. 10 

 11 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 9, Set Accountability Measures for Gulf 12 

Migratory Group King Mackerel, after discussion, the committee 13 

recommends, and I so move, that the preferred alternative be 14 

Preferred Alternative 1, no action, retain current in-season 15 

accountability measures for Gulf group king mackerel with Option 16 

a. Commercial and Suboption i.  If the quota (=ACT) for a zone, 17 

subzone, or gear is reached or projected to be reached within a 18 

fishing year, the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will 19 

file a notification with the Office of the Federal Register to 20 

close that zone, subzone, or gear for the remainder of the 21 

fishing year. 22 

 23 

Suboption ii.  If 75 percent of quota (=ACT) is reached or 24 

projected to be reached within a fishing year, the Assistant 25 

Administrator for Fisheries will file a notification with the 26 

Office of the Federal Register to reduce the trip limit to 500 27 

pounds per day for the northern and southern west coast Florida 28 

subzones.  Option b, Recreational, The Regional Administrator 29 

has authority via the framework to revert the bag limit to zero 30 

if fishermen have achieved or are expected to achieve their 31 

allocation. 32 

 33 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on the 34 

motion?   35 

 36 

MR. ANSON:  I brought this up in committee.  Just a point of 37 

clarification.  I wondered if the section where it says if the 38 

quota (=ACT), if that should be changed to if the quota (=ACL) 39 

or just simply if the ACL, since we didn’t establish any ACT or 40 

recommend any ACTs for this species. 41 

 42 

DR. CRABTREE:  I see staff nodding their heads yes. 43 

 44 

MR. FISCHER:  Is that an amendment to the motion? 45 

 46 

DR. CRABTREE:  I would say it’s just a wording change. 47 

 48 
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MR. GILL:  Phyllis, if you could change, in Option a, the “ACT” 1 

to “ACL” on both suboptions, please.  Is there further 2 

discussion on the motion?  Any objections to the motion as 3 

modified?  The motion carries. 4 

 5 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 10, Acceptable Biological Catch Control 6 

Rule for Gulf Group Spanish Mackerel, following discussion, the 7 

committee recommends, and I so move, that the preferred 8 

alternative be Preferred Alternative 2, adopt the Gulf Council’s 9 

ABC Control rule and note that the SSC used Tier 3a to set ABC 10 

at 5.15 million pounds. 11 

 12 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on the 13 

motion?   14 

 15 

MS. WILLIAMS:  I’m going to speak in opposition. 16 

 17 

MR. GILL:  Would you give reason for the opposition, Kay? 18 

 19 

MS. WILLIAMS:  When they were setting the ABCs, to me they 20 

didn’t really use any biological information to do so.  It was 21 

basically they haven’t caught it and there’s really no reason to 22 

raise it or do anything and so we’ll just set it here.  I was 23 

there and I heard the discussion and to me, that’s not 24 

scientific. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Opposition noted.  Is there further discussion on the 27 

motion?  All those in favor of the motion say aye; all opposed 28 

like sign.  The motion passes. 29 

 30 

MR. FISCHER:  In Action 11, Set Annual Catch Limit and Annual 31 

Catch Target for Gulf Group Spanish Mackerel, Action 11.1 is to 32 

set the annual catch limit.   33 

 34 

After discussion, the committee recommends, and I so move, that 35 

the preferred alternative be Preferred Alternative 2, set the 36 

ACL equal to ABC for Gulf group Spanish mackerel, with Preferred 37 

Option a, set a single ACL. 38 

 39 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on the 40 

motion?  Any objection to the motion?  The motion carries. 41 

 42 

MR. FISCHER:  In addition on this portion, the committee 43 

discussed and recommends, and I so move, that Alternatives 4 and 44 

5, ACL equals 85 percent and 80 percent of the ABC, 45 

respectively, be moved to the considered but rejected section. 46 

 47 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there discussion on 48 
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the motion?  Is there any objections to the motion?  Seeing 1 

none, the motion carries. 2 

 3 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 11.2, Set Annual Catch Target for Gulf 4 

Migratory Group Spanish Mackerel, the Committee recommends, and 5 

I so move, that the preferred alternative be Alternative 1, no 6 

action, do not set an ACT for Gulf group Spanish mackerel. 7 

 8 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Is there any discussion 9 

on the motion?  Any objection to the motion?  Seeing none, the 10 

motion carries. 11 

 12 

MR. FISCHER:  Action 12 is Accountability Measures, to set the 13 

accountability measures on Gulf group Spanish mackerel.  14 

Following discussion, the committee recommends, and I so move, 15 

that the preferred alternative be Preferred Alternative 1, no 16 

action, retain current in-season accountability measures for 17 

Gulf group Spanish mackerel.  Option a, Commercial, if the quota 18 

(=ACT) is reached or projected to be reached within a fishing 19 

year, the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will file a 20 

notification with the Office of the Federal Register to close 21 

the commercial sector for the remainder of the fishing year.  22 

Option b, Recreational, the Regional Administrator has authority 23 

via the framework to revert the bag limit to zero if fishermen 24 

have achieved or are expected to achieve their allocation. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion and, Roy, the same point 27 

that Mr. Anson made is true and this should be ACL and not ACT?  28 

Is there further discussion on the motion?  Any objection to the 29 

motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries. 30 

 31 

MR. FISCHER:  Mr. Chairman, on behalf of the committee, I move 32 

that the Joint Mackerel Amendment 18 be sent to public hearings.  33 

I also recommend that Gregg or Rick or Steve explain the timing 34 

of the events coming up from now until August. 35 

 36 

MR. GILL:  We have a committee motion.  Any discussion on the 37 

motion?  Perhaps, Rick, you could address the issue raised by 38 

Chairman Fischer. 39 

 40 

DR. LEARD:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  The plan right now is, of 41 

course, for us to go to public hearings, assuming you all 42 

approve this motion.  we’ll clean the document up and we’ll add 43 

all of the South Atlantic Council changes and additions and make 44 

a complete document that we will take to our public hearings. 45 

 46 

We will also pass that document on to the South Atlantic 47 

Council.  Our plan is that the South Atlantic Council, at their 48 
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I believe it’s August 8th meeting, will approve the document and 1 

have the regulations and deem them necessary and appropriate, 2 

contingent upon us not making any changes to the document as a 3 

result of our public hearings or any other discussions that we 4 

might have at our subsequent August meeting. 5 

 6 

If that be the case, then we would then approve the document to 7 

send to the Secretary and deem the regulations necessary and 8 

appropriate and it will be finished. 9 

 10 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Dr. Leard.  Have locations for public 11 

hearings been chosen already? 12 

 13 

DR. LEARD:  Yes. 14 

 15 

MR. GILL:  Very good.  Any other discussion on the motion?  Any 16 

objections to the motion?  Seeing none, the motion carries. 17 

 18 

MR. FISCHER:  I would really like to thank Rick and the staff of 19 

the Gulf Council for bringing the document from where it was the 20 

last meeting to where it was now.  I do know it probably took 21 

some of the IPT involved and also I would like to thank the 22 

South Atlantic for all their participation and hard work they 23 

had in trying to get a joint document together, un-24 

choreographed. 25 

 26 

MR. GILL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank you also, South 27 

Atlantic Council.  28 

 29 

MR. TEEHAN:  It may have been un-choreographed, but you guys had 30 

a lot of down time, confusion.  Rick, where are the locations in 31 

Florida, if you’ve got them in front of you?  If you don’t, we c 32 

can talk offline. 33 

 34 

DR. LEARD:  I don’t have them in front of me.  They may be on 35 

our website. 36 

 37 

MR. PERRET:  Mr. Chairman, you may have hopefully learned a 38 

lesson from the excellent job your committee chairs did, Mr. 39 

Teehan and Mr. Fischer.  The council basically went along with 40 

the committee recommendations and why you can’t do as good a job 41 

with the Reef Fish Committee is beyond me, but hopefully we’ll 42 

improve on other committees too. 43 

 44 

MR. GILL:  I think we should recognize Chairman Robson and 45 

Geiger as well.  That, for the Gulf Council, concludes all items 46 

on the agenda.  Is there any other business to be brought before 47 

the council?  I do have one administrative note. 48 
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 1 

The administrative note for the Gulf Council is those intending 2 

to go to Ed Sapp’s dinner tonight, several things.  If you 3 

didn’t get the note, it’s at the A&B Lobster House at 6:30.  4 

There will be shuttles downstairs leaving at six o’clock to 5 

accommodate the entire crowd, which currently stands at twenty-6 

four people. 7 

 8 

All folks who have asked, verbally or otherwise, to attend are 9 

welcome and so six o’clock and there will be shuttles.  The A&B 10 

Lobster House is down on Front Street, down on the docks.  11 

That’s the information there.  Seeing no other business, this 12 

council stands adjourned. 13 

 14 

(Whereupon, the meeting adjourned at 3:55 p.m., June 10, 2011.) 15 

 16 

- - - 17 

18 
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 2 

PAGE 95:  Motion that the council rename the Ad Hoc Headboat 3 

Individual Fishing Quota Advisory Panel to be named Ad Hoc 4 

Headboat Advisory Panel.  The motion carried on page 108. 5 

 6 

PAGE 110:  Motion that the charge of the Ad Hoc Headboat 7 
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carried on page 115. 18 

 19 

PAGE 116:  Motion to combine the Vessel Monitoring System 20 

Advisory Panel and the Data Collection Advisory Panel into one 21 

panel and to eliminate the ad hoc status.  The motion carried on 22 

page 117. 23 

 24 

PAGE 118:  Motion to adopt the budget as indicated in Tab E, 25 
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accordance with the 2011 rerun, starting in 2011 and implemented 30 

as soon as possible.  The motion carried on page 122. 31 

 32 
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the event the quota for red grouper is raised that alternatives 34 
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page 123. 37 
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 1 

PAGE 139:  Motion that in Action 2.1, to make Alternative 4, 2 

Option a the preferred alternative.  Alternative 4 is to set the 3 

longest gag season possible: July 1 through October 31, two fish 4 

gag bag limit, four fish aggregate bag limit, for a total of 123 5 

days.  Option a is a twenty-two-inch minimum size limit, which 6 

results in a 50 percent reduction from the 2009 baseline and a 7 

53 percent reduction from 2006 through 2008 baseline.  The 8 

motion carried on page 139. 9 

 10 

PAGE 140:  Motion that in Action 4, establish Alternative 3 as 11 

an additional preferred alternative.  Alternative 3 is based on 12 

the commercial red grouper annual catch limit, red grouper 13 

allocation, and gag allocation, set the percentage of gag 14 

individual fishing quota allocation converted into multi-use 15 

allocation as follows: gag multiuse in percent equals 100 times 16 

[red grouper annual catch limit minus red grouper allocation] 17 

divided by gag allocation.  The gag multi-use percentage will be 18 

recalculated following adjustments in red grouper annual catch 19 

limit, red grouper allocation, or gag allocation.  If a 20 

rebuilding plan is in effect for red grouper, these multi-use 21 

shares will be suspended until NOAA Fisheries declares red 22 

grouper fully rebuilt.  The motion carried on page 140. 23 

 24 

PAGE 140:  Motion that in Action 6, the preferred alternative be 25 

Alternative 3, Option c.  Alternative 3 is to close an area 26 

bracketing the forty-fathom contour between the current closed 27 

areas of Madison-Swanson and the Edges, approximately 244 square 28 

nautical miles, making one continuous area.  It provides the 29 

boundaries for that additional area, which I will not read, but 30 

it includes the area between the current Edges and the south end 31 

of Madison-Swanson.  Option c is all fishing is prohibited 32 

January 1 through April 30 and all fishing allowed May 1 through 33 

December 31 (identical to current Edges regulations).  The 34 

motion carried on page 142. 35 

 36 

PAGE 142:  Motion to postpone final action on Amendment 32 until 37 

the August 2011 council meeting.  The motion carried on page 38 

142. 39 

 40 

PAGE 143:  Motion that in the Options Paper for Amendment 35 to 41 

Adjust TAC for Greater Amberjack, in Action 2.3, to add a new 42 

Alternative 4.  Alternative 4 is no closed season.  The motion 43 

carried on page 143. 44 

 45 

PAGE 143:  Motion that in Action 2.3, to add a new alternative 46 

that modifies Alternative 1, beginning the closure in May.  The 47 

motion carried on page 143. 48 
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 1 

PAGE 146:  Motion that staff add some alternatives that allow 2 

greater amberjack to open on the day after red snapper closes.  3 

The motion carried on page 146. 4 

 5 

PAGE 147:  Motion that in Action 1, that Alternative 2 be the 6 

preferred alternative.  Alternative 2 is to eliminate income 7 

requirements.  The motion failed on page 148. 8 

 9 

PAGE 148:  Motion to accept the regulations in Tab B, Number 14 10 

as presented and deem them necessary and appropriate and submit 11 

them to the Secretary of Commerce for implementation.  The 12 

motion carried on page 153. 13 

 14 

PAGE 156:  Motion to write a letter to the Director of BOEMRE to 15 

indicate the council’s concern with the current rate of platform 16 

removal and to consider taking steps to slow that removal and 17 

consider the biological implications and to copy the Gulf States 18 

Congressional delegates and the five Natural Resource Directors.  19 

The motion carried on page 157. 20 

 21 

PAGE 158:  Motion that the Artificial Reef Committee be 22 

scheduled to meet at the August 2011 council meeting to discuss 23 

oil platform removal and the loss of habitat associated with 24 

that removal and to have staff arrange for a BOEMRE 25 

representative to attend.  The motion carried on page 158. 26 

 27 

PAGE 165:  Motion that the council hold additional public 28 

hearings in the Fort Myers, Florida; Tampa/St. Petersburg, 29 

Florida; and Panama City, Florida areas for Amendment 32 to be 30 

held no less than fifteen days after the availability of the 31 

document.  The motion carried on page 167. 32 

 33 

PAGE 171:  Motion that in Action 1.4 that Alternative 1 be the 34 

preferred alternative.  The motion carried on page 171. 35 

 36 

PAGE 171:  Motion that in Action 1.5 that the preferred 37 

alternative be Alternative 1.  The motion carried on page 171. 38 

 39 

PAGE 172:  Motion to request that council staff examine 40 

inclusion/exclusion of species/species groupings in FMPs for 41 

suitability every five years at a minimum and make 42 

recommendations to the council after review by the SSC.  The 43 

motion carried on page 173. 44 

 45 

PAGE 174:  Motion that Queen snapper, yellowfin grouper, and 46 

blackfin snapper not be removed from the Reef Fish Fishery 47 

Management Plan.  The motion carried on page 176. 48 
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 1 

PAGE 179:  Motion that in Action 3, that the preferred 2 

alternative be Alternative 5, Option c.  The motion carried on 3 

page 179. 4 

 5 

PAGE 182:  Motion in the alternatives in Action 6, to modify the 6 

language to include specification of ACTs or sector ACTs and 7 

modifications to the ACL/ACT control rule.  The motion carried 8 

on page 182. 9 

 10 

PAGE 183:  Motion that in Action 7.3.2 that Alternative 3 be the 11 

preferred alternative.  The motion carried on page 183. 12 

 13 

PAGE 183:  Motion that in Action 7.3.3 for mutton snapper that 14 

Alternative 2 be the preferred alternative, reflecting the catch 15 

history through 2008.  The motion carried on page 183. 16 

 17 

PAGE 183:  Motion that in Action 7.4 that Alternative 4 be the 18 

preferred alternative.  The motion carried on page 186. 19 

 20 

PAGE 187:  Motion that in Action 8, to modify Alternative 3.  21 

Alternative 3 is to implement in-season accountability measures.  22 

For reef fish and royal red shrimp stocks and sectors with ACLs 23 

that do not currently have accountability measures:  establish 24 

an in-season accountability measure where if the ACL is reached 25 

or projected to be reached within a fishing year, the Assistant 26 

Administrator for Fisheries shall file a notification with the 27 

Office of the Federal Register to close the appropriate 28 

sector(s) for the remainder of the fishing year.  The motion 29 

carried on page 187. 30 

 31 

PAGE 187:  Motion in Action 8, to add a new Alternative 4.  32 

Alternative 4 would be if the ACL for a given year is exceeded, 33 

in the following year implement in season accountability 34 

measures as described in Alternative 3.  The motion carried on 35 

page 188. 36 

 37 

PAGE 188:  Motion that in Action 8, for reef fish, royal red 38 

shrimp stocks and sectors with ACLs that do not currently have 39 

accountability measures, except vermilion snapper, the preferred 40 

alternative is Alternative 4, Option a. and Option d.  41 

Alternative 4 is if the ACL for a given year is exceeded in the 42 

following year, implement in season accountability measures as 43 

described in Alternative 3 and that would be Option a, trigger 44 

the AM if the annual landings exceed the ACL and Option d, do 45 

not apply overage adjustments.  Then for vermilion snapper, the 46 

preferred alternative is Alternative 3, Option a. and Option d.  47 

Option a is trigger the AM if the annual landings exceed the ACL 48 
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and Option d is do not apply overage adjustments.  The motion 1 

carried on page 189. 2 

 3 

PAGE 205:  Motion to approve the Exempted Fishing Permit request 4 

by the Gulf and South Atlantic Fisheries Foundation, Inc.  The 5 

motion carried on page 205. 6 

 7 

PAGE 209:  Motion to discuss sector separation/sector quotas at 8 

the August 2011 council meeting.  The motion failed on page 210. 9 

 10 

PAGE 238:  Motion to move the OY language from Action 4.2 into 11 

Action 4.3 and set OY equal to the annual catch target.  The 12 

Gulf Council motion carried on page 238.  The South Atlantic 13 

Council motion carried on page 238. 14 

 15 

PAGE 238:  Motion in Action 4.3 that the preferred alternative 16 

be Alternative 2, Option a, to set the ACT for the entire stock 17 

and the ACT is equal to 90 percent of the ACL.  The Gulf Council 18 

motion carried on page 238.  The South Atlantic Council motion 19 

carried on page 238. 20 

 21 

PAGE 239:  Motion that in Action 8 to modify preferred 22 

Alternative 3 to read: Revise the current regulations to clearly 23 

state that all vessels must have either 1) a valid federal spiny 24 

lobster permit or 2) a valid Florida Restricted Species 25 

Endorsement and a valid Crawfish Endorsement associated with a 26 

valid Florida Saltwater Products License to obtain a tailing 27 

permit.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 239.  The South 28 

Atlantic Council motion carried on page 240. 29 

 30 

PAGE 240:  Motion in Action 9 to adopt Alternative 1 and request 31 

that industry representatives, along with NMFS/NOAA and Marine 32 

Sanctuary representatives work together to define areas of 33 

important habitat to protect Acropora coral.  The Gulf Council 34 

motion carried on page 240.  The South Atlantic Council motion 35 

carried on page 240. 36 

 37 

PAGE 240:  Motion in Action 10 that the preferred alternative be 38 

Alternative 1, no action.  The Gulf Council motion carried on 39 

page 240.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 40 

241. 41 

 42 

PAGE 241:  Motion to modify the language in Action 11 to read: 43 

Authority to Remove Derelict or Abandoned Spiny Lobster Traps 44 

Found in the EEZ off of Florida.  The Gulf Council motion 45 

carried on page 242.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried 46 

on page 242. 47 

 48 
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PAGE 246:  Motion to recommend to full council to submit Spiny 1 

Lobster Amendment 10 to the Secretary of Commerce for 2 

implementation.  The South Atlantic Council motion passed on 3 

page 247.  The Gulf Council motion passed on page 249. 4 

 5 

PAGE 250:  Motion to deem the proposed rule as necessary and 6 

appropriate and give the council chairs authority to make any 7 

necessary changes.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on 8 

page 251.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 253. 9 

 10 

PAGE 253:  Motion to copy Action 9 and Action 10 into their own 11 

amendment.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 254.  The 12 

South Atlantic motion carried on page 254. 13 

 14 

PAGE 259:  The motion is that council staff compose a letter to 15 

Executive Director John Hankinson of the Gulf Coast Ecosystem 16 

Restoration Task Force (Task Force) to provide input on the Task 17 

Force’s Gulf Restoration Strategy due October 5, 2011.  This 18 

letter shall briefly describe the importance of restoring marine 19 

ecosystem health and fishery resources.  More specifically, the 20 

letter shall recommend that the Task Force include in its 21 

Restoration Strategy an Ecosystem Restoration Goal dedicated to 22 

the implementation of an endowed Gulf of Mexico fisheries data 23 

collection, applied research and ecosystem monitoring program.  24 

The letter shall explain that the program be established for 25 

these reasons: 1)Track the status, trends and recovery of 26 

coastal, estuarine and marine habitats, and fishery species; 27 

2)Enhance scientific knowledge of environmental or oceanographic 28 

factors affecting fisheries productivity to support better 29 

predictions of stock health and catch potential; 3)Supply long-30 

term, time-series data on fishery species health that resource 31 

managers can use for adaptive management, a “foundational 32 

element” identified by the Task Force to improve fisheries 33 

management; 4)Lead to innovations in more selective fishing 34 

gear, habitat-friendly gear, etc., based on the results of 35 

applied fisheries research; and 5)Provide a tracking tool for 36 

evaluating effectiveness of restoration efforts so that the 37 

public and decision makers can ‘course correct’ if needed.  The 38 

motion carried on page 261. 39 

 40 

PAGE 262:  Motion to accept Alternative 3, Option 1 as the 41 

preferred alternative under Action 2.  The South Atlantic 42 

Council motion carried on page 262.  The Gulf Council motion 43 

carried on page 263. 44 

 45 

PAGE 263:  Motion to adopt the revised wording for Action 13-3.  46 

The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 263.  The Gulf 47 

Council motion carried on page 263. 48 
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 1 

PAGE 263:  Motion to adopt the revised wording for Action 13-4.  2 

The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 263.  The Gulf 3 

Council motion carried on page 263. 4 

 5 

PAGE 263:  Motion to adopt the revised wording for Action 13-5.  6 

The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 263.  The Gulf 7 

Council motion carried on page 263. 8 

 9 

PAGE 263:  Motion to adopt the revised wording for Action 14.  10 

The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 264.  The Gulf 11 

Council motion carried on page 264. 12 

 13 

PAGE 264:  Motion that in Action 14 that Option 2c, 3c, and 4c 14 

be the preferred options.  The South Atlantic Council motion 15 

carried on page 264.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 16 

264. 17 

 18 

PAGE 264:  Motion for the purpose of tracking the ACL, the 19 

Atlantic group king mackerel season will be March 1 through the 20 

end of February.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on 21 

page 264.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 265. 22 

 23 

PAGE 265:  Motion to adopt the following revised wording for 24 

Action 16-3.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 25 

265.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 266. 26 

 27 

PAGE 266:  Motion to use the same approach the SSC used in 28 

calculating ABC for Atlantic group Spanish mackerel using sector 29 

landings for the ten-year timeframe instead of total landings 30 

for the ABC calculation.  The South Atlantic Council motion 31 

carried on page 266. 32 

 33 

PAGE 266:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 34 

Action 16-4.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 35 

266.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 267. 36 

 37 

PAGE 267:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 38 

Action 16-5.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 39 

267.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 268. 40 

 41 

PAGE 268:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 42 

Action 17, which is to set Options 2c, 3c, and 4c as preferred 43 

options and to set the accounting period for recreational and 44 

commercial equal to the commercial fishing year.  The South 45 

Atlantic Council motion carried on page 268.  The Gulf Council 46 

motion carried on page 268. 47 

 48 
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PAGE 268:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 1 

Action 18.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 2 

268.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 268. 3 

 4 

PAGE 268:  Motion to change the preferred alternative in Action 5 

18 to Alternative 1, no action.  The South Atlantic Council 6 

motion carried on page 268.  The Gulf Council motion carried on 7 

page 268. 8 

 9 

PAGE 268:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 10 

Action 19-3, as stated.  The South Atlantic Council motion 11 

carried on page 269.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 12 

269. 13 

 14 

PAGE 269:  Motion in Action 19-3, Alternative 4, to remove the 15 

words “Gulf of Mexico Fishery Management Council Preferred from 16 

Option b”.  The motion carried on page 269. 17 

 18 

PAGE 269:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 19 

Action 19-4.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 20 

269.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 269. 21 

 22 

PAGE 269:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 23 

Action 19-5.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 24 

269.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 269. 25 

 26 

PAGE 270:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 27 

Action 19-6.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 28 

270.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 270. 29 

 30 

PAGE 270:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 31 

Action 20 and to select Options 3a, 4c, and 5c as preferred 32 

options and that the accounting for ACLs would be the commercial 33 

fishing year.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 34 

270.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 270. 35 

 36 

PAGE 270:  Motion to select Alternative 6 as the preferred 37 

alternative in Action 21.  The South Atlantic Council motion 38 

carried on page 272.  The South Atlantic Council motion was 39 

reconsidered on page 276.  The South Atlantic Council motion 40 

failed on page 278. 41 

 42 

PAGE 270:  Motion to adopt the proposed revised wording for 43 

Action 21.  The South Atlantic Council motion carried on page 44 

278.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 278. 45 

 46 

PAGE 273:  Motion under Action 21 to use Alternative 6, reworded 47 

to state: Reduce the recreational possession limit from two to 48 
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one cobia per day during the spawning season, April 1 through 1 

June 30.  The Gulf Council motion carried on page 275.  The Gulf 2 

Council motion was reconsidered on page 278.  The Gulf Council 3 

motion failed on page 278. 4 

 5 

PAGE 279:  Motion to start an amendment for king mackerel to 6 

include a transit clause and to increase the hook and line daily 7 

trip limit to 3,000 pounds.  The motion carried on page 280. 8 

 9 

PAGE 280:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Alternative 10 

2, to adopt the Gulf Council’s ABC control rule.  There was a 11 

side note that the SSC used Tier 3a to set the ABC at 1.46 12 

million pounds.  The motion carried on page 280. 13 

 14 

PAGE 280:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Alternative 15 

2, to set ACL equal to ABC for Gulf group cobia, which is 1.46 16 

million pounds based on preferred ABC, with Preferred Option a, 17 

to set a single stock ACL.  The motion carried on page 281. 18 

 19 

PAGE 281:  Motion that Alternatives 4 and 5, ACL equals 85 20 

percent and 80 percent of ABC, respectively, be moved to the 21 

considered but rejected section.  The motion carried on page 22 

281. 23 

 24 

PAGE 281:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Alternative 25 

2, set ACT at 90 percent of ACL for Gulf group cobia, which is 26 

1.31 million pounds, with Preferred Option a, to set a single 27 

stock ACT.  The motion carried on page 281. 28 

 29 

PAGE 281:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Preferred 30 

Alternative 2, set in-season AMs for Gulf group cobia, with 31 

Preferred Option a.  If the ACT is reached or projected to be 32 

reached within a fishing year, the Assistant Administrator for 33 

Fisheries shall file a notification with the Office of the 34 

Federal Register to close the fishery for the remainder of the 35 

fishing year.  The motion carried on page 281. 36 

 37 

PAGE 282:  Motion that the Preferred Alternative be Preferred 38 

Alternative 2, to adopt the Gulf Council’s ABC Control rule.  39 

[Note: the SSC used Tier 1 to set ABC through 2013] at 11.9 40 

million in 2012 and 10.8 million in 2013.  The motion carried on 41 

page 282. 42 

 43 

PAGE 282:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Preferred 44 

Alternative 2, set ACL equal to ABC for Gulf group king 45 

mackerel, which would be 11.9 million pounds for 2012.  Option a 46 

is set a single ACL.  Preferred Option b is set separate 47 

commercial and recreational ACLs based on current allocation.  48 
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Recreational would be 8.092 million pounds and commercial 3.808 1 

million pounds.  Preferred Option c is for the commercial 2 

sector, set separate ACLs for hook and line and run-around 3 

gillnets, hook and line receiving 3,200,386 pounds and gillnet, 4 

607,614 pounds.  The motion carried on page 282. 5 

 6 

PAGE 282:  Motion that Alternative 6, to set ACL equal to 75 7 

percent of ABC for Gulf group king mackerel, which is 8.9 8 

million pounds for 2012, be moved to the considered but rejected 9 

section.  The motion carried on page 282. 10 

 11 

PAGE 282:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Preferred 12 

Alternative 1, no action, do not set an ACT for Gulf group king 13 

mackerel.  The motion carried on page 282. 14 

 15 

PAGE 283:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Preferred 16 

Alternative 1, no action, retain current in-season 17 

accountability measures for Gulf group king mackerel with Option 18 

a. Commercial and Suboption i.  If the quota (=ACL) for a zone, 19 

subzone, or gear is reached or projected to be reached within a 20 

fishing year, the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will 21 

file a notification with the Office of the Federal Register to 22 

close that zone, subzone, or gear for the remainder of the 23 

fishing year.  Suboption ii.  If 75 percent of quota (=ACL) is 24 

reached or projected to be reached within a fishing year, the 25 

Assistant Administrator for Fisheries will file a notification 26 

with the Office of the Federal Register to reduce the trip limit 27 

to 500 pounds per day for the northern and southern west coast 28 

Florida subzones.  Option b, Recreational, The Regional 29 

Administrator has authority via the framework to revert the bag 30 

limit to zero if fishermen have achieved or are expected to 31 

achieve their allocation.  The motion carried on page 284. 32 

 33 

PAGE 284:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Preferred 34 

Alternative 2, adopt the Gulf Council’s ABC Control rule and 35 

note that the SSC used Tier 3a to set ABC at 5.15 million 36 

pounds.  The motion carried on page 284. 37 

 38 

PAGE 284:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Preferred 39 

Alternative 2, set the ACL equal to ABC for Gulf group Spanish 40 

mackerel, with Preferred Option a, set a single ACL.  The motion  41 

carried on page 284. 42 

 43 

PAGE 284:  Motion that Alternatives 4 and 5, ACL equals 85 44 

percent and 80 percent of the ABC, respectively, be moved to the 45 

considered but rejected section.  The motion carried on page 46 

285. 47 

 48 
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PAGE 285:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Alternative 1 

1, no action, do not set an ACT for Gulf group Spanish mackerel.  2 

The motion carried on page 285. 3 

 4 

PAGE 285:  Motion that the preferred alternative be Preferred 5 

Alternative 1, no action, retain current in-season 6 

accountability measures for Gulf group Spanish mackerel.  Option 7 

a, Commercial, if the quota (=ACL) is reached or projected to be 8 

reached within a fishing year, the Assistant Administrator for 9 

Fisheries will file a notification with the Office of the 10 

Federal Register to close the commercial sector for the 11 

remainder of the fishing year.  Option b, Recreational, the 12 

Regional Administrator has authority via the framework to revert 13 

the bag limit to zero if fishermen have achieved or are expected 14 

to achieve their allocation.  The motion carried on page 285. 15 

 16 

PAGE 285:  Motion that the Joint Mackerel Amendment 18 be sent 17 

to public hearings.  The motion carried on page 286. 18 

 19 

- - - 20 


